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i, CORPORATE PROFILE

We are an integrated real estate company based in Argentina. Since it was founded in 2005, we have focused on the development of
residential properties, and we are currently expanding inte the business of acquiring, developing, building and operating commercial real
estate in the office and logistics seetars.

Through our business model we identify attractive real estate apportunities, land purchases, designs, developments, constructions and
projects in the real estate market, and provide specialized value-added services that maintain or increase the value of bath our and our
client's value of the real estate properties. Despite the economic challenges Argentina is facing, since our creation in 2005 we have
achieved a significant growth, with total contracted sales that have increased from $ 161.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, the year previous to our initial public offering in the Buznos Aires Stock Market {the "MERVAL"), to $ 1,067 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017,

We have been and continue to be supported by important institutional investors as strategie shareholders, including PointArgentum and
Bienville Argentina Opportunity Fund, which each currently own 13.6% of the commion shares. Qur senior management has wide
experfence in greating successful real estate companies, having founded some of the most outstanding real estate companies in
Argentina, such as Adecoagre and Creaurban. Our frontline management has been with us for more than 10 years and has developed
more than 600,000 square meters in 12 large projects.

On Qctoher 29, 2010, we completed our initial public offering and s quotation in the MERVAL, where we are currently listed under the
*1GLT symbol. A portion of the shares is sold abroad jn the form of global certificates of depesit, or GDRs, which was subsequently
updated to a sponsored Leval 1 program of American Depositary Receipts, which are currently traded in the US over-the-counter market,

Qur integrated business model consists of two business lines:

. Residentiol: Since our cregtion in 2005, we have developed muitifamily residences and mixed-use projects for sale in Buenos Aires
and Rosarip, Argenting, and in Monteviden, Uruguay, targeting medium-high-income segments. We currently have 12 large
residential projects under development, consisting of 95 buildings and more than 600,000 square meters, and have identified
several Premium sites whose purchase and development is currently undar evaluation process.

. Commerciol: We intend to strategically develop and acquire Premium office buildings for rent and first quality logistics centers in
the metropolitan area of Buenos Aires.

We have developed high quality brands that boost the demand of our properties and have allowed us to increase the profitability of our
projects. In the residentia! sector, our brands include:

s Forurn:Forum is our top brand through which we market our luxury projects. The sites that carry the Forum brand are ssuatlly more
than 30,000 sqixare meters with units typically ranging in stze from 120 to 350 square meters, suitable for high-income famifies. Qur
developments under the Forum brand are emblematic projects, including Forum Puerte Madero, Forem Puerto Norte, Forum
Alcorta and Forum Peerto del Buceo,

= Astor: Astor is the brand through which we focus on top quality projects in the medlum-high income segment, including projects
ranging from 10,000 to 25,000 square meters and units usually ranging from 50 to 120 square meters. Astor units are usually sought
by small families, couples and real estate investors. Astor projects include Astor Palermo, Astor Nafiez and Astor 5an Telmo.

e Metra: Through our Metra brand we focus on the average revenue segment of the market, with units ranging in size from 40 10 90
square meters, Buyers of properties in our Metra developments can participate in 2 cooperative financing scheme that allows them
to pay thekr units in affordable installments for geriods of up 1o 10 years, including post-defvery fnancing.

in addition to our Forum, Astor and Metra projects, we aiso currently develop mixed-use projects, which inciude our Venice and Brisaric
developments, with 252,680 and 133,779 square meters of total saleahle patential area, respectivaly, which include residentiaf spaces,
offices and commaergial premises, marketed to different market segments.

With the strategic objective of expanding the Company's operations ta the construction business, on January 19, 2018 we acquired
£2,329% of the shares of CAPUTO SAICYF, one of the most active and prestigious construction tompanies in the country, with more than
500 works completed in its 80-year history and listed in the Buenos Adres Stock Exchange since 1955. Also, and in compliance with the
provistons of the Capital Markets Law and regulations of the Argentine Securities and Exchange Commission {CNV), TOLT will make in 2
timely manner a public offering of compulsory acquisition and voluntary exchange of shares addressed to the holders of the remaining
CAPUTO common shares, in order to acquire 100% of that company’s share capital. This acquisition aims, on one hand, to nprove the
construction capacity of our projects, making the cost structure more efficient, and at the same time giving us the possibility of capturing
the canstruction margin in a context of significant industry expansion. On the other hand, it allows us to position ourselves in an optimal
position to capitalize on the opportunities presented by the growth of the construction sector in Argentina, both in the real estate
segments and in tha large infrastructure projects, inctuding PPP investments {Public-Private Partnership projects},

TGLT Business Model
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Since our creation in 2005, we have developed multifamily and mixed-use residential sales projects in Buenos Aires and Rosario,
Argentina and Montevideo, Uruguay, focusing on medium to high-income segments. We currently have 10 large resldential projects
under development, consisting of 95 buildings and more than 600,000 square meters, and have identified severaf additional first-class
sites and specific actions that are in the evaluation process for purchase and development.

Gur residential business model is hased on our experience in the identification and developmant of top quality land plots and the
coastruction of high guality housing projects. We have a highly gualified team in al key areas of real estate development and
ftanagemant, including, smong others, the identification and purchase of land plots, building permits, project management, marketing
and sales, The recent acquisition of CAPUTO will allow us 0 strengthen the development processin a key phase, through the integration
of the construction process to our company. Our experienced team, together with the standardization of our processes and our
sophisticated management tools allows us to constantly faunch new projects, as well as successfolly carry out & large number of them
simultaneously.

We participate in our projects, either independentiy or with strategic partners, who in alf cases are fully committed to each project, in
fine with the objectives of our shareholders, By jointly investing, we select our co-investment partners based on their experience in
investment, management and development of similar properties, and we keep control of the prapetties.

We manage and participate in all aspects of our real estate developments, fram the search and purchase of the jand, to the design of
products, marketing, sales, construction, purchase of supplies, after-sales services, and financial plasning, with the assistance of
speciatized companies In each stage of development, Aithough the Company keeps the responsibility of making decisions and controfling
these functions, the execution of certain tasks that require greater specialization, such as architectural design, may be derived to
spetialized companies under our close suparvision.

This business modet afiows us to achieve excellence In production for each location and segment, to ensure effective management of
working capital, and to choose the best possible partner for each aspect of the development, while maintaining an orpanizatisnat
structure capable of adapting to the changes in the volume of business. Qur businass modet offers fast management of zarthworks. Upon
the purchase of a land plot, we try to initiate the project stages within three to six months. However, if the scate and characteristics of
the property and the project allow so, project is carrfed out in stages for severaf years, which allows certain land portions to be
malntained in arder to generate profits as a result of its appreciation,

The table below presents the different phases of the development of our residenttal projects, and our strategy regarding each of them:

S i
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Corporate Structure

As of December 31, 2017 the structure of TGLT economic group {hareinafter “the Group”™} is the folfowing:

TGLY 5.A.
ap8e5 1008 |
Marina Rio Lujin TGLT Uruguay
S.A.
100% |
FOB S.A.

The Company carries out the development of its real estate projects through TGLY 5.A. or its subsidiaries. Marina Ric Lujén 5.A. s the
owner of the fand plot where Vienice project is being carried out. TGLT Uruguay 5.A. is 2n investment company in Uruguay, which acts as
a holding company for aur prajects in that country. FOB $.A. is a business company domiciled in Montevidea, Uruguay carrying out the
Forum Puerto del Buceo real estate project in the dity of Montevideo, Uruguay. Ali the other projects are carried out directly by TGLT
S.A.

As datailed in Section IV Other Retevant Transactions, on October 13, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the merger of Canfot and
TGLT, effective as of October 1, 2016,

On January 19, 2018, the Company acquived 82.32% of the shares of CAPUTO SAICYF and, pursuant to the provisions of the Capital
Markets Law and regulations of the CNY, will make a public offering in dug time for the compulsory acquisition and voluntary exchange
of shares addressed to the holders of remaining common shares, in order {o acquire 100% of that company’s share capital.

Shareholders

Shargholders

The Company’s issued, subscribed and paid-in capitat as of the date of this Report amounts to § 70,349,485, As of that date, the capital
registered hefore the Inspeccion General de Justicia (1G]~ Superintendence of Corporations) amounts to $ 70,349,485 and is distributed
among the shareholders according to the following table;

Bec 31, 2016

Shareholders Shares interest
M. Faderico Nicolds Weil 13,808,745 19.6%
Blenville Argentina Opportunities Master Fund LP 9,560,830 13.6%
PointArgentum Master Fund LP 9,560,830 13.6%
Mr. Michael Tennenbaum 7,270,218 10.3%
IRSA Propledades Comerciales 5.A. 6,671,712 8.5%
Serengeti Asset Managamant 5,008,883 7.1%
Cther holders of American Depositary Recelptis reprasenting

Common Sharas {ADRs) 15,035,907 21.4%
TGLT 5.A, 10,000 0.01%
Other holders of Comman Shares 3,424,260 4.9%
Total Share Capital 70,349,485 100%

Due to the potential for expansion and financing needs to meet future ¢hallenges, the Comgpany issued a convertible note for YSD 150
million, which brought about the possibility of a future change in the capital structure,

H. ECONOMIC CONTEXT

international Context

At plobal level, growth was strengthened during 2017. According to OECD estimates, the global gross product grew by 3,7%, a significant
improvement if compared to the 3.1% of 2016, No less important is the fact that this growth was presented simuitaneously in almost all



TGLT 5.A.

ANNUAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

countries, with the G28 group growing on average 2.93% and with growth projections for 2018, However, this generalized impulse js

mainly supperted by monetary and fiscal stimui, while the recovery of private investment is stilf modest, and growth of wages and
preductivity continue moderate.

Within the financial markets, the vulnerahilities appear from different fronts, low interest rates and low volatility in markats have

stimulated risk taking. Corporate and individual indebtedness jevels are high and keep growing, which generates fragility at the time of
facing possible economic disturbances.

2017 was also challenging from tha political point of view, Farly in 2018 Donald Trump won the elections, followed by the Brexit. The
nationalist currents seemed to gain momentum in 2017 with the partiai victories of Marine Le Pen in France and Geert Wilders in the
Netherlands. Among the mast important events was the escalation of tension between the United States and North Korea and probably
2018 will 3iso be a key year, with China gaining power and intervening to avoid a conflict in the region. The legislative elections in the

United States and the presidential elections in some of the fargest economies in Latin Amarica such as Brazil, Mexico and Colombiz will
undoubtedly define part of the year's agenda.

As for the largest trading partners of our country, 2017 was varied. China continued the trend of moderate growth reduction, with 6.8%
for 2017 according to Euramonitor International, The Government of Xi linping is increasingly focusing its efforts to reduce ineguality,
prioritizing consumption and decrgasing the relative importance of showing high growth rates within the next five years. This change,
together with an improvement in #ife quality of miflions of Chinese, keeps that countey as the most attractive consumer market in the
world, Likewise, Brazil started 2 slow recovery process in 2017 after experiencig a drop in its product during eight consecutive quarters.
Low inflation, even below the objectives of the Brazilian Central Bank, would justify a more flexible monetary policy, which should
contribute to consolidate the improvement in activity, which is already revealing itself beyond the agricultural sector, as it was in the
beginning, After an increase in retail sales, including durable goods, automobiles ang construction materials, the focus - and hopes - are
set onimproving investment, Unemployment reached its top and is already one point below the peak of 14% reached at the heginaing
of the year. OECD projections for 2018 indicate that China could grow by 6.3%, in line with the aferementioned mederation of growth
and Brazit would consalidate the recovery with an advance of its 50P of sround 1.9%.

The Argentine Economy

in a recent publication, the International Menetary Fund refeased its projections for Argentina, concluding that the economy grew by
2.8% In 2017. As main explanations, the entity pointed out the Goverament's progress in terms of transparency of the public sector
transactions, together with the correction of multipte imbalances. It also explained that there was a strengthening of consumption
compared ta 2016, thanks to improvements in actua! wages and credit availability, and that investment also showed positive signs. Going
forward, the authorities of the organization expressed their expectations that growth continue to consolidate along with fow inflation.
Finally, they stated that, while they expect reductions in primary deficit, the financial deficit for 2018 will be higher than iast year's as a
resuit of the debt’s interest charges,

Regarding inflation, although the goals proposed for the year were not met since, according to INDEC figures it was 24.8% in its national
version, the BCRA team is trying to communicate that core inflation, that which excludes the movement of regulated prices, showed
mare encouraging sigas by indicating a variation of almast four percentage points tess. This difference was much clearer in December,
whete the general index showed an Increase of 3.1% versus 1.7% of the core. Towards the end of the year, the Ministries of Economy
and Finance and the Central Bank jointly announced a change in inflations goafs for the coming years. The officers explained the change
from a target-range instrument to a one-time estimate and that the goal of lowering inflation to one digit was delayed by one vear. in
this way, inflation targets remained at 15%, 10% and 5% for 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively.

As for the fiscal aspect, the Government had an achlevemant ta show. In a recent conference, the Minister of Economy Nicolds Dujowne
reported that the goal was exceeded by 0.3 percentage points of GDP, that is, the deficit as a percentage of GDP was 3.9% when the goal
was 4.2%. This is s0 even considering a strong reduction in the Treasury's revenue dye to the tax amnesty plan, which had the maost
important impact in 2016, while income refated to internal activity had a better performance. in this regard, Gross VAT, which
contributed $ 765,336 M, 31.2% more than in 2018, and the income Tax, which registered an increase of + 28.2% year-on-year {5 555,023
M}, were the taxes that recorded higher revenuss compared {o the previous year,

Regarding external accounts, in the third quarter of 2017, the current account registered a deficit of US $ 8,683 million, as a result af the
negative balance of the balance of goods and services of US $ 4,482 million, a net primary income debit of US $ 4,158 millien and a
secondary income deficit of US $ 44 million. This result is added to the deficits of the first and second quarters, which amounted to US $
7,158 million and US $ 6,635 mitilon, respectively.

Finally, according to the latest data released by the INDEC {Nationa! Statistics and Census Institute), total foreign debt rose to US 5
216,351 million at the end of the third quarter of the year, 14.6% more than registered during the same period last year, when it reached
US $ 188,778 millton.
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The Real Estate industry

Regional Comparison

Housing deficit in Argentina is approximately of 3.5 million homes and estimations indicate it will increase to 36,000 homes per year.
However, the shortage of cradit for middle and lower income segments of the population, as weli as the fimited intervention of the State
in the promaotion of housing through subsidies in recent years, fas generated that a large proportion of this demand remains unsatisfied,

Although Argentina is one of the countries with the highest GDP per capita and the highest proportion of urban popuiation In Ltatin
America, it has one of the highest housing deficits in the region according to the {atest available DB {Inter-Amerlcan Development Bank}
D8 surveys.

In Argentina, private savings are an important driver of real estate investment and private housing construction. We befieve that real
estate is perceived in our country as a higher guality instrument for the preservation of valug and / orincome than bank deposits or fixed
income securities. in addition, they represent protection against inflation and currency depreciation, since real estate has historically
maintainad its value in US dollars, except for brief periods following economic crises. Consequently, we also belleve that the purchase of
real estate is one of the most popular investment alternatives among Argentine savers,

Competition in the regional market

The residential development market in Argenting is a highly fragmented market, composed of smali and medium- sized entreprensurs.
Mast of the developers are small companies, focused on specific geographic markets and products, with fimited access to capital and
management models strongly focussed on their owner. There are few companies that were set up to carry out devefopments, most of
these ventures are run by companies or professionals related to the development business from different perspectives, such as
architects, real estate fiems, notary publics o building campanies, Many of these companies run both thelr main business and the
devalopment activity at the same time.

The number of companies that participate in the markets where TGLT operates with large multi-family developments {of more than
20,000 salable square meters) is small. Out of these, only a small number have access to institutional investors, the most promisent
being Consultatio, Creatrban, Monarca, Raghsa and Vizora. There are other developers of large residential projects whose owners have
wide experience and good standing in the market such as Chacofi, Dypsa, Kineret and Obras Civiles in Buenos Aires; Aldo Latuccs and
Fundar in Rosario, and Welss Sziryk Weiss in Uruguay, among others,

In the construction segment ranging from 10,000 to 20,000 m2, there are about 3¢ companies operating at the national level, with a
continuous structure and constant activity. in the segment of less than 10,000 m2, a much larger number of participants can be found.

tn recent years, an increasing number of devefopments have adopted a real estate trust model {fideicomiso al costol. Some developers
- sitch as Argencons - have specialized in this business model, where financing comes from small investors who are both trustees and
heneficiaries.

Perspective and historical trends

The performance of the reat estate market is highly influenced by the evolution of macroeconomic vartables such as inflation and the
variation of the exchange rate, fluctuation of the GDP, the level of actual wages and interest rates. Access to mortgage jean is a key
condition for the demand for housing to be adequately satisfied.

The accelerated rise in the price level and abrupt variations in exchange rate distort refative prices and generate uncertainty, causing
daclines in econamic activity, especially at the investment lavel. In addition, they result In a loss of purchasing power of actual wages,
rise tendency of sale prices due to costs and pressure on the Interest rate. in this context, launching of new projects decreases as well as
the demand on existing inventory. it should be noted, however, that Argentinean peapte have gone through periods of high inflation and
devaluation many times in recent decades; therefore, they have fearned to react skififully in the face of these instability scenrarias that
could paralyze the activity in other countries, In fact, between 2003 and 2008, Argentina's GDP grew at an average annual rate of over
2% and the housing market experienced a construction boom even when inflation reached double-digit levels.

However, after the 2001 post-crisis recovery and until 2015, there have been two important factors that have deteriorated the
performance of the rasidentiat market, such as exchange controls and, mairly, 2 weak mortgage toan market.

In the first place, the foreign exchange controls, known as "exchange clamp" ond enforced as from 2012, #imited the free purchase of
foreign currency to companies and individuals for any purpose whatsoever, either to huy a house or for saving. This had a great adverse
effect an the real estate market since it was traditionaBy a dollatized market in which transactions were usually made in doliar bills. From
this, the market had to adapt and start thinking in pasos adjusted for inflation, since the measure also prohibited the publication of prices
in foraign currency. Adaptation was not easy, especially because of the well-known maniputation of officiat inflation statistics since 2007
thraugh INDEC, which generated the need to look for an alternative price adjustment index. All these series of measures and bad
expectations worsened over time and hindered the operation of the business, since companias were forced to act in a way while the
public kept its conception of dolfarized prices,

Secondly, short offer of mortgage loans (as discussed below) has slowed down the market. This situation resulted from the caretess
attention on the part of the State that did not guarantee the macroeconomic conditions necessary for long-term tredit to be feasible to
banks, mainly by creating a long-term sconomic plan that could guarantee inflation at one-digit levels. The chart helow shows that

10
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through one of the periods of higher growth of the Argentine economy Inits history, 2003-2008, the number of real estate transactions
recorded in 2000 has barely been exceeded.

Transactions in the City of BA {thousands}

‘00-18 change: {56%;)

Capital controls }

r
1
E

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Sowrne: Assaciation of Netarips Pubilic of the City 0F Buangy Airas

With the change of Government, both measures so damaging 6 the sector were reversed. The exchange rate was raised in the first
month of administration and, more recently, the introduction of UVA (Purchase Value Unit) instruments has made it possible for people
ta turn again to mortgage loans in order to acquire 2 home,

Demand trends

The growth of the Argentine population, the high percentage of young pecple in relation to the total population, the decraase in the
number of inhabitants per househotd and the preference of Argentineans to be hameowners or to buy real estate as an investment will
continue to support the potentiat of the Argentine real estate market in the coming decades.

Although population growtir rate has been decreasing in line with most of the countries of intermediate development, the Argentine
populstion presented a growth rate of .0% in tha last decade, which 5 expected to be maintained by the next few years, according to
INDEC. Likewise, the median age of Argentineans is 3% years, well below that of developed countries {Italy 43.3, Spain 41,1, France 39.4,
Australia 37.3, United States 36.7), while 60% of the inhabitants are under the age of 35, according to the 2010 census conducted by
INDEC. This young population rapresents a solid source of housing demand for the future,
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Mortgoge Loan

Until the 2001 crisis, Argentina had been a ploneer couatry within Latin America, developing a dynamic primary and secondary mortgage
market. The first securitizations of mortgages In Latin America wete made in Argentina and by the end of the 90s several groups of
investors were actlvely participating in this market of mortgage bonds, including pension funds, insurance companies, professionat
associations, financial institutions and retall investors, In December 2000, mortgage penetration reached 6% of the gross domestic
product, surpassing the current levels of mortgage penetration in countries such as Brazil. However, after the crisis, banks drastically
reduced the offer of mortgages in favor of other products with greater profitability and shorter term, such as credit cards or personal
loans.

As aiready mentioned, the current government has begun to take measures specifically designed to encourage the real estate business,
and one of the most important is the introduction of mortgage loans adjusted by UVA (Purchase Value Unit). So far, this instrument has
been very well received by hath offerors and applicants as shown in the graph below:
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If the penetration of mortgages in Argentina returned to the lavels of the year 2000 almost 463 thousand homes could be financed, and
if the levels of Mexico or Chile were reached, 748 thousand and 1.3 million homes respectively could be financed per year. This would
greatly heip reduce the housing deficit of more than 3 million households in Argentina.

Total of mortgages in the city of Buenos Aires Mortgage Loans Market
{in thousands of mortgages} {as a percentage of the GDP}
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Main Trends

*  Reduce travel time to yaur workplace. The explosive growth that the development of gated neighborhoods has had during the fast
0 decades has not been accompaniad by road infrastructure or pubkic transportation to reduce vehlcular traffic. Consequently,

commute time from and to work centars has inereased considerably, posing a dilemma for those who have migrated to the suburbs:
space and greenness versus commute time,

*  Securlty as a central element in the decision to purchase a home. Since the early 90s, the segment with the highest purchasing
power has privileged homes that offer security. In recent years, the trend has also been reflected within the cities, where prices of

housing complexes that offer perimeter security and permanent surveillance are higher than other products with similar
characteristics but withaut security.

*  Amenities have become an essential part of the supply of high-end homes. Midsifamily developments are increasingly offering
complementary services, amenities, that typicaily include spaces for sports or recreationai activities and hotel services. The new
high-end buiidings usuaily offer within their amenitiest gym with changing rooms, sauna, muitipurpose room, swimming pool,
private gardens and 24-hour security

*  Riverside cities in Argentina have reverted their tendency to grow with their back to the river. Histaricaily, coastal strips in
Argentine were not used for residentiat purpeses; their main uses were urban, generally ports and industries. Since the heginning
of the 90s coastal cities of Argentina have rescued ang integrated their coastal areas for residential and recreational use, reassessing
the coast of the rivers over the inland areas. Cities tke Buenos Aires {Puerto Madero, Olivos coast, Tigre coast), Rosario {Puerto
Norte) and Neuquén have seen new urban areas flourish with a great real estate success.

Qur vision

Qver the past two decades, the development of housing in Latin American markets has grown exponentially, as a consequence of
government housing finance programs, the professionatization of real estate development companies and their access to capital markets,
8razil, Mexico and Chite expertenced a boom in their respective rea! estate markets during the same period. These countries have created
the necessary conditions for private sector parties to respond to housing deficit, Mexico has an estimated deficit of 7.5 million
hauseholds, while in Brazil the deficit is 18.9 million. These figures have been graduafly decreasing in recent years, mostly due to the
¢reation and growth of large residential development companies,

This transformation has been driven because developers and buyers were given the possibility to have access to bank financing. n these
markets, governments have heen successful in boosting the real estate business by creating accessible housing credit programs for alf
socioeconomic levels, managed hy government agencies {infonavit in Mexico or Caixa Econdmica Federal in Brazil). On the other hand,
private sector companies that already had access to capita markets have been able to meet this new demand.

We believe that the new economic scenario started at the beginning of 20186, with greater availabifity of credits, stability and commerciat
openness, will result in greater opportusities for the reat estate Industry. Also, with an improvement in the mortgage loan market, more
people wilt be akie to access both their first house and a new and better home, thus boosting prices upwards,

Due to the expansion potential and financing needs to meet future challenges, the Company issued a convertible note for US § 150
milfion, in aceordance with the accounting policies, the conversion option was recognized as an equity instrument of the Company,
strengthening its capitai base. One of the objectives of the use of these funds is the possitility of strengthening its position in the
residential market and enter the commercial property market thraugh the acquisition and development of a profitable office portfolic.
S0, we are actively managing the acquisition of land for new projects in the metropolitan area of Buenos Aires, with the intention of
taunching naw projects in the near future, In this regard, the recent acquisition of 2 Jand plot in Catalinas for US 3 40.5 million is another
step in the way of taking advantage of business opportunities in areas with high cormmaercial potential.

inside, the Company continzes to strengthen the processes, systems and human resources structure to streamline jts cutrrent operation
and the management of new projects insofar as the market offers opportunities for further growth,
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Contracted Sales

in & year marked by the issuance of the Convertible Note for US $ 150 million at the beginning of the third quarter, which allowed us to
adiust our commercial strategy and increase prices between 15% and 20% in most of the prejects in order to maximize the creation of
value of our current portfolio and expand our margins, contracted sales reached § 702.4 million, 19% balow the sales level of 20186,
mainly explained by the lower Inveatary of units, having practically sold out the Farum Alcorta, Astor Palermo and Astor Ndfiez projects,
and driven by the solid performances of Forum Puerto del Buceo and, mainly, Astor San Telmo.

tontractnd salex - Urnits soid Asverape price peraold
$ milfion sqm {5
1%
{29%)

2016 2017 016 2017 2016 208y
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Summary of our real estate developments

FORUM:

Project Farum Puerto Norte Forum Alcorta Forum Puerto del Bucea

Bajo Belgrana, City of
Buenos Anres

ngh -
Urban CompIex

Loeation

Resario, Santa fe

Montevideo, Uruguay

Segmem
YR

.. ngh ......
_ UrbanCompIex o
_Coastal

LandPlot(m2) 3000 L 7es
Saleablearea(m2) s

Parking spaces: 526 Parking spaces: 380 : Parking spaces: 406
Other saleable units :

Nauticat garages: 88

431.5 1,1281 USS 143.5

Amillions of §) s

14,1281 US$ 143.5

Sold area as of 12!31!17 {mz} 52, 639 39,763

38, 206
LT

Hoftotalaunched
Umts sold as of 12,!31/17

452 269

Parkmg spaces: 526 Parking spaces: 320

Other Units sold as of 12/31/17

Mautical garages: 88

Contracted Sales as of 12/31/17

98
{millions of 5} 4315 uss

Softotollounched gy LT
Contracted Sales in 2017 {m:limns ;

Of $ } : - Uss17.1

Constructmn progress as of :
12/31/17 {execution of capital ; 106%
hudget exciudmg Land)

T7%

Construction progress as of
12/31/17 {execution of capital
budget, including Land}

100% 7a%

Under construction

Stage Delivery Defivery’ Stage 2
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ASTOR:

Project Astor Palerme Astor Nifiez Astor San Telmo

San Telmo, Ciudad de
Buenos Aires

| Ndfiez, Ciudad de Buenos
Aires

Palermo, Ciudad de
Buenos Aires

Location

. Medum
Multifamily

Medlum- _High
Multifamily

Medmm .ngh
Muitifamlly

Ty
Features

0
Cas

:.Land {m2]
_Saleable Area {mZ)

Residential Parking Lots: ! Residential Parklngmts
188 273

Commercial Parking Lots:
: 1711

Other saleable units Parking Lots: 309

Commerciat Parking Lots:

“Total estimated Potential Sales
Value (PSV) {miflions of §)

P&V taunched (mll ions of S}

394.0 1,445.3

1.449.8

394 0

Sold area as of 12}31!1? {mz} 14,763 20,291 '; 14,492

UL B S

L doos \
297 238

Hoftowlloonched

Units sold as of 12/31/17 210

Residential Parking Lots: | Residential Parking Lots: - .
; 186 246 Parking Lots: 182

Other Units Sold as of 12/31/17

Commerciat Parking Lots: Commercial Parking Lots: :

171

Contracted sales as of 12/31/17

{milfions of 3} 392.3

640.8

:I.% of tora! .‘aunched ~

Contracted sales in 2017 (md[ions

of $}

Construction progress as of

26B.8

12/31/17 (execution of capital 98% 96% -
budget, excluding Land) ;

Construction progress as of

12/31/17 {execution of capital 59% 97% -

budget, including Land)

Stage : Delivery ; Belivery i Under construction
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URBAN COMPLEXES AND METRA:

Project Metra Puerto Norte Proa Venice (1)

Location Rosaria, Santa Fe

Rosario, Santa Fe Tigre, Buenos Alres

segmem. o

H.gh/Mediu mngh .

rban Complex

2011

Coastaf

m\‘éar of acquisu
Land {mz} )
_ Sa!eabie Area (mz}

..33c.000

Parkmg Lots: 881 Parking Lots: 691

Other saleable units

Nautical garages and
marinas: 38

“Total estimated Potent
Value (PSV) (millions of §)

PsV Iaunched {mllhons of$}

33809 2,586.4

So!d area as of 12;"31[17 (mz}

13,796

21,924

%of tota! faunched ] 61_%_ |

266

Units sotd as of 12{31117
. 62%

32¢

Parking Lots: 169 - : Parking Lots: 294

Other Units Sold as of 12/31/17 Nautical garages and

matinas: 18

Contracted sales as of 12/31/17

{millions of §} 513.8

Hoftotallaunched R S

Contracted sales in 2017 {rm!lmns :

- 211
of $)

Construr:non progress as of

12/31/17 {execution of capital 22% - 51%

hudget excludmg Land)

Construction progress as af
12/31/17 {execution of capital
budget, including Land)

25% - 51%

Under construction
Stage 1

Under Canstruction

Stage Stage 1

Design and Permits

____HJgh/Medlum nghv:‘_
Urbamzatmn o

53088
Parking Lots; 527
1,328.6

B

{1} information related to Venice is dlsclosed at 100%. In this chart, Interest of TGLT 5.A. in Marina Rio Lu;én the company that carries out the

devetopment of the Project, is 50%.
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OTHER RELEVANT TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of shares of Caputo S.ALC. Y F.

On January 19, 2018 the Company acquired from certain shareholders of Caputo Sociedad industrial, Comercial vy Financiera {the “Sellers”
and “Caputo”, respectively] a total of 138,267,489 common book-entry shares, with a par value of 4 1 and one vote each, representing
Soth 82.32% of the share capital and the votes of Caputo (the “Shares”), in accordance with the provisions of the apreements of purchase
and sale of shares that gavern the aforemantioned transaction {the “Documents of the Transaction” and the “Transaction”, respectively).
Consequently, pursuant to the Transaction, the Company has become a direct controller of Caputo,

The price agreed was WS $ 0.7914 per Share {equivatent to $ 15,116 per Share), which represents a total value of US § 109,474,891
{equivalent to $ 2,090,051,363.7) for the Shares. 48.90% of the Price has been paid on the day the transaction was completed, while the
remaining batance wifl be paid as follows: (2} 25.92% of the Price, on January 19, 2019; and {b) the remtaining 25.18% of the Price on
January 19, 2020, The Price is subject to possible further adjustments, according to the terms stated in the Transaction Documents.

As a security for the payment of the remaining balance of the Price, the Company has granted the Seifers a first ranking and preferential
pledge over the Sharas and, subsequently, a bank guarantee on first demand or standby letter of credit wiil be establshed in their favor,

tn accordance with the provisions of Capital Markets Law No. 25,831 and applicable regulations of the CNV, on January 26, 2018 TGLT
premoted a Mandatory Public Offering in cash and a Public Offer for Veluntary Exchange of shares (both offers, jointly referred to as the
“Gffer”) addressed to all holders of common book-entry shares, with a par value of § 1 each bearing one vote per share.

The Offer censists of (i} a mandatory public offering for the acquisition of the Shares at a price per Share that would be paid in cash {the
"Mandatory Public Offering "), and (i) 3 voluntary public offering to exchange the Shares for common shares of TGLT, ta the exchange
ratio to be determined (the "Voluntary Exchange Offer”).

Shareholders may opt to participate in the Mandatory Public Offering andfor in the Public Offer for Voluntary Exchange and/for maintain
their shareholding,

The Mandatory Public Offering shall not be subject to a minimum or maximum number of shares to be purchased and any numbar of
acceptances received will be maintained. The Public Offer for Voluntary Exchange shalf be for up to any number of shares necessary {o
mesat afi the applications fited under Public Offer for Voluntary Exchange, even in case all shareholders opt for the Voluntary Exchange
of shares. To such purpose, the Shareholders’ Meeting may decide that the pre-emptive right must not be applicable with respect 1o the
shares of TGLT being offered under the Public Gffer for Voluntary Exchange.

The Offer will be regarded as a voluntary acceptance by the shareholders of Capute.
1} Price of the Mandatory Public Offering

As single consideration and In accordance with the guidetines established by the Capitai Macket Law and the CRV regulations, the Cfferor
offers to pay the holders who decide to participate in the Mandatory Public Offering a fixed price of US $0.7914 per Shase (the "Price”}
which shall be paid in Argentine Pesos by conversion to the retail seller foreign-exchange rate published by Banco de la Nacién Argentina
at the closing of the business day immedistely preceding the launching of the Offer {which will take place as socon as the Offer is
authorized by the CNV), The price may be modified, provided, however, it is allowed by the rules and regulations in foree, and shall be
timely inforraed both in the prospectus and the Gffer documents.

in compliance with the requirements of Section 98 of the Capital Market Law, the Supervisory Committee and the Company's Audit
Cammittee have issued their opinion on tha Price, stating that it is reasonable and equitable.

Furthermore, for the purpose of setting the price, the Offeror had sought the opinion of twe independent appraisers, Quanturm Finanzas
5.4, and Finanzas y Gestidn 5.A,, pursuant to Section 5, Asticle |, Chapter 1, Title Il of the applicable CNV Rules. These opinions were
submitted to the CNV on January 26 together with the Offer and are available to the public investor on the CNV Financial Information
webpage {Autopista de Informacitn Financiera, AlF} and in the usual systems operated by BYMA {including the daily gazette published
by the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange} and Mercado Abierto Etectrénico,

The Offeror has reported that the price agreed to be paid to the Sellers under the Purchase Agreements, within the framework of the
Transaction, was LS $ 0.7914 per Caputo share, an amount which converted inte the retail selfer foreign-exchange rate published by
Banco de ta Nacion Argentina at the closing of business on fanuary 18, 2018 (business day immediately preceding the closing date of the
Transaction), was equivalent to ARS 15.115 {fifteen Argentine Pesos with 116 cents} per Caputo share. The Gfferor confirms that, in
accordance with the provisions of the Capital Markets Law and the CNV Rules, the price to be paid within the framework of the
Mandatory Public Offering in Cash shall in no case be less than the price paid by the Sellers under the Purchase Agreements nor than the
average price of the Shares during the semester immediately preceding the announcement of the Qffer,
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2} Public Offer for Voluntary Exchange

As single consideration for the participation of sharehoiders in the Public Offer for Voluntary Exchange, TGLT will give TELT shares in

exchange of the Shares, ot an exchange ratie that will be set forth in due course by YGLT's Board, in accordance with the parameters
agreed upon at the Meeting {the “Exchange Ratlo”}.

The Public Ofer for Voluntary Exchange is an alternative that the Com pany will voluntarily propose to holders of Shares, Therafore, the

Exchange Ratio proposed by the Gfferor wilf not need the CNV's approval nor may be chaltenged purst:ant to Section 98 in fine of the
Capital Markets Law.

3} Offer Conditions

The Offer shall be subject to the foliowing conditions, along with other conditions detailed in the Prospectus;

* One or more of the Purchase Agreements are terminated

* Obtain and keep in force the autherization from the CNV to make the Offer under the terms prasented by TGLT
a4} Terms and acceptance conditions of the Offer

The term to accept the Otfer, the procedure and the remaining final terms and conditions of the Offer shall be informed by notices and

by the publication of the Prospectus, which will be all published once the necessary authorizations are obtained and the conditions of
the Ofer are fulfiifed.

5} Qther considerations

According to what has been previgusly informed, and with the intention to provide all the relevant information, the Offeror informs that
it s evaluating the possibility, upon the fulfilment of the Mandatory Public Offering and the Public Offer for Voluntary Exchange, to
merge Caputo with TGLT, being TGLT the absorbing company, all of which will be, after & thorough analysls, submitted to the
consideration of the Boards of Directors and shareholders’ meetings of both companias.

Information herein ¢contained is for infarmation purposes only and shalf not constitute nor be construed as an affer to purchase or
exchange shares of stock, nor an Invitation to assign shares (including, without limitation, the Shares). The final terms and conditions of
the Offer shall be detailed in the Prospectus and in any other document related to the Offer, once the corresponding approvals and
authorizations are obtained

Award of Property under Public Auction

O October 26, TGLT 5.A. won public auction No, N® 33/17 “Catalinas Norte” Project of the Federal Agency for State Owned Property
Management (AABE - Agencin de Administrocion de Bienes det Estado), a decentralized agency within the scope of the Head Office of the
Cabinet of Ministers for the Argentine Mationai State, for the property located at Avenida Eduardo Madero $/N2 {i.e. ng aumber),
between Cecilia Grierson Boulevard and Sap Martin street, In the City of Buenos Aires (Cadastral Normenclature: Boundary 21 - Section
97 ~ Block 38— Plot 4, identified as CIE: 0200012321} with an approximate surface area of 3,200 square metars (the “Property”.)

The Company offered US 3 43,500,000 for the Property. The award of the Property was approved by the Head of the Cabinet of Ministers
on February 1, 2018.

The acquisition of the Property entails the abligation to build in suck plot a permanent building with a covered surface in compliance
with the zoning regulations applicable to the Froperty. Construction works shall be commenced within 3 years and completed within 5
years, in bath cases, counted as from the date of exacution of the deed transferring ownershig to the COMmpany.

Operations with related parties.

On July 7, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Company resoivad, within the framework of the issuance of notes convertible into shares
of the Company, to approve the execution of a registration agreement (“Registration Rights Agreement”) between the Company and ifts
shareholders Federico Nicolds Weil, Bienville Argenting Opporiunities Master Fund, LP and PointArgentum Master Fund LP
{"PointArgentum"}. Pursuant to the provisien of this agreement, PointArgentum shall have the right to require the Company to make its
bast efforts te obtain the public offer {registzation), in the United Statas of America and / or in the Argentine Republic, of the negotiable
securities issued by the Company that PointArgentum may determine.

The meeting of the Board of Directors held on July 7, 2017 resalved to approve a framework agreement between the Company and its
shareheolder PointArgentum Master Fund LP (“PointArgentum®) contalning the generat guidelines for co-investrent in real estate
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projects {the “Co-Investment Agraement”}; its enforcement was subject to the subseription by PointArgentun, asa mirimum, of a certain
amount of the Company’s convertible notes , whose issuance had been approved at the Meeting held on April 20, 2037,

tinder this Co-investment Agreement, and only In those cases in which the Company may need, or may consider appropriate, 1o have a
co-investor in a new real estate project in Argentina or Uruguay {the "RE Project”): {a} PointArgenturm wilt have a right of first option te
participate as co-investor of the Company in that RE Preject; (b} in the event that PointArgentum exercises that opticn, PointArgentum
and the Company will subscribe the particular agreements related to the RE Project and will create a specific purpose company for the
development and exploitation of that project; and {¢] the Company will be entitled to provide development services and operatienal
services to such RE Project, in exchange for the payment of compensation to be agreed upon by the parties for each RE Project in
particalar, for which general guidelines are established In the Co-Investment Agreement.

Subseription of the afgremantioned convertible aotes has already ended and PointArgentum has exceeded the aforementioned
minimum; therefore, the agreement has become effective.

Amendments to the Shareholders’ Agreament

On July 343, 2017 TGLT $.A. reported that, in accordance with the provisions of section 98, subsection {h} of the Capital Markets Law No.
26,831 and regarding the shareholders’ agreement performed through the "Irrevacable Offer of Shareholders Agreement Ne. 001-2015"
dated May 27, 2015; an July 7, 2017, shareholders Federico Nicolds Welt, Bienville Argentina Cpportunities Master Fund LP and
PointArgentum Master Fund LP {the “Sharehotders”) signed an amendment to the Agreement.

The amendments arranged by the Shareholders in the Agreement arg related to:
i.  First offer rights for assignment of shares.
it Rights for the appointment of members and Chairman of the Board

#l. Extension of the scope of the matters requiring approvat by the vote of a special majority of the Board members.

iv. Extension of the scope of the matters corresponding to the competence of the shargholders’ meeting that must be approved by the
unanimous vote of the Sharehalders whose interest in the Company is equal to or greater than the Basic Equity Iaterest.

v, Rights to appoint members of the Supervisory Committee.

vi. Rights for appointment of members of the Campensation Comimittee.
vil. Appointment of CEQ, CFQ and COO of the Company.

viil. Appointment of external auditors of the Company.

ix., Minimum equity interast to become 2 party to the agreement.

x.  Amendments to the exclusivity and non-compete clause applicable to Shereholder Federico Nicolas Weil,

Likewise, the Sharehofders have committed themselves to ameng the Bylaws in such a manner that the restated Bylaws express and
state the changes agreed upon in the amendment of the Agreement; therefore, a Special Shareholders Meeting shail be summoned.

Capital Increase

On Aprit 20, 2017, the Genera! Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company (the “Shareholders” Meeting”) ratified
the resnlution of the General and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held an Aprit 14, 2016 approving the increase of the share capitat
by up to the sum af nominst value of Pesos three hundred forty-five million {$ 345,000,000}, that is, from the sum of Pesos seventy
million three hundred and forty-nine thausand four hundred and eighty-five {$ 70,349,485) to the sum of up ta Pesos four hundred
fiftean million three hundred forty-nine thousand four hundred and eighty-five {$ 415,349,485}, by issuing up to three hundred and
forty-five million {345,000,000} commaon book-gntry shares of Peso one {$ 1} par value each and ene vote per share, with dividends rights
ori equal standing as the remaining outstanding shares at the time of issuance.

In the General Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on February 28, 2018, the shareholders of TGLT S.A. approved the
foltowing:

i) {8) Tha increase in the Company's capital by up to a nominal value of Pesos Twenty-five Militon (§ 25,000,000), in order to issve up to
twenty-five million (25,000,000} of new common shares, on equat terms as cutrently outstanding shares of the Campany, to be placed
under the Exchange Offer, and to be patd in kind through the transfer of Caputo shares to the Company; {b) The exchange ratio for the
Exchange Offer: TGLT Price / Caputo Price, where (A} the "TGLY Price” shall be (i) the price per share of TGLT S.A. determined by the
Board of Directors for the subscription of the shates to be issued; ar {it) in the event that such issuancge is not carried out prior to of
simultaneously with the issuance of the shares under the Exchange Offer, the weighted average price of the Company's shares during
the ten {10} days preceding the opening of the acceptance period for the Exchange Offer; and {8} the “Caputo Price” will be the price per
share sat for the Mandatory Public Offering; (¢} To delegate the definition of the terms and conditions of the Issuance of the Shares to
be exchanged to the Board of Directors, for a period of two years,; (d) To suspend the preemptive right in the subscription of the Shares
for Exchange, under the terms of section 197 of Businass Companies Law 19,550 {the "Business Companies Law"}, provided, however,
that regarding this matter the Meeting s being held as an extraordinary meeting and stating that the Audit Committee of the Company
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has afready issued its opinion on the matter on January 25, 2018 concluding that all legai requirements refated to the suspension of the
preemptive right, including the provisions of section 197 of the Business Companies Law, are complied with.

ii} {a) ratification of the capital increase approved by the General Ordinary and Extraordinary Meetings held oo April 14, 2016 and Aprit
20, 2017, increasing it to 4 nominal value of Pasos Five Hundred and Fifty Million {AR $ 550,000,000} through the issuance of up o fiva
hundred and #ifty million {550,000,000) common sharas on equal terms as the rest of the outstanding shares at the time of issvarice, to
be publicly offered once or more times within the country and / or abread, to be paid in cash, and with 3 share premium ranging from a
minimum of $ 10 (ten pesos) to @ maximum of § 35 {thirty-five pesos) per New Share, as determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company by delegation of this Shareholders’ Meeting or by an officer of the campany in whom the board will defegate that power {the
“New Shares™); (b} ratification of the delegation duly made to the board of directors, for a period of two years and with powers 1o
subdelegate to one or more of its members or one or more first-line managers of the company, for the determination of the terms and
conditions of the issuance of the New Shares; and {¢} limitation of the preemptive right in the subscription of the new shares to tea (1)
days, under the terms of article 194 of the Business Companies Law, provided, however, that regarding this matter the Meeting is being

Authorization to sell treasury shares

The Meeting hefd or Aprit 20, 2017 approved the sale of the 16,000 Company's tredsury shares without the previous preferred offering
to shareholders in accordance with the provisions of saction 67 of the Capital Markets Law Na. 26,831 and under the terms of section

221 of Argentine Business Companies Law No. 19,558, considering that said number of shares represants 0.014% of the Company's share
capital,

tssuance of Convertibie Notes

On April 20, 2017, the Ordinary and Special Shareholders’ Meeting approved the issuance of book-entry notes convertible into common
shares, with par value 51 each, with one voting right per share and the right to receive dividends in equal conditions with respect to
currently outstanding common shares as from thea fiscal year in which the conversion right is exercised, for an aggregate amount of USD
150,000,000 {US Dolars one hundred fifty miffion) or its equivalent in other currencies, in one or more saries,

Oa this same regard, on July 11 it was reported that TGLT S.A. {the “Issuer} would offer under subscription, during the period beginning
on July 15, 2017 and ending on July 25, 2017, the Subordinated Notes Convertible into New Common Shates for an amount of up to s
$ 150,600,000 with maturity in 2027, consisting of {i) a local public offering available only to “guatified investors” in Argentina as defined
in subsection 12 Section 1} of Chapter VI of Title } of the Rules of the CNY through the Local Placement Agent; and (i} an internationai
offer not reglstered in the United States of America in which the internationa? Placement Agent will act as placement agent for the
Compeany, available to {1) accredited investors in the United States of America, pursuant to the exemption from registration requirements
under the US Securities Act based on Regulation D of that law, aad (2) nen-Us persons in transactions outside the United States of
America ("offshore transactions™}, by virtue of exemption from registration reguirements under the US Securities Act based on
Reguiation S of that law,

Subsequently, on July 11, 2017 TGLY S.A. informed the investors that the Conversion Price of the Convertible Notes would be US $ 0.50,
and on luly 28, 2017 it was also informed that, according te the provisians of the Prospecius, the Company had decided to extend the
Subseription Period until 11 2.m. on July 27, 2017, in turn, on July 25, 2017, the investors were informed of an addendura through which
the Company had decided to clarify and amend the provisions of the definition “Compulsory Canversion” and "Conversion Rights”, stating
that in the avent of an IPQ in the U5, ali Convertible Notes shall be automatically converted into New Common shares or ADRs (at the
aption of the Holder) at the Conversion Price, adjusted at the closing date of the IPO {including this date).

Finally, on July 27, 2017, the ending date of the Subscription Period of the Convertible Notes, investors wera informed of the results of
the process, which were the following:

1) Total Amount Offered: US $ 150,000,000
2} Total Nominal Value to Be lssued: US § 150,600,000, of which:
{i) Nominal Value of Convertible Notes pursuant to the exercise of the Preemptive Right: US$ 51,546,000,
{il  Nominat Value of Convertible Notes pursuant to the exercise of the Right of Accretion: US § 8,086,000,
3) Issue date: August 3, 2017,
4)  Interest Payment Dates: on February 15 and August 15 from 2018 through 2027,
5} Maturity Date: August 3, 2027.

Corporate Bonds Program

The Shaseholders’ meeting held on April 20, 2017 approved the extension of the term of the Global Program for the Issuance of Corporate
Bonds for & maximum outstanding amount of up to US $ 50,000,000 {or its equivalent in other currencias),

On November 13, 2017, the fellowing was approved: {i} to update of the prospedtus corresponding to the global program of issuance of
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corporate bonds for 2 maximum outstanding amount of up te US $ 50,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies) (the “Program”}; its
extension was approved by the Company’s General Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting on Agril 20, 2017; (B) the issuance
of new unsecured corporate bonds under the Program for a nominal vaiue of up to One Hundred and Fifty Milllon Pesos {AR §
150,000,000), in ane or more classes and / or series, as may be determined in the respective price supplement { the “New Corparate
Bends”); and {iii) to delegate to certain members of the Board of Directors and senior managers of the Company broad powers to
determine the terms and conditions of issuance of the New Corporate Bonds, as well as to subscribe and defiver all documents and
instruments necessary or appropriate to imptement the extensien of the Program, the updating of the prospectus of the Program and
the issuance and placement of the New Corporate Bonds, in accordance with the provisions of the Rules of the Securities Commission of
Argentina.

On March 5, 2018, the Company filed with the CNV the price supplement for the issuance of Series XIV and XV of the Corporate Bonds
Program, which was approved on March 5, 2018,

Changes in Corporate Organizations and Executive Team of the Company.

On February 9, 2017, the resignation of the Company's Financial Director and Head of Market Relations, Mr. Rafael Soto, was received
and accepted, He has decided to join a venture in the technological-financial sector. Mr. Soto will continue 1o serve as Deputy Director
of the Company. He was replaced by M. Rodrigo Javier Lores Arnaiz, who has heen working in the Company since 2009 as Director of
Human Resources, Technology and Processes and Daputy Head of Market Relations. Mr. Lores Arnaiz is a national public accountant
from the Universidad de Buenos Aires (UBA] and obtained an MBA at Wharton.

On March 10, the Company received a notice from Mr, Rafael Ignacio Soto reporting his irrevocable resignation to the posiion of
Alternate Director of the Company for personal reasons. The resignation was accepted by the Company's Board of Directors on March
10, 2017, On that same day, the Company received notice of the resignation of Mr. Tomas Insausti to his position as Alternate Trusteer
of the Company, for personal reasons.

During the meeting of the Company's Board of Directors held on April 10, 2017, replacements were assigned for the positions of Alternate
Director and Alteraate Trustee. Consequently, we inform that the aforementioned Sharehelders’ meeting appointed Mr. Rodrign Lores
Arnaiz as the new Deputy Director of the Company. M. Lores Arnaiz is Argentingan, Public Accountant and holder af the National ldentity
Document 22,157,386, He holds the status of “non-independent”, in accordance with the criteriz estabiished by the Rules of the
Securities Commission of Argantina {the "CNV"). Likewise, the aforementioned Sharehalders’ meeting appeinted Mr. Fernando G. Sasisin
as Aftarnate Trustee; he is Argentinean, lawyer and holder of the National identity Document 23,072,562

On June 13, 2017, the Board of Directors of TELT 5.A. approved the resignation of Mr. Fernande Jasnis to his position as a member of
the Audit Committee of the Company, maintaining his position as Director of the Company. Likewise, it was infermed that in the same
meeting of the Board of Directors dated fune 13, 2017, Mr. Carlos Palazén was appointed in his place. Mr. Palazén was already Director
of the Company, Mr. Carlos Palazdn holds the status of “non-independent”, in accordance with the eriteria astablished by the Ruies of
the Securities Commission of Argentina (the "CNV"),

In this way, the current conformation of the Audit Committee is the following:

GIRECTOR POSITION IN TGLT 5.4, TERM OF OFFICE DATE OF APFOINTMENT STATUS
WM. Carlos Alberto Member Meeting approving Financial June 13, de 2037 Non-
Palazdn Statements of the Company independent
as of December 31, 2018
My, Alaiandro Emillic Member and Meeting approving Financist April 14, 2016 Independent
Marchionna Faré President Statements of the Company
as of December 31, 2018
Wir, Mauricic Wior Member Meeting approving Financhal April 14, 2016 Independent

Statements of the Company
as of December 31, 2018

Mr.Danie! Alfredo Alternate Member | Meeting approving Financial Aprit 14, 2016 independent
Vicien Statements of the Corapany
as of December 31, 2018
Mr, tuis Rodriguez Alternate Member | Meeting approving Financial April 14, 2016 independent
villasuso Statemaents of the Company

as of Decernber 31, 2018

On June 22, 2017, the Campany’s Board of Directors, with the participation of the Supervisory Committes, decided to appoint Mr. Alberto
Lépez Gaffney, under the terms of section 270 of the Business Companies taw No. 18,550 and its amendments, as “Chigf Financial
Officer”(CFO) and Head of Market Relations of the Company, while Mr. Rodrigo laviet Lores Arnaiz will continue as Deputy Head of
Market Relations of the Company.

At the meeting hetd on July 13, 2017, the Company's Board of Directors accepted and approved the resignation submitted by Mr.
Fernando Jasais to his position of Director of the Company, At this meeting, pursuant to power vested by the second paragraph of section
258 of the Business Companies Law No, 18,550, and its amendments and until the next shareholders meeting of the Company is held,
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the Supervisery Committee of the Company, decided to appoint his alternate director, Mr. Andrew Hall Cummins, in replacement of Mr.
Fernando fasnis, as Directar of the Company, and Mr. Ignacio Ugarte to take the vacant position of alternate director Mr. Andraw Hall
Cummins (eaves, The new appointed directors have the status of "nor-independent”, in accardance with the criteria established by the
CNY Rules and accepted their appointments on the same day the meeting was held,

On December 12, 2017, the Company received the resignations to their positions from the folivwing officers, all for personal reasons; {a}
Mr. Raiph Faden Reynolds and Mr. Andrew Ralt Curmmins, to their positions as directors; {b} Mr. Donald Stoltz Il and Mr. Miguel ignacic
Ugarte, to their pasitions of alternate directors; and {¢) Mr. Mariano Gonzalez, to his position as trustee,

The resignations submitted were accepted by the Company's Board of Directors on that same date since they were neither ill-
intentioned nor untimedy.

Also, on that date, pursuant to power vested by the second paragraph of section 258 of the Business Companies Law No. 19,550 and
untif the next shareholders meeting of the Company is held, the Supervisary Committee of the Company decided to appaint Mr. Mariane
Gonzélez and Mr. Pablo Alejandro Melhem aMarcote, as regular directors, and My, Gustava Casir and Mr, Pablo Farraro Mila, as alternate
directors of the Company. It is recorded that the appointed directors hold a “non-independent” status, in accordance with the criteria
established by the Rules of the Securitias Commission of Argentina (the "CNV"). Likewise, it was also recorded that, as 2 resuit of the
resignation of the regular trustee Mr. Mariano Gonzalez (who has been appointed as regular director of the Company), Mr, Pabio Di lorio
assumes the position of regular trustee of the Company.

Therefore, the nsw composition of the Company’s Board of Directors is the following;

DIRECTOR POSITION (N TGLT 5.4, TERM OF OFFICE DATE OF APPOINTMENT STATUS
Mr. Federico Nicolds Prasident and Meeting approving Financial Crdinary Shareholders’ Meeting Non-
Weil Director Statements of the Company held April 14, 2016 independant
as of December 31, 2018 Rl <4, P
Mz. Dario Ezaquie! Vice-prasident angd Mesting approving Financial Crdinary Shareholders Meeting Non-
Lizzano Directer Statements of the Company held April 14, 2016 independent
as of December 31, 2018 P ! P
. Maeti i i " . :
Mr, Marlana Sebastidn . Seting approving Financlal |, o - shareholders Meeting Non-
weil Director Statements of the Company held April 14, 2016 independent
as of December 31, 2018 o ’ P
Mr, Carlos Alberto R Meeting approving Financial Ordinary Shareholders” Meeting Non-
Patazsn Director Statements of the Company held April 14, 2016 independent
s of December 31, 2018 !
Meeting approving Financial Supervisory Committee Noa-
Mr. Marfanc Gonzalex Director Statements of the Company Meeting held on December 12, independent
as of Degember 31, 2017 2017 P
. Meating approving Financial Supervisory Committee
Mh;';s::: :*::22?;0 Director Statements of the Company Meeting held on Detember 12, in de!;g: dent
as of December 31, 2017 2017
. - Meeting approving Financial ; .
. . i |
M&ﬁ:é?g:;g E::gm Director Statements of the Company Shareho:e;iri 1!;!192& Otllnag held on independent
: as of December 31, 2018 P ’
Meeting approving Financial . .
. . Sharehol Meeting held on
Mr. Mauricio Wior Girector Statements of the Company are 0:::: 14 e:;'lg d Independent
as of December 31, 2018 ’
Meeting approving Financial s N
. \ Sh ald Maeeting heid on Non-
Mr. Alejandro Belio Alternate Director | Statements of the Company areh A;:; 14 2 ;1 Gg independent
as af Decembar 31, 2018 !
Meeting approving Financial Supervisory Commitiee Non-
Mr. Pablo Ferrare Mila | Alternate Director | Statements ofthe Company { Meeting held on December 12, independent
as of December 31, 2017 2617
. . Mezting approving Financial . .
. . areholders’ Meeting held on Non-
Mrg:’;’f:;ﬁ:mr Atternate Director | Statements of the Company sh April 20 201.’;8 independent
as of December 31, 2018 !
Maeting approviag Financial Supervisory Committee Nori-
Mr, Gustavo Casir Alternate Director | Statements of the Company { Meeting hefd on December 12, independent
a5 of Decembar 31, 2017 2017
. Mesting approving Financial : \
. . t t Id o on-
Mr Fe;::anido saul Alternate Director | Statements of the Campany Sbarehofsr; iTe;UT{;; beld on in dezen dent
P as of December 31, 2018 !
N - . h lders” Meeting held heon-
Mr. Pedro Eugenio Alternate Director | Meeting approving Financiat shareho Ers Meting on s
April 14, 2016 independent
Aramburu Statements of the Company
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DIRECTOR POSITION TN TELT S.A, TERM OF OFFICE DATE OF APPOINTMENT STATUS

as of December 31, 2018
Meetling approving Financial

Mr. Daniel Alfredo Shareholders' Meeting hetd on

. Afternate Director | Statements of the Company " Independent
Vicien as of December 31, 2018 Agril 14, 2016
. , Meating approving Financial . .
M. L\;’iﬁatzigguez Alternate Director § Statemeats of the Company Shareholze:; Ee;éllng eld on Independent
as of December 31, 2018 pril %,

information on legal proceedings filed by the Company

On Qetober 2, through its subsidtary CANFOT 5.A. (cutrently under a marger process with TGL1), the Company filed two proceedings for
damages agatnst Constructora Sudamericana S.A, for defects in constructions in its projects Forum Puerto Norte, in Rosario City, and
Forum Alcoria in the City of Buenos Aires,

The Iegal actions are styled: {i} CANFOT 5.4, vs. CONSTRUCTORA SUDAMERICANAS.A, on Ordinary Froceedings, File No. 18426/16 before
First instance Court on Civil Matters No. 17, Clerk's Office No. 34, in charge of Judge Federico Guersi and (i) CANFOT 5.A. vs.
CONSTRUCTORA SUGAMERICANA 5.A. on Ordinary Proceedings, File No. 18427/16, before First Instance Court on Civit Matters No. 27,
Sacretariat No, 53, in charge of Judge Maria Virginia Villarroel,

The Company thus seeks to recover the expenses and surcharges incurred by it to remadiate the abovementioned defects and repair the
damages caused by Constructora Sudamericana $.4. in connection with the abovementioned works.

Decision to abandon the incentive stock option plan

On Iy 5, 2017, TLGT $.A. reported its decision to abanden the incentive stock option plan, penting resolution by the National Securities
Commission under file N. 2074/2013,

. STATISTICAL DATA

Information related to the Company's number of employees:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015 Dee 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013
89 94 95 79

Employees
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V. MAIN INDICATORS, RATIOS OR INDICES

TGLT Group
indicator Forrnula ‘Dec 31, 2016{1) Dec31,2015{1) Dec 31,2014  Dec31, 2013
Liquidity Current Assets/ Current 0.72 0.85 1.09 1.71
Liahilitias
SOIVEI'ICY MNet Warth ! LiabiliﬁES 0.0 0.06 .10 0.14
lmn_wblhzatlon of Non-Current Assets fTotal 0.56 0.44 B.15 0.14
Capital Assets
Profitabili Net result of annualized period
¥ / Average Net Worth 0.58 {3.25) {C.06} 0.1
TGLT individual
Indicator Formula Dec 31, 2016 Dec3i, 2015 Dec3i, 2014  Dec 31, 2013
{1} {1}
Liquidit Current Assets/ Current 0.69 0.62 02 X
quisity tiabilities : : v 38
Solvency Net Worth / Liabitities 0.07 0.1¢ 0.18 0.31
Immabilization of
) Non-Current Assets /Totat 0.59 0.57 0.29 0.28
Capital Assets
Profitabilit Net result of annuakized perio 0.04 0.59 0.08 0.19
¥ / Average Net Worth : (0.29) (0.08) 0.15)

1y Cuerset and MNamcourrent compgition bas been changad.

Vi.  CAPITAL MARKETS

Performance of TGLT S.A. share

FTGLT's stock on the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange traded at $ 17.0 per share as of December 31, 2017. Average trading volume per day

was 32,851 shares and was traded in 95% out of total trading days in 2017,

Price and volume traded since IPD
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Corporate bonds Program

On December 26, 2011, the Shareholders’ Meeting approved the creation of a global program for the issuance of unsecured corporate
bonds, not convertible into shares, in the short, medium and /ot long term, subordinated or net, with or without coftateral, pursuant
1o Law No. 23,576 as ameaded (OBligaciones Negociobles, theONs”) tor a maximurm amount of US & 50 million {US $ 50,000,000} or its
aquivalent in other legal currencies at any time; bonds may he issued in several ciasses and / or series denominated in US dellars or
other currencies and re-issued in successive classes and / ar serles as they are amortized (the “Prograrn”}, The Program wiil have a term
of five {5} vears from its authorization by the CNY, within: which aif issues and re-issues under this Program must be performed,

It was alsa resolved that the funds obtained through the platement of the ONs issued under the Program be assigned to any of the uses
set forth in section 36 subsection 2) of Law No. 23,576 as amended, that is: investments in physicat assets located in the country; and/or
payment of working capital in the country; and / or refinancing of liabilities; and / or payment of capital contributions in companies
controlled by or related to the Issuing company whose proceeds are applied exclusively ta the above specified destinations; the Board
of Directars {or, as the case may be, the directors or officers in whom their powers may be sub-delegated} shall determine where 1o
allocate the funds from the lssuance or re-issuance of aach series or each class of ONs to be issued under the Program,

On July 13, 2012, the Board of Directors of the Securities Commission of Argentina authorized the Program by means of Resolution No.
16,853.

The Corporate Bonds issued under this Program, include Classes 1 and Il (2012}, il and IV (2013), Vand VI (2014), VIi, Vilt and 1X (2015}
in 2016 the Program continued, first with the issuance of Classes X and Xl and then Classes X)l and XIlt Corporate honds.

On February 23, 2016, and within the framework of the Program, Corporate bonds Classes X and X! were issued:

The Class X Corporate bonds were Issuad for an amount of § 96,828,323, at Badlar Privada variable rate + 649 hasls peints maturing 18
months from the issue date, that is, on August 23, 2017. Capital will be amortized in Argentinean pesos through two equal znd
consecutive payrsents on the 15th and 18th month as from the issue. Interest will be payable in arrears on a quarterly basis starting on
May 23, 2016,

tssue of Class XI Corparate Bands was not executed, )
On July 22, 2016, and within the framework of the Program, Class XII and X1 Corporate bonds were issued:

The Class Xil Corporate honds were issued for an amount of 5 96,566,666, at Badlar Privado variable rate + 600 basis points, with the
exception that for the first three months, the ON accrues a minimum rate of 329 TNA {nominal annual interest cate}. The maturity is
18 months from the date of issuance, that is to say on January 23, 2018 ang the capital will be amortized in pesos in full on maturity
date. interest shall be payable in arrears on a quarterly basis starting on October 24, 2016.

issue of Class Xl Corporate Bonds was not executed.
TGLT shall atfecate the funds to invest in property, plant and equipment in the country, pay working capital in the countey, refinance

liabikties, make ¢apital contributions to subsidiaries or related companies, and / or any other destination provided in the applicable
regulations.

As of the date of issue, both Classes have got the BB rating on the long-term national risk scale from FiX SCR 5.A. Risk Rating Agent
{formerly Fitch Argentina Calificadora de Riesgo $.A.). The notes are traded in the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange and in Mercado Abierte
Elactrénico (Electronic Open Market}.

On November 10, the following was approved: {§) update of the prospectus corresponding to the globat program of issuance of corparate
bands for a maximum outstanding amount of S % 50,000,000 {or its equivalent in ather currencies) {the "Program®}; its extension was
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app
ofn

roved by the General Ordinary and Extraordinary General Shareholders’ meeting of the Company on April 20, 2017; {ii) the issuance
ew unsecured corporate bonds under the Pragram for a nominal valua of up to One Hundred and Fifty Millfon Pesos {5 150,000,000,

in one or more classes and/for series, as may be determined in the fespective price supplement (the “New Corporate Bonds™}; and (iii}

conditions of issuance of the New Corporate Bonds, as well as to subscribe and del
appropriate to implement the extension of the Program, the updating of the prospect
of the New Corporate Bonds, in accordance with the provisions of the Rules of the N

pany broad powers to determine the terms ang
ver all documents and instruments necessary or

s of the Program and the issuance and placement

ational Securities Commission of Argentina.

On March 1, 2018, the term of the program authorized by resolution No. RESE-2018-19287-APN-DIR # CNV of the Board of the Nationat
Securities Commission of Argentina {the “CNV"} dated January 18, 2018 was extended. This authorization only means that the
requirements established in terms of information have been fulfilled The CNV has not expressad any opinion on the information

contained in the Prospectus.

On March 5, 2018, the Company filed with the CNV the price supplement for the issuance of Series XIV and XV of the Corporate Bonds

Program, which was approved on that same day.

Issuance gonditions of the Company's corporate bonds in foree at the closing date of the Financiat Statemeats are summarized below:

- A 0.90 factor multiplied by
the variation of the Index

Issue date May 12, 2015 July 22, 2016

Amount issued 557,229,975 % 96,666,666

Currency Pesos Pesns

Interest rate The higher of: Badlar rate + 600 bps., except

that for the first three months
the ON shall accrue at a

4 consecutive equal
payments since August 12,
2017

Cost of the Argentine mi"if““m 32%  annual
Chamber of Construction | MOMinal rate,
{CAC):
- Badlar rate + 600 basis
points
Maturity May 12, 2018 lanuary 23, 2018
Amortization

One payment on fanuary 23,
2018

interest payment Quarterly coupor

Capital Payment At prar

Rating 8B by FIX SCR S.A. Agente de Calificacién de Riesgo

{formerly Fitch Argentina Calificadora de Riesgo 5.A.)
Markets Buenos Aires Stock Exchange and Mercate Abjerta Electrénico
Applicabie law Argentina

Vil. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SUMMARY

Summary of financial position, income/loss, generation and use of funds, and indicators.

Equity structure — TGLT Group

)i Dec 31, 2016 {1) Dec 31, 2015 1}  Pec31,2014  Dec31,2013
Non-currant assets 8 2,765,364,959  1,538,738,283 474,106,887 337,228,571
Current assets 2,208,524.639  2,114,106,187  2,670,718,277 2,131,144,863
Total assets 4,973,889,598  3,752,844,470 3,144,817,164 2,468,365,434
Non-current, figbilities 1,522,534,680  1,054,511,578 406,872,198 405,254,288
Current liabilities 2,049,914,315  2,483,214,357 2,454,385,08¢  1,761,058,106
Total Rabilities 4,572,448,995 3,537,725,935 2,861,257,282  2,166,312,394
Attributable to controlling owners 147,742,168 172,124,894 238,025,268 262,897,301
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Attributable to non-cantrofling owners
Total net worth

Total liabilities and aet worth ) e T R
£13 Composition of Current aad Non-curraat bas hoen thanged.

253,698,435 42,993,641 45,534,014 39,155,739
401,440,603 215,118,535 283,559,882 302,053,040
4,973,889,588 3,752,844,870 3,144,817,164  2,468,365,434

Assets as of December 31, 2017 increased by $ 618 million during the year, driven mainly by an increase in Cash and Cash Equivalemts
of § 1,718 million as a result of the issuance of the Convertible Notes for US § 150 million, which was partially offset by a reduction in
Investrment Property of $ 861 milion and in inventories of $ 784 million, 25 a result of the deconsolidation of Marina Rie Lufdn and the
delivery of units in Astor Nifiez and Forum Puerto del Buceo. in contrast, tiabilities were increased by $ 570 million after the issuance
of the aforementioned debt instrument {of which 36.6% was capitalized according to curzent accounting regulations), an effect that
was partially offset by the decrease of § 768 million in Advances from Clients, as @ consequence of the aforementioned delivery of units.

Equity structure - TGLT individual

ec 31, 2016 {1} Pec 31, 2015 (1) Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

1,338,746,59%  1,032,041,269 451,404,274 314,531,325
920,534,581 786,123,876 1,117,606,274 809,237,148

2,259,281,172  1,818,165,145 1,565,010,548 1,123,768,473

Non-current assets
Current assets
Total assets

768,251,289 381,519,858 240,031,373 275,298,352
1,343,287,705 1,264,520,393 1,090,953,907 585,572,820
2,411,539,004  1,646,040,251 1,330,285,280 860,871,172

147,742,168 172,124,894 238,025,268 262,897,301
2,259,281,172 1,818,165,145 1,569,010,548 1,123,768473

Non-current Habilities
Current Hahilitles
Total tiabilities

Total natworth 49
Total liabilities and net worth A3 426048
{13 Campasitiom of Corrent and Not-cuerent has been chiaerged.

At tndividuat tevel, Assets increased by $ 1,984 miltion during the year, mainly driven by an increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents of §
1,718 million as a result of the issuance of the Convertible Notes for US $ 150 millior, which was partially offset by a reduction in
inventories of § 102 million, as a consequence of the defivery of units in Astar Ndfiez. In contrast, Liabilities were increased by $ 1,683
million after the issuance of the aforementioned debt instrument (of which 36.6% was capitalized according to current accounting
regulations), an effect that was partially offset by the decrease of 4 109 million in Advances from Clients, mainly as a result of the
aforementioned dafivery of usits in Astor Nditez,
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{Loss) Income Structure for fiscal period ~ TGLT Group

D ) Dec31,2016 (1) Dec31,2015{1)  Dec 31,2014 Dec 31,2013

Operative resuits (227,585,142)  (5,464,510)  (40,371,054) {190,984,648)

{Loss) / Income from investments in
companies
Other expenses
Financial results:
Foteign exchange difference
Finaneial income
Financial costs
{Loss) / income for assessment at fair value of
investment property

{573,087) {383,313} {450,551} {487,345}

{5,166,955) {34,281,821) (39,195,073)  (27,505,349)
11,628,950 49,941,660 97,366,655 168,082,703
(85,279,655) (68,011,711) (40,154,554}  (26,212,913)

757,895,460 . . .
{Loss) / Income from sale of investment
property N . . .
Other income and expenses, net 8,453,104 198,209 8,621,645 922,632
{Loss) / Income before Inceme Tax ASB, 772,675 (58,001,488} (14,132,932} {71,184,920)
Income Tax {232,470,830} 10,375,084 (3,687,354) 5,809,234
{Loss} / Income for the period 226,301,845 = (47,622,802) (17,820,286}  (64,375,686)
Other comprehensive {loss) / income {16,596,365)  (20,823,545) (672,872) 427,924
Total comprehensive {loss)/ income for the

period 209,705,480 (68,446,347} {18,493,158) {63,947,762)

{Loss) / Income atiributable to-
Cwners of contraliing company

4,776,567 (45,076,820} {19,385,810) {55,422,832)
221,525,278 {2,545,973) 392,652 (8,524,930}

Inferests in nen-controfiing companies

{1} Corpositian of Current ang Mam-Current Has boon changer,

According to the IFRS, the Company recognizes income from sales - and the corresponding cost of sales - only whess the enits sold are
delivered. YGLT is in a growth phase, with a unit delivery favel lower than its operational capacity allows. During the twelve-month
pertod, 248 units were delivered, corresponding almost entirely to the Astor Nofiez project, which is completed, and the Forum Puerto
del Buceo project, which has completed its first stage and continues the construction of the remaining phase, to be completed during
2018. These detiveries generated a positive gross result of $ 36,4 million.

Operating results include, on the other hand, taxes related to sales (basically Turnover Tax) as well as ali marketing and administrative
EXPENSOS Necessary ta support the structure of the Company.

(Loss} / Income from Iavestments in Companies correspond o sur 50% participation in Marina Rio Lujan, The nagative financial result

for & 218.2 million corresponds mostly to the interest acerual corcespending to the Convertible Notes, together with the payment of
interest on the outstanding Convertiblz Notes in locat currency,

Pasitive result of $ 58.4 million reflected as “Resylt from the sale of investment property” was generated by the coliection of part of
the price balance of the property located in Manroe Street, a sale generated in 2016,

{Loss) / Income Structure for the period — TGLT individual

Dec 21, 2016 (1} Dec 31, 2015 (1} Dec 33, 2014 Des 31, 2013
(182,450,378) {53,387,794) {59,769,465) {39,381,782)

Operative results
(Loss} / income from investments in
companies
Other expenses
Financial results:
Foreign exchange difference
Financial income
Financial costs
{Loss) / income for assessment at fair value of

171,195,058 9,558,453 10,411,135 {42,830,269}
(459,810) (316,104} (375,942) {466,558}
{7.182,914} {3,595,260) {16,569,108} {1,496,818)

10,812,380 12,288,603 52,124,076 49,893,158
{53,204,882) {27.704,658) {19,3359,607) (8,663,437}

investment property 56,088,210 - ) v
{Loss) / Income from saje of investment ) .
property - -

Gther incoma and expenses, nat 14,518,592 (1,897,563} 1,064,331 {10,840,206)
{Loss}/ Income before income Tax 9,319,156 {65,053,323) {32,954,579) {53,785,912)
Income Tax {4,542,5389) 18,976,494 14,241,641 (2,064,844}
{Loss} / Income for the period 4,776,567 (45,076,829} {18,712,938) {55,850,756)
Difference for the conversion of a net (16,596,365} {20,823,545} {672,872} 427,924
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investment abroad

Total Comprehensive {Loss} lacome for the
periad

1 Cormposition of Current and MNan-cutrent has been d‘\angeci_

(11,819,798} {65,900,374) {19,385,810} (55,422,832}

During the twelve-month peried, 160 units were delivered individually, corresponding almost entirely to Astor Nifez, which gengrated
a positive gross result of $ 3 miffion,

The operating results include, on the other hand, taxes related to sales {basically Turnover Tax) as well as all marketing and
administrative expenses necessary to support the structure of the Cempany.

Loss / income for investments in Companies of ($ 34) milllen correspord to Forum Puerto det Buces and to our 30% participation in
Marina Ris Lujén. The negative financia} results far $ 200 mitlion correspond mostly to the accrual of interest corresponding to the
Convertibie Notes, together with the payment of interest on the cutstanding Corporate bonds in local currency.

Part of the outstanding balance of the sate price of the property located in Monroe Street, a sale generated in 2016, contributed fo the
positive result of 5 58.4 million shown in "(Loss} / Income from the safe of investment property”.

Structure of the generation and use of funds of the period — TGLT Group

01741} Dec 31,2016 (1) Dec31,7015(1)  Dec3l,20i4  Dec3i, 2013

Funds {used in) generated by operating
activities
Funds {used in} generated by operating
activities

{311,135,672) {21,975,710)  [112,570,857) {111,263,047)

55,747,562 {4,567,191) (38,104,795) {2,773,203)
funds {used in) generated by financing
activitias

243,997,520 64,324,883 85,515,183 176,383,789

Total funds {used in) generated during th
period

{1} Campesition of Surrent and pom-curent has been changed.

81,098,420 92,448,940 {65,160,470) 52,347,539

In 2017, $ 535 miliion were used in Operating Activities, mainly explained by the investment in working capitat in most of our projects
ungdar way.

Thare was a net financing of $ 2,257 milion over the year, primarily as a result of the issuance of Canvertible Notes for US $ 150 million
in August 2017, which is reflected in the increase in cash and equivalents.

Structure of the generation and use of funds of the period ~ TGLT individual

Dec 31, 2016 (1) Dec31,2015(1)  Dec31,2014  Dec31, 2013

Funds {used in) generated by operating
activities

Funds {used in) generated by operating
activities

Funds (used in) generated by financing
activities

Total funds {used in} generated during the
pericd 730,347 ,2¢

(1} Corsposition of Currant and Ron-cureeng bas been Changed.

(99,560,167} (40,148,086) {58,132,624) {58,763,411)

55,840,734  (4,408,645) (37,316,218} (2,901,671}

30,672,513 34,353,484 38,773,337 97,028,580

12,953,103 12,827,932 {56,675,505} 35,363,498

In 2017, § 735.4 mitlian were used in Gperating Activities, malnly explained by the investment in working capital in most of our projects
under way,

On the other hand, the aforementioned issuance of the US $ 150 mitlion convertible debt instrument contributed substantially to the S
2.3 billion increase in financial flows.

W1, RELATIONS WITH RELATED COMPANIES

a)  As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the amounts outstanding with companies under Section 33 — Law 19,550 and other
related parties, classified as per the naturg of the transaction, are as follows:

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES Notes
RECEIVABLES FROM SALES
AGL Capital S.A. in focal currency

Dec 31, 2016 Dec3i, 2015

258,985 2,308,410
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AGL Capitat S.A. in foreign currency
Marina Rio Lujn 5.4,

50,367

74,056

Individual shareholders in fareign currency L]
349,353 2,382,466
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Marina Rio tujan §.A. R -
Marina Ric Lujan $.A. In foreign currency - -
individuai sharehslders 2,505,432 2,130,743
Other shareholders 3,543,512 3,435,061
5,048,944 5,569,802
Total receivables with retated parties 6,398,297 7,952,268
PAYABLES WITH RELATED PARTIES
TRADE PAYABLES
{R5A Inversiones y Representaciones S.A, - 35,418,354
- 35,418,354
ADVANCE PAYMENTS OF CLIENTS
Alto Pafermo S.A. - 236,645,106
IRSA Inversiones y Representaciones 5.4, - 60,287,590
Directars and Senior Managers 3,128,739 504,152
Comisiones y Corretaje 5.4, 22,504,620 -
25,634,355 287,436,848
Total Payables with refated parties 25,634,359 332,855,202

b} As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2013, the most significant transactions with Companies under section 33 - Law No. 15,550 and

other refated parties were the follawing;
- Transactions and their effects on the cash flow

Narne of the refated company

Dec 31, 2016  Dec 31, 2015

AGL Capital S.A. Collection for services rendered 2,246,792 757,996
Comisiones y Corratajes 5.4, Collections received - -
Individuat shareholders Loans received - -
tndividual shareholders Collection for sale of units - -
Directors and Senior Managers Collection for sate of units 2,660,194 3,315,339
Comisiones y Corretajes S.A, Payments
Individual shareholders Payments on behalf of third parties {210,084) 117,696
Other shareholders Payments on behalf of third parties {253,451} 125,153
Totals 4,443,441 4,316,184
- Transactions and their effects on {Loss} / Income
Profitf {Loss)
Name of related company Transattion Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
AGL Capitai 5.A. Income for sesvices rendered 258,586 541,837
AGE Capital 5.A, Financial resuits - -
individual sharehalders Financial results 15,311 26,552
Comisiones y Corratajes S.A. Finantiat results - -
Comisiones y Corretajes S.A. Commissions - -
Other shareholders Bad debts {733,887 -
IRSA Inversiones v Representaciones 5.4, Income for delivery of units 29,292,123 -
Directors and Senior Managers Income for delivery of units - 3,312,687
Birectors and Seniar Managers Feas {2,189,485) {2,255,820)
Totals 26,644,048 1,625,256
¢} As of Dacember 21, 2017 and 2016, transactions with key staff are the following:
Dec 33,2015
Salaries and social security 13,133,481
Social security 2,106,005
Total 15,239,486

On December 13, 2011, the Board of Diractors of the Company established that the seniar management, in the terms of section 270 of

33



TGET 8.A.

ANNUAL REPORT

EISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2017

the Corspanies Act is composed as foilows:

- General Management.

- Financial Management.

- Operations Management.

- Human Resources, Technotogy and Processes Management.

On Novernber 10, 2017, Dr. Federico Wilansky joined the Company as Legal Director, Fram that date, senior managers are five.

In April 2016, Federico Weil signed 21 employment contract with the Company, This agreement establishas that Federico Weil shatt
take the position of CEQ [Chief Executive Qfficer) of TGLT, and will be responsible for the general and administrative management of
TGLT. In case the cantract terminates without due cause, Federico Weit shall be entitled to a special payment as severance equivalent
to two times the severance payment he should be paid accarding to the Labor Contract Law. The agreement inciudes the following
clauses: excluslvity, non-competition and confidentiality by Federico Weil,

IX. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Policies

The Company comples with the provisions set forth in Business Companias Law of Argentina No. 19,550 as amended, as well as the
Capital Markets Law No. 26,831, Regulatory Decree Mo, 1023 dated August 1, 2013 and the Regulations of the Chv, revised text 2013
and other corporate governance rules of the CNV. On Qcteber 11, 2007, the CNV issued Resclution 516/2007, approving & corporate
governance code which complemented the legal framework en corporate governance set forth by Decree No. 677/2001 on
Transparency and tha CNV regulations then in force, Subsequently, the CNV published General Resolution 506/2012, by means of which
Resolution 516707 was annulted as from January 1, 2012, establishing a new Carporate Governance Code, as well as the need for issuing
comparnies to submit a Report on the degree of their compliance with that Code, and the terms and conditions of that Report. Thase
principes and recommendations were substantiatly included as Annex IV of Title IV of the new Rules of the CNV - revised text 2013 -
which were published by General Resolution of the CNV No. 622/2013.

The Corporate Gevernance Code establishes a serles of principles and recommendations for issuing companies which are detailed in
Anniex i o this Report, indicating also the degree of implementation and compliance.

Additionally, TGLT seeks to implement corporate governance practices at the highest international standards, thus complementing the
anierence to the standards described above with other good gavernance practices such a5 the following:

" Single share type, each representative of 1 {onej vote

» Mandatory public offering in case of defisting

. Arbitration panel of the Buenos Alres Stock Exchange for claims refated to the shares and { or sharghoiders
. kiandatory Public Offering in the terms provided for in section i, Chapte il, Title It of the CNV regulations

Regarding the accounting information, it is currently prepared in aceordance with the profassional accounting standards in force in the
Argentine Repubiic issued by the Argentine Faderation of Professional Councils of Ecanomic Stiences. They adopt the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} of the international Accounting Standards Board {1A58Y, as from the fiscal year started on january
1, 3012, as well as the relevant regutations of the CNV and the provisions of the Business Comparnies Law for the entities included in the
pubtic offering system of Law No. 26,831, either by its capital, by its corporate bonds or their request for authorization ta be included
in the aforementioned system,

Management Bodies
Management

TGLT work team stands out for an attitude featured by {i} entrapreneurial dynamism, (i} result-oriented mind with a meritocratic
system, (i) teamwork and {iv) comprehensive vision.

from the very beginning, the Company has been led by Federico Weil, who plays the role of General Manager. The Company has gone
through a process of recruitment of hierarchical personnel oriented to have the most qualified professionals. As a result of this strategy,
TGLT has a hierarchical highly-experienced staff with the clear objective of building and developing the Company's planned growth,

The adminlstration of the Company's activities aleng with the implementation and performance of the corporate objectives is in charge
of the senior management which reports directly to the Generg! Manager, The Genaral Manager appoists the seripr management.
Senlor management meets weekly to discuss and make decisions related to the ordinary course of the Company's business and which,
due to their nature, must not be submitted to the Board for their treatment.

The following table provides information about the current senior management of the Company:

CName iR ©Pate startimgoffice o T
federico Weil General Manager September 20, 2005
Alejandro Belio Operations Manager January 18, 2010
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Rodrigo Loras Arnaiz
Alberto Lépez Gaffnay
Federico Wilensky

Processes and Business Support Manager fuly 17, 2006
Administration and Finance Manager Junie 12, 2017
Legal Affairs Manager November 10, 2017

See section Board of Directors below to learn about the background of senior managers,

Compensation. Qur compensation policy aims to attract, retain and promote highly qualified professionals, as well as align theirinterasts
with those of our Sharsholders, through variable compensation Systems based on fuifilment of financial and operational goals, and an
aptions plan, Cur senior Management receives a fixed amount based on their academic and professional background, capacity and
experience and an annual bopus that varies according to thelr individual perforrance and our results. In Octaber 2009, the Board of
Directors of TGLT approved a variable compensation system for Directars and employees in fine with the Company's development and
growth. An amount of the Company's profits wilt be aliocated each year to grant a variable compensation ta senior managers or those
employees sefectad by the Board of Cirectors, in the amounts that the Board assigns to each one upen their designation,

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of eipht {8} regutar directors and eight {8} alternate directors who will remain in their positions for
three (3} fisca! years, and may be reelected Indefinitely. In accordance with the resolution of the Ganeral Ordinary and Extracrdinary
Shareholders' Meeting held on April 20, 2017, the Supervisory Committee meeting held on fuly 11, 2017, and the Supearvisory
Committee meating hetd on December 12, 2817, the Board of Directors is composed as faligws:

Federico Nicolds Weil

President and Regular Director

Non-independent

Vice-President and Regular Director Nar-independent

Mariano Sebastidn Weil Regular Director Non-independent
Mariano Gonzédlez Regufar Director hNon-independent

. Pable Aleja'r.;c_i}:.mlelhem Maréate Regular Director Ner-independent o
Carlos Atberta Palazan Regular Director Non-indepandent

Alejandra Emilio Marchionna Faré

Regular Director

Independent

Mauricio Wior

Regular Director

intdependent

Alegjandro Belio

Alternate Director

Non-independent

Pablo Ferraro Mila

Rodrige Javier Lores Arnaiz

Alternate Director Non-independent

Alternate Director Nen-independent

Gustavo Casir Alternate Director

Non-independent

Fernando Sal Zoppi Alternate Director Non-independent

Pedro Eugenio Aramburu Alternate Director Non-independent

Danjal Alfredo Vicien Alternate Director independent

Luis Rodriguer Villasuso Alternate Director Independent

The folfowing is 2 brief description of the background of the members of cur Board of Directers:

Federico N. Weil. Mr. Weil Is TGLT’s founder and Chairman of the Beard of Directors since 2005. He is also President of CAP Ventures
Compafiia Argentina de Participaciones SA, a venture capital fund with headguarters in Busnos Aires, and Reguiar Birector of AGL
Capital 54, a financial company. Prior to 2005, Mr. Weil was Co-founder of Adecoagro [NYSE: AGRO) and Managing Partner in 5&1
Ventures, a venture capital fund based in Miami, FL. Mr. Weil s an Industrial Engineer graduated from the Universidad de Buenos Aires.
He also received a Master in Business Administration from Wharton School of Business at the University of Pennsylvania.

Dario Ezequiel Lizzano. Mr. Lizzano is Regular Director and Vice President of the Board of Directors of TGLY. He has worked as a Co-
director of investmant banking at Vinci Partners investimentos, He has bees the Generat Director of Pointstate Capital since December
2014, working as a Senior Portfolio Manager. Previously, he was Managing Director of Morgan Stanley from July 2007 to 2014, as
Director of Equities and Research for the Latin American division and as Chief of Distribution of Emerging Markets. He also served as
General Director and Director of Equities and Research for Latin America at Santander fnvestment Securities Inc. Mr. tizzano holds 2
degree in Business Administration from the Universidad Catélica Argantina.

Mariane Weil. Mr, Weil Is Regular Director of the Board of Birectors af TGLT. Mariano began his professional careger in the Financial
Leadership Program of General Electric Company In 1998. Subsequently, he was transferred to GE headquarters where he worked in
Corporate Treasury and Financial Planning. In 2008, he joined GE Capital Solutiens, GE's financial services division In Stamford,
Connecticut until he was transferred to Mexico City in 2006 to take the position of Financial Director for Latin America. Mariano was
also Birector of Banca HNS Chile, a joint venture of GE Capital with the Banco Edwards shareholding group. He is founder of AGL Capital
5.A. Mr. Weil holds  degree in Economics from the Universidad de San Andrés. Mariara is the brother of Federico Weil’s, President of
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Mariane Gonzalez. Mr. Gonzalez is a lawyer and partner of the boutique firm Gonzalez & Ferraro Mila. its main focus is on capital
raarkets, mergers and acquisitions, project financing and financial restructuring in the mining, oil and gas utilities industries. He was a
junior partner of Estudio Beccar Varela (Buenos Aires, Argentina} from 1998 to 2005. Previously, he worked at Marval, O'Farrell & Mairal
a5 a senior associate from 1997 to 1098, and worked at Linklaters and Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCley in New York as @ foreign
associate. Mr. Gonzalez graduated in Law from the Unlversidad de Belgrano in 2993 and obtained a Master of Laws {LiM] from the
Columbia University School of Law in 1996. He also obtained a Bachelor's Degree in International Trade from the fundacién Banco de
Boston in 1992,

Pablo Alejandro Melhern Marcote, Mr. Melhem Marcote is Regular Director of TGLT. Throughout her professional career, he worked
at Brand! e Asociados (Sao Paulo, Brazil) in 1999, as an associate at Allende & Brea (Buenos Alres, Argentina) between 2000 and 2001,
as 5 sesior associate at Allende & Brea LLC (Florida, United States} betwsen 2002 and 2005; and at Estudio Garrido {Buenos Aires,
Argentina} as Contract Partner between 2005 and 2006. My, Melhem graduated as a lawyer from the Universidad Catdlica Argentina in
1999 and obtained a Master of Laws {LLM) at the School of Law of the University of Virginia in 2002. Its main areas of practice are
mergers and acquisitions, corporate law and internationat contracts; venture capital & private equity, real estate.

Carlos Alberto Patazén Mr. Palazén is Regular Diractor of TGLT and Partner of L Advisors, advisor in Argentina of PointArgentum. He
previously served as a Portfolic Manager at CIMA investments, worked as 2 Senior Research Analyst at BGN and as a Portfolic Manager
at Consultatio Asset Management. He has a large experlence in emerging markets where he has been working since the early 1590s.
Mr. Palazon holds & degree in Economics from the Universidad Catdlica Argentin, Buenos Aires and is alsa a CFA Charterhofder.

Atejandro Emilio Marchionna Faré. Mr. Marchionna Faré is an independent Regular Director of TGLT. In addition, be is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, He has been part of the Company's Board of Directors since February 19, 2010. He is also Chafrman of the Boarg
of Integra Negocios $.A. and of Andes Foundation. He has warked as a Strategy Consultant for more than 30 years and is currently a
part-time post-graduate professor at the 1AE Business School. He has previously worked at Serra Consulting, The Fare Partners (tondon),
Fenlane {tondon), Towers Parrin {London} and Telesls (Paris). Mr. Marchionna holds a Dagree inn Operations Research and Industrial
Englnearing from the Universidad Catélica Argentina. He obtained a Master in Business Administration from Harvard University and a
PhD from the Universidad de CEMA [Buenos Aires).

Mauriclo Wior Mr. Wior is an indepandent Regular Director of TGLT and Is also Director of Banco Hipotecario. He has held various
positions in Bellsouth, where he was & Vice President for Latin Amerkea from 1935 ta 2005. Mr. Wior was also the Ganeral Manager of
Movicom Bellsouth from 1993 to 2005. In addition, he led the operations of several cellular telephone companies in Uruguay, Chite,
pery, Ecuador and Venezuela. He was President of the Latin American Association of Cellwlar Phones {ALCACEL), the Chamber of
Commerce of the United States In Argentina and the Israefi-Argenting Chamber of Comrerce, He was Director of the Instituto paro ef
Desarcollo Empresariol de Argenting (IDEA -Institute for Business Development of Argentina), Fundacidn de Investigaciones Economicas
Latinoamericonos (FIEL - Foundation of tatin American Economic Research) and Tzedska, Mr. Wior obtained a Master's Degree in
Finance, as well as a Bacheior's Degrae in Economics and Accounting from Tel Aviv Univarsity, in israel.

Alefandro Belio Mr, Belic is an Alternate Director of TGLT and has also been Operations Director since January 2018, Previously, he was
the General Manager of Faena Properties S.A. He also worked as General Manager of Creaurban S.A., Project Manager of Matecén 2000
Foundation {Guayaqull, Ecuador), Group Leader of Construction Works in Construcciones Lain / OHL (Barcelona, Spainj and Project
Director of Graziani 5.A. Heis an architect graduated from the Universidad de Buenos Ajres in 1979, obtained his MBA in the Universidad
del CEMA and completed the Senlor Management Program of the IAE.

Pablo Farrare Mila Mr. Mifa is an Alternate Director of TGLT. He praduated as 3 lawyer in 1993. He holds a Masters in Comparative
Jurisprudence from New York University, School of Law and a Master in Business Law fram Universidad Austral. He is admitted as a
lawyer before the Bar Association of the Federal Capital, and the State of New York and as Solicitor before the Supreme Court of England
and Wales.

Gustavo Casir. Mr. Casir is Alternate Director of TGLT. Previcusly, he worked as an associate in Estudio Seitun between 1991 and 1983,
in the Legai Affairs Dlvislon of Grupo Proalear S.A. until 1994, as a partner in Casir & Pérez Pistani until 1997, as an associate in Mufioz
del Toro & Muiioz del Toro until 2600, in Simpson, Thacher & Bartlett (New York) uatii 2001 as an associate, in Mufioz del Toro & Mufioz
del Toro as a partner until 2005 and as a partner in Quatrini, Laprida & Ascciados untif 2011. Mr. Casir graduatad as a lawyer from the
Usiversidad de Belgrano in 1992 and obtained postgraduate degrees in Corporate Finance and Management and Business
Administration in the University of San Diego in 1984; and a postgraduate degree in Banking Practice from the Linivarsidad de Buznos
Alres in 1995, He also obtained a degree in Foreign Trade from the Argentine Chamber of Commerce in 1350,

Rodrigo Lores Arnaiz. Mr. Lores Arnaiz is Alternate Director, Manager of Processes and Business Support of TGLT. Befare loining TGLT,
he was Senlor Manager of Accenture in the strategic consulting team for clieats in the mass consumption sector in Argentina and Chile.
He also worked for five years as an accountant in the audit and Business Advisory division of Arthur Andersen. Mr. Lores Aenaiz cbtained
his MBA from Wharton School of Business, where he graduated in Strategic Management and Finance. He is 2 national public accountant
from: the Universidad de Buenos Aires, where he graduated with honors.

Fernando Sadl Zoppt. Mr. Zoppi is Alternate Director of TGLT, His activity has mainly fecused on corporate law matters, such as mergers
and acguisitions, Corporate Investments and Venture Capital, Project Finance and Infrastructure and Corporate Finance. He represents
tnvestment funds, multinational companies, multilateral organizations and banking corperations in various local, regional and
international transactions, His experience extends to advice on corporate and contractual matters and other matters related to
commercial law. Mr. Zoppi graduated in Law from the Universidad de Buencs Aires {with honers) in 1999, and obtained a Master's
Degree [LLM} at Columbia University, School of Law {New York, USA), in May 2004, Mr. Zoppi joined PAGBAM in 1998, During 2005 and
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2006 he was an associate in O'Melveny & Myers, LLP {New York, USA}. In 2007, he was an associate of Latham & Watkins LLP {New
York, USA) In 2012 he was Appointed Partner of PAGRAM. He has been a class assistant at the Universidad de Buenos Aires
{tnternationat Law and Civil Rights}. He Is currentiy a professor at the Instituto Universitario ESEADE, where he fectures on Capital
Markats at the postgraduate program in Financial Assets Management,

Pedro Eugenio Aramburu. My, Aramburu is Alernate Director of TGLT. lts activity has been focused mainly on mergers and acguisitions,
corporate investments and risk capital, as well as corporate faw and corporate governance. He has a wide experienca in lopal ang
international mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures, structuring of private equity investments, and worked as advisor for large locat
and multinational companies, investment funds and strategic investors. Mr. Aramburu has been a Partner of PAGBAM since 2007,
Between September 1997 and October 1998, he worked as an associate at Dewey Ballantine (LP {NY, USA), and in 2002 and 2003 he

Daniel Atfredo Vicien, Mr, Vigien is an independent Alternate Directar of TGLT and his activity focuses on strategy, finance and business
process consulting, He has led consulting projects in regngingering and process optimization, deveiopment of new businesses, strategic
use of internal and externa information for Mmanagement, erganizational change for the implementation of new strategies. He has
experienca in lecturing in workshops for the development of entreprenetrs both in-company and in ad hoe seminars for Universidad

courses in Marketing at the Universidad de 5an Andrés; previously he had been Professor of Strategic Planning, Business Management
and Control, Data Processing and Operational Research at Universidad de Buenos Aires and Universidad Catdlica Argentinz, He has
served as Manager of Business Units in important national and internstional companies. He has more than 26 years' experience asa
Manager in commercia! areas, strategic planning, systems Planning, financie! planning and control, sperations and administration. He

Luis Armando Redriguez Villasuso, Mr. Rodriguez Villasuso is an independent Alternate Director of TGLT. He is currentiy the Director
of Bodegas Valentin Bianchi 5.4, [Argentina), Habitat AFP {Chile and Nedken Solutions {Spain). Previously, be worked at Citigroup, as
manager of retirement services for Latin Americz and at Bance Rio where he was the main manager of insurance and pensions. He was
also a Senior Consultant at Deloitte. My, Rodriguer Villasusoe obtained a degree in Naval Engineering and Mechanics from the

Universidad de Buenos Aires and an MBA from AE Business School. He has also obtained a dipioma of Certified Business Director by
IGEP / ADE,

Compensation. Our shareholders set the compensation of our Directors, inchuding their fees and any additional salary derived from the
permanent performance by any of the Directors of any administrative or technical assignment. Compensation of pur Directors is placed

consideration as a speciaf item on the Agenda,
Supervisory Committee

Our Supervisory Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising our administration and other matters and verifying compliance

th the bylaws and the decisions adapted at the Shargholders® Meetings, Members of the Supervisary Committee are appointed at
the Annual Generat Shareholders’ Meeting for a three-fiscal-years' term. The fallowing is the current structure of our current
Supervisory Committee whose members were elected at the Annuat General Shareholders’ Meeting held an April 14, 2016 and April
20, 2017:
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Ignacio Fabidn Gajst Trustee Pubfic Account Regular
Pablo Di torio Trustee Lawyer Regular
ignacio Arrieta Trustee Lawyer Reguiar
Silvana Elisa Celso Trustes Public Account Alternate
Fernando G, Sasiain Trustes Lawyer Alternate

Members of the Supervisory Committee qualify as independent in accordance with the Rules of the CNV. Likewise, it is recorded that
ignacio Fabidn Gajst and Silvana Elisa Cetso have the status of "independent” according to Technicat Resofution No. 15 af the Argentine
Federation of Professionat Councils of Economic Sclences, and that pablo Di lorio, lgnacio Arrieta and Fernando G Sasiain, have the
status of “independent” according to Technical Resolution Na, 15 of the Argentine Federation of Professional Councils of Econ ontic
Sciences, although this is not applicable 1o them because they are not public accountants. Mariang Gonzalez and Pablo Di loris provide
professional services to sharchglder Blenvilie Argentina Opportunities Master Fund, LP.

‘The main atteibutions and duties of the Supervisory Committea are:

» Supervise the administration of the Company, for which purpose it wili examine books and documentation at least once every three

months;

Check avallabilities and securities, as well as obligations and their fulfiltment. It may also request the preparation of trial batances;

Attend Board of Directors’, Executive Committee’s and Shargholders’ meeting with speaking but not voting rights;

Ensure the creation and malatenance of the correspanding guarantze in favor of the Company by Directors;

Submit ta the Ordinary Sharehalders’ Meeting a written and weli-founded report on the economic and financial situation of the

Company, exgressing their opinion on the annuai report, inventory, balance sheet and statement of resuits;

=  Provide Shareholders representing at least 2% of the capital, upon their request at any time, information on the issues they are
respoasible for;

« Call an Extracrdinary Shareholders’ meeting, when they deem it appropriate, and to Ordinary Shareholders' meeting or Special

Meetings, whenever the Board omits to do so;

Have included in the agenda of the Sharehoiders’ meeting the issues it considers appropriate;

Ensure that corporate bodies duly comply with the law, bylaws, regulations and decisions of the shareholders’ meetings;

Supervise the liquidation of the Company; and

tavestigate complaints made In writing by Sharehelders representing at least 2% of the capital,

& & » 2

- a0 ¥

Environmental and / or sustainability policy

TGLT develops real estate projects that, due to their visibifity and scope, inexorably hiave an impact on the environment and the
community in which they are being developed. TGLT guarantees a healtty integration of its projects with its surroundings, through a
modera architecture, taking care of the environment and responding to the needs of the neighborhoad in which they are being
daveloped so as to contribute to invigorate the comraunities and their environment.

Our activities are sublect to natlonal, provincial and municipal laws and regulations, authorizations and licenses required for
construction, zaning, land use, environmental protection and protection of historical heritage among others, ali of which are considered
when evaluating the acquisition of fand and the development of buildings. We have the chligation to abtain licenses and authorizations
from different governmental authorities in arder to carry out the projects.

When develaping new projects, we consider maintataing historic buildings on acguired land and cambining those structures with new
modern buildings, achieving innovative projects that preserve the city's architectural hesitage, protecting the environment and using
resources efficiently. Forum Puerto Norte is a project that highlights the importance we devate 1o these principles. Its design takes into
cansideration apsthetic and design factors together with a perfect interaction of the project with the neighbarhood and the ¢ity in which
it is located, taking into account factors such as eavironment, sustainability, conservation of natural resources and space. in mixed-use
projects fike Venice and Birisario, these considerations are particularly significant.

Although the rest of the projects developed by the Company have not been prequalified for LEED certification, they have been featured
by the use of some innovative concepts in housing architecture such as glass curtains on facades - which allows a greater use of natural
light and a better indogr-outdoor thermal balanee in terms of handling of ambient temperatures -, the provision of centralized sir
conditioning equipment that improves enargy efficiency In refation to individua! equipment per unit, maximization of green spaces both
on ground floor and rooftop, among others.
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internal Contro!

The Board of Directors has implemented an interaal control system designed to guarantee the achigvemnent of the Company's goals,

ensuring effectiveness and efficiency in operations, reliabitity in information and compliance with faws, regulations and policies in
general.

The Company has a sofid contral environment based on the formalization and implementation of policies and procedures designed to
control risks and prevent fraud, These initiatives aim to generate control awdreness in employeas by reinforging ethical values, as welf
as defining controls and procedures in the performance of the Company's operations.

The Board of Directors periodically analyzes and evaluates the risks of the Company in view of the activities performed and the markets
where it operates, in order to foresee difficulties and / or take advantage of opportunities. Likewise, risks are then exposed and analyzed
within the scope of the Audit Committee in compliance with its Annual Action Pian.

The internal controt system includes control activities carried out by the internat Control area of the Company to guarantee compliance
with the policies and pracedures established, which in turn allow us to ensure that Management's directives are being followed.
Furthermore, this area carries out different reviews in order to evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the controls and contribute
to the continuous Improvement of risk management ard controf processes.

The Audit Commitiee receives information on any significant deficiencies and substantial weaknesses in the design or operation of the
internal control system over financial reporting which might reasonably affect the Company's ability to record, process, synthesize and

report financial information. as well as any fraud or possibility of fraud invelving management or employees that play an important role
in the internal contro} system over the Company's financial reports.

Relation with investors

I: order ta achieva an appropriate valuation of the TGLT's share in the capital markets, the Company maintains a continueus and open
dialogue with the investment community and seeks to provide fransparent information for the correct evalyation of the Company's
activities,

In addition to complying with the information requirements set forth by the Nationa! Securities Commission of Argentina and the
Buenos Aires Stock Exchange, the Company keeps s website dedicated to investor relations {www.tgi.com/ri for its Spanish version
and www.tgit.com/ir for its Englisk version), issues press releases for relevant events, prepares communications for the release of its
results and conducts open teleconferances for the participation of the investor commauaity upon the publication of financial statemants
or material facts. Besides, it has an active participation in investor conferences and holds periodic meetings with current or patential

investors. Investors may access by telephone 0800-888-8458 ar through e-mail to the address Investors@tgit.com to request further
information.

X. DIVIDEND POLICY

In accordance with the Bysiness Companies Law, the Company's Bylaws, and the CNv Regulations, the Company may make one or more
dividend dectarations in any fiscal year, and even pay anticipated dividends out of the reafized and liquid earnings according to the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company or specizl consolidated batences in the case of anticipated dividends,

The declaration and payment of dividends to the shareholders of the Company, insofar as the funds are legally avaitable, is resolved by
the shareholders with vating rights in the ordinary annual meeting of the Company. In that ordinary annual meeting, common shares
shalf be entitled to one vote each. it is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to make a recommendation to the sharehoiders in
refation to the amount of the dividends to be distributed. The Board's recommendsation wi depend on several factors, including but
not fimited to, the results of operaticns, eash flow, financiat condition, capital position, legal requirements, contractual and regufatory
requirements, and investment and acquisition oppertunities. of the Company.

The Board can also decide and pay anticipated dividends. In this case, each individual director and member of the Supervisory
Committee or trustea shall be jointly and severally liable for the payment of sald dividends i the retained earnings for the year for
which the dividends are paid are not sufficient to cover the payment of satd dividends,

If approved, dividends are distributed proportionally according to the stock helding of shareholders. In accordance with the CNV Rules,
dividends in cash must be paid to shareholders within 30 days following their approval. In the case of dividends in the form of shares,
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in accordance with Argentine law, the bylaws of the Company and the CNV Rules, the Company is required to allocate 5% of its annual
orofits to a legal reserve, approximately the results of previous years, until the reserve is equivalent to 20% of the adjusted share ¢apital.
Under the Business Companies Law and the Company's Bylaws, annual net profit {adjusted to reflect changes in prior results) is allocated
in the following order:

{1 for the compliance with the legal reserve requirement;
{i) for the payment of accumuiated feas of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committes;
{iii) for the payment of dividends of the preferred shares {if any}, which will be applied in the first place to accumulated

dividends pending payment; and

{iv) the rest of the net income for the year may be used to pay additional dividends on the preferred shares, if any, or
dividends of common shares, or may be allocatad to voluntary or contingent reserves, or as determined by the
sharaholders in the ordinary annual meeting.

From the effective date of Law No. 26,893, dividends distributed, whether in cash, goods or any other kind, except in bonus shares - are
subject to a withholding tax {the “Dividend Tax"} at a rate of 10% on the amount of said dividends, with respact to beth Argentinean
and non-Argentinian individuals, Howaver, if the dividends are distributed to joeal companies, Dividend Tax is not applicable. The
tompany withholds and pays this tax on behalf of its chareholders and offsets applicable taxes against any debt to the shareholders,

It is worth mentioning that by means of Law 27,430 the 35% withbelding became ineffective for new profits generated as from the date
that rule came Into force. Moreover, this faw provided for the taxation of the dividends to be distributed fixing & rate of 7% (for 2018
and 2019} and 13% (for any period after 2018).

The Company must pay the relevant tax on personat assets of Argentinean and non-Argentinean individuals and foreign entities for
holding of shares as of December 31 every year. The Company pays such tax on behalf of its shareholders, whenever applicable, and s
entitled, in accordance with the Tax on Personal Assets Law, to request reimbursement of said tax paid to the corresponding
shareholders in several ways, including through the withholding of dividends. Law No. 27.260 on "Tax Amnesty Plan” provided the
possibility to obtain the benefit of the Exemption of the tax on personal assets for fiscal periads 2016, 2017 and 2018 - including the
substitute taxpayer system - for those taxpayers who have compliad with tha tax obligations corresponding to fiscal periods 2014 and
2015 and de not have any tax dabts, among other requirements, rewarding those who were considered included under the “good
performar” category. Therefore, the company has not recorded the tax at the end of 20316/2017 fiscal year.

¥i, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We want to thank suppliers, clients, banking institutions, professienals, advisors and staff for the collaboration received and their
constant,

City of Buenos Aires, March 8, 2018.
THE PRESIDENT
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ANNEX |

REPORT ON THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CNV GENERAL RESOLUTION No. 606/12 and 622/13 OF THE NATIONAL SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ARGENTINA

In compliance with Ganeral Reselution Ng. 606/12 and £22/13 of the Nationai Secarities Coromission of Argentina {“CNV"), the Code of
Corporate Governance {hereinafter the “Code of Corporate Governance”} of TGLT SA {"TGLY" and / or the “Company”) is attached as
Annex | to this Annuaf Report identified a3 Anrex IV to Title IV “Periodic information System” of the new Regulations of the CNV in
accordance with General Resclution 622/13 {revised text 2013, harginafter, and iontly with other regulations issued by the Cy,
referrad to as the “Rules™) for the fiscal year ended on Dacember 31, 2017,

PRINCIPLE {: REVEAL THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE ISSUER AND THE ECONOMIC GROUP IT LEADS AND / OR
BELONGS TO AND iTS RELATED PARTIES

Recommendatian 1.1. Ensure disclosure by the Governance Body of the policies applicabfe to the relationship between the Issuer
and the economic group it leads and/for befongs to and its related parties,

Degree of Compliance: Total

The Company carries out transactions with refated compantes and they are disclosed in the Financial Statements, pursuant to the
International Standards issued by the interpaticnal Accounting Standards Board {"tASB"}. It also lists In the Financial Statements the
companies over which it exercises centrol, jeint controf and significant influence. In such transactions, the Company applies the
provisions of sections 99 subsection a), 109 and 110 and 72 and 73 of Capital Markets taw No. 26,831 {“CML”), and relevant provisions
of CRV's Revised Text.

The Company does not have an internal regulation for the authorization of transactions batween related partles, other than the
aforementioned regulatory framewaork, as the Board of Directors understands that said regulatary framework covers all the
reguirements necessary for a completa protection of the interest of ¢the Company and its shareholders. Additionally, as new revised
text of the CNV Rules (Generat Resclution No. 622/2013) became effective, the number of fransactions between refated parties that
must be subject to the procedure set forth in the CML has increased, thus increasing the disclosure of operations between related
parties of the economic group the Company feads and belongs to,

Recommendation 1.2, Ensure there are procedures in place to prevent conflicts of interast.

Degree of Compliance: Tazal

Recommendation 1.3. Prevent the misuse of priviteged information.

Bepree of Compliance: Total

The Company has internal pojicies that prevent the Improper use of privileged information by all employees. These policies are
structured on the basis of a Code of Fthics and agreements for the protection of Confidential or Privileged Information, on which periodic

PRINCIPLE Il: LAY THE FOUNDATIONS FOR THE ISSUER TO HAVE A STRONG MANAGEMENT AND S0 PERVISION

Recommendation [I. 1: Ensure that the Governance Body assumes the management and supervision and Its strategic orientation

#.1.1. The Governance Body approves!
i#.1.1.1. The strategic or business plan, as well a5 the management goals and onnual budgets,

Pegree of Compliance: Total

Inaccordance with the provisions of the Business Companies Law No. 19,550 as amended {"BCL") and the Bylaws, the Board of Directors
is the highest administrative and reprasantative body of the Company; therefore, it has the power to perform, within the scope of the
corporate purpose, any fegal acts or business of administration and dispasition, by any legat title, except those that under the BCL or
the Bylaws are the excluslve concern of the General Shareholders’ Meeting. inthis sense, the Board of Directors establishes the strategic
and business planning guidelines, and approves the annual budgel and organizationat performance objectives. As regards the annyal
budget, the Board approves the asumptions used and the detalls of investments, as well as the consofidated production and other
business volumes, income statemant and cash flow and approves the organizational abjectives that are then implemented by the
management of the Company.
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11.1.1.2. the investment polity {in financial assets and copital goods} and the financing policy
Degree of Compliance: Total

The Board of Directors establishes and approves the lnvestment pelicies n financial assets and financing policies, and delegates the
regular management of the Company's business to certain designated managers under the terms of section 270 of the BCL. in addition,
the Beard approves the investment budget and the annual financial budget upon approval of the annual budget

1L.1.1.3 the corporate governance policy {compliance with the Corporate Gavernance Codg)

Degree of Compiiance; Totatl

The Board of Directors establishes and approves the corporate governance policy, expressed in the Revised Text of the Company's
Bylaws, which is based on the iateraction of the current regufations on corporate governance issued by the CNV and the other self-
regulated markets where the Company securities are listed or traded.

11.1.1.4 the policy on the selection, evaluation and compensation of senior managers

Degree of Compliance: Total

The Board of Directars approves the policies on Human Resources of the Company and determines the selaction, evaluation and
compensation of seniar managers

i1.1.1.5 the policy on distribution of responsibilities among senlor managers;
pegree of Compliance; Total

The Board of Directors serves mainty as an administrative, supervisory and control body and has delegated the regular management of
the Company's business to certain managers designated under the terms of section 270 of the BCL, establishing the respensibilities and
roles according to the position for which they have been appointed.

These managers’ report directly to the 8oard of Directors and are hable to the Campany and any third parties for the performance of
their office 1o the same extent as the members of the Board and in the same manner,

11.1.1.6 supervision of succession planning of senior manogers
Degree of Compliance: ron-compliance

As stated in the previous paragraph, the human rescurces management keeps updated job descriptions of every positian highlighting
the responsibitities and profites of each manager, Although senlor managers are not oid enough te retire in the short term, they shiall
work on the development of their plans during 2018.

{1.1.1.7 corporate social responsibility policy

Depree of Compliance: Totat

‘The Board of Directars establishes and approves the corporate social responsibility peficies of the Company, whose main guidelines are:
{a} corporate behavior which sedks to ensure that corporate governance is committed to ethics and transparency in the refationship
with the stakeholdars; (b} sustainable development and investmant, so as to conduct business and activities with social responsibility;
and (¢) human rights, diversity and commitroent te the workforce, in order to respect and suppart internationally recognized human
tights, the promotion of decent work (supporting the eradication of child, stave and degrading labor} and respect for human and cultural
diversity of the workforce, seeking the commitment with the sotlal respansibifity of the Company.

1.1.1.8 policies on comprehensive risk and internnl control management, and froud prevention
Degree of Compliance: Total

The Board of Directors appraves the policies related to risks, internal control and fraud prevention,

with regard 1o fraud prevention, the Company prepares the Internal Audit Plan on an annual basis, which is submitted to the Audit
Committee,

In addition, the Audit Committee receives, if any, information on any significant deficiency and substantial weaknesses in the designor
operation of the internal contral system over financiat reporting, which is reasonably likely to affect the Company's ability to record,
process , summarize and report financial information, as well a5 any fraud or possibitity of fraud involving management or employees
wha play an impertant role in the internal control system over the Cormpany's financial reports.

#.1.1.9 policy on ongoing training for members of the Governance Body and senior managers,

Degrae of Compliance: Total

The Board of Directors, through the General Management, promates and encourages its members and senior managers ta be
continucusly trained by offering severat training programs and resoirces to its executive officers, which may be carried out within the
Company or in different educationat institutions.

42



TGLT 5.A.

ANNUAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
Non-executiva members participate in orientation and support activities, in order to have the best tools for decision making.

IL.1.2 if refevant, add other policies applied by the Governance Body that have not been mentioned and detail the significant
features

There are no policies that have not been already stated that we consider worth mentiocning.

1L.1.3 The Issuer has a policy in ploce to ensure the avallability of the informuation necessary for the Governance Body to make
decisions and @ direct consultotion channef to monagement fines, in a fair way for all its members {executives, external and
independent} with sufficlent time ohead to adequately analyze its content. Explain,

Degree of Compliance: Total

The Company guarantees the availability of information considered relevant to the decision making of Governance Body. In this regard,
section 7 of the Bylaws establishes that calling to Board of Directors meetings be carried cut by means of written notice to ali its

members and delivered at least five days before the date of the meating, stating the issues to be discussed together with the relevant
documentation,

The General Management of the Company is responsible for carrying out the calls of the Board of Directors, as well as for the availability
of the relevant infarmation, which is available to the members of the Board so that they can make the consultations they consider
appropriaie on the issues to be discussed in the meetings of the Board of Directors, with the participation of ather senior managers
according to the issues to be discussed,

11.1.4 The matters submitted to Governance Body for considerotion are accompanied by an anolysis of the risks ossocigted

with the decisions that may be odopted, taking into account the level of business risk defined os acceptable by the Issuer,
Explain.

Degree of Compliance: Total

All the matters submitted to the Board of Directors for consideration are accormpanied by an analysis of the risks assaciated with the
dacistons that may be adopted. In order to do 50, each responsible area preparas, if ralevant, an analysis and opinion on the area
concerned, in order to evatuate all the isks associated with the decision, considering the leve! of risk acceptable to the Company.,

Recommendation 11.2: £nsure effective control of business management
The Governance Body verifies:

i#.2.1 fulfilment of annual Budget ond business plan,
Depree of Compliance: Totat

The Board of Directors has created & system to contrel any budget deviation. In case thera is any, the Board takes part whether directly
or through the senior managers, according to the importance of such devistions,

Periodically or when there are any budgetary deviations requiring the analysis of the Gevernance Body, the General Management deals
in this area with the fuifiiment of the annuat budget.

Likewise, the Management shares and reviews the budget control report and the outlook on a monthly basis, and if that raview results
in an issue that must be discussed at 8oard fevel, it is submitted to that area in order to b dealt with.

Budget control is mainly focused on the follow-up of the most important economic-financial and operational variables of the Company
that are manitored on a moenthly basis.

i.2.2 performuance of senior managers and their fulfiliment of their goals {fevel of expected profits versus level of profits
achieved, finoncial rating, quality of the accounting report, market share, gte.).

Describe the refevant aspects of Issuer’s Management Controf policy, detailing techniques and frequency of monitoring
carried out by the Governance Body

Begree of Compliance; Totat
Monitoring of the performance objactives of the senior managers is petiodically reviewed by the Board.

Additionally, at ail meetings of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer (in charge of the General Management) makes a report
on the Company's business, which provides the Board with relevant information to evaluate the fulfillment of the objectives set for
senior managers.

Recommendation I1.3: Disclose the performance evaluation process of the Governance Body and its impact.

#.3.1 Each member of the Governance Body complies with the provisions of the Bylows and, where applicable, the Rules of
Frocedure of the Governance Body. Detail the main guidelines of the Rules of Procedure. Indicote the Degree of Compliance
with the Bylaws and Rules of Procedure.

Degree of Compliance: Total
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Mambers of the Board of Directors comply in full with the provisions of the Byfaws. The Board of Directors of the Company does not
have any Rules of Procedure.

{.3.2 The Governance Body discioses the results of its performuonce toking fnto account the objectives set at the baginning of the
period, so that shareholders may evluate the degree of compllance with these obfectives, which contaln both financial and non-
financiol aspects. Additionally, the Governonce Body submits an opinion about the degree of compliance with the poficies mentioned
In Recommendation §l, items i.1.1.ond 1.2,

Detaif the main aspects of the evoluation of the Generol Shareholders’ Meeting of Shareholders on the degree of compliance
by the Governance Bady with the objectives set and the policies mentioned In Recommendation I, items 1L1.1 and IL1.2,
stating the dote of the Shareholders” meeting where said evaluation wos presented.

Degree of Compliance: Partial

The Beard of Directors reports on the results of its management every year in the Annual Report, which is analyzed and approved by
the Shareholders' Meeting in order to deat with and resolve the matters contemplated in paragraphs 1 and 2 of section 234 of the
Business Companies Law.

During the first semester of 2018 the Board of Directors will Teport on the degree of compliance with the poticies mentioned in
Recommendation i, items #.1.1.and §.1.2.

Recommendation H.4: That external and independent member's account for a significant partian of the members of Gavernance
Body.

#.4.1. The proportion af external and independent executive members {independent members os defined by the CNV's
regulations) of the Governance Body is consistent with the Issuer’s capital structure. Explain.

Degree of Compliance: Total

Section 7 of the Bylaws establishes that the administration of the Company & conducted by 2 Board of Directors composed of 8 (eight}
regular members and 8 (eight) alternate members, of which at feast 2 {twe) regular members and 2 (two} alternate members must
meet the independence requiremients established by the CNV rules and their term of office is three {3} fiscal years.

The Board of Directors considers that at present the number and composition of its members is in line with the complexity of the
decision-making processes of the Company and the scope of its operations, and should the circumstances change, and if deemed
appropriate, a change could be propgsed to the Shareholders’ meeting, as it has done in the past. Further, the Board of Directors
considars that the current number of indepandent Directors is appropriate for the structure of the Company.

i1.4.2 During the current yeur, at a Generol Shureholders' Meeting, shareholders agreed to o policy aimed at maintaining a
proportion of at least 20% of independent members aver the totol number of members of the Governonce Body.

Describe the relevant aspects of such policy and of any other shareholders' agreement to understand how and for how long
the members of the Governonce Body aore appointed. Indicete if the independence of the members of the Governance Body
waos ever chaltenged over the year and if there has been any abstention as a result of any conflicts of interest

Deprae of Compliance: Total

The proportion of independent Directors over the total number of Directors is determined by the Shareholders’ Meeting pursuant to
the provisions of the Bylaws and applicable regufations. The Company does not have a specific policy aimed at maintaining a proportion
of independent Directors over the total of its members; although it is usual practice that the number of independent members
composing the Board of Directars be sufficient to serve on the Audit Committee,

On May 26, 2015, Federico N. Weil, Bienville Argentina Opportunities Master Fund, LP; and Pointargemtum Master Fund LP entered into
a shateholders' agreement in relation 1o TGLT (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”), which wilf be in force as long as any of the signatories
are shareholders in TGLE. This Sharsholders’ Agreement provides, among others, that each signatary may designate two (2} regular
directors and their two (2} alternates, and two {2) regular directors and their two (2} alternates, that is, 25% of the total numbaer of
directors shall be independent direttors.

Recommendation IE5: Commit to the implementation of rules and procedures for the selection and proposal of members of
the Governance Body and senior management,

i1.5.1 The Issuer has an Appointments Committee in place:
Degree of Compliance: Non-compliance

The Company does not have any Appointments Committee and does aot consider it necessary to organize one since its tasks, within
the scope established in the current regulations, are effectively performed by the Board of Directors, with the support af the senior
management.

i1.5.2 in cose there is an Appeintments Committee In place, it:
As mentioned in 11.5.1, items 11.5.2.1 to 1L5.2.7 of Annex [V to TNV Gengral Resolution 622/2013, are not applicable,

11.5.3 If relevant, add any poficies implemented by the Appointments Committee of the Issuer thot have not been mentioned
in the previous item.
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As mentioned in i1.5,1, this item does not apply.

Recommendation 11.6 Assess the advisability of the Governance Body and / or statutory auditors and / or members of the surveilfanee
committee performing assignmeants at several fssuprs

Degree of Compliance: Partial

The Board of Directors cansiders that, to the extent that its members and/or Trustees (Statutory Auditors) duly fulfilf their duties, it is
not aecessary to set limits to participate in the Board of Directors or serve as a Trustee of other companies since the partitipation in
other companies does not in itself affect the interasts of the Company, withaut prejudice to the analysis of each particufar case.

Recammendation IL.7: Ensure Tralning and Devefopmant of members of the Governance Body and senjor managers of the Issuer,

IL7.1 The Issuer hos ongoing Training Programs in place addressed to members £f the Governonce Body and senior managers
related to the Issuer's current needs, including training on their respective rofes and duties, comprehensive management of
businiess risks, specific knowledge on the business and its regulations, corporate governance dynamics and corporate social
responsibility matters. in the case of members of the Audit Committee, international acceunting standards, auditing ond
internol control rules and specific regulations of the capital markets,

Describe the programs that were corried out durin i the year ond their degree of comptiance,

Degree of Compliance: Partiat

General Management, under delegation of the Board of Diractors, defines the training guidelines and strategies of the sentor managers
and other employees by offering several training Programs and resources to executive fevels, which can be carrigt out within the
campany of in different educational institutions.

The Company has not formatized a continuous training program for Directors. However, Directors have carried out different training
activities refated to their management assignments in TGLT, Likewise, Directors keep up-to-date on topics relatad to politics, economics,
regulations and all ather refevant matters that are discussed at the quarterly meetings of the Company

I.7.2 The Issuer encourages, through other means not mentioned in I, 7.1, the members of the Governance Body and senior

managers to maintain a permonent training that complements their level of training in o way thot adds value to the Issuer,
Explain how,

Dagree of Compliance: Total

The Company considers that the means mentioned in itera 1.7.1 are sufficient to maintain a permanent training of the membaers of the
Governance Body and senior managers.

PRINCIPLE {li: SUPPORY AN EFFECTIVE POLICY FOR THE IDENTIFICATION, ASSESSMENT, ADMINISTRATION AND
DISCLOSURE OF BUSINESS RISK

Recommendation HE: The Governante Body must have a comprehensive business risk management policy and monitor its proper
implementation.

.2 The issuer has comprehensive Business risk management policles fcompliance with strategic, operational, financial, accounting
reporting, lows and regulations and other goals). Betail their most relevant features.

Degree of Complisnce: Totat

The Beard of Directars geriodically analyzes and assesses the risks efthe Company, pursuant to the activities it performs and the markets
where it operates, in order to foresee difficulties and / or take advantage of opportunities. The Board of Directors has implemented a
planning system - through the generation of annual budgets and periodic reviews - and internal contro! designed to puarantee the
achievement of the Company's goats, ensuring the efficiency and effectiveness of the operations, the reliability of the information and
the compliance with Jaws, regulations and policies in general.

Additionally, the risks are then submitted to and analyzed within the scope of the Audit Committee in compliance with its Annual
Performance Plan, with special emphasts on: {a} regulatory issues that may have a material impact on the Company, {(b) policies

.2 There is a Risk Monagement Committee within the Govemnance Body or the Generg! Management. Report on the
existence of procedure manusls and detail the main risk Jactors that are specific to the fssuer or its business and the mitigation
artions implemented, in there is no such Committeg, it will be necessory to describe the supervision performance by the Audit
Committee os regords risk manogement,

Moreaver, specify the degree of interaction between the Governance Body or its Committees with the General Monagement
of the Issuer regording comprehensive management of business risks,

Begree of Compliance: Partial

45



TGLT S5.A.

ANNUAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Comments on Recommendatian IIL1. apply,

The Company doas not have a business risk management procedure manuat to date. The Company will analyze the possibility of
preparing 8 manual of business risk management procedure in the future,

1.3 There is an independent assignment within the General Munogement of the Issuer that implements the policies on
comprehensive risk manogement (assignment of a Risk Management Officer or equivalent}). Detail.

Degree of Compliance: Non-campliance

There Is no independent assignment of Risk Management Officer or equivalent. The Company will analyze the possibility of creating
such a position in the future.

.4 Comprehensive risk management policies are permanently updoted in accordance with the recommendations and
recognized methodologies in this area. Indicate which,

Degree of Compliance: Partia}

The Company has implemented its own comprehensive risk management polictes which are updated according to the needs, experiance
and new challenges and developments the Company is going through or acquiring, and sa far have been effective.

1.5 The Governance Body reports on the resuits of the supervision of risk management carried out jointly with the General
Management in the Finaneial Statements and the Arnual Report. petail the main Issues of the presentations.

Degree of Compliance: Totat

The "Risk - Risk Management® Note of the Company's Financial Statements discloses information regarding market, liquidity and credit
risks ta which the Company is exposed and the Company's strategies to mitigate those risks.

Market risks refer to the risk of increased construction costs, demand risks of the Company's products ang risks of breach of contracts
by suppliers to whom the construction of the projects is outsourced. Credit fisks refer to credit risk related to the sale of the Company's
products, credit risk related to financiat instruments and cash deposits and liguidity risks.

PRINCIPLE IV: ENSURE COMPLETENESS OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITS

Recommendation IV Ensure the independence and transparency of the assignments entrusted to the Audit Committee and the
External Auditor

L1 In selecting the members of the Audit Commiittee, the Governance Body ossesses the convenience of appoimting an
independent member as Chairman, taking into consideration that most members must be independent.

Degeee of Compliance: Total

In accordance with the provisions of the transparency plan and the provisions of the Bylaws, the Company has an Audit Committee
composed of 3 {three) regular directors and the same or lesser number of alternates, who are appointed by the Board from among its
members, by simple majority of its members, The majority of its members are independent, in accordance with the criteria established
on this regard by the CNY Rules, The members of the Audit Commitiee are those directors versed in financial, accounting or business
matters.

Altheugh the Board of Directors when electing the members of the Audit Committee evaluates the convenience of having such
committee chaired by an independent member, the appointment of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman af the Audit Committee is
made by its pwn members, At present, the Audit Committee is chaired by an independent directar,

1.2 There is an internal audit function that reports to the Audit Committee or the Chalrman of the Governance Body ond thot
is responsible for the evaluation of the internal control system, Indicate whether the Audit Committee or the Governance Body
carey out an annual evalustion of the performaonce of the internal audit area and the degree of independence of its
professional work, provided that those professionals responsible for that assignment are independent from the other
operotive areas ond also comply with requirements of independence with respect to controlliing shareholders ar related
entities with significant influence on the Issuer.

Specify, also, i the internal audit performs its assignment in accordance with international standards governing the
professions! practice of internal audit issued by the institute of internal Auditors (lIA).

Degree of Compliance: Partiai

The Company has 2 person in charge of the internal audit area of the Company, whose main assignments are to evaluate the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Company's internal controls, verify compliznce with the Company's policies and procedures, and
contribute to cantinuous improvement of risk management processes and conteel thereof. This person in charge holds reguiar meetings
with the Audit Committee, which - as it has been doing since it was created in the second semester of 2047 - has evaluated and
supervised the oparation of the internal audit systems, expressing his opinion on that matter at the anmzal presentation of the financial
statemants. The audit area will analyze the possibility of incerporating into his work the internationat auditing standards issued by the
LA,
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V.3 The members of the Audit Committee moke an onnual evoluation of the ability, independence and performonce of
Externol Auditers appointad by the Sharehoiders’ Meeting. Describe the relevant aspects of the procedures used to carry out
the evaluation.

Degree of Compliance: Total

the Audit Committes meets avery three months with the Externat Auditors so that they may present the results of their work on the
Financiat Statements of the Company. On an annual basis, the members of the Committes evaluate their performance, as well as the
independence of the auditors and carry out the consultations on the aspects that they consider relevant,

Whenever the Board of Directors makes a proposal regarding the appointment of the Externat Auditors to be submitted to the

Shareholders' Meating, the Audit Committes issues 2 Report an It, in accordance with the provisions of the regulations currently in
force.

Additionatly, as part of its Anaual Management Report, the Audit Commitiea reports whether it has become aware of any relevant issue
that must be disclosed in refation to the External Auditors appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting for the fiscal year regarding the

independence of their performance, and makes any comments on the planning and performance of the external audit within stich fiscal
pericd.

V.4 The Issuer has a policy regarding the rotation of the members of the Supervisory Committee and/ or the External Auditor;
and with regord to the latter, whether such rotation includes the externat audit firm or only its individual members.

Begree of Compliance: Partiat

Regarding the rotation of the members of the Supervisory Committee, section 10 of the Bylaws establishes that thelr term of office s
for 3 (three) years and may be re-elected indefinitely.

As cegards the rotation of the External Augitars, the Company meets the rules,

PRINCIPLE V: RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
Recommendation V.1; Ensure that shareholders have access to Issuer's infarmation.

V.1.1 The Governance Body promotes periodical information meetings with shareholders upon the presentation of the interim
Ffinancial statements. indicote number and frequency of meetings held during the year.

Degree of Compliange: Tota}

The Company complies with the periodical information plans established by the Rules and Regulations of the Buenos Alres Stock
Exchange {Bolsa de Comercio de Buenos Aires - “BCBA™). Through these means, the Company publishes alt the information deermed
relevant about the Company so that its shareholders are informed. Regardiess of the information that must be released to the BCBA
and the CNV within the framework of infarmation and tegal requirements, the Company discloses all the information it considers
refevant directly 16 the sharehoidersin a transparent and accurate manner,

Upon the presentation of the interim and annuat financial statements, the Company halds telephone conferences with its investors in
which it discloses the results and other data arising from these financial statements. In addition, the Company has an [nvestor Relations
Management, which maintains frefiuent contacts with the sharsholders in order to inform them about the financial statements and
keeps permanent contact with Shareholiders upon the otturrence of any refevant event,

V.1.2 The Issuer has in place mechanisms to keep investors informed and g specialized areo ta answer their gueries.
Additionally, it has o website ovallable to shoreholders and ather investors, serving os an access channe! so that they con
establish contact with each other. Detail,

Degree of Compliance: Total

As mentioned in Recommendation V.11, the Company complies with the periodicat Information plans established by the Rules and
Regulations of the BCBA. Through these means, the Company releases all the information deemed relevant about the Company 50 that
its shareholders are infermed. Further, the Company has at present an Investor Relations WManagement, which is responsible for
answering the queries from sharehalders. On a quarterly basis, the Company issues press releases, in which it reports the results of its
managemant, among others, to shareholders in general as well as social entities and control authorities.

On the other hand, the Company has 2 website fwww.tgit.com) that includes a section, which is periodically updated { “Investars”),
dedicated exclusively to investors where you can find, amang others, information on equity structure, composition of the Board of
Directors, management, Audit Cormmittee ang Supervisory Commitiee, press releases, quarterly and annual reports, presentations,
analyst coverage and risk factors.

Recommendation V.2: Foster shareholders’ active invofvement.

V.2.1 The Governance Body takes actions to promate the partitipation of alf shareholders at the General Shareholders’
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Meetings. Exploin and make o distinction between the nctions required by law and those voluntarily offered by the Issuer to
its shareholders.

Degres of Compliance: Totat

The Board of Directars carries out all the legally reguired actions to promote the attendance and participation of all the shareholders
&t the General Shareholders’ Meetings, in order 16 ensure the exercise of their rights,

The Beard of Directors of the Company, through the investor Relations Management, assists the shareholders in all they may need to
participate in the Shareholders’ Meetings, for instance, on how to obtain the account balance vouchers 1o attend the Shareholders’
Meetings ar how to communicate attendance at shareholders’ meeting.

V.2.2 The General Shareholders’ Meeting hos procedure Rules to ensure that informetion is avoilnble to shareholders with
due anticipation for decision making. Describe the main guidelines of those rules.

Degree of Compliance: Non-compliance

The Company does not consider it necessary to have any Rules of Procedure regulating the Shareholdars’ Meetings, shnce it fully
complies with the {egal requirements established to hold the Meetings. Moreover, it makes available to the Shareholders all the
information legally required within the established terms.

V.2.3 The mechanisms implemented by the Issuer are applicable in order for minority shareholders to raise issves fo be
discussed ot the General Shareholders' Meeting in accordance with the regulations currently in force. Detail the outcome.

Degree of Compliange: Total

There is no statutory or factual impediment for minority shareholders to propose matters to be discussed at the Sharehelders’ Meetings.
However, {0 date, no minority shareholder has proposed any issues to be discussed as established by current regulations.

V.2.4 The Issuer has policies to encourage the participotion of more relevant shareholders, such as institutional investors.
Detail.

Degree of Compliance: Non-compliance

The Company understands that it is not necessary e have any additional policies to encourage the participation of major shareholders,
since 1t complies with alf the legally reguired actions in order to calt @if sharehclders on an equal basis, and assists all shareholders
requiring any halp to participate in the Shareholders’ Meetings as mantioned in Recommendation V.2.3.

.2.5 At the Shareholders’ Meetings where appointments of members of the Govemnance Body are proposed, the following is
announced priorto voting: {i) the position of each candidate regording the adoption or not of a Code of Corporate Governance;
cned (i) the rationale for that position.

Degree of Compliance: Non-compliance

At present, the Company does not disclose, in advance, the position of each candidate with regard to the adoption of a Corporate
Governance Code. The possibility of including this recommendation in the future wilt be analyzed.

fecommendatlon V.3: Ensura the one-share-one-vote principle.

The lssuer has o policy that promotes the one-share-one-vote principle. indicate how the composition of outstanding shores
huos changed by class in the lost three yeors.

Depree of Compliance: Total

The Company promotes equality regarding share and vote in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of its Bylaws, establishing that
ali shares of the Company are commaon shares entitliag one vote per share and a par value of one Peso {8 1) each. Although the Bylaws
consider the possibifity of issuing preferred shares, with or without the right to vote, as of this date that option has not been exercised,

There have beert no changes in the composition of outstanding shares per class during the tast three years.
Recommendation V.4: Establish mechanisms to protect all shareholders from takeovers,

The Issuer ahides by the mandatory tender affer rules. Otherwise, specify if there nre any other alternative stotutory mechanisms,
such as, the tag-afong rights or others.

Degree of Compliance: Total

The Company “is excluded from the Statutory Optional System of Public Otfering with Mandatory Acquisition  under the terms of the
no longer in force Section 24 of Decree No. 677/2001, The system provided for in the reguiations of the CNV could not be medified to
meet the particular neads of the companies.

Therefore, the Company established in Section 14 of the Bylaws a systen: similar to the Statutory Optional System of Public Cffering
with Mandatory Acquisition contemplated in the no longer in force Section 24 of Decree No. 67772001 regarding the agquisition of 3
“Ralevant Interest”, i.e. an interest equivalent to more than 40% {forty percent] in the share capital with the right to vote and / or in
the vates of the Company.
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Regardiess of the foregoing, in accordance with the provisions of Section 90 of the Capital Markets Law, the Puhblic Offering with
Mandatory Acquisition System covers alt listed companies, including those that under the previous system had opted to exclude their
application or have a different system, as is the case of the Company,

Recommendation V.5: increase the percentage of outstanding shares over capital.

The Issuer hos o stock dispersion of at least 20 percent for its comman shares. Ctherwise, the Issuer has o pollcy in place to
increase its share dispersion in the market.

Indicate the percentage of share dispersion as a percentage of the Issuer's shore capital and how it hos changed aver the last
three yeors.

Begree of Compliance: Totat

As of December 31, 2017, the three majority shareholders hold a 46.8% stake in the capital stock, while the remaining percentage

{53.29) is listed on the BCBA, and is traded over-the-caunter in the United States of America in the form of American Depositary Receipts
{"ADRs"),

Share dispersion has not changed significantly since the Company's entered the public offering system in November 2010.
Rerommendation V.6: Ensure that there is a transparent dividend policy.
V.6.1 The Issuer has a dividend distribution policy set forth in the Bylaws and approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting thut

establishes the conditions for distributing dividends in cash or in shares. if that is the case, indicate criterin, Jrequency and
conditions that must be met for the payment of dividends.

Degrae of Compliance: Partial

The Board of Directors of the Company establishes and propases to the Shareholders' Meeting the advisability, apportunity and amount
of distribustion of dividends as well a3, if applicable, the capitafization of the profits for the fiscal year, when making its proposal of profit
distribution to the Shareholders’ Meating taking into consideration the evolution and projection of the businesses and the commitments
assumed by the Company, All shares of the Corapany's equity are an an equal footing with respect to the payment of dividends.

The Company does not have and currently does not plan to establish any formal dividend policy governing the amount and payment of
dividends or other distributions.

The Company does not intend to distribute dividends within the next three or four years, since it intends to reinvest all thase profits
resulting from the business turnaround in arder to finance the growth afits profits and allow the generation of value for its shareholders.

The Compaay specifies its dividend policy under a section in the Aanual Report, of which this Code is part of as an Appendix, and under
a Note in the financial statements,

V.6.2. The Issuer has documented processes in place to propose the allocation of Issuer's retained earnings to set up legal,
Statutory or voluntory reserves, to be carried over to the next fiscal year andfor to pay dividends.

Detail these processes specifying the minutes of Shareholders’ Meetings in whick the dividend distribution {in cash or in shares) was
or was nat approved, if not provided for in the Bylaws

Degree of Compliance: Non-compliance

The Company will analyze the possibility of establishing documented processes to propose the aflocation of retained earnings of
the Company to set up legal, statutory or voluntary reserves, to be carried over to the next fiscat vear andfor to pay dividends in
the future.

PRESCEPLE VI: MAINTAIN A DIRECT AND RESPONSIBLE RELATION WITH THE COMMUNITY

Recommendation VE: Disclose 1o the community the issues related to the lssuer and provide a channel of direct communication with
the company.

VI.1 The Issuer hos on updoted public website which provides relevant information on the Company {Bylaws, economic group,
composition of the Governance Body, financial statements, Annual Report, among others} and also collects users toncerns in
general,

Degree of Compliance: Totat

The Company has a free-access website {www.tglt.com) which provides updated, sufficient and differentiated information so that its
public of interest, whether shareholders, potential investors, ciients or general public may easily access the information therein
cantained. Additionally, this site gives the possibiity for aft users to express their concerns and / or any kind of comments through the
IR Contact, which are taken into account and analyzed by the Cormpany.

The Company guarantees that the information transmitted by electronic means responds to the highest standards of tonfidentiality
and integrity and tenis to the conservation and registration of information,

V1.2 The Issuer releases an annuai Statement of Social and Environmental Responsibility, verified by an independent External
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Auditor. If 50, specify the legal and geographical scope or coverage of such staternent ond where it Is availoble. Specify which
standards orinitiatives hove been adopted to implement the Corporote Social Responsibility policy (Globol Reporting Initiative
andfor the United Nations Global Compact, IS0 26000, SA 8000, the Miflennium Development Goals, S5GE-21 Foretica, AA
1000, Ecuader’s Principles, among others}.

Degree of Compliance: Non-compliance

At present, the Company does not issue any balance of sociaf and environmental respensibility. The posstbility of issuing such a balance
in the future wii be anzlyzed, considering frequency and whether it will be verified by an independent external auditor.

PRINCIPLE VH: COMPENSATION SHALL BE FAIR AND RESPONSIBLE

Recommendation VII; Set clear policies an the compensation for the members of the Governance Body and senfor managers, with
special emiphasis on conventional or statutery restrictions, based on whether the Issuer has made a profit or not

Vii.2 The fssuer hos g Compensation Committee:
Dagree of Compliance: Non-compliance

At present, the Company does not have a Compansation Committee. Notwithstanding this and in an informal mannet, cartain members
of the board of directors meet in work teams in order to analyze and project the compensations of directors, managers and
administrative staff of the Company. The advisahitity of creating a Compensation Committee and its tasks will be analyzed in the future
in line with this Recommendation,

As mentioned in this VIL1, items VILL1 to VILLL.5 are not applicable.
Vif.2 In case of hoving a Compensation Committee In ploce, this Committee;
As mentioned in this VIL1, fems VIL2.1 1o VIL2.7 are not applicabie.

ViL.3. If deemed relevant, state any polley implemented by the Issuer's Compensation Committee that hos not heen mentioned in the
previous item,

As mentioned in this VIL1, this item V1.3 is not appticable,

ViL4. if there fs no Compensation Committee in ploce, please exploin how the tasks described in Item VIL.2 are performed within
Governunce Body.

The Board of Directors in a direct way regarding its members, and through the Human Resources Management regarding senior
managers and key employees, ensures that there is a clear relation between the performance of key personnel and their fixed and
variahle compensation (which Is linked to the performance of the Company), taking into account the risks assumed and their
administration.

Fram time to time, the Board of Directors, through the Human Resources Management, reviews the position of the Company regacding
what the market establishes as compensations and benefits for similar companies or companies running the same business and
therefore determines if any changes are recommended.

The Board of Directors defines and communicates, directly with respect to its members, and through the Human Resources
Management regarding the senior managers and the key employees, the hiring, promotion, removal, dismissal and suspension policy
{as the case may be).

in addition, the Board of Directars informs the guidelines for determining the retirement plans of the members of the Beard of Directors
and senior managers of the issuer, reports regularly to the Governance Body and to the Sharghoiders’ Meeting on the actions
undertaken and the topics anatyzed In their meetings. and is responsible far explaining at the shareholders’ meetings the compensation
schemes of the directors and senfor managars in case of consultation by the shareholders.

PRINCIPLE VHE: ENCOURAGE CORPORATE ETHICS
Recommendation VIH: Ensure 1ssuer’s ethical behavior

VHI.2 The lssuer has o Code of Business Behovior, Indicate main guidelines and whether it is publicly known This Code is signed at
feost by the members of the Governonce Body and senfor managers. ndicate if its application to suppliers und clients is encouraged.

Degree of Compliance: Partial

During 2012 the Company prepared a "Code of Business Behavior and Ethics of TGLT” establishing the guidelines and standards of
integrity and transparency the diractors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries must comply with.

Grounds for the Code of Business Bahavior and Ethics of TGLT are honesty, digaity, respect, loyalty, dedication, efficiency, transparency
and awareness to guide the behavior of the people to whom it applies. The abjactive is to meet increasing levels of competitiveness,
profitability and sociat responsigility, which involves to appreciate employess, heatth, safety, the environment and contribution to the
regions where the company runs its business.
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On March 1, 2018, as part of its commitment to the highest standards of integrity, behavior and business ethics, the Company has
implemented a new Code of 8ehavior and Ethics along with other paficies aimed at preventing corruption and laundering of assets,
whith comply with the provisions of Law 27.401 and the Law on Corrupt Practices Abroad of the United States ("FCPA"}. Both the new

"Code of Business Behavior and Ethics of TGLT * and the new policies mentioned have already been communicated to the recipients
and are in force as of the date of this report,

The Company will promote the application of the "Code of Business Behavior and Ethics of TGLT " ta suppliers and customers,

Vitl.2 The Issuer has mechanisms in place to receive reports of any unlewful or unethical conduct, either personally or
electronicolly, ensuring that the information transmitted meets high stundards of confidentility ond integrity, such os the
recording and preservation of information, Indicate whether the service for recefving ond eveluating complaints is provided
by the Issuer's staff or by external and independent professionals Jor greater protection of reporters.

Degree of Compliance: Total

The person in charge of internal audit and the Director of Legal Affairs are the contacts to recelve reports of any unfawful or unethical
behavior, whether personally or by electronic means, ensuring that the information transmitted meets high standards of confidentiality
and integrity. These may be @nonymous and are received through an osline form available at the following address:

http://talt.com/Denuncigs.

V1.3 The Issuer has policies, processes and systems for the management and resofution of the complaints mentiened in item ViIL2,
Maoke a description of their most relevant aspects ond indicote the degree ef invalvement of the Audit Committee in those resofutions,
porticularly in those complalnts assoviated with internal control issues for sccaunting reporting ond on the hehavior of members of
the Governance Body and senior rmanagers.

Degree of Compliance: Totat

The Company has system and process policies in place for the management and rasolution of the complaints mentioned in the previous
item. They respect the foflowing basic principles: (i} Integrity: acting independently and impartiatly; {i} Confidentiality: preserving
privacy and respect for people, information and documents originated by the subject under teview; {iii} Equality: promoting inclusion

and aceass to the complaints system for all persons; and {iv} Cooperation: promoting collaboration, empathy and participation for the
solution of differences or diverging points of view.

Furthesmore, these policies pursue the correct referral to the levels with attributions for resesrch and decision making, ensuring all
resources have been exhausted to access the fairest and most appropriate sofution.

Regarding the involvement of the Audir Committee, it is worth noting that the policies cusrantly in force establish that this Committee
shall recelve any reports whether directly and / or anonymously, refated to accounting, auditing and internai controt issues, and those
related to conflicts of interest that ara considered relevant, involving the external auditors, the management of the Company and the
“related parties” as defined in saction 72 of the Capital Markets Law. The Committee shail deal with these reports and submiit them to
the Board of Directors and / or the Supervisory Committee for their consideration and those bodies will proceed in accordance with the
provisions of the applicable regulations for cases of conflict of interest, violation of the legisiation, the Bylaws and / or rights of third
parties.

PRINCIPLE IX: ENHANCE THE SCOPE OF THE CODE
Recommendation IN: Promote the inclusion of the provisions related to good governance practices in the Bylaws.
Gegree of Compliance: Partial

Corporate Bylaws are i fine with the requirements of the Business Companies Law and the BCBA's Rules and Regulations and fnclude
provisions on the integration and operation of the Board of Rirectors, Audit Committee and Supervisory Committee and protection
mechanisms for all shareholders against takeovers, but does not include ather provisions related to good corporate governance
practices according to the recommendations mentioned above.

Notwithstanding, the Board may in the futuse consider the advisability of the introduction of ather provisions related to good
corporate governance.

THE PRESIDENT
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TGLT S.A.

Registered office: Av, Scatabrini Ortiz 3333 — 1= Floor

City of Buenos Aires, Argentina

FISCAL YEAR NO. 13 BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2017

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF DECEMBER
31, 2017

TGLT GROUP, PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

{mmeants st e In Argeating BEses

Comrpany’s main business: Management of real praperty prajects and undertakings, urban devalopments; rlanning, evaluation,
scheduling, farmulation, development, implementation, administration, coordination, supervision, management, organization,
direction and performance in real property businesses; exploitation of trademarks, patents, methods, formulae, licenses,
technologies, know-how, models and designs; any type of commercialization; study, planning, projection, advice and/or execution
of any kind of public andfor private, national, provineial and/or municipal works, in rural real property, urben housing, officas,
premises, nelghborhoods, roads, engineering andfor architecturat works in general and their administration, plan and project
drawing, participation in biddings of public or private works, and taking over of works already started; import and export of
consteuction machinery, tools and materials; acting as & non-financial trustee,

Date of registration with Superintendence of Corporations {Inspeccidn Generaf de Justicio — G
- Bylaws: june 13, 2005

- Last amendment: August 9, 2016

Registration number with IG: 1754529

Bylaws expiration date: june 12, 2104

CULT. {taxpayer identification number): 30-70928252.7

Information on subsidiaries: See Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital
{amounts in Argentine Pesos
Shares Issued, subscribed, registered and paid-
in
Common, registered shares, one vote per share at a nominal value of % 1 each 70,345,485

70,349,485
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Fifraant ¢ shatord i Arpant e poseos)

Notes Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
ASSETS
Nos-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 8,273,916 9,849,355
(ntangible assets 6 967,785 1,245,508
investment property 41 876,630,575 45,424,451
tnvestments in associates 52 - -
Goodwill ¥ 80,752,236 1131,44% 604
inventory 3 1,680,224,818 1,391,048,640
Deferred tax assets 4 75,742,069 78,824,319
Qther receivables 10 42,766,560 828,405
Total non-turrent assets 2,765,364,959 1,638,738,283
Current assets
Inventory .3 1,786,413,182 1,714,436,286
{Other assets 1y 24,779,680 -
Assets for sale a9 - .
Other receivabiles 10 282,615,817 265,525,202
Receivables from refated parties 30 6,398,297 7,952,268
Receivables from sales it 24,039,550 31,119,108
Dther financial assets 15.1.1.2 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 84,278,114 95,073,323
Total current assets 2,208,524,639 2,114,106,187
‘Total assets 4,973 889,598 3,752,844,470
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
attributable to parent company’s owners 147,742,168 172,124,854
Non-controlling interest 18 253,698,435 42,993,641
Fotal shareholders’ equity 401,440,603 215,118,535
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax Habilities b} 223,141,466 -
Other accounts payable 13 48,168,745 46,944,000
Customer advances 14 1,121,744,101 922,350,972
Loans 1% 123,559,760 K8,717,680
Other tax burden 16 3,481,221 3,120,044
Trade payables i7 2,439,383 23,378,882
Total pon-current liabilities 1,522,534,680 1,054,511,578
Current lizbilities
Deferred tax fiabilities 18 4,135,987 7,412,394
Provisions 14 7,639,276 587,250
Other accounts payabla 13 50,784,623 11,740,510
Customer advances 14 1,752,084,622 1,278,608,40%
Payables to related parties 30 25,634,358 332,855,202
ioans i5 594,576,664 392,037,742
Other tax burden 16 74,919,680 38,980,268
Payrolf and social security contributions 20 15,026,370 19,789,322
Trade payables 17 525,102,734 401,102,860
Totat cirrent fiabilities 3,045,914,315 2,483,214,357
Total liabilities 4,577, 448,995 3,537,725,935
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 4,973,889,598 3,752,844,470

Notes 1 te 55 are an integral part of thesa financiat statements,
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TGLT S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017,2016 AND 2015

farmciants statad in Arganting pesny)

Notes Dec 31, 2018 Dec 31. 2015

Revenue from ordinary activities 23 720,324,073 829,008,092
Cost of ordinary activities 24 (660,010,520}  {655,230,877]
Gross profit 60,313,553 173,777,215
Selling expenses 25 (122,182,056} {75,730,914)
Administrative expenses 26 {135,023,270) {103,510,811)
Other aperating costs K (30,693,369) -
Operating toss {227,585,142) {5,464,510)
Investments in associates 52 - -
QOther expenses {573,087} {383,313}
Financial results

Exchange gainsflosses 27 {5,166,955} {34,281,821)

Financiaf ingcome 27 11,028,950 49,941,660

Financial costs 7 {85,279,655) (68,011,711)
investment property appraisal at fair value a2 757,895,460 -
5ale of investment property 41 - -
Other income and expenses, nat 24 8,453,104 198,205
Income/loss for the year befare income tax 458,772,675 {58,001,486)
Income tax 29 (232,470,830} 106,378,684
Income/loss for the year 226,301,845 {47,622,802)
Other comprehensive profit or loss to be
reclassified as profit or loss
Exchange loss from a net investment abroad {18,596,365) {20,823,545)
Total other comprehensive loss {16,596,365) {20,823,545)
Total comprehensive profit or foss for the year 209,705,480 (68,446,347}
Income (loss) for the year attributable to:
Controlling interast 4,776,567 (45,076,825}
Non-controiling interest 221,525,278 (2,545,973)
Total for the year 226,301,845 (47,622,802}
Income/loss per share attributable to parent company’s owners
Basic 8 0.5% {0.64)
Diluted 38 0.59 {0.64)
Total compretensive loss for the year attributable to:
LControlling interest (11,819,758) {65,200,374)
Non-controlfing interest 221,525,278 (2,545,973}
Total income {loss) for the year 209,705,430 {68,446,347)

Netes 1to 55 are an integral part of these financlat statements.
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TGLY S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Lttty staved fn Acgmnnine PS5

Dec 31 2018 Dec 31, 2015
Operating activities

Incoma/loss for the year 226,301,845 {47.622,802)
Adlustments to obtain the cash flow fram operating activities

come tax 232,470,830 {10,378,684)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,703,347 2,855,640
Impairment of goodwil 30,643,365 -
Amartization of intangible assets 573,087 383,313
Gain on fnvestments in associates - -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (3,740,441} -
Sale of investments in associates - -
Investraent property appraisal at fairvalue (757,895,460} -
Effect of tinancial statements conversion (16,596,365} {20,823,545}
Effect of conversion on cash flows (329,608) (687,775}
Changes in operating assets and liabititias

Receivables from sales 4,728,375 {13,098,091)
Other receivables {30,295,480) (58,586,323)
feceivahiles from related partias 1,553,871 2,683,654
Other assats (24,779,680} -
Cther financial assets - -
Inventories (468,146,824) {740,284,260)
Assets for sale - -
Deconsolidation effect - -
Deferred rax assets and liabifities {1,963 5%7) (17,928,9200
Trade payables 103,060,375 169,620,787
Payroll and social security contributions {4,762,952% 8,400,008
Cther tax burden 36,300,585 42,264,702
Payalbiles to refated parties {307,220,843) 43,942,727
Customer advances 628,963,268 607,201,705
Provisions 7,628,507 -
Other accaunts payable 33,115,050 16,123,136
Minimum presumed income tax {7,496,945) {10,681,076)
Net cash flows arovided by/ {used in} operating activities {311,135,672) (21,575,710}
Investment activities

Investments not considerad as cash {595,311} {921,873)
Payments for purchase of investment property {2,354,515) {344,205}
Coflections from sale of investment property 56,051,010 -
Payrents for purchase of praperty, plant and equipment (3,558,080} {2,708,824)
Coliections from sale of propearty, plant and equipment 6,442,126 -
Payments for purchase of intangibla assats {237,258) (592,283}
Net cash flow provided by / {used in} investrent activities 55,747,562 (4,567,191}
Financing activitles

{oans 267,381,002 66,858,630
Financiz! instruments - {2,138,747)
Sale of non-controlling interest - 5,000
Transactions amang shareholders {15,800,843) -
Decrease in non-cantrolling interest {10,820,484) -
frrevocable contribution 7,452,900 -
Purchase of treasury stock {214,985) -
Collections from sale of treasury stock - -
Payments for purchases of shares in subsidiaries M -
Capital contribution - b
Net cash fiow provided by / {used in} financing activitios 243,997,520 64,324,683
Increase f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {11,380,520) 37,781,982
Cash and cash equivalents ot beginning of the year 92,488,940 54,706,958
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end {See Nate 5) 81,898,420 52,488,940

Notes 110 55 are an integral part of these financat statements.
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pote 1. Corporate information

1.1, Introduction

FGLT 5.A. (hereinafter “the Company”, “TGLI” or “the Corporation”] Is a corporation incorporated under the laws of Argentina,
engaged in the development of residential real property. TGLY operates in the main urban centers of Argentinz and Uruguay. TGLY
was founded ks 2005 by Federico Weil; in 2007 the Company went into partaership with PDG Realty 5.A. Empreendimentos &
Participagiies {hereinafter “PDG"), cne of the main real property develapers in Latin America. In April 2015, PDG sold its equity
interest to Bienville Argentina Opportunities Master Fund 1P and PointArgentum Master tund LP. TGLT initially focused on projects
for high-tncome segments, and is now gradually extending its offering to medium income segments and commerclat offices.

TGLT is a feader developer in the Argentine residential market and expects to get the same position i Uruguay. it is currently
developing ten projects in high in-demand urban areas in Argentina and Uruguay, undergoing phases involving product design and
application for permits, pre-construction, construction and delivery.

In November 2010, the Company condueted an Initial Public Gffering {“1PO”) of its shares in Argentina and abroad. Currently, the
shares of the Company are fisted on the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange. in addition, the American Depositary Receints (ADRs) Level ),
representing the Company's shares, are traded in the U5 over-the-counter market. Common shares of the Company may be
converted into ADRs at 5:1,

1.2. Business model
TGLT is focused on the developmant of residential housing and commercial offices in Argantina and Uruguay.

TGLT's husiness model is based on its abifity to identify the best plots of land and build residential projects for medium income social
segments, high quality offices and residential housing supported by a team af first-rate professionals, standardization of processes,
and management tools which enable the Company ta lagnch new projects on an on-geing basis and to operate a large number of
projects simultanecusiy.

TGLT participates exclusively or substantiaily in each of the projects it develops, and is commitied 1o each project aligning with the
interests of its shareholders.

TGLTs team controls and is involved in all tasks refated to real property developmeny, from the search and acqulsition of fand to
product design, marketing, sales, construttion managerent, purchase of supplies, post-sale services and financial planaing, with
the advice of specialized firms in each development stage. Although TGLT decides on and supervises each and every task, some of
them, such as architecture and construction, are delegated 1o specialized companies, which are closely supervised by TGLT, This
business model alfows the Company to ensure preduction excellence for each location and segment, efficient working capital
management at all times and to choose the best partner for each phase of development, white maintaining an organizational size
able to face changes according to volume of business.

In order to expand the Company's activities to the construction business, on January 19, 2018 the Company acguired 82.32% of the
shares in Capute Sociedad Andnima Industrial, Comercial y Financiera, one of the maost active and well-known construction
companies in the country, which has carried out more than 500 works in 80 years, and is listed on the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange
since 1955. Furthermare, following the Capital Markets Law and the Argentine Securities and Exchange Commission (CNV)
regulations, TGLT will timely conduct a public offering for the mandatory acquisition and voluntary swap of shares, simed at the
nolders of the remaining common shares in CAPUTQ, to acquire 100% of such company’s capital stock,

The objective of this scquisition is to knprove the construction capacity of projects, steeambining the cost structure and giving the
possibility of capturing the construction margin given the significant expansion of the industry, Furtherraare, it enables us to achieve
an optimal position to capitalize the opportunities posed by the construction sector growth in Argentina, both in real property
segments and in {arge infrastructure works, including public-private prajects,
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Mote 1. Corporate information (continued)
1.3. Real property development

Please refer to the Latter to Shareholders and the Reporting Summary, included in these financial statements, for more information
about real property projects developed by the Company,

1.4, Corporate structure

As of December 31, 2017, the structure of the business group TGLY (hereinafter “the Group”} is as follows:

TGLT S.A.
45.98% 190%
Marina Rio Lujin 5.4 TGLUT Uruguay S.A.
100%
FDBS.A,

The Group carries out the development of its raal property projects through TGLY 5.A. or its subsidiaries, TGLT Uruguay $.A. is an

investment company in Uruguay acting as a halding company for our projacts in that country, FDBS.A.isa company domiciled in
Montevides, Uruguay.

Note 2. Statement of compliance with {FRS

These financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the International Financing Reporting Standards
{[FRS) issued hy the International Accounting Standards Board {tASB).

Note 3. Basis for the presentation of the consolidated financial statements
3.1. Presentation basis

The consolidated statement of financial position as of Dacamber 31, 2017, 2016 and 201% and the consclidated statements of profi
of foss and other camprehensive profit or loss, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and
2015 have been prepared in accordance wits IFRS,

The consclidated financiat statements of TGLT S.A. have been prepared on the basis of the appiication of IFRS, The adoption of these
standards, as issued by the international Accounting Standards Board {IASB), was decided by Resolution No. 26 {restated text) of
the Argentine Federation of Professional Counclls of Economic Sclences [FACPCE) and the Rules of the National Securities
Commission {CNV). Likewise, some additignal issues required by the Companies Law and/or CNV rules have been included in the
Notes to these consolidated financial statements, only for the purpose of compliance with regulatory requirements.

These consolidated financial statements are related to the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2017 and ended December 31, 2017. 0
accordance with IFRS, the Company presents the consolidated statement of financia! position and statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive profit or lass, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows comparatively to the prior fiscal years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, Sea Note 4.17,

The amounts and ather information for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 are an Integral part of these financiat statements
and should be read in light of those financial statements,
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Note 3. Basis for the presentation of the consolidated financial statements
{cont.)

3.1. Presentation basis {cont.)

The Intarnationat Accounting Standard 22 {1AS 29} on “Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies” requires the financial
statements of an entity with a functionat currency that is hyperinflationary, regardless of whether they are based on the historical
cost method or the current cost method, to be stated in terms of the measuring unit cusrent at the statement af fingncisl position
date.

Regulators have issued no opinion on this matter to the date of issuance of these financial statements. However, the financiat
statements should be read in light of the fluctuations in refevant variables of the economy experienced in the most recent fiscal
years.

3.2. Newly issued Standards and Interpretations - Issued Standards and Interpretations
adopted to date

The following Is a list of standards issued by the 1AS8 but not vet effective to the date of issuange of these financial statements. In
this sense, only the standards that the Company expects to apply in the future have been included,

IERS 9 Financial Instruments {applicable to fiscal years beginning January 1, 2018}

{FRS 9 Financiat Instruments was issued in November 2008 and amended in October 2010. it introduces new requirements far the
classificatian and measurement of financial assets and fiabilities and for their write-off. IFRS 8 sets forth that all financial assets
within the scope of IFRS 39 Financial fnstruments (recognition and measurement) be subsequently carried at amortized cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments held within a business model whose aim is to collect contractual cash flows, and with
cantractual cash flows, which are only payments of principal ar interest on the outstanding principal, are usuaily stated at amortized
cost at the end of each subsequent fiscal year, All the remaining debt or aquity investments or equity are carried at the fair value at
the end of subsequent fiscal years.

The most significant effect of IFRS 9 in refation to the classification and measurement of financial fiabilities relates to accounting for
the changes in the falr value of financiat liabilitias (designated as financiat liabilities at fair vatue with changes through profit or loss)
attributable to changes in the credit risk of such fiabilities,

Specifically, for the purposes of IFRS 9, for financiat lisbilities desigrated as financial liabitities at fair value with changes through
profit or loss, the amount of the change in the fair value of financial fiahilities attributable to the changes in the credit risk of such
debt is recognized through other comprehensive profit or foss, unless the recognition of the changes in the credit risk of that debt
in ather comprehensive profit or foss pives rise to an accounting mismatch. The changes in the fair value attributable to credi risk
of financial ahilities are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Previously, under 1AS 39, the total amount of the change in the fair value of financlal liabilities carried at fair value with changes
through profit or loss was recognized in profit or loss,

tn November 2013, the 1ASB issued an amendment to IFRS 9 as part of the hedge accounting phase of the project refated to
accounting for financial instruments. Changes iaclude the elimination of the effective date {as from January i, 2015}, 1o provide the
1ASB with more time to finish other aspects of the accounting profect. OnJuly 24, 2014, the 1AS8 published the final version of IFRS
9 which includes hedge classification and measurement, impairment and accounting under IASE project to replace 1AS 39. This
version adds a new model of expected loss impakrment and limited changes to the classification and measurement of financial
assets, The standard replaces all previous versions of IFRS 0 and is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

The Board of Directors has stated that changes will be adopted in the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year beginning
January 1, 2018, As of this date, the Board of Directors has not determined the effect of this change on the Company’s financial
statements.
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Note 3. Basis for the presentation of the consolidated financial statements
{continued)

3.2. Newly Issued Standards and interpretations - Issued Standards and Interpretations
adopted to date (continued)

IERS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers {applicable to fiscal years beginning on or after january 1,
2018)

tFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with clients was issued in May 2014 and is applicable to fiscal years beginning on or after January
1, 2018, This standard specifies how and when revenue should be recognized, as well 2s the additional information that the Company

must present in its financial statements, It also provides a single five-step model based on principles to be applied to contracts with
clients.

The Board of Directors expects ta adopt these changes in the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year beginning January
1,2018. To date, the Board of Directors is determining the effect that this change will have on the Company's financial statements,

IFRS 16 Leases {applicable to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2019).

IFRS 16 Leases was issued in January 2015 and is applicable to fiscal yaars beginning an or after January 1, 2619, IFRS 16 eliminates
the current dua accounting modet for Ieases, which makes a distinction between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance
sheet operating leases where there is no recognition of future lease payments. Instead, it adopts a single on-balance sheat model,
similar to the current finance lease modat.

Nota 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied

4.1. Applicable accounting standards

These consolidated financiai statements have been prepared by using the specific IFRS measurements for each type of asset, liahifity,
income and expense. Consolidated and stand-atone reporting hereto attached is presented in pesos, legaltender in Argentina, based
on the accounting records of TGLT $.A. and s subsidiaries. The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation
of financial reporting which requires to make certain accounting estimates and decide on the application of certain accounting
standards,

4.2. Consolidation criteria

TGLT's consolidated financial statements include financial information on the Company and its subsidiaries,

The financial statements of subsidiarias {except TGLT Uruguay 5.A.] were prepared in accardance with othay accounting standards.
Therefore, and in order te apply accounting standards consistently with thase applied by TGLY, standards used by subsidiaries and
standards resulting from the application of Technicat Resolution No. 26 were reconeled for the following items a} total shareholders’
equity and b) net profit or loss for the fiscat year {according to the standard applied) to net profit or loss for the fiscal year {according
10 [FRS), and that amount to the tatal comprehensive profit or loss for the year.

Tre Boards of Directars that approved the financiat statements of the subsidiacies was subject to the application of monitoring and
confirmation procedures at management levet, which include all significant items with different treatment between the standards
used and IFRS, according to the provisions of General Resolution No. 611 of the CNV. Therefore, amounts reported in the stand-
alone financial statemsents of the subsidiaries have beer adjusted where measurement consistent with the accounting policies
adopted by TGLYT was required.

inthe case of TGLT Uruguay $.4. and its subsidiary FDB S.A,, assets and liabilities were convarted to Argentine pesos at the exchange
rates prevailing to the date of those financial statements. lacome statermeant accounts were converted to Argentine pesos at the
exchange rates prevailing to the dates of those transactions,
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied (continued)

4.2. Consolidation criteria {continued)

In every case, receivables and payasbles and transactions amaong entities of the consolidated group were eliminated during
consolidation. Profit or loss resulting from transactions among members of the consclidated group not disclosed 1o third parties
and recorded  the final asset balances have been fully eliminated. Subsidiaries whose financial statements have been included in
these consalidated financial statements are the following:

Company Type of control 12/31/2017 14/31/2015 12/31/2015
Marina Rio Lufdn S.A. {1} joint 49.99% 49.99% 49.99%
Canfol S.A. Exclusive - - 91,67%
TGLY Urupuay 5.A. Exclusive 108.00% 100.00% 100,00%
SITIAS. AL {2} Exclusive - 95.00% 95.00%

{1} Sec Note 48,
17} %ee Note 34.2 1o the consolidated financial siatements.

Naon-controlting interests, presented as part of shareholder’s equity, represent the portion of profits or losses and net assets of a
subsidiary not owned by TGLT. The Company’s Management records total profit or loss and other comprehensive profit or loss of
subsidiaries among the owners of the subsidiary and the ron-controlling interests based on their raspactive interests.

4,3, Functional currency

For the purpeses of these consolidated financial statements, the profit or toss and financial position of each entity are stated in
pesos {legal tender i Argentina}, which is the functional currency {currency of the main economic environment in which a company
does business} for ali companies domiciled in Argentina, and the curreacy in which consolidated financial statements are presented.
The functionat currency of TGLT S.A. Uruguay and its subsidiary £DB 5.A., located in Uruguay, is the American daollar.

When preparing the stand-alone financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity's fenctional currency (foreign
currency) wete recorded using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the transactions were perfarmed. At the end of each
fiscal year, the monetary items stated in foreign currency were converted by applying the exchange rates prevaifing at that date.

The non-monetary items recorded at fair value, stated in foreign currency, were recorverted at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined, Non-monetary items caleulated in terms of historical costs in foreign currency were not
reconverted, The profit or loss charged to Other comprehensive profit or loss related to foreign exchange gains/losses generated
by investments in assoctates with a functional cutrency other than the peso and by the conversion of the financial statements to
the presentation currency {pesos) has no effect an the income tax nor the deferred tax since at the time it was generated such
transactions had no impact on the accounting ar taxable profit.

4.4. Loan costs

The financial costs incurred as a result of laans cbtained to finance real property wrban projects {undergoing devetopment] directly
are Included as part of the cost of such assets, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 23 “Loan Costs” Additionally, for generlc
toans {that is, those not assigned specifically to a particular real property urban project) the assignment criterion set forth by that
standard was applied. The amount of loan costs capitatized during the fiscal years reported does not exceed the total loan costs
incurred dusing that same fiscal vear, respeciively. The remaining loan costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)
4.5, Income tax

The income tax expense is the totai current income tax generated by tax losses,

Gn December 29, 2017, the National Executive enacted Law Np. 27430 through Decree No. 1112/2017, whereby various
amendments ta the tax regime were Implemented, including the income tax, value added tax and excise taxes.

Amongst the most important amendrments introduced by the Law, the following can be mentioned: {7} the prograssive reduction in
the income tax rate for certain capitat companies, Including corperations and limited liabifity companies, from 35% to 30% for fiscal
years beginning as from January 1, 2018, and 30 % to 25 % For fiscal years beginning as from January 1, 2020, {ii) the consideration
of dividends and earnings obtained by individuals and undivided estates as Income levied with Income tax ot a tax rate ranging from
7% to 13% for fiscal years beginning as from January 1, 2018 and January 1, 2029, respactively, and (iii) the pessibility that individuals,
undivided estates and entities governed by section 49 of the Incame Tax Law, restated in 1997, as amended, residing in the country,
may revalue for tax purpases certain assets focated, placed or economically used in the country, owned by them, atiocated to the
generation of income lavied with income tax.

The Company has estimated the impact and effects that the Law wilt have, based on the settlement term for temporary assets and
Habilities as of December 31, 2017, and has recarded an adjustment (income) charged to income tax accruad for this year in the
amount of - $ 15.362.057 and an Increass in Capital Contributions in the amoupt of $ 47,849,166, pursuant to 1S "Income tax” and
SIC 25 "Income Tax—Changes in the tax status of an entity or its shareholders”.

4.6 Deferred tax

The deferred tax was recopnized on the temporary differences between accounting hases applied 1o the assets and liahilties
included in the financial statements and thelr respective tax bases.

The measurement of deferred tax assebs and liabfiities at the end of each fiscal year heing reported shows the tax consequences of
the way in which the entity intends to recover ar settle the book value of its assets or fiabilities,
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.7. Minimum presumed income tax

This tax is supplementary to the income tax because, whereas the latteris fevied on taxable income for the year, minimum presumed
income tax is 8 minimum levy on the potential income of certain productive assets at a 1% rate. Therefore, the Company's tax
Hability will be represented by the higher of the two taxes, However, i minimum presumed tncome tax exceeds income tax in a
given fiscal year, such excess can be computed as a eredit tawards future income taxes oecurring in any of the next ten fiscal years.

4.8. Wealth tax — Substitute taxpayer

individuals and forelgn entities, as well as undivided estates, whether domiciled or resident in Argentina or abroad, are subject to
vrealth tax at a rate of 0.25% of the value of the shares issued by Argentine entities as of December 31 of each year. The taxis levied
on the Argentine Issuers of such shares, such as TGLT S.A, who acts as a substitute taxpayer for the corresponding shareholders,
and is based on the value of shares {equity value} or on the book value of shares derived from the most recent financlal statements
as of December 31 each yzar.

On june 29, 2616, the Argantine Congress enacted the Tax Aranesty Law No. 272580, which sets forth a tax amaesty and tax reform
regime enabling to voluntarily and exceptionally report, without the obligation 1o bring them to the country, assets held in the
country and abroad, within a term extended from its effective date to March 31, 2017. The specific tax was 10% until the end of
2016 and 15% until the end of March 2017,

Among the provisions resulting from the law with respact to personal property, there is a reduction in the tax rate and an increase
in the minimum amount subject to tax, from $ 800,000 for fiscal year 2018, to $ 950,000 for fiscal year 2017 and $ 1,050,000 for
2018. Tax rates were changed to 0.75%, 0.50% and 0.25% respactively.

This regime also inciuded the possibifity 1o enjoy the wealth tax exemption bengfit for fiscal years 2016, 2017 and 2018 ~inciuding
the substitute taxpayer regime- to taxpayers who have complied with tax tiahilities for fiscat years 2014 and 2015 and have no tax
dabts, amang other requirements, to reward those deemed as "tax comphant”.

Accordingly, TGLT 5.A. has applied for this benefit and avoided the payment of this tax for fiscal years 2016 and 2017,

fegarding the weslth tax remaining balance, the Company has the right to be refunded the tax paid by the shareholders through
the reimbursement method deemed advisable by the Company.

4.9, Investment property

investment property consists of assets developed and maintained to obtain income, capital appreciation or both and is measured
at fair vahse, except when they are measured st cost value because the fair value cannot be reliably measured, but it is expected to
be measured when the construction is completed,

4,10. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PP&E) is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated Josses due toimpairment,
wher appticable. This cost includes the cost of replacing part of the PP&E, a5 well as loan costs incurred due tolong term construction
projects, if the requirements for recognition are met. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss
as they are ingurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-ine method, applying rates that are sufficient to extinguish their values at the end of
the estimated useful life. Thase useful lives are based on critetia and standards that are reaspnable according fo the experience of
management. For more information regarding the useful lives assigned, please refer to Note 4.23.
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied (continued)
4.10. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Property, plant and equipment components or any significant part thereof initiaily recogaized are weitten off when they are sold or
when no future econormic benefits from their use or sale are expected, Any profit or loss at the time anr asset is written off (caloulated
as the differance between the net income abtained from the sale of the asset and s book value) is included in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is written off,

The rasidual values, useful lives and depreciation methods and rates of the assets are verified and adjusted prospectively to the
year-end date, if applicable. €hanges in PP&E are presented in Note 5,

4.11, Intangible assets
4.11.1 Trademnarks and software

This includes expenses incurred in software acquisition and trademark registration. The intangible assats acquired are initially
measured at cost. Following initial recognition, they are measurad at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumutated
loss due ta tmpairment.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line mathod, the rate of which is determined based on the usefu! life assigned to the
assets a5 from the month they are added, Changes in intangible assats are presented in Note 6,

amortization methods, as the case may ba, and they are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortization expense in
intangible assets with defined useful lives is recognized in the statement of profit or foss under the expense category that is
consistent with the purpose of the intangible asset at issue,

Any gain ar loss that results from writing off an Intangible asset is calculated as the differance between the net income obtained
from the safe and the asset hook value, and & is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is written off,

4.11.2 Software development,

Software development expenses incuired in a specific project are listed as intangible assets when the Company can prove the
following:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it is avaifable for its expected use or sale;
- its intention of completing the asset and jts capacity 16 use or sellit;

- How the asset will generate future financial benefits;

- The avaitability of resgurces for completing the asset; ang

- The capacity to perform reliable measurements of dishursements during their development.

After development is initially recognized as an asset, the cast model is applied, which requires that the asset be measured at cost
less the accumulated amortization and accumutated losses due to impsirment, Amaortization of assets begins when development
has been completed and the asset is avallable for use. The asset is amortized throughout the period in whichk generatian of future
financial benefits is expected. Curing the development period, the asset Ig subject to annual tests to determine whether there is
any impairment. The Board of Directors has been able to verify that these assets mest all requirements of 1AS 38 for their
capitalization.

4.12. Impairment test of non-financial assets

As a general rule, 1AS 36 establishes that at year-end, management must assess whether there is any indication of the impairment
of a non-financial asset. if there is any such indication, or when vearly impairment tests for determining the Impairment of assets
are required, the recoverable value of such asset is estimeted. The recoverable value of an asset is the highest of the fair value less
the sales cost, whether of an asset or of cash generating unit and its value in use; and it is determined for individual assets untess
the asset does not generate cash fows substantiafly independent of other assets or asset groups, When the book value af an asset
or of a cash-generating unit is greater than its recoverable value, the asset is considered impaired, and its value is reduced to its
recoverable value.
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.12. Impairment test of non-financial assets {continued)

When evaluating the value in use, the estimated cash fiow is calculated at present value using 3 “before tax discount rate” that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the asset specific risks. To determine the fair value less the sales
cost, recent market transactions, if any, are taken into account. If this type of transactions cannot be identified, the vaiuation mode!
deemed most appropriate is usad.

To determine the value impairment of goadwlil resuiting from business combinations, such goodwill was distributed among each of
the Company's Cash-Generating Units {CGLY) that has henafited from business cormnblnation synergles. This forces the Company to
conduct impairment tests of the CGUs at each date of issuance of financiat statements including such CGUs.

Due to the fact that the remaining assets that must underge the impairment test set forth by 1AS 36 are inciuded in any of the CGUs
to which goodwh! was assigned, the Company must carey cut the impairment test at each date of preparation of financist
statements, regardiess of whether there are indications of impalrment. Consequently, creating a procedure for manitoring
indications was not necessary, according to 1AS 36.

Management calculates value impairment in detsited estimates ang predictions conducted separately for each of the Group’s CGUs
1o which individuat assets are assigned.

Lasses due ta impairment of continued transactions, including the impairment of assets, are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss under the expense categories related to the function of the impaired asset. A foss due to impairment praviously recognized
is only revarsed i there has been a change in the assumptions used for determining the recoverable value of an asset as from the
last time the last loss due to impairment has beeo recognized,

This reversat is fimited in such a way that the asset book value does not exceed its recoverable value or exceed the book value
determined, net of the respective amartization, if no foss due to impairment has been recognized for the asset in prior perieds. This
reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or foss uniess the assetis recognized based on its newly assigned value, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revatuation increase, The toss due to impairment recognized to determine goodwill is not reversed
in any subsequent fiscal year,

from the comparison of the book value of goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment identified with their
correspending recoverable amounts, no impairment has been identified.

As of Decemnbaer 31, 2017, there is an accumulated impairment of & 34,544,532 corresponding to finished units of Forum Puerto
Narte, Forum Altorta and Astor Palermo projects, Seg Note &,

4,13, Inventory
tnventory includes urban real property under development {work-in-process) and completed units ready for sale.
4.,13.1 Units ynder construction

Reat property classified as inventories are valued at the acquisition and/or consteuction cost, or at its estimated market vatue,
whichever lower. The value of the fand and improvements, direct costs and overall construction expenses, loan Costs {when the
requirement set forth by 145 23 are met) and reai property taxes are included in costs.

Additionally, and as a result of the agquisition of jand by the Company, the highest value of the differences in measurement of
identifiable assets upon the acquisition is included in this account. Therefore, the highest inventory value is abtained mainly by
comparing the book values and the respective falr values of the main assets actuired at that time,

The fair value of identifiable assets was obtained from the reports issued by independent professional experts when business
combinations ocourred.
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MNote 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied (continued)

4.13. Inventory {continued)
4.13.2 Finished projects

The units of real property urban projects are listed a5 “Finished ptojects” when the construction process has finished and such units
can be defivered or sold. i disbursements are made afer construction has been completed, they are recognized in profit or loss to
the extent they are not part ¢f post-consteuction costs required for the units to be ready for delivery or sale.

When a functional unit is defivered to the customer, tha cost of construction of that unit is recognized, reducing the inventory value
accordingly. The cost of the inventory propertyis recognized as 3 profit or loss on disposal, datermined by censidering its salas prices
legs a margin calculated o the basis of 2 weighted average of units developed simuitaneausly during the project.

The percentage gross margin is based on the estimated total revenue and estimated total costs for each building calculated as of
the date the unit is defivered, considering the buildings afready launched and therefore minimizing the use of estimates.

4.14. Leases

Pursuant io JAS 17 “Leases”, the financial ownership of an asset in & finance lease is transferred to the lesses if the lessee takes on
substantialty alf the risks and rewards of ownership of such leased asset. The related asset is thus recognized at the beginning of the

lease at the lower of its fair value, or at the present value of the minimum payments for the lease, established at the beglaning of
the lease.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company has & finance lease for the acquisition of a generator set, which was acquired to ba instalted
in the Astor Nifez project [ Note 15).

Al other leases are treated as operating leases. Operating iease payments are recognized as an expense based on a straight tine
basis aver the term of the fease and refated costs such as maintenance and insurance are expensed when they are incurred.

ieases are classified as ¢perating leases when the lessor does not transfar substantially all the risks and rewards inherent to the ownership
of the lessed asset.

Expenses related to operating leases are recognized on a line-by-line basls in profit or loss aach fiseat year under "Rent and building
maintenance fees” in the Statement of comprehensive profit or loss,

4.15, Assets for sale

Pursuant to IFRS 5 “Nan-current assets hatd for sale”, the Company has valued the assets for sale at the lower of its book vaiue
hefore the asset was ¢lassified as held for sate and its recoverable value,

4.16. Revenue recognition

Revenue is generally recognized on the basis of the fair vatue of the consideration collected or to be collected, taking into account
the estimated amount of any deduction, rebate or commercial discount provided by the entity.

4,16.1 Sale of finished units {inventory)

Ordinary revenue from the sale of assets was recognized once each and every of the following conditions was met:

- The Company transferred to the buyer significant tisks and rewards derived from ownership of the assets.

- The Company retains aeither continuing managerial invalvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
coentrol over the goods sold

- The amount of tha revenue can be measured reliably.
- It is probabla that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

- The costs incurred or to be incurced in respect of the transaction cen be measured refiably
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.16. Revenue recognition {continued)
4.16.2 Services rendered

The revanus from services rendered Is recognized in profit ot [oss when the Company has rendered such services, independently of the
momant thay have been invoiced.

4.17. Classification of items into current and non-current

The Company shall classify an asset as current when It meets any of the following criteria;
a} it expects to reafize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
b) it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢} itexpects to realize the asset within tweive months after the reporting period; ar
¢} the asset s cash or a cash equivalant unless the asset i restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Cormpany shall ciassify alt other assets as non-current,

The Company shall ciassify a liabllity 2s current when it meets any of the following criteria:

a) it ewpects to settle the liability in the entity’s normal operating cycle;
) it holds the lishitity primarify for the purpose of trading;
¢} the lability ¥ due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Sability for at least twelve months after
reporting date.
The Company shall classify all other liabitities as non-current.

pursuant to 1AS 1, the operating cycle of an entity is the time batween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash or cash equbvalents. In the case of reai property profect developments, the Company’s main business, the normal apatating
cycle is found between the commercialization and construction launch and the delivery of functional units.

Eor these financial statements as of December 31, 2047, the Company decided to consider for its normat operating cycle the
classification between current and non-current under the expected term of realization after twelve months following the reporting
period, as the information thus presented makes it easier to read the financial statements. Therefore, the comparative financial
statements as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 include these changes under 1AS 8.

4.18. Investmentis in associates

Investiments in associates are accounted for undet the equity method.
tnvastments in associates and joint ventures are valued using the equity method.

According 1o this method, the investment is initially recognized at cost under “investments in associates” in the statement of
financial position, and the book value increases or decreases to recognize the investor's interest in the investments in assoclates
after the acquisition date, which is presented in the staterment of comprehensive prafit or loss under "Investments in associates”,
The investment includes, if applicable, the goodwill identified in the acquisition.

Associstes are considered those in which the Group has significant influence, understood as the power to participate In the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not have control o joint control over these policies. Significant influence is
presumed in companies in which the intarest is equivalent to or higher than 20% and lower than 50%.

Under the provisions of IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” and 145 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, Investments in
which twe ar mare parties have joint control shall be classified in each case as a joint operation when the parties that have joint
control have rights over the net assets of the joint arrangement, Considering this classification, joint eperations shall be accounted
for under the squity method.
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.19. Business combinations

Business combinations recorded by the Company took place hefore 2011 and are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration of the acquisition was caleulated at the estimated fair value {af the date of axchange) of the assets assigned and
liahilities incurred and the eduity instruments, except for deferred tax assets or liabifities and liabilities or assets related to
agreements entailing benefits to employees that were recognized and calculated pursuant to iAS 12, "Income Taxes”, and 1AS 19
“Employee Benefits”, respactively. The costs associated with the acquisition were charged to P&L as incurred.

4.20. Goodwill

These costs result from the restatement of business combinations prior to December 31, 2010. Goodwilt js the excess of the amount
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlfing interest in the entity acquired, where applicable, and the fair
value of the ewnership interest previously held by the purchaser {if any] in the entity in refation to the net amount as of the date of
acquisition of the identifiable assets acquired and liabifities incurred.

Goadwill is not amartized, but is assessed to determine whether it is necessary to record any impairment at year-end. Changes in
the awnership interests in a subsidiary are recogaized as eguity transactions and do not affect the book value of goodwiti,

4.21. Provisions and allowances

Provisions and allowances are recognized when the Company is faced with a current ohligation {whether legat or implicit) resulting
from a past event, and it is probable that the Company will incur costs or expenses to discharge such obligation, and it was possible
to reasonably estimate the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision or allowance Is the best estimate of the disbursement required for discharging the current
Gbligation, at year-end, taking in to account the respective risks and uncertainties. When a provision or allowance is calculated using
the cash flow estimated for discharging a current obligation, its book value fepresents the present vakse of such cash fiow.

When the recovery of some or all the financial benefits is required to reverse a pravision or allowance, an account receivable was

recognized as an asset if it was virtually certain that the payment would be received and the amount receivable could be calculated
reliably.

Note 33 contains a detailed description of the main claims recaived by the Company and Note 19 presants the provisions and
altowances set up by the Company for lawsuits and other contingencies.

4.22. Financial instruments
4.22.1 Financial assets and liabilities

1} Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets under IAS 39 are classified as financial assets and labilities at falr value with changes through profit or loss, loans,
recelvables and payables, investments held to maturity, financial assets avallable for sale, or derivatives designated as hedge
instruments with effactive coverage, as applicable. The Corapany determines the ¢lassification of financiat instruments when they
are initially recognized. Al the financial assets and fimanciaf liabifties are mitiatly recognized at fair value plus, for financial assets
not recognized at fair value with changes through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a term estabiished by a regulation or market convention
are recogrized at the date of the purchase, that is, the date when the Company agrees to purchase or sell the asset. The Comtpany's
financial assets and liabilities include cash and short-term investments, trade recelvables, foans and other receivables and financial

Instruments. The Company’s financial liabiities include trade payabies, loans and other payables, bank overdrafts and financial
instruments.
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.22. Financial instruments (continued)

2} Subsequent measurement
The subsequent maasurement of assels and liabilities depends on their classification:
&)  Financial assets and fiabilities at fair value with changes thraugh profit or loss

Financial assets and fabilities measured at fair value with changes through prafit or loss include both assets and Hahilities held for
trading and financial assets and labllities designated to be held at fair value with changes through profit or lass when initiaily
recognized. Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading when they are acguired to be sold or repurchased in the
asear future. Financlal assets at fair values with changes through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial position at
fair value, and changes in fair value are recognized as financlal gains or ¢osts in the statement of profit or loss.

b}  Lpans, accounts receivable and interest-bearing loans
Loans, accounts receivable and interest-bearing loans are non-derivative financial assets and liabilities with fixed or deterrinable
payments that are not listed on an active market. following their inftial recogrition, these financial assets and Habilities are
measured at their amortized cost by applying the effective interest rate method, less any impairment. Amartized cost is calculated
by considering any discount or premium in the acquisition, and the commissions or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. Amortization of the effective interest rate is recognized as financia! income In the statement of profit or loss. The
fosses cesuiting from impairment are recognized as financial costs in the statement of profit or loss.

¢} tnvestments held to maturity
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates are classified as held to maturity when
the Company has the intention and capacity to maintain them untif their maturity date. Following their initial recognition,
investments held to maturity are measured at amortized cost by applying the effective Interest rate method, less any impatrment.

4.22.2 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabifties are affset in the statement of financial position only if the Company {i} has a legat right to
offset the balances and (i) has an intention to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously,

4,23, Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost, by applying the effective Interest
rate method,

4.24, Shareholders’” equity accounts

Shareholders' equity items were prepared in sccordance with accounting standards in force, Variations in this item were accounted
for in accordance with the respective Shareholders’ Meeting decisions, legal provisions or regulations, although the items would
not have existed or would have had different balances had IFRS heen applied in the past.

4.24.1, Share capital

share capital consists of shareholders’ contributions represented by common shares and includes outstanding shares at neminal
value.
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.24. Shareholders’ equity accounts (continued)
4.24.2, Stock premium

The stock premium invalves the difference between the subscription amount of capital increases and the related nominal value of
shares issued.

4.24.3. Treasury stock

The "Share eapital account will be debited by the nominal value of the shares acquired, disclosing this value in "Treasury stock”,
The cost of acquisition of the treasury stock will be debited to the account “Cost of treasury shares”, and must be disclosed in

Shareholders’ equity as part of capital accounts and after Share Capital, Share Capitat adjustment and Stock Premiums. This antry
wilt be reversed when shares are disposed of.

TGLY 5.A. recorded the acquisition cost in the Irrevecable Contribution of September 30, 2016, specifically allocated to the purchase
of those shares.

4.24.4. Capital contribution
See Note 45 1o the consolidated financial statements.
4.24.5. Legal reserve

In accordance with the pravisions of Law No, 19550, the Company has to allocate to the legai reserve not less than 5% of the net
income, comprising P&L, prioryear adjustments, transfers from other comprehensive profit or loss, accomulated retained earnings
and accumulated fosses for prior years, untif reaching 20% of the share capital,

4.24.6. Irrevocable contributions

4.24.7. Accumulated retained earnings

it includes accumulated retained earnings or lasses without any specific aliocation that, if positive, can be distributed by a decision
of the Shareholders® Meeting, as long as they are not subject to legal restrictions, Accumulated retained earnings include the profit
ar loss for prior years that have not been distributed, amounts transferred from other comprehensive profit or loss and prior-year
adjustments resuiting from the application of accounting standards.

Additionaliy, as per the CNV regulations, when the net balance of other comprehensive profit ar foss is positive, it may not be
distributed, capitalized or used 10 absorb accumulatad losses. When the net balance is negative, there will be a restriction o6 the
distribution of accumidated retaineg earnings in the same amount.

In order to absorb the negative balance of "Accumulated retained earnings”, when applicable, at the end af the year to be
considered at the Shareholders' Meeting, balances must be in the following order for affocation purposes:

a) Reserved earnings {voluntary, statutory and legal, in that order);

b) Capital contributions:

£} Stock premiums and treasury stock trading premium {whan the balance of this account Is positive);
¢} Other equity instruments fwhen it is legal and feasible from 2 corporate standpoint);

&} Capital adjustments; and

£} Share capital,
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Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.24. Sharehoiders’ equity accounts (continued)
4.24.8 Mon-controlling interest

Nan-centroliing interest is related to the percentage of net assets acquired and the income representative of the rights over the
shares that are not owned by Company.

4.25, Judgment, accounting estimates and significant assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires judgment, estimates and assessments by Management that affect
the amount of recognized revenues, expenses, assets and flabilities reported and the disclosure of contingent jiabHities at each year-
end.

The uncertainty regarding these assumptions and estimates may result in profits and losses requiring a significant adjustment in
future periods to the book value of assets or tiabilities.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting poticies, management did not make any judgments that could have a
potentially materiat effect on the amounts trecognized in the consoiidated financial statements, except for what is mentioned in
relation to the recognition of tax credits.

The main accounting estimates and undetlying assumptions included in the Company's consolidated financial statement as of
December 31, 2817 are described below. Such estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed by management. The effects of
the reviews of the accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are reviewed, whether it is in the current
yaar or in a future year.

) Estimation of useful lives

Below is & description of the periods during which management helieves that the assets will no longer be usable or will cease to
provide economic benefits to the Company: a) ten years for furniture and fixtures, b} five years for hardware, c) 50 years for real
property, d) three years fot improvements in own property, a) five years for improverments in third-party property, f] five years for
facilities, g) one year for showrooms, h) ten years for trademarks, i} three years for software, and ) three years for software
devalopment,

P11 e order fosstiomate the nsefl Ve of e different showrnoms, the projeors launch and estirabed fme fo gabis have hean taler v
AULOIL. )

Management reviews its estimations regarding the useful lives of depreciable or amortizable assets at each year-end based on the
expected usefulness of the assets, The uncertainty of these estimates is related to the tachnicat absclescence that could change the
usefulnass of certain assets such as software or techrological equipment.

Goodwill has been classified as having an undefined useful life and is subject to an impatrment analysis.
b} Estimation of the impairment of non-finaacial assets

There is impairment when the book value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the fair value
tess the sales cost, or its use value, whichever the higher. Caleulation of the fair valug less the sales cost is based on available
inforemnation on similar sales transactions, performed by independent parties for similar assets, or at observable market prices, less
the incrementat costs incurred upon disposing of the asset.

Calcutation of the use value is based on a discounted cash flow model. Cash flow is obtained from the Company’s budget for the
following years and does not inchkide restructuring activities that the Company has not vet agreed, or significant futuce investments
that could ingrease the retura on tha asset o ofthe cash-generating unit subject to testing. The recoverable amount is very sensitive
to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model, and to ftura infiows expected at the growth rate used for the
purposes of extrapolation, and therefore, the uncertainty is refated to thase estimation variables.

74



TGLT S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY
{amaums stated in Argantine pesas)

Note 4. Summary of the main accounting policies applied {continued)

4.25, Judgment, accounting estimates and significant assumptions {continued)

¢} Taxes

The Company sets ups provisions based on reasonable estimations, The amount ofthese provisions is based on various factors, such
as the experience with previgus tax audits and the different interpratations of tax regulations made by the entity sublect to the tax
and the tax authority. Differences in the interpretation may resuft in a large number of issues according to the conditions prevailing
in the jurisdiction of the financial Broup entity.

The defecrad tax asset that result from tax losses are recognized for all the tax losses not used, provided it is fikely that there will be
a future tax profit avaifable that can be ysed to offset the igsses,

The datermination of the amount of the deferred tax asset that can be recognized requires a significant level of judgment by
management, based on the timing and level of future tax profits and future tax planning strategies.

Note 29 include more detailed information an iacome tax and Note 18 describes the Provisions and Allowances set up by the
Company.

4.26. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivatents includas cash, bank deposits {including short-term time deposits) and highly liguid investments that arg
easily convartible into cash and are subject to a minimum risk of value change, Cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in tocal
currency at its nominal value and in foreign currency converted at the exchange rate in effect prevailing at vear-end,

Foreign exchange gains/losses were charged to the profit or [ess for the applicable fiscal year. Assets such as boads and government
securities, mutual funds and unsecured notes were classified as “Financiat assets at fair vatue with changes through profit or loss”,
considering the nature and purpose defined upon initial recognition. The net income or loss on assets were recognized in profit or
ioss and classified as financial income/expenses in the consalidated statemeant of comprehensive profit or loss.

Time depasits in foreign currency have not baen inchided in the Consofidated statement of cash flows bacause their maturity date
is aver 90 days,

4.27. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company by the weighted average of common shares outstanding during the year, net, if any, of repurchases made. The dilusted
earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average of common sharas outstanding,
and when dilutable, including stock options, they are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutable shares, as if they had been
converted,

When computing diluted earnings per share, the income available to the owners of commoan shares used in the calculation of the
basic earnings pec share is adjusted for any income/ioss resulting from the potential conversion inta common shargs,

The weighted average of outstanding shares is adjusted to include the number of additional common shares that would fiave bhean
anding if the potentially dilutable common shares had been issued. The diluted earnings per share are based on the mast

earnings per share excludes potential comman shares if their effect is anti-dilutable,

Atthe date of the issuance of these financial statements, TGLT has not issued equity instruments that give rise to potential common
shares {also considering the Company's intention to settle the Stock Benefit Plans through repurchase in the market}; therefore the
catculiation of diluted earnings per share agrees with the calculation of basic earnings per share, See Note 38,
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4.28. Dividend Distribution

The Company's payable dividends are accounted for as liabilities for the period in which they are approved at the Shareholders’
feeting. As per Argentine regutations, dividends can only be paid cut of realized and liquid profits resviting from audited annuai
financial Issued in accordance with Argentine accounting standards and CNV regulations, and approved at the sharehoiders’
Maeting. The Board of Directors of any Argentine listed company can declare provisional dividends, in which case, the Board
members and the members of the Supervisory Audit Committee shall be jointly liable for the payment of such dividend if the
unappropriated retained easnings at the end of the year where dividends have been deciared were not encugh to enable the
payment of such dividends. Under the Companies Law and TGLT 5.A.'s Bylaws, a legal reserve shati e set up of nto less than 5% of
realized and liquid profits disclosed in the statement of profit or loss for the year until reaching 20% of the outstanding share capital.
The tegal raserve is not available for disteibution to shareholdars.

4,29. Comparative information

The Campany’s accounting information is comparatively presented. At the time of the issuance of these financial statements, the
Company’s Management introduced changes in the presentation of certain items. See Note 4.17. The financial statements as of
necember 31, 2016 and 2015, which are presented for comparative purposes, were modified 1o include the sffect of the
aforementioned changes,

Note 5. Property, Plant and Equipment

mprovements
Furniture in third-party
and fixtures  Hardware property Facilities Showrooms Total

Qriginal value
Balance as of 01/01/2017 1,529,892 2,318,934 2,105,398 6,174 20,055,669 26,016,068
Acqguisitions 28,400 36,937 224,849 - 150,431 440,608
Conversion adjustment 53,691 70,630 180,182 - 564,318 868,821
Transfers - - - - (2,536,079) {2,536,078)
feconsolidation of MRL {51,800} {188,530) - {6,174} {3.548,744) {3,795,308)
Total 1,560,183 2,237,911 2,510,421 - 14,685,595 20,994,110
Depreclation and impairment
Balance as of 01/01/2017 {798,388}  (1,739,787)  {1,981,845) {6,174}  (12,215,958)  (17,742,152)
Depreciation {162,269} {318,684) {159,795} - {2,356,270) {2,997,018)
Conversion adjustment {44,079} {57,856} {180,182} - {517,360} {799,577}
Deconsolidation of MAL 41,994 142,047 - 6,174 1,761,527 1,951,742
Totat {962,742}  (1,974,380)  {2,321,822) - 114328,061)  {19,587,005)
Residual value as of Dec 31, 2017 597,441 263,531 188,599 - 357,534 1,407,105
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Note 5, Property, Piant and Equipment {continued)

Furnituze Improvements Improvements
and in own in third-party Real
fixtures  Hardware property property Facllities Showrcoms property Total

Originai value

Balance a3 of

01/61/2016 1,251,489 1,979,400 353,478 1,919,274 6,174 16,427,233 2,732,142 24,669,190
Acquisitions 233,317 278,381 - - - 3,046,392 - 3,558,090
Conversion

adjustment 45,086 67,477 - 186,125 - 582,044 - 880,732
Decreases (6,324} {353,478) - - - (2,732,142} {3,091,944)
Totat 1,525,892 2318934 - 4,105,389 6174 20,055,669 - 26,016,068

Depreciation and impairment
Balance as of

01/01/2016 (594,382) (1,358,521} {206,261}  {1,522,155} {6,174} (11,036,925 {96,916) (14,819,835)
Depreciation (171,391}  {347,103) {58,913) {297,685) - {1.806,410 (21,845} (2,703,347}
Conversion
adjustment {32,615) {40,487} - {163,004) - {373,123) - {608,229}
Docreases 6,324 265,174 - - - 113,761 350,259
Total {798,388) (1.73%,787) - {1,981,845) {6,174} {13,215,958) - (17,742,152
Residual value as of
Dec 31, 2016 731,504 579,147 - 123,554 - 6,839,711 - 8,273,915
Furniture Improvements troprovements
and in own in third-party Real
fixturas  Hardware property property Facifities Showropms property Totat
Originat value
Balance as of 4L011,273 1,495,496 334,993 1,408,830 6,174 14,950,551 2,732,142 21,935,464
01/61/2015
Acquisitions 171,477 377,619 13,480 217,280 - 1,923,952 - 2,708,824
Conversion adjustment 68,739 106,285 - 293,164 - 515,480 - 1,383,668
Decreassas - - - - - {1,382,766) - (1,362,766}
Total 3,251,489 1,579,400 353,478 1,919,274 6,174 15,427,232 2,732,142 24,669,150
Depreciation and
impatrment
Balance as of {420,544) ( 1,112,10%) {83,055) (1,080,178) {4,944} {5,746,4586) {44,053) | 12,511,371)
01/01/2015
Depreciation (130,435] ({194,431) {113,206) (212,918) (1,230 {2,150,556) (52,8563) (2,855,640}
Conversion adjustment  {43,402) {51,989} - {218,060} - {462,139) - {775,590)
Decreases - - - - - 1,362,766 - 1,362,766
Total {594,382} (1,358,521) (206,261) (1,521,156) {6,274} {11,036,425)  {95,916) ( 14,819,835}
Resitual value as of Dec
31, 2015 657,107 520,879 147,217 398,118 - 5,380,808 2,635,226 9,849,355
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Note 6. Intangible assets

Software
Software development Tradamarks Total
Original value
Batance as of January 1, 2017 £10,405 2,793,152 35,505 3,639,062
Acouisitions 47,571 60,137 - 107,708
Conversion adijustrment 92,330 - 3,559 95,889
Deconsolidation of MRL {66,899) - {66,899}
Tota) 950,306 2,786,350 39,064 3,775,760
Amortization and impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2017 {516,951} {2,128,241) {26,045) (2,671,277}
Amortization {326,177} {397,893) {5,645) {529,715)
Conversion adjustment {G2,441) - {3,396) (65,837)
peconsalidation of MRL - 66,899 - 56,899
Total {705,609} {2,459,233) {35,086) i3,199,930)
Residual value as of Pec 31, 2017 244,657 327,155 3,978 575,830
Saftware
Saftware developmant Tratdermarks Total
Original value
Batence as of lanuary 1, 2016 715,029 2,555,894 31,828 3,302,751
Acquisitions - 237,258 - 237,258
Converston adjustment 95,376 - 3,677 95,053
Total 810,405 2,793,152 35,505 3,639,062
Amartization and impatrment
Balance as of January 1, 2016 {363,987) {1,673,931} {18,324} {2,057,242}
Amortization {113,554) {453,310) (5,223) {573,087)
Conversion adjustment {38,450} - {2,498} {40,948}
Total {516,991} {2,128,241) {26,045) {2,671,277)
vator residual as of Dec 31, 2016 293,414 664,911 9,480 967,785
Software
Software development Trademarks Total
Grlginal value
Balance as of January 1, 2015 464,926 2,091,558 26,037 2,582,521
Acquisitions 127,953 464,336 - 592,289
Canversion adiustment 122,150 - 5,791 127,941,
Tatal 715,029 2,555,894 31,828 3,302,751
Amortization and impairment
galance as of January 1, 2015 {279,869) {1,334,570) {11,246) {1,625,685}
Amortization {35,163) {340,361} {3,789} (383,313}
Convarsion adjustment {44 ,955) - {3,289) {48,244)
Total {363,987} {1,674,931} {18,324) {2,057,242}
Residual value as of Dec 31, 2015 351,042 £80,963 13,504 1,245,509
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Note 7. Goodwill

NCIAL STATEMENTS

Marina Rio Pica y Cabildo

Lujan S.A. S.A Canfot 5.4, Total
Original value
Balance as of January 1, 2017 21,487,412 10,558,985 79,399,207 143,544,998
Decreases {21,487,412) - - (21,487,412}
Total - 10,558,985 79,399,207 122,053,585
Impairment
Batance as of January 1, 2017 - {1,092,468} (29,600,900) {62,788,762)
impairment loss - {9,466,517) {45,798,307) (59,264,824)
Totat - {10,558,585) (79,395,207} (122,053,586}
Restdual value as of Dec 31, 2017 - - - -

Marina Rig Pico y Cabifdo

Lujasn S.A. S.A, Canfot 5.A. Total
QOriginal value
Balance as of january 1, 2616 21,487,412 1},558,985 79,399,207 143,540,958
Totai 21,487,412 10,558,985 79,399,207 143,540,998
Impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2016 - - - {32,095,394)
Impairment loss - {1,092,468} {23,600,300) {30,693,368)
Total - {1,092,46R) {29,600,900} (62,788,762}
Residual value as of Dee 31, 2018 21,487,412 9,466,517 49,798,307 80,752,236

Marina Rio Lujan Pico y Cabildo

S.A, 5.A, Canfot 5.4, Total
Original value
Balance as of January 1, 2015 21,487,412 10,558,985 79,399,207 111,445,504
Total 21,487,412 10,558,485 79,359,207 111,445,604
impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2015 - - - -
impairment loss - - - =
Totai - - - =
Residual value as of Dec 31, 2015 21,487,412 10,558,985 749,399,207 111,445,604
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Note 8. Inventory

Non-corrant Notes Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Profects under construction
Astor San Telmo 3249 176,138,018 1,906,673
Astor Caballito 3% - 115,425,796
Forum Puerto del Bucao 3.8 £71,907,408 766,509,777
kietra Devoto 3.5 10,370,938 67,656,250
Metra Puerto Norte 32.4 380,839,015 215,601,230
Proa 32.4 193,185,787 156,426,568
Venice 32.9 gnd
38 187,755,652 66,519,286
Qther projects 28,000 -
‘Total Inventory — Non-currént 1,680,224,818 1,391,049,640
Current
Projects under tonstruction
Farum Puerto del Buceo 2.8 910,521,123 204,671,592
Metra Puerto Norte 32.4 ) - -
Venice 317,186,604 335,861,799
Projects completed
Astor Niilez 32.3 420,531,324 354,453,825
Astor Palermo 3.2 35,323,083 292,685,318
Forum Alcorta 124,201,535 411,620,358
Eorurs Puerto Notte 10,851,658 16,525,373
impairment
Astor Palermo (8,201,137 -
Forum Alcorta {12,936,957) -
Forurs Puarto Norte (7,064,057} {1,386,579)
Total Inventory - Currant 1,786,413,181  1,714,436,286
Total nventory 3,105,485,926
Note 8, Tax assets
Dec 31, 2016 Dpc 31, 2015
Minimum presumed income tax 66,790,043 75,419,545
income tax 8,959,026 -
Deferred tax - 3,474,774
Total tax assets 15,749,069 78,894,319
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Mote 10. Other receivables

Note Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Advance payments to work suppliers in focal currency 7,721,261 -
Advance payments to work suppliers in foraiga currency a0 17,261,924 -
Advance payments for the purchase of real property {2) - -
Security deposits in locaf currency - 12,300
Security deposits in foreign currency 48 720,857 49,011
Insitrance to be accrued a0 165,563 -
Loan granted {1} - 768,004
Minimum presumed income tax credit 43 16,896,855 -
Subtotal other receivables — Non-currant 42,766,560 829,406
Current
Value added tax in focal currency 46,842,382 73,586,655
Security deposits in foreign crfency 49 112,128,001 47,722,207
Turnover tax 816,992 3,765,016
Wealth tax a0 1,832,450 3,766,294
Advance payments to work suppliers in local urrency 34,385,008 71,223,281
Advance payments to work suppliers in foreign currency 40 11,788,730 19,028,705
Security deposits in local currency 267,238 78,000
Security deposits in forelgn currensy 40 152,064 707,002
Insurance to be accrued in focal currency 66,851 40,563
Insurance to be accrued in forelgn curFency 40 1,562,612 1,670,925
toan granted {1} 367,414 1,072,616
Expenses o be rendered in local currency 265,633 626,953
Expenses to be rendered in fareign currency a0 183,031 48,141
Expenses to be recovered 14,710,075 5,215,463
Maintenance fees to be recoverad 15,025,020 8,409,063
Receivables from the sale of investment property A0 3nd 41 29,541,402 -
Heceivable from a legal settlament 333 1,801,601 3,584,435
Collzctible equipment fund in focat currency 140,322 194,032
Coltectible equipment fund in forelgn currency 40 3,724,901 3,332,822
Collectible oparative fund in focal currency 268,382 563,215
Coflectible operative fund in foraign currency - -
Prepayments for the purchase of real property - 263,032
Prepayments for the purchase of property estate in foraign ) 18,410,000
currency
Sundry in lacal currency 18,102 1,216,780
Sundry in foraign currency a0 21,606 -
Allowance for doubtful receivabies - -
Subtotal Other receivables — Current 282,615,817 265,525,202
Total Other receivables 325,382,377 266,354,607

{1} Loan granted to Edenar §.A.:

Onluly 29, 2013, Edenor S.A. requested, and the Company granted, a loan in the amount of § 3,072,378 for the purposes of financing
works under the Forum Alcarta Project. The amounts dishursed will accrue @ compensatory interest to be calcutated at the
horrowing rate applicable to 30-day deposits of the Banco de fa Nacidn Argentina as of the last day of the month prior ta the issuance
of 2ach payment. To the dats of issuance of these financial statements, Edenor 5.A. has repaid the forty-eight installments agreed,
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Note 11. Accounts receivable from sales

flotes | Dec 31, 2016 Dec3i, 2015
Accounts receivable from sales of units in local currency : 1,758,598 7.951,718
Accounts receivable from sales of units in foreign currency 40 23,805,000 22,813,020
Accounts recaivable from services rendered in local cutrency 324,050 345,414
Accounts receivable from services rendered in foreign currency 44 5,111 4,956
Allowance for bad debts in local currency - -
Allowance for bad debts in foreign currency 46 (1,854,210} -
Total Accounts receivable from sales 24,039,550 31,119,108
Maturity of accounts receivable from sales is the following:
Dec31, 2016  Dec3l, 2015
Duse within
0tc 90 days 21,350,833 3,807,451
91 to 180 days - 2,207,508
Qverdue
) to 90 days - 25,004,149
Total 21,390,833 31,119,108
Note 12. Cash and cash equivalents
Rntes Dec31, 2018  Dec3i, 2035
40,912
Cash i locat currency 140,812
Cash in foreign currency a8 3,174,284 55,805
Banks in focal currancy 3,276,950 4,184,031
Banpks in foreign currency 40 14,294,416 14,828,476
Checks to be deposited in locaf currency 590,446 252,026
Checks to be deposited in foreign currency Aft - -
Term deposits 3.6 and 40 3,179,694 2,584,283
mutual funds in local gurrency 7,603,561 6,119,666
Mutual funds in foreign currency 30 3,947,492 6,051,016
Bonds ang government securities 40 47,970,319 60,957,008
Total Cash and cash equivalents 84,278,114 95,073,323
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the following:
Dec31,2016  Dec 31, 2015
Total Cash and cash equivalents 84,278,114 95,073,323
Time deposits in foreign currency due over S0 days 32.7 {3,1.79,694) {2,584,383)
Total Cash and cash equivalents according to the statement cash
flows 81,098,420 92,488,940

82



TGLT S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

farnounts §Argantn nasng

Note 13. Other accounts payable

Non-current el Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Sundry creditors in foreign CUrrency 30 1,687,321 -
Purchase of shares in foreign currency 34,1 and 40 45,081,000 45,944 000
Security deposits in foreign currency af 400,428 -
Subtotal Other accounts payahle — Non-current 48,168,749 46,943,000
Current

Sundry creditors in foreign currency 40 8,241,672 2,584,383
Purchase of shares in foreign currency 34,1 and 40 34,958,009 9,128,007
Deferred income 7,476,931 .
Dther liakilities 108,011 28,520
Subtotal Other accounts payable — Current 50,784,623 11,740,910
Total Other accounts payable 98,953,372 58,684,910
Note 14. Customer advances

Nen-current Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Advanced collections 1,135,672,757 931,204,057
Advanced collfections from shares solg 5,856,235 7,588,003
Equipment fund 1,129,775 -
Operative fund 1,886,416 -
Value added tax (23,811,086} {16,441,088}
Total Customer advances ~ Non-cusrent 1,121,744,101 922,350,972
Current

Advanced coflections 1,769421,238  1,3G1,083,572
Advanced collections fram shares sald 16,614,718 11,797,261
Equipment fund 35,021,090 40,844,480
Operative fund 7,941,789 4,836,602
Value added tax - {80,504,213} (79,953,506}
Total Customer advances ~ Current . 1,752,084,622 1,278,608,409
Total Customer advances : 2,873,838,723  2,200,959,381
Note 15. Loans

Non-current Motes Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Finance lease 3 738,163 -
Corporate bonds in local currency 2iandd 122,821,597 58,717,680
Corporate bonds in foreign currency 2.2y40 - -
Subtotal Loans — Non-current 123,559,760 58,717,680
Currant

Finance lease 3 384,570 -
Loans received 1.3 and 40 85,424,704 169,865,697
Mortgage-backed bank foans in focal currency 11 105,417,887 100,314,642
Mortgage-backed bank loans in forsign currency 1.1 and 46 234,509,146 25,729,155
Overdrafts on checking account : 32,021,731 23,349,114
Corporate bonds in focal currency 21 136,818,626 105,467,598
Corporate bonds in foreign currency 2.2 304 4 - 27,311,236
Subtotaf Loans ~ Current 594,576,664 392,037,742
Total Loans 718,136,424 450,755,422
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Note 15. Loans {continued)

The following is a breakdown of foans:

Dec3l, 2006 Dec3i, 2015
Balance at beginning of year 450,755,422 384,296,792
New disbursemants under existing loans - 1,431,516,888 264,092,973
Accrued interest 122,725,001 174,454,104
Effects of exchange rate variation 13,395,481 35,125,631
Overdrafis on chacking accounts 8,672,617 2,550,657
Payment of pringipal {1,220,894,183) (155,871,042}
Payment of interest {108,575,695) (172,015,07%)
Swap of corporate bonds, net of issue costs 313,023 (82,055,271)
Deconsolidation of MRL ) - -
Effect of financial statements conversion 20,224,870 176,653
Balances at year-end 718,136,424 450,755,422

1. Lpans received

The main characteristics of the loans taken out from Banks and third parties by TGLT and/or its subsidiaries are summarized
below: '

1.1 Mortgage-backed bank loans

Ampunt pending settlement
Loan i Dec 31, 2016 Da¢ 31, 2015
Bank amount Maturity Dishy t  Repayment Non-turrent Current  Non-gurrent Current

Hipatecario 30,000,000 - - - - 76,809,465
Hipotecario 30,000,000 - - - - 30,501,295
Ciudad de Buenos Aires 71,000,000 [E]] 50,844,255  {50,844,235 - 7,800,564 - 42,503,882
Santander Rlo v Ciudad de

Buenos Afres 260,060,600 1] 150,118,000 (150,118,000 - 97,617,323 - -
Totat In local currency - 105,417,887 - 10,314,642
Hipotecario - - - 35,729,155
BBVA 15,000,000 (c) 11,350,000 4,755,600 - 122.110.654 - -
Itz 15,000,000 (<) 11,350,000 4,781,600 - 112.398.492 - -
Tatal in foreign currency 5, - 234,508,125 -~ 258,729,155

al On May 23, 2013, a ipan agreement was signed with the Banco Ciudad de Buenos Aires for $ 71,000,000, with maturity
on May 23, 2015, Alt amounts disbursed by the Bank accrued compensatory interest due on balances payable for monthly
periads, at an Annual Nomina! Rate of 23% equivalent to the annual effective rate of 25.59%, As of Dacember 31, 2016,
an amount of § 43,043,691 was patd as principal. During the first guarter of 2017, principal and interest were repaid in
full, Lifting of the mortgage on the property of Astor Nofez is still pending

b} As of December 31, 2017, there are no balances to be disclosed due to the deconsoiidation of Marina Rio Lujén S.A. See
Note 48.
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Note 15. Loans {continued)

1.  Leans received {rontinued)
11  Mortgage-backed bank feans {continued}

€ FDBS.A arranged for two credit lines under the following conditions:

Date of exacution of the
agreemant 12/18/201% 01/24/2037
Banks Bance Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Uroguay 5.4 {BBYA) and Banca Itay Uruguay 5.A.
Maximum amount of toan USS 16,000,000 U$S 14,000,000
A t di
o disbursed by each USS 8,000,000 each US$S 7,000,000 each
Commission 1.0% 0.6%
Term Aprit 30, 2647 April 1, 2018
Variable rate equivalent ta 90-day Libor at the close of bank business day prier to each
Interast rate payment date, plus 3 percentage points, effective annually, with a minimwm annual
affective rate of 5%,
Disbursements According to the construction progress
Amortization of principal and Through partial payments according to the effective delivery of units to buyers, and for
interest, the amount secessary for the cancellation {or novation) of the mortgage of any unit sold.
First mort in favor of Up to the amount of USS 16,000,000, on all Up to the amount of
Bsrnk:?o gages o the units comprising Stages | and 11 of U$S 14,000,000 on alt the units comprising
Bk Forum Puerto del Buceo project. Stage |l of the Forum Pyerto dal Buceo project.
As callateral for each Bank’s share in the Credit Line, of the outstanding amounts of the
Assignment

Purchase and Sale agreements of all the mortgaged units.

According to TGLT S.As Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting, dated December 15, 2015, the Board of Birectors
approved the posting of 2 bond in the amount of U$S 3,000,000 in favor of BBVA as security for the loans granted to FDB
S5.A.
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Note 15. Loans (continued)

2. Loans received {continued)

1.2 Other financial assets and liabilities

In TGLT Uruguay 5.4, investments are made in different banks, which secure the dishursement of loans granted {o FOB
5.A. Forthe purposes of disciosure in the financial statements, such transactions are offset by recording their net position.
As of December 31, 2017, the net position was a financial asset of $ 193,966, which is broken down as follows:

Principal plus
Bank Type Maturity Rate interest o USS
BBVA TB USA 12/06/2018 1.43% 5,507,594
BRVA BTE 12/06/2018 2.13% {9,509,415)
ITAY b 1tau London 02/09/2018 2.44% 203,460
ITAU BTS 02/0%/2018 2.94% [201,621)
ITAL [1) CE ttau London (1/25/2018 2.47% 699,154
iTAU (1) BTH 01/23/2018 2.96% {675,035)
FTAU (1) CO Hau tondon 01/25/2018 2.44% 153,745
ITAL (1} BTB 03/25/2018 2.94% {152,958}
ITALE {1} D Itaw London M/25£2018 2.13% 507,350
ITAU {1} BTB 01/25/2018 2.62% [506,886]
TAU (2) Treasury Bill 017102018 207% 606,655
ITAL () BTB 01/10/2018 2.57% {608,407)
ITAL {1} COH itau 78 USA 01/19/2018 1.87% 1,007,013
ITAL {1} BTE 01/19/2018 2.37% 11,008,831}
ITAU Treasury Bill 01/25/2018 2.07% 605,005
ITAL ETB 01/25/2018 2.99% {603,195)
TTAL Term deposit 01/25/2018 0.85% 16,277
Santander (3} Term deposit G1/11/2018 114% 9,652,644
Santander{3} 8TB 01/11/2018 1.90% {9,652,512)

Total Other financial assets

{1) Eachinvestment, which secures a disbursemeant in favor of FDB §.A,, explres and is renewed in a single line of US$ 2,320,000 for

a term of ona year as from the date on which the related funds are credited,

{2} The pledge agreement Is renewed from the date of maturity of both transactions untit Janvary 14, 2019,
{3) Both transactions have been renewed. The new maturity date is April 30, 2018,

1.3 Loans recefved in foreign currency

Outstanding amount in pesos

Dec 31, 2016

Dec 31, 2015

Entity Loan Maturity Disbursement Repayment on-current  Cuyrent  Non-current  Current
BBVA (3} 2,000,000 05/02/2016 2,000,000 (2,000,000 : - - - 25997177
BEVA (a) 3,990,000  12/07/2016 3,990,000 (3,990,000} - - ~ 51,864,368
tan (a} 3,000,000 10/22/2018 3,000,000 - - 47,650,249 - -
1tan (a) 387,000 05/06/2016 387,000  {387.000) - - 5,076,784
Santander (a) 500,000  04/30/2016 500,000 {500,000) 15.20%: - 851,259 - -
Santander{a) 9,650,000 12/14/2018 $,650,000 {9,650,000) 1.20%: - - - 9,244,530
individual (b} 10,000,000 (5] 5,771,929 - 15.00% - 36,923,196 - 17,682,838
Total in ferei§n currency « B5,424,704 - 109,865,697

a} Loans acquired by FDBS.A.
b} Itis a loan taken cut by Marina Rio Lujan S.A, fram its shareholder, which due to the deconsolidation effect is disclosed as
cero a5 of December 31, 2017,
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Mote 15, Loans (continued)

3.  Corporate Bonds

2.1 Corparate bonds In local currency

On December 24, 2611, the Shareholders Meeting approved the creation of a global program for the issuance of simple corporate
bonds, non-coavertible into shares, in the short, medium and/or fong term, subordinated or aot, secured or unsecured, pursuant
to Law No, 23576, as amanded {the "ONs") for a maximum amount of up to fifty million United States dollars {Us4 50,000,000}, or
its equivalent in other currencies at any time

Different classes and/er serias denominated in US Dollars or other currencies may be issued, and tha successive classes and/or
serfes repaid may be re-issued {the “Program”). Originally, the Program was in effect untif July 12, 2017, and all ssues and reissues
under the Program should be made within such term. However, its effective term has been extended until Aprl 20, 2022, upon the
approval of the Annual anrd Extraordinary Sharehoiders’ Meetings held on Agril 20, 2017.

‘the following is a summary of the main characteristics of the of the Company's issues, effective as from the approval of the Program
untit December 31, 2017,

Class 1% X Xl
Issue gate 05/12/2015 2/23/32016 7223016
Arnount issued $57,229.975 $ 96,828,323 % 56,666,666.
Gutstanding principal amount 528,614,988 - 5 96,666,666
Payment currency Pesos Pasos Pesos
The higher of: 3} A 0.90 factor Badfar + 600 bps, but for
multiphied by the variation of Private Badfar  the first 3 months, the ON
the CAC Index; and b) Badlar +550 bps. bears Interest at 3 minlmum
Interest rate +500 bps. annual nominal rate of 32%.,
Maturity 5/14/2018 8/23/2017 1/23/2018
4 equat and consecutive 2 equal and consecutive  One-off payment 18 months
payments from 08/14/2017  payments from 57232007 in from the issue and
Amortization in months 27, 30, 33, and 36 months 15 and 18 settlement date
Payment of interest Quarterly coupon
Payment of principal At par value
Rating BB by FIX SCRS.A. Risk Rating Agency

On May 12, 2015 and February 23, 2016, #nd a3 a consequence of the issues of Classes Vi, IX and X, hoiders of other classes have
opted to make # swap between the series. The foliowing is a summary of the main characteristics of such swap transaction:

New issue
Issue swapped Amount swapped Class Vil Class IX Class X
Class 11 $ 2,600,000 $ - s 3,000,000 -
Class Iv USS 4,609,642 Uss 1,276,642 us$ 3,330,000 -
Class v s 23,041,880 5 17,651,880 S 5,350,000 -
Class VI £ 15,842,677 S 9,668,535 s 6,174,142 -
Class vl 5 24,391,758 - - Y 24,391,758
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Note 15. Loans (continued)
2.  Corporate bonds {continued)
2,1 Corporate bonds in lgcal currency {cantinued)

Tha following are the outstanding amounts by Class of corporate bond classified as current and non-curreat:

Dec 31, 2086 Dec 31, 2015

Class Nosn-current Current Non-current Current

[[ES - - - 15,146,401
i " - 2,500,000 7,130,292
Vil 122,821,597 - - 80,414,888
% 27,602,693 31,146,221 55,217,680 2,176,317
X - 99,455,447 - -
b5 95,218,304 6,176,958 - -

Total in local currency

245,643,194 136,818,626 58,717,680  10%,467,898

2.2 Corporate honds in foreign curreney

As mentioned in Note 45 to these financial statements, the amounts determined for su
Component it {n US
Liabilties (Loan in foreign currency}
Capital contribution

3. Finance leases

The Company maintains a finance lease for the acquisition of a power unit, which was acquired to instaft the Astar NORez project.
The acquisition was made through an agreement with Banco Supervielle. The value of the asset acquired was $ 1,131,705, Itis
repayable in 5 years, in 60 consecutive and monthly instafiments, The calculation rate set is Baglar for 30 to 35-day term deposits
of over one millios pesos paid by private banks, adjusted by 3 basis points, with an annual minimum base rate of 27.19%. Under the
terms of the agreement, no congirgent rentals are payable.

The following table shows the future minimum payments to be made:

Dec 31, 2016

Uptolyear 458,006

Over 1 year and up to 5 years 1,774,106

2,232,112

Future finance charges (1,169,379)

Present value of finance lease Habilittes 1,122,733
The fair value of finance lease liabilities is as folows:

Dec 31, 2016

Up to 1 year 384,570

Over 1 yaar and up to 5 years 738,163

falr value of finance lease Hahilities 1,122,732

as



TGLT 5.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

farny I Argentine pesas)

Note 16, Other tax burdens

Noa-current Notes De¢ 31, 2016 Decdl, 2015
Nattonal tax payment plan - -
Provincial tax payment plan 2,240,102 3,120,044
Misnicipal tax payment plan 1,241,118 -
Subtotal Other tax burden - Non-carrent 3,481,221 3,120,044
Current

Turnover tax 9,977,111 7,049,302
Value added tax 100,528 -
Wealth tax - 851,982
Provincial taxes 3,303,798 548,796
Stamp tax 32,554,149 23,299,530
Municipal taxes 4,302,128 1,678,605
National tax payment plan - -
Provincia! tax paymant plan 2,011,366 1,515,975
Municipal tax payment pian in loca cirrency 2,374,852 1,688,324
Municipal tax payment plan in foreign currency a 14,125,436 -
National tax provision . 4,797,864 -
Wealth tax provision in foreign currency L - -
Withholdings and collections te be deposited in focal currency 4,091,688 1,626,562
Withholdings and collections to ba deposited in foreign currency ap 876,760 721,192
Subtotal Other tax burden - Current 74,919,680 38,980,268
Total Other tax burdens 78,400,901 42,100,312
Note 17, Accounts payable

Nen-current De¢ 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Contingency fund in tocal currency 2,439,383 7,300,350
Contingency fund in foreign currency - 7,297,972
Payable for construgtion permit - 8,780,560
Subtotal trade payables - Non-current 2,439,383 23,378,882
Current Dec3i, 2016  Dec3i, 2015
Suppliers in local carrency 26,822,024 34,124,309
Suppliers in foreign currency 61,790,867 36,831,093
Deferred checks in locat currency 36,118,890 47,362,918
Deferred checks in foreign currency 55,378,050 9,565,836
Provision for expenses in local currency 5,797,762 2,403,159
Provision for expenses in foreign currency 1,035,302 1,004,075
Pravision for works in loca! currency 32,354,511 27,357,591
Provision for works in foreign surrency 17,354,083 7,071,015
Insurance payable in locat currency 6,257 43,744
Insurance payable in foreign crency 2,280,467 1,703,863
Contract compliance guarantee - 8,987
Contingency fund in local currency 16,115,864 5,682,248
Contingency fund in foreign currency 260,225 -
Payabie for construction permit 23,575,211 21,978,955
Real property purchase payahle 245,212,221 205,264,067
Subtotal Trade payables - Current 525,102,734 401,102,860
Total Trade payables 527,542,117 424,481,742
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Mote 18. Tax liabilities

Current Notes Dec3l, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Minimum presumed income tax 2,910,290 7,368,579
Income tax pavabie in locat currency 1,153,387 -
Income tax payable in foreign currency Ak 72,310 43,815
Subtotal Tax llabilities 4,135,987 7,412,394
Note 12, Provisions and allowances
Legal claims onerous

Motes contracts {4} Dec3l, 2016 Dec3l, 2015
in local currency
falances as of January 1, 2017 2,711,730 - -
Additions {1 45,726,321 2,777,730 687,250
Recoveries i} - - -
Used during the parivd {1,596,200) - -
Provisions in local currency 46,907,851 2,777,730 687,250
I foreign currency
Balances as of January 1, 2017 - 4,861,546 - -
Additions - - 4,861,546 -
Recowveries {il) - - - -
Used during the period - (5,565,896) - -
£ffect of exchange rate variation - 1,077,330 - -
Pravisions in fareign currency 40 - 372,980 ! 4,861,546 -
Total provisions 46,907,851 372,980 280,838 7,639,276 687,250

{1}
n

Seling expenses.

They relate to provisions for liabilities under contractual obligations
Additions and recoveries are incleded in the statement of profit or loss, under Contractual agreements, and in Note 25 -

Note 20. Payroll and social security contributions

Notes Dec 31, 2016 Des 31, 20158
Salaries payable in local currency 4,355,730 10,679,726
Salaries payable in forelgn currency aq 1,259,423 1,003,335
Sacial security contributions payable in focal currency 3,631,014 4,251,728
Social security contributions payable in foreign currency ag 213,000 112,338
Provision for thirteanth month salary and vacation pay in local 4.189.967 2,804,205
currency e
Provision for thirteenth month salary and vacation pay in foreign 40 671,237 374,035
currency i
Proviston for Directors’ fees 735,999 553,955
Advances to personnel (30,006} -
Total PayroH and social security contributions 15,026,370 19,789,322
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Note 21. Share capital

The Company’s share capital is distrihuted as follows:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

Shareholdears Sharas % Shares %

Federico Mlcotds Wail % 12,808,745 18.6% 13,804,445 19.6%
Bienville Argentina Opportunities Master Fund LP 8,550,830 13.6% 5,580,830 13.6%
PolntArgentum Master Fund LP 9.560,830 13.6% 9,560,830 13.6%
Michael Tennenbaum 7,270,318 103% 7,270,318 10.3%
IRSA Propiedades Comergialas $.A, 6,673,712 2.5% b.671,712 9.5%
Serengeti Asset Management 5,008,883 2.1% 5,008,883 7.1%
ADRs {11 15,035,907 21.4% 14,842587 71.1%
BDRs {2} - - 335,240 0.5%
TGLT S.A. {3} 10,000 0.01% - -
Other holders of common shares 3,424,260 4.89% 3,294,640 4.7%
Total Share capital 70,349,485 1002 70,349,485 100%

{1} Othar bolders of American Bapesitory Recelpts ropresentative of comman sharas
{2} Holders of Brazilian Bepository Recelpts represemtative of common shares
{3] Sea Muate 47

Note 22. Reserves, accumulated income and dividends
- Restriction on the payment of dividends
In order to safeguard the interasts of financial crediters who hold corporate bonds, the Company may not declare or perform, nor

agree to perform, whether directly or indirectly, any payment of dividends prior to any scheduled full payment of principal of its
corporate bonds,

+

Restriction on the distribution of unappropriated retained income/loss

As provided by section 8 of the CNV's ruies, whenever the nat balance of other accumulated comprehensive income {difference of
conversion of net investments abroad) at the end of & fiscal year of period is negative, distribution of unappropriated retained
income/loss shalf be restricted in the same amount.

Mote 23. Income from ordinary activities

Dec 31, 2016 Deg 31, 2015
700,014,417 818,260,768

20,308,656 10,647,324
720,324,073 825,008,092

income from the delivery of units
Inceme from services rendered
Total Income fram ordinary activities

Note 24. Cost of ordinary activities

Dec 31, 2016 Dec3l, 2015
517,660,247 219,909,322

Units complated at the beginning of fiscat year
Phus:

Addition of units completed for launch

Cost capitalized during the fiscal year

Cost of services rendered

Minus:

Units completed at fiscal year-and

Total Cost of ordinary activities

276,982,585 950,312,182
3,541,818 2,669,620

{138,174,130) (517,660,247}
660,010,520 655,230,877
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Note 25. Selling expenses

Deg 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

payroll and social security contributions 10,544,936 9,580,696
Other payroli expenses 460,849 321,668
Rent and building maintenance fees 1,044,124 631,434
Professional fees 2,595,282 342,000
Taxes, rates ang contributions 29,016,449 23,951,585
Transport and per diem 1,008,148 311,546
information technrology and servica expenses 1,083,733 708,252
Contraciual agreements 7,590,859 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,806,410 2,190,556
{fice expenses 567,763 411,833
fnsurance 138,004 13,137
Advertising expenses 12,687,506 15,505,115
Sales expenses 23,082,850 9,274,036
Building maintenance fees 20,712,191 11,476,357
Post sales expenses 9,441,239 989,161
Genaral expenses 1,663 52,538
Total Selling expenses 122,182,056 75,730,914

Mote 26. Administrative expenses

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

Payroll and social security contributions 60,969,249 49,201,613
Other payroll expenses 1,864,499 2,357,660
Rent and building maintenanca fees 4,585,338 2,810,031
Professional fees 17,402,307 9,115,617
Direciors’ fees 3,408,265 2,255,820
Supervisory Audit Committee’s fees 1,276,455 853,440 -
Public Offering expenses 1,965,157 927,660
Taxes, rates and contributions 4,370,410 8,337,130
Transport and per dizm 2,363,601 599,086
Information technology and service expenses 4,104,228 2,767,919
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 896,937 705,084
Office expanses 3,196,193 2,156,063
Bank expensas 2,309,112 2,573,585
Tax on bank account debits and credits 15,356,924 12,151,906
Other bad debts 5,668,798 4,566,086
Insurance 2,096,132 3,476,136
tavestment property maintenance expenses 3,149,655 -
Donations - 215,975

Total Administrative expenses 135,023,270 103,510,311
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Mote 27. Financial results

Dec 31, 2006 Dec 31, 2515

Exchange gains/losses
Exchange gains

Exthange losses

Total Exchangre gainsflosses
Finangial income

71,687,704 88,660,602
(76,854,659}  {123,942,423)
{5,166,955} {34,281,821)

Interast 9,225,571 3,856,226
Gain from halding cash and cash equivalents 1,380,835 3,132,621
Gain from sales of cash and cash equivalents 412,544 20,955,214
Gain from financial instruments - 21,857,599
Present valie - -
Yotal Financial income 11,028,950 49,941 660
Financial costs

Interaest {83,084,471) {68,011,711}
Subtotal interest {83,084,471) {68,011,711})
Other financial costs

Loss from discounted trade documents

Gain from financial instruments {1,179,702} -
Gain from sales of cash and cash equivalents - -
Prasant valug 1; 00! {1,015,482) -
Subtotal Other financiat costs 3,865 817F {2,295,184) -
Total Financlal costs {230,291693)  {85,279,655) {68,011,711)

Mote 28, Other income and expenses, net

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 33, 2015
4,752,087

Rental income

Debt forgiveness - {697,493}
Contract termination 769,939 975,021
Contract assignment - {77,5886)
Expense refund 201,181 18,300
Recovery of provision for expenses 5,637,995 -
Sale of property, plant and equipment 3,740,441 “

Other tegal axpenses

{425,651} {1,540,615)
Collection of surety bonds

1,708,941 -

Damage repair {7,284,957) -
Sundries (646,832) 1,520,582
Total Other income and expenses, net 8,453,104 198,209
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Mote 28, Income tax and deferred tax

Income tax assessed in accordance with 1AS 12, which is included in the statement of profit or loss as of December 31, 2017, 2016
and 2015, is broken down as follows:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

income tax 2,809,747 12,315,305
Understated prior-year income tax 56,772 -
Deferred tax {234,069,665) (1,936,621)
Proviston for minimum presumed income tax recoverability {1,267,680) -
Total Income tax {232,470,830) 10,378,684

Deferred tox as of fiscal year-end has beer determined on the basis of the temporary differences between sccounting and tax-
related meastraments. Deferred tax assets and fiabitities at each fiscal yeariend are broken down as follows:

Peferred tax assets

Tax loss from national source Income
Tax loss from foreign source income
Bad debts

Property, plant and equipment
Finance lease valuation

Provision for sundry expenses
Ceferred income

Subtotal Deferred tax assets
beferred tax liabilities

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
210,353,887 256,461,077
12,377,044 12,613,511

- 1,205,020

2,997,829 3,804,064

5,363,592 -
52,346,472 15,218,928
283,438,824 290,002,610

Bad debts {402,307 -
Temporary investments {701,052} {868,420}
inventory (147,199,316}  (108,353,798)

Foreign currency
Financial costs
Investment property
Corparate Bonds

{58,113,443) {130,715,431)
(34,884,377) {46,569,039)
{265,263,412) -

{16,383) {21,148}

Intangible assets
Subtotat Deferred tax Habilitles {506,580,290)  {286,527,836)
Net position of deferred tax assets/{liabilities) {223,141,466) 3,474,774

The Company estimates its taxable income to determine the use of its deferred tax assets within five years, in accordance with
argentine and Ureguayan Income Tax laws, which represent the hasis for the recognition of our deferred tax assets. The
assumptions, among other factors, that the Company’s Board of Directors considered in the preparation of these projectiens include
the completion of the commercialization of units of the Forum Puerte de! Buceo project, completing all deliveries of the Astor Noflez
project during this fiscat year, and starting deliveries of the Metra Puerfo Norte and Venice project The recoverability of the
remaining lossas and of the credit recorded as minimum presumed income tax {see Note 43} will depend on the due and timely
comphance with the delivery of units under the other prajects, and on compliance with business projection allowing for their
recoverability. TGLT complies with the provisions of paragraph 34 of 1AS 12, which states that tax losses from tax returns expecied
to be offser against future tax profits are preseated as the amount of taxes expected to be recovered with tax losses for the period,
in accordance with paragraph 54 {n} of 1AS 1, classifled in accordance with 1AS 12,
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Mote 29, income tax and deferred tax {continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense for the year and that resulting from applying the prevailing tax rate to income
before tax is as follows

Dec3i, 2016 Dec31, 2015
{177,912,044) 17,714,464

Income tax calcuiated at the tax rate prevailing in each country:

Statute of Bmitations on minimum presumed income tax
Impairment of and statute of Emitations on inceme tax loss
carryforwards

{1,267,680) {10,776}

{59,273,303) {3,815,062)

Understated income tax provision 557,670 {610,021}
Non-deductible expenses {4,938,398) {5,963,279)
Presurned interest (3,097,934} (1,992,507
Directors’ fees {1,003,018} {767,662}
Intangibie assets {494) {asa)
Donations - {12,551)
inventory 4,192,150 {8,383,287)

Higher value of Astor NGfiez

Effect of the conversion of financial statements
Loans

Adjustment Tax Reform Law No. 27430
Sundries

income tax

10,232,269 14,220,299

{232,470,830) 10,378,684

Tax lesses frem national and foreign-source income accumulated as of December 31, 2017 may be used up to the dates indicated
below:

Pesas

Year
2019
2020
20
2023
Total

9%
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Note 30. Related parties

a} The halances with Companies under section 33 - Law No. 19550 and other related partles, classified according to the nature of

the transaction, are as follows:

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES Notes Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM SALES
AGL Capital 5.A. in local currency 258,986 2,308,41¢
AGL Capital 5.A. in foreign turrency 40 - -
Marina Rio Lujdn 5.A. - -
individual shareholders in foreign currency A 80,367 74,056
349,353 2,382,466
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Marina Rio Lujan 5.A. - B
Marina Rio Lujan 5.4, in foreign currency 40 - -
Individual sharehalders 2,505,432 2,130,741
Other shareholders 3,543,512 3,439061
6,048,944 5,569,802
Total Receivables from related parties 6,398,297 7,952,268
PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES
TRADE PAYABLES
IRSA |laversiones v Representaciones 5.4, - 35,418,354
- 35,418,354
CUSTOMER ADVANCES
Alra Palermo S.A, - 236,645,106
IRSA tnversiones y Representaciones 5.A. - 60,287,590
Directors and Managers 3,129,738 504,152
Comisiones y Corretaje S.A, 22,504,620 -
25,634,359 297,436,848
Total Payables to related parties 25,634,359 332,855,202

b} As of December 31, 2017, 2016 sad 2015, the main transactions with Companies under section 33 - Law No. 19550 and other

refated parties, classified according to the nature of the transaction, are as follows:

- Transactions and their effect on cash flow
Mame of related company ¢ Dec3:, 2016 Dec3l, 2015
AGL Capital 5.4, Collections from services rendered 2,246,792 757,996
Comisiones y Corretajes 5.4, Coltections received - -
Individual shareholders Leans borrowed - -
Indivigual shareholders Receivables from sale of units - -
Directors and Managers Receivables from sale of units 2,660,194 3,315,338
Comisiones y Corretajes 5.4, Payments made
- Payments made on account of third
Individual sharehalders parties (210,094) 117,696
Payments matie on account of third
Other sharehoiders parties (253,451 125,153
Total 4,443,441 4,316,184
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Note 30. Related parties (continued)

b} As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2615, the main transactions with Companies under section 33 - Law No. 19550 and other
related parties, classified according to the nature of the transaction, are as follows {continued):

- Transactions and their effect on profit/loss

Profit/{loss)
Name of related company Transaction Dec31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
AGL Capitat 5.A. tncome from services rendered 258,986 541,837
AGL Capital 5.A. Financlat results - -
Individual shareholders Financial results 16,311 26,552
Comisiones y Corretajes 5.A. Financial results - -
Comislonas y Corretajes S.4, Commissions - -
Other sharehaolders Bad debis (733,887} -
IRSA Inversiones v Representaciones S.A. Income from the delivery of units 29,292,123 -
Directors and Senior Management Incorme from the delivery of units - 3,312,687
Birectors and Senjor Management Feas ) {2,189,485) {2,255,820}
Total 6006080 26,684,048 1,625,256
«} As of December 31, 2017 2016 and 2015, transactions with key personnel are as follows:
Dec3i, 7015
Payrof 13,133,481
Social security contributions 2,106,005
Total 15,239,486

On December 13, 2011, the Company's Board of Birectors established that senior management, under the provisions of section 278
of the Companies Law, are the following:

- General Management :

- Adrainistrative and Financiaj Management
- Operations Management

- Business Support Management

- Legal Management

Accardingly, TGLT's key personnel is made up of individuals responsible for each of these Management Offices (five peoplel.

In April 2016, Federico Well signed an employment contract with the Company. Under such coatract, Federico Wel will assume the
position of CEO (Chief Executive Officer) of TGLT, and wili be responsible for the management and administration of the Company.
The contract includes clauses on exchusivity, non-competition ang confidentiality obfigations to be complied with by Federico Weil,
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Note 31. Receivables, tax assets and payables broken down by maturity and
interest rates

a)  Receivables, tax assets and payables broken down by maturity:

Recelvables/Tax assets Dec31, 2006  Dec3l, 2015
To become due
Up to 3 months 125,872,874 46,871 856

from 3 to 6 months

From 6 to 9 months

From % to 12 months

Owver 12 months

Without any established term

4,255,565 23,134,657
6,156,814 536,514
5,776,416 840,071
118,515,629 79,723,724
170,952,185 203,083,870

Past due
Upto3 months 21,606 28,531,003
Fram 3 to & months - 1,305,540
From & to 9 months - 186,033
from 9 to 12 months - 88,834
Over 12 months 18,200 18,260

431,569,293 384,320,302

Payables {except for customer advances)
To become due

Up to 3 months

From 3 to 6 months

From 6 to 9 montbs

From § to 12 months

Over 12 months

Without any established ferm

Dec3l, 2016  Dec 31, 2015

416,616,830 310,151,923
150,115,132 146,091,969
182,818,626 18,822,601

82,240,360 60,319,207
400,790,575 132,160,606
278,435,413 342,872,443

Past due
iJp to 3 months 150,225,598 48,629,152
From 3 to 6 months 11,733,311 141,928
Fram 2 to 12 manths - 138,787
H3.0%6,298:365 7 1,672,975,913  1,039,329,706

B)  Interest and non-interest bearing receivable, tax asset and payable balances are detailed below:

Receivables/Tax assets
Interast beating
Non-interest bearing

flec 31, 2016 Deac 31, 2015
179,354,568 1,536,188
252,214,725 382,784,114
431,569,253 384,320,302

15% 8%

Annual nominal average rate:

Payables {except for custemer advances)
tnterast bearing
Nom-interest hearing

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
886,688,498 448,353,579
796,816,336 590,976,127

1,683,504,834  1,039,329,706
31% 9%

Annual neminal average rate:
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Note 32. Restricted assets

1. As collateral for the chligations assumed by the Company as a result of the acquisition of the real property where the Astor
Cabailita profect was being developed, the Company created o first mortgage in favor of IRSA Inversiones y Representaciones
3.A. (hereinafter "IRSA™} an the aforementioned property in the maximum amount of US § 12,750,000. Additionalfy, and to
secure the same transaction, the Company created 2 first pledge in favor of IRSA on its own shares held in Malteria del Puerto
S.A {merged with Canfot 3.4, and the latter merged with TGLT S.AL

By virtue of the merger and swap of shares between TGLT and Maiterfa del Puerto §.A., a first pladge was created on 3,571,397
shares of Canfot S.A. in favor of IRSA.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, and upon the appraval of the final merger agreement between Canfot

S5.A. and TGLT 5.A, measures are being taken to complete the proceedings necessary for the merger aad the lifting of the pledge
of shares in favor of IRSA,

2. As callateral for the obligations assumed by the Company as a result of the acquisition of the real property where the Astor
Palermo project was being developed, the Company created a first mortgage in favor of Alto Palermo 5.4, {hereinafter YAPSA™)
on the aforementioned property. The amount of the morigage is USS 8,143,231,

3. Asaresult of the financing cbtained by TGET S.A. by means of the Construction Project Financing Agreement, with a mortgage
executed with Banco de la Ciudad de Buenos Aires, and as explained in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company created a first mortgage on the property owned by it, on which the Astor Nefiez project is being developed. In June
2017, the parties executed the cancellation in full of the mortgage on the entire premises, and on July 12, 2017, such cancellation
was registerad in the Real Estate Registry.

4. As coltaterat for the obligations assumed by the Company as a result of the acquisition of the real property where the Brisario
project, made up of Proa and Metra Puerto Norte, was being developed, the Company created a first mortgage in favor of
Servicios Portuarios $.A. on the aforementioned property. The amount of the mortgage ls USS 24,600,000,

5. As mentioned in Note 34.1, and as collateral for the obligations assumed by the Company as a result of the acquisition of the
company Green Urban Homes S.A., where the Metra Devoto project would be developad, a first mortgage was created on the
property in favor of the Company’s farmer owners. The amount of the mortgage is US$ 4,800,000, See Note 49

6. As a result of certain demclition activities carried out in September 2006 in the premises where the Astor NGAez project is
currently being developed, TGLY was served with notice of a comyplaint against it for "damages due to proximity” in 2009. The
tase fite is pending before the Court of First nstance in Civil Matters Number 89, and the ¢claim amounts to approximately 5
440,000. On August 24, 2012, the Court granted a motion to dismiss fifed by the Company based on the statute of limitations.
The plaintiff has appealed this decision. The case file was remitted to the Court of Appeals and is now at the production of
evidence stage.

As a result of the acquisition of the shares of the company Pico y Cabildo S.A. by TGLT, and to secure the resolution of the
aferementioned contingency, former shareholders placed a time deposit on behalf of the Company, which shall be solely usad
to fully pay the abligations that may arise from the resolution of the fawsuit against the Company. in fight of the foregoing, the
Company includes in current assets as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the amount of § 3,733,957, § 3,179,694, and
$ 2,584,383, respactively, under “Cash and cash equivalents”, and the amount of 53,733,957, 53,179,694, and § 2,258,383,
respactively in current fiabifities, under “Other accounts payable”,

As of December 31 2016, the disposal of the Monroe property was restricted due ta a purchase aption of such piece of rea!
property given to a customer as security for the payment of the customer’s option to resell ta the Company a number of uhits
acquired. On November 21, 2016, TGLT requested, and the customer granted, approvat for the sale and transfer of the Monroe
property to third parties, in additlon, and in the same act, the parties resolved to terminate the agreement, annulling all the
obligations related to the Monroe Property. On that same date, the parties agreed to replace the payment guarantee inrelation
ta the dispesition of the piece of real property where the Metra Devoto project is being developed. On August 14, 2017, the
Company discharged all its obligations to such customer, and ohligations on the Metra Devoto project are no longer in effect,

As a result of the financing obtained by FDB 5.4, by means of the Construction Project Financing Agreement with a mortgage
executed with Banco Bitbao Vizcaya Argentaria Uruguay 5.4 {(BBVA) y ef Banco ITAU Uruguay 5.A., and as explained in Note 14,
the Campany ¢reated a first mortgage on a plece of property of its own.

As collateral for the obligations assumed by the Company a3 a result of the acquisition of the real property whare the Astor San
Telmo project was being developed, the Company created a first morigage the pertion of the piece of property acquired. The
amount of the mortgage is USS 18,500,000,
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fMote 23, Lawsuits
33.1, Health and safety

During the last quarter of fiscal year 2012, Malteriz del Puerto 5.A. (merged with Canfot 5.A., which subsequently merged with TGLT
5.A.) received a summens in refation to its joint and several liability, together with Constructora Sudamericans 5.4, (COSUD), for the
alleged breach of health and safety obligations by 2 subcontractor. The related defenses were filed. The summons is pending
resolution by the Ministry of tabor and Social Security of the Province of Santa Fe.

To the date of these financial statements, it is not possible to determine whether a decision against the Company will be issued, or
whether a sanctian wifl also be imposed on TELT 5.A, as principal. in the event economic sanctions are imposed, they muast be paid,
evenin the case an appeat is filed with the Court of Appeals in Labor Matters of the Province of Santa Fe, under penalty of foreclosure
as a result of the fling of legal proceedings for collection.

The Company's Management and legal advisors estimate that the aforementioned adminisirative ¢ases would not represent a {oss
for the Company,

33.2. Labor matters

Qn October 30, 2013, Malteria del Puerto 5.A. {merged into Canfot §.A., which subsequently merged into TGLY 5.A.} was served with
notice of a labor complaint for joint and severai liabitity. An operator of IGM filed the complaint. The case file is pending before the
Court of Labor Matters No. 2 of the City of Rosario, Provinte of Santa Fa. The amount of the complaint is $ 123,513, On November
14, 2013, The Company filed the answer to the compiaint. The case file is at the trial stage.

Gn lune 28, 2015, Maiteria del Puerto 3.A. {merged into Canfol 5.A., which subsequently merged into TGLT 5.A.) was summened to
& hearing in relation to the case file: “Miguei Gonzalo Javier of Marmoles Amate 5.R.L. vy otros s/ medida preparaterka” to provide
documentary evidence related to the contractor. it is a isbor complaint against Marmeles Amato Rubén Antonio Amate, COSUD,
and TGLT 5.A. TELT has not received any subsequent notices.

The Campany’s Board of Directors and legal advisors estimate that the resolution of the aforementioned complains wilt not generate
losses for the Company.

33.3. Ingeniero Guillermo Milia 5.A. (1IGM)

In February 2012, IGM (the contractor for the masonry works of the urban projects Forum Puerto Norte and Astor Cabalfito) filed a
plan of reorganization with Court in Civil and Commerciat Matters No, 1 of Qlavarria, in re “ingeniero Guillermo Milia 5.A. s/ Concurso
Preventivo”,

Malteria del Puerto 5.A. (merged into Canfot $.A,, which subseguently merged into TGLT 5.A.} and TGLT S.A. have appeared in the
proceedings as unsecured creditors and filed proof of claims in the amount of $ 8,085,156 and $ 1,293,683, respectively, which were
allowed by Court on September 12, 2012 and December 17, 2013, respectively. The plan, which was confirmed by the Court,
consisted in a 50% claim reduction,

As of December 31, 2017, 2015, and 2015, the Company has a claim amounting to $ 2,026,408, § 1,901,601, and $3,758,806,
respectively, which is distlosed in non-current assets under “Other receivables”.
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Note 33. Litigation {continued)

33.4. Proyecto Astor Cabailito sfamparo {action for protection of constitutionat rights}

On November 20, 2015, the Company was natified of tha decision of the first instanice court sustaining a complaint filed by the
Association of Neighbors, which argued that the work should have been suspendad and subject to a new zoning regime, This decision
was appealed by TGLT and the Government of the City of Buenos Aires (GCBA) on December 3 and 4, 2015, respectively, Both
remedies were granted. The case was submitted to the Court of Appaals in Administrative Matters of the City of Buenos Aires and
was fifed in Pangl 11 of that Court. On May 26, 2016, Panel Hl of the Court decided to reject the appeals filed by the GCBA and TGLT,
confirming the decision of the First Instance Court. On June 16, 2016, TGLT filed 2 motion for declaration of unconstitutionatity
against the final judgment, and so did the GCBA on June 15, 2016. On November 10, 2016, the motions for the declaration of
unconstitutionality fifed were rejected, and therefore, on November 23, 2016, an appeal was filed with the Supreme Court of lustice
of the City of Buenos Aires, requesting that the appeal dismissed by the Jower court be sustained,

Notwithstanding the agreement referred to in Note 39, praceedings are stilf pending,

As tihis is an action for protection of constitutional rights whose purpose s to question the failure to isstie an administrative
resolution and challenge TGLT's authorlzation to construct the warks, there is no amount payahte under these proceedings.

33.6. Other claims

Find below a detail of other claims updated during the present fiscaf year:

= On November 14, 2013, Malteriz def Puerto 5.4, {merged into Canfat 5.4, which was subsequently merged into TGLT $.A.) was
summeoned far a hearing by the Arbitration Tribunat of the Rosario Stock Exchange under the proceedings “Inversora Araberta of
Maiteria del Buerto $.A. s/ Incumplimiente Contractual Expte. 3/2013”. The plaintiff clalms the intrinsic alternation of the nature
of the unit purchased. On lanuary 10, 2014, the complaint was answered. Gn August 10, 2015, the Company reached a settfement
agreement, which could not be honored due to the objection of the other swnars of Forum Puerto Norte, Arbitrators were
appeinted and a settlement hearing was scheduled far July 28, 2017, and, subsequently, the case was open for trial,

- Onluly 27, 2015, the Company was served with notice of the lawsuit captioned "Blegger, Nancy ¢f Malteria da} Puerto S.A. s/
dafios y perjuicios”. A complaint was filed against the Company and the company in charge of the Management of Forum Puerto
Nerte. The customer tlairns the amount of $ 150,000 for repairs in her unit and resulting damages. As of this date, the case file is at
the trial stage. The Company’s Management, in apreement with its iegal advisors, has set up an allowance for the amount it
estimates it will have to pay in connection with this complaing,

- Onluly & 2016, Canfot 5.A. {merged with TGLT 5.A} was served with natice of & complaint for the damage caused in 2 unit of
Forum Puerto Norte project. The case file “Garéfalo Sierra Sabrina C/ Canfot 5.A.” is pending bafore District Court in Civit and
Commercial Matters No, 17 of the City of Rosarip, The Court has ordered the production of the technical expert testimonies
requested by the Company. At the same time, the plaintiff claimed that TGLT $-A- continued making payment under the fease
agreement untit the action for damages was decided, which was sustained by the Court. Consequently, TGLT made the related
Fayment. In addition, the Court ordered summons be served on the Insurance company, and the summons to be served on the
canstruction company is peading resclution. The complaint filed seeks compensation for damages, which the plaintiffs estimates at
$ 6,000,000, We understand that, in the event the existence of a damage is proved, compensation for damages should be berne by
the insurance company and, eventually, by the censtruction company.

- OnAugust 29, 2016, the Company was served with notice of the complaint filed under the proceedings “Equistica Defensa Del
Medic Ambiente Asoc Civil ¢/ Ingeconser ¥ Otro §/ Accidn Meramente Declarativa”, pending before Federal Court No. 2 of the City
of Rosaric, The complaint afleges the unconstitutionality of the ordinance, which authorized, among other developments, the
construction and development of Férum Puarto Norte. Especially, it is argued that the development did not resgect the towpath,
Notice was served on TLGT and Canfot $.A. of the complaint and the subpoena of the Federa Gavernment and/or Undersecretariat
of Navigable Waters and the Province of Santa Fe or the Environment Secretariat. TGLT S.5A. filed an answer ta the complaint, and
the Court has to decide the motions and the Court has to decide on the mations to dismiss the case for fack 6f venue and lack of
legal standing filed by TGLT S.AL.
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Note 33, Lawsuits {continued)
33.6. Other dJaims {rontinued)

- in Qctober, the Company was served with summans and a complaint under the case "Sanchez francisco y otro ¢f TGLT S.A. s/
Escrituracién”. in the complaint, plaintiff requests the execution of the title deed of the property acquired by the plaintiffs by means
the preliminary purchase and sale agreement related to the “Astor Cabalflito” project or, otherwise, the reimbursement of the
amounts paid, plus irterest {all the foregoing plus damages resulting from the delay in the defivery}. The answer to the complaint
was fited in December 2016. A setzlement agreement was executed in April 2017, there being no further matters fo discuss.

- In October, the Company was served with summeons and a complaint under the case “Tevez Frutoso Ariel ¢/ Consangas S.A. y
atro”. Mr. Frutoso Teverz states that he had begun working as official piumber in the Astor Néfiez Project in May 13, 2014. As a result
of the direct dismissal by the corpany Consagas S.A., the plaintiff clalms, among other things, compensation {or the incorrect
registration of the labor relationship and failure to pay the unemployment fund provided for by Law No. 22250 as well as failure to
pay salaries by his former employer {Consagas 5.A.), The complaint was answered by TGLT on October 26, 2016. The case is pending
trial, and TGLT 5.A. is co-defendant by virtue of the joint and several Hability far faber purposes alleged by the plaintiff.

- On October 25, 2016, the Company was served with summons and a complaint under the case “Bacigalupo Algjandro ¢f
Malteria del Puerto S.A. s/ dafios y perjuicios”, for the amount of 5 123,800 for damages in the plaintiff's unit as a result of the
inflaw of water, plus an extension of the comptaint for an undetermined amount for psychologicat damage. The Company fited the
answer to the complaint on November 9, 2016, On December 1, 2017, the plaintiff walved the campfaint and abandoned the
praceedings. Therefore, on December 4, 2017, the District Court in Civit and Commercial Matters No. 16 af the City of Rosarjo
considered the complaint waived and the proceadings closed, with costs on the plaintiff.

- In Dacember 2015, the Company was served with summans and a complaint under the case "Guido Orlievsky Guido ¢/ TGLT
% A. 5/ Escritueaeidn”, in the complaint, plaintiff requests the execution of the title deed of the property acquired by the plaintiffs
by means the preliminary purchase and sale agreement related to the “Astor Caballite” project or, otherwise, the reimbursement
of the amounts paid, plus interest (alt the faregoing plus damages resulting from the delay in the delivery). The answer to the
complaint was fited in December 2016. The proceadings were closed with a settlement, whereby TGLT paid the amount of
5 2,000,000.

- in December 2016, the Company was served with summons and a comptaint under the case “Cachan Santiago cf TGLT 5.A. s/
dafios y perfuicios,” The plaintiff claims damages caused by a banner of METRA while he was running along the coastal road in
Rosario. The answar ta the complaint was filed in December 2016, As of this date, the case is at the trial stage.

- Onlupe 14, 2017, the Company was served with summons and a complaint under the case "Commodities 5.A. C/ Canfot 5.A. §/
Declaracion de Certeza y Reparacién de Dafie”, which was answered an July 3, 2017. The plaintiff claims tha works be executed at
the expense of the company to secure the front of the stope on the Parana River, The case is about to be open for trial. The
approximate cost of works is $3,000,000. The Court befere which the preliminary injunttion request was filed served notice thereof
and granted a2 two-day term to file an answer as to the appropriateness of the injunction. The related answer was filed and is
currently pending befare the Arbitration Tribunal of the City of Rosario.

- OnSeptember &, 2017, the Company was served with summons and a complaint under the case “Buiatt, Andrea ¢/ Malteria
del Puerto 5.A. sf Demanda de Dereche de Consumo”, filed with the First Instance Court in Civil and Commercial Matters No. 16
of the City of Rosario. The phintiff claims the amount of § 72,000 for structural and morai damages and loss of profit. We have
reguaested the participation of Constructara Sudamericana 5.4, in the proceedings. TGLT 5.A. answered the complaint in October
2017. The case is pending trial.

- “Bresca Isaac Mario Cf Malteria Def Puerto 5.A. S/ Aseguramiento De Pruebas”. Plaintiff clairns the damages caused in plaintiff's
uziit as a result of the inflow of water. The documentary evidence reguired by the plaintiff was duly submitted, and the case file has
been withdrawn by Mr, Bresca jsaac Mario’s counsel, The Company has not been served with notice of the complaint.

- Dn August 31, 2017, the Company filed 3 complaint against Constructora Sudamericana S.A. for the repair of construction
defects, and the reimbursement of sums already paid in relation to the tonstruction company's responsibiiity for the construction
of the Forum Alcorta Complex as weli as for the construction of the Forum Puerto Norte Complex.
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Note 33. Lawsuits (continued)
33.6. Other claims (continued)

As regards construction defects of rym Alcorta, the complaint was filed in the amount of & 26,995,963, plus interast and legal costs,
The case is pending before the National Court of First instance in Commercial Matters No. 17 of the City of Buenos Aires, On Octoher
23, 2017, the defendant filed a counter claim amounting to $ 42,372,698.25 for alleged involes, interest expenses, higher genaral
expenses and extension of the term to complete the work, plus interest and legal costs. The defendant also filed a mation for some
defects claimed to be considered statute-barced. The fast ciaim was consldered uncertain by the legal advisors and Management.
On October 31, 2017, TGLT 5.4, fited an answer to the motion filed, and on November 15, 2617, an answer to the counterclaim was
filed.

In addition, as regards construction defects in Forum Pueria Norte, the elaim amounts to $ 17,221,895, plus interest and legal costs,
and the case is pending befare National Court of First tnstance in Commercial Matters No. 27 of the City of Buenos Aires. On

Gecember 4, 2017, notice of the complaint was served, and on Dacember 28, 2017, Constructora Sudamericana 5.4, filed the answer
to the complaint.

- "Mercade, Pablo Adrian ¢f Mata, Juan jose s/ Dafios ¥ Perjuicios”, pending before National Court of First Instance in Givit Matters
Ne. 100. The plaintiff claims damages resulting from the flood of the defendant’s unit. in addition, the defendant filed a third party
complaint against TGLT 5.A., since according to defendant, TGLT $.A. Is the current manager of the Complex. TGLT 5.A. was notified
of such third party complaint on September 19, 2017,

The amount claimed is $ 247,826, plus interest and legal costs. At present, the case is open for trial. Whether the claim is admitted
will depend on the analysis of the Court as regards the evidenced produced in the case, aithough attempts will be made to obtain a
Judgment in which TGLT S.A. is not held fiable, “Creclente Marcela Aracelt y otros ¢/ TGLT S.A. y otcos/ medida cautelar auténoma o
antitipada”; This case is pending before Admigistrative Court No, 2 of San Isidra, Plaintiffs base their claim upon the threat of
damages to the inhabitants of the £l Garrote neighborhood as a result of the work conducted by the Company, which wili cause the
overflow of rainwater. The claim does not estimate any amount. On November 25, 2014, TLGT filed an appeal on the grounds that
it i not the owner of the piace of rea propesty at issue (fack of legal standing to be sued). The Company’s Management considers
there are solid grounds for defense, and that a favorable decision for the Company will be issued. Yo this date, although some time
has elapsed from the filing of the proceedings, the term to file the answer to the complalnt has not expired, and the appeal for lack
of fegal standing to be sued and motion to dismiss the case for fack of venue is still pending resolution. The term to file the answer
to the complaint has been suspended untif ali the appeals and motions filed are resolved.

The Company’s Management, in agreement with its legal advisors, has set up an affowance for the amosnt it estimates #twill have
to pay in conneetion with the cases described above. Such balance is included in the “Provisions and atlowances” line.

Note 34, Ownership interests in other companies - Acquisitions and transfers

34.1 Merger between companies: TGLT S.4A, and Green Urban Homes $.A.

On December 2, 2014, TGLT acquired 100% of the stock capital of the company “Green Urban Homes 5.A.” {GUHSA), GUHSA’s main
asset was a piece of real proparty with a total surface of 6,227 square meters, located in the City of Buenos Aires. The total purchise
price for GUHSA’s shares amounts to USS 4.800.000, and is payable by TGLY according to the following schedute: {a) US$ 500,080
on January 6, 2015; (b} USS 700,000 on January 5, 2016; (c} USS 1,200,000 on January 5, 2017; () USS 1,200,000 on January 5, 2018
and [e) US$ 1,200,000 on January 5, 2019, As of the date of these financial statements, TLGT has paig USS 2,400,000, As regards the
installment payable on January-5, 2018, as stipulated in the related agreement, the term for payment was extended for 75 days.

As of December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, the outstanding liability was $ 44,757,610, § 57,204,000, and § 56,072,007, respectively,
included in "Other accounts payable” under current liabilities in the amount of $ 22,374, 810, $ 19,068,000, and $ 9,128,007, and
under nan-current liabilities in the amount of $ 20,772,000 .8 38,136,000, and $ 46,944,000, respectively.

As security for the payment of the stock purchase price balance, GUHSA (as surety} has posted in favor of the sellers {as creditors),
to their full satisfaction, a surety bond as main payor, backed by a first mortgage on the piece of reaf property and in respect of the
obligations assumed hy TELT under the Purchase and Sale Agreement, See Note32.5
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MNote 34. Ownership interests in other companies — Acquisitions and transfers
(continued)

34.1 Merger between companies: TGLT $.A. and Green Urban Homes 5.A. {continued)

In addition, on September 25, 2015, TGLT's and GUHSA’s Sharehelders’ Meetings approved the merger of GUHSA into TGLT and
authorized the execution of the Final Merger Agreement by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Qn July 7, 2016, the CNV approved the merger, and on January 19, 2017, the IGl approved the reglstration of GUH5A’s dissolution.
34.2 Merger between companies: TGLT 5.A. and Canfot S.A.

On September 29, 2018, a stock purchase agreement was entered inte by and between Kondor fund, 5PC and TGLT S.A., whereby
Kondor Fund sold, transferred and assigned to the buyer all rights and interests in Canfot 5.A.s shares owned by it, free of liens.

The tota} purchase price of such shares was agreed upon in the amount of US$ 2,000,000, payable according to the fallowing
schedule: (3} USS 500,000 within seven days followidg execution of the agreement; (b} US$ 500,000 on Mareh 31, 2017; {c)
1USS 500,000 on September 28, 2017, and (d) US$ 500,000 on March 30, 2018. .Each of these payments were secured with
prefiminary sales agreement of Astor San Telmo andfor Forum Puerto del Buceo. As of December 31, 2017, the total debt was paid
upon an agreement hetween the parties.

As of December 31, 2016, the fiabilities for this transaction amounted to $ 23,835,000, included in "Other accounts payable” under
current fiabilities in the amount of § 15,890,000, and under non-current liabilities, in the amount of 5 7,945,000,

At the same time, exercising the purchase option set forth in the stock purchase agreement executed on December 31, 2012, TGLT
$.A. bought from Juan Carlos Rosetti his totat ownership interest in Canfot 5.A. at a purchase price of § 1,327 as established In the
agreement.

In addition, on $eptember 30, 2016, TGLT 5.A. and Canfot $.A. executed an agreement for the merger of Canfot S.A. into TGLT 5.A.
The reorganization occurred on October 1, 2016, Lanfot S.A. was dissolved without Hguidation, and TGLT S.A. survived as a legal
entity, ’

On Aprit 20, 2017, the merger was approved by the Annual Shareholders’ Meetings of both companles. On October 24, 2017, the
CNV approved the merger, and on Decerber 28, 2017, the 1G approved the registration of Canfot 5.4 disselution.

34.3 Acquisition of Sitia 5.A.s shares by TGLT and subsequent liguidation of Sitia S.A.

On June 28, 2017, TGLT exercised its purchase option to acquire afl the shares and interests that the shareholders Eleonora Hussar
and Mabe! Carmen Magues had on Sitia S.A, Therefore, the shereholders sold, assigned and transferred to TGFLY aff their
shareholdings, i.e. 5,000 nonendorsable, registered, comman shares, with a nominal value of $ 1 each and one vote per share,
representing 5% of the total capital stock and vating rights.

The amount paid for alf the shares acquired was $ 30,000, This resulted in income in the amount of 5 76,129 for TGLT, as the equity
value of the 5% ownership interest in Sitia at the time of acquisition was $ 106,129, Such income is recorded as a “Capital
Contribution” in the statement of changes in equity as of December 31, 2017, since it was a transaction between sharehaolders.

On lune 30, 2017, being the sole sharsholder of Sitia 5.A., TGLT approved at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting the
dissolution of the company. To that end, the Board of Directors was appointed as fguidator. On December 26, 2017, the
Extracrdinary General Shareholder's Maeting unanimously approved the final balance sheet for liqyidation purposes for the fiscal
year ended November 30, 2017. To the date of issuance, the liguidation of Sitia is pending approva! from the competent autherities,
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Note 35. Risks - Financial risk management

The Campany is exposed to reacket and financiat tisks inherant to the nature of the real estate business as well as to the financiat
nstruments used for the financing of the real estate projects developed by it. The Company's management analyzes these risks on
& regular basts, reports them to the Board of Directors and designs mitigation strategies and poficies. In addition, it verifies that the
practices adopted throughout the organization comply with the relevant steategies and policies. Furthermore, it monitors the
current pokcies and adapts or changes them according to the market changes and any new needs of the organization as may arise,

35.1 Market risks

Our activities are expesed to different tisks inherent to the real estate development industry both in Argentina and in Uruguay,
Thase risks inciude, among others:

Risk of increase in construction costs

Most of our costs are linked to the effects of inflation on the costs of construction mgterials and labor, However, the Company
operatively covers this risk by adjusting the amounts pending collection for units sold and the lsts of prices by the CAC Index
(construction cost index} on 2 monthly basis.

Risk associoted with the demand for our products

The demand for our products depends on several external factors, such as the macroeconomy and market conditions, We are
continuously controlling the speed of our safes and adjusting our marketing stratagy, in¢luding price and discount poticies, in order

to optimize the performance of our profects. In additien, we have sometimes adjusted the design of our products in light of data
resulting from changes in the market,

Risk of contractors’ non-performance

Independent contractors carry out the construction of our projects. We thoroughly assess the creditworthiness and capacity of our
contractors both before and during contract execution to minimize tha risk of non-performance, In addition, we require that they
purchase insurance against these risks.

35.2. Financial risks
Risk of nccess to financing

We have access to the capital markets and cradit facilities to obtain externat figancing for our projects and to refinance existing

debt, where necessary. Access to these markets might be cestricted due to situations outside Company's control, which may raake
it difficult to obtain financing and/ar refinancing.

Exchange rate risks

TGLT develops and sells projects in Argentina and Uruguay and, therefore, we are exposed to foreign exchange rate Huctuations.

To the date of issuance of these financiat statements, the Company recorded payables denominated in US dolfars in Argentina
amounting to 119.3 million, mainly made up of the corporate bonds issued during the third quarter of the year in the amount of
Us$ 150 million, out of which US$ $4.2 million were recorded in shareholders’ equity. In adidition, the Company has been granted a
loan for the construction of the Forum Puarto del Buceo Project, developed in Montevider . Uruguay, which amounted to 1155 13.2
milfion. To minimize the risks refated to exchange rate fuctuations affecting our financial Habilities, the Company might enter into
a forex hedge transaction in relation to the locat currency and the U5 doliar. The company does not conduct hedge ar financial
derivative transactions for speculative purposes. We believe that, in the event a hypothetical depreciation of 1 peso per dotfar
wecurred between the Argestine peso and the U.S. dollar, the difference between our assets and Habilities in foreign currency would
result in a loss of about $ 26.3 miltion. Such loss would be recorded in the Company’s profit and loss statement for the twelve-month
period ended on December 31, 2017,

105



TGLT S.A,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

feifras ppesmdag sy oSO Brnentinns)
Note 35. Risks - Financial risk management {continued)

tnterest rate risks

We are subject to the interest rate risks in our investment portfolio and financial fiabilities. A total of 5.7% of our financial liabilities
are tinked to a reference rate; the private BADLAR rate. Historically, the BADLAR rate has been below the CAC index, the index by
which we adjust our construction contracts and sales, We believe that should the Private BADLAR rate increased by 100 basis points,
aloss of § 1.1 million and an increase of $ 169.5 million in inventories would be recorded,

Credit risks

The Company actively centrols the credit rating of its short-term Hinancial instruments as well as the risk of its counterparties inherent
to derivatives and insurance In order to minimize credit risks.

In addition, purchase and sate agreements include a payment plan beginning on the date of execution of the agreement and ending
upon delivery of the finished product, with installments along the building process. These agreements provide for high nenalties for
clients in default As  consequence, we do not register a high level of uncollectibilty or default in payment. Some specific agreements
provide for the collection of outstanding balances after the transfer of possession of the unit. Allowances for bad debts are set up
based on such agreements in the total amount of $ 2.5 million.

Credit risks related to the investment of cash surplus are managed directly by the Treasury Department. We are conservative in our
financial investment poficies, and choose to maintain deposits in first line financiat institutions.

Liguidity risk
Our financial strategy is aimed at preserving sufficient financing resources and accass to additionat liquidity.
Managemant keeps encugh cash and cash equivatents to finance the ordinary busiress volume and believas that TGLT has adequate

access to the banking and capital markets to finance shart-term working capitat needs, We also believe that we have the necessary
tools to issue long-term debt, such as in the successful case of the placement of corporate bonds in August of 2017.

In the 2017 twelve-month period, the Company recorded an operating cash use in the amount of {$ 535.2) milfion, mainly due to
investments In working capital in most of our current projects. In addition, it obtained financing in the amount of 5 2,257.2 million,
mainly through the issue of convertible corporate bonds. As a result, as of December 31, 2017, the cash and cash equivalent batance
was 5 1,800 milfien.

Mote 36. Financial instruments

Buring 2016, futures transactions were conducted in relation 1o the Argentine peso and the US dolizr to minimize the exposure 1o
the exchange rate risk of the financial obligations in the domestic market. These transactions have been settled during the fiscal
year, there being no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2017, no transactions of this nature have
been conducted.
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Note 37. Segment information
7.3, Introduction

standpoint, the Company has established that each of its real estate undertakings rapresents a business segment: Forum Puerto
Norte {FPN}, Forum alcorta (FFA), Forum Puerto del Buceo {FPB], Astar Palermo (ASP), Astor NOfez {ASN}, Venice {VEN}, Meatra
Puerto Norta {MPN), Proa {the last two result from the division of the Brisario project), and other projects. in addition, the Company
has decided to consolidate the Jess significant projects for profit and loss, and assets and liabitities breakdowsn purposes, considering
them non-reportable segments according to tFRS.

Accordingly, Management uses the operating and financial indicators inciuded in the tables below, which present historical and

projected information on accounts receivable from sales and investments in inventory of each project, to arrive at the expectad
gross profitability,

A}l the information presented below is stated in million pesos, nat considering the effect of the future expected inflation on
receivable and payable balances, Thus, information is disclosed at historical value, whereas balances pavable are presented at the
present values as of the issuance of these financial statements,

37.2. information on secured sales and collections

This segment discioses information related to the income generated by each projact, the Potential Sales Valuye {“VPV"} of cach
project, which is made up of the sales vatue of all the units of the project, the status of sales to date {"SECURED SALES"), and the
future recelvable balances from sales already completed and from future sales (“RECEIVABLE BANALCES").
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Note 37, Segment information {continued)

37.2. information on secured sales and collections (continued)

(1} INITS 501D

Druring tHe cpuarter anded 12312007 - . 5 4 - z 17 - 8 {3 P
Curing the quarter snded 12.31. 2016 - - 1B - 1 2 18 [#] i {2} 2t
During the quarter ended 12.31.3015 u ? [ 4 H 12 32 2 75 {18} 57
During the annual aggregate ended 12,31.2017 - i 47 4 4 7 44 8 165 K4} 158
During the annual sggregate anded 12.31.2008 B 7 27 5 46 33 113 11 242 33} 209
Bruring the annuzl sggregate ended 12.31.2015 2 1% 58 15 55 a0 EX 3 32 {504 212
Accumutated a5 of 12.31.2017 452 154 89 210 97 329 232 2685 2,208 (320} 1,886
Percentage of units launched 100% 100k BOM  I00%  100% BE% 555 F2% B BE5 &3%
{2} FOTEMTIAL SALES VALUE [WPV) [4)

{2.2} Total value launched 4315 1,128) 26694 3840 5260 13286 14498 10R74 | 90747 [1,3286} { 77461
{23 Total project value 4315 4,1221 26694 3940 5860 25864 14498 74454 ] 166306 (2,586.4} { 14,1041
Project launched pla i 100% i00% 00w 100% Si% 1005 15% 54% 5i% 55%
{3) SECURED SALES

During the quarter ended 12.31.2017 - - 0.0 3.8 07 ¥ 438 - 1320 50 1263
During ihe quartar anded 12312016 - 50 3.3 - 2 2% 50 (3.7} 1510 {3.5} 147.5
Quring the quarter ended 12.31,2015 - ibe6 54.7 10.9 36.3 338 70 5.4 860 32.6) 252.4
Pruring the arnruat aggregate ended 12.31.2017 - 8.7 31758 318 L3 pafh 629 3.7 7024 (21.1) B5t.3
Burtreg the annual sgeregote ended 12,31.2016 - 204 224.7 17 1515 748 2807 217 8515 {74.8) 7B6.7
Buring the snnual aggregate ended 12.31.2015 p fEXAH 181.2 50.4 1284 167.2 aro 47.7 BE14 {162.2} 6942
Actirmtated asaf 12352017 4315 11083 1857 393 5736 6138 6408 6660 | 52840 (613.8}] s670.2
Percentage on launched VPV 1005 38% 0% I00% BE% 4E% 49% Ei% 69% FE5E 7%
{4) CUSTOMER ADVANCES {e)

Durlng the quarter ended 12.31.2017 1.2 30 {43 155 {52.3) 161 58.1 254 {13.8) (&1 {23.7)
During the quarter ended 12.31.2016 {2} (285} 333 (3373 {17.8) 194 413 408 | (250.3} {15.4} (269.6)
Buring the quarter ended 12.31.2015 7 1y 4339 {202.6) 573 53.4 - 253 a6LE {53.4) 309.0
Cuting the annual aggregate ended 12.31.2017 00 {6564} (249.3} 58 {34100 529 2051 55.1 {337.3) 152.9} {390.4)
During the annual aggregate ended 12312008 (58] (M4L1) 350.2 (251.8F 1130 1259 2773 102.2 4688 {125.9) 3430
Duripg the annuot aggregate endad 12.31,2018  {31.4)  (1665) 6ZL3 [1949) 1738 1543 - 5i4 6127 [154,3) 458.4
Accumlated ns of 12.31,2007 4.7 188 L1633 i1 1121 462.2 4824 3050 25705 4622y | 21083
{5} SALES INCOME

{5.8} Buring the guarter anded 12.31.2017 - 07 166.2 - 460 - - 1.7 2145 - 2i45
(5.0} During the quarter ended 12.31.2016 o8 319 145.1 3.8 2.9 - - 6.0 308.3 - 2083
{5.c] During the guarter ended 12312015 32 121 - 61.0 - - - 3 188.7 - 186.7
During the annual sggregote ended 12.31.2027 10 7.2 6533 25 356 - - 127} 1,067 -{ LI671
During the ernual aggregate ended 12.31.2016 Y 3ME1 3451 6L 1440 - - 0.3 V203 - 0.3
During the arnual aggregare ended 12.31.2015 328 487.4 - Il - - - 0.6 B250 - 2200
Accurmulated a3 of 12.31.2017 4268 L0505 1932 3608 4822 M - -] 21583 -} 3assm
{E] ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM SALES

Ancumulated as of 12.31.2017 10 4.7 56 0,2 184 - o0 13 159 - 15.9
Accumilated as of 12.31.2016 1z 5 1z3 0.3 Lth | - - a3 214 - 214
Accurnulated a5 of 12.31,2015 25 5.0 - 3.6 - - - - 311 - 31
AMGUNT RECEWABLE (T}

From secured sptes = (3- 4 -5+ 6) 10 3.2 1427 167 - 167.2 1554 AE0.1 850.3 {167.2) €831
Frot tatat value lsunched [22-4-5+6) 10 230 9614 124 pra] 8319 G674 TBLS | 3410 [3819){ 2,758.1
From totalvatue (24-4 -5+ 6} 1.0 230 9614 124 124 2,139.8 agFA 11365 | 11,2569 (2,139.8)] 91171

Béyer B exbetiat) CUSTOENE {enteaenting mote than 105 of total condfoned sales are reconied

Note 37. Segment information {continued)

37.2. Information on secured sales and collections {contirued)

{a) Only project developed abroad {(Montevideo, Uruguay).

{b} The participation of TGLT in Marina Rio Lujén, the developing company of Venice, is 50%. The project information is disclosed at
100% and is subsequently defeted to be consistent with the disclosure eriteria.

{¢} Includes Metra Puerto Norte, Proa, Metra Devato and Other projects.

{d} Tha Potential Sales Value accounts for all safes inceme expected for the project, made up of sales already completed {"Secured
Sales”] and the value of stock avaifable, disclosed at the vatue as of closing of these Financial Statements.
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{e} Negative values represent delivery of units,
(f) Amount receivable, without new exchange valuations in advances from customers, with no financial effect.

37.3. information an inventory and investment budget

or

INVENTORY

[T} INVENTORY

Variation as of 12.31.2017 {guartery) < 34 f148) 03 {43.7) 38.3 8.5 15.2 614 {38.3) 231
Vartatlon 55 of 12.31.2017 {anous) exgragatc) 138 (838) (177.2) (0.9 (3169} 2004 1778 1353 169.1) {210.4) {279.5)
Acevrnulated as of 12.31.2017 - 235 13802 262 B0 esuE 28454 5E09| 22587 {699.9) 2,158.8
Accumilated as of 12.31.2017 {exchanges inciuded} - 235 14052 262 036 7154 2539 6.7} 33875 [715.4); 2,682.2
Accumiylated a3 of 69.30.2017 {euchanges included) © M1 14198 3595 1533 6771 1854 754.50 33361 {677.1} 1,658.6
Aceurnulated as of 12.31,2016 {exchanges included) 3B 1073 15824 271 L5 5048 1761 644.4] 34665 150495 29617
Accumulated as of 12.31.2015 (exchonges included) 17.1 116 10712 2907 2545 402.4 1.4 356.1f 31055 {402 .4) 27031
(8] COST OF GOODS SOLD

{9.8} During the quartes andad 12332017 0.1 L? 1503 - 445 45.8 - .7 24l {45.8) 1963
{8.0) During the quarter ended 1231, 2014 B0 338 1192 381 230 - - 0.6 217 K mL7
{8.€) Durirg the quarter ended 12,31.201% 8.2 sap -~ 558 - - - 0.8 546 g 1546
{8.d) Duting the annuat aggregate ended 12312017 33 970 560.8 232 2049 45.4 - 1.5] 10165 {35.8§ 507
{8.¢} During the annual aggregate ended 1231206 143 3339 1192 695 1205 - - 3.8 6600 E L=y
(3.) During the annual sggregate ended 12.31.20n5 281 3588 - 2557 - - - 2.7 655.2 - 555.2
Actumulated as of 12.31.2017 5255 S04.6 BA0D 3315 4507 - - 4 288z -3 3.892.2
18] CONSTRUCTION BURGET

(2.3} Budget of construction lzunched 5255 5321 23647 3623 5807 12118 13308 933.4] 82113 1,21.89) 6,999.5
{9.4) Budget of canstruction launched {net of interest) S0LY 8353 23249 3126 4519 1.076.2 1,330.8 93z4] 17870 [1.076.2) 585908
{8.c} Total comstrustion budget 3255 S3L1 23847 35n3 SEOY 19887 L3308 §1215} 141772 {1980 12,38%s
(9.4} Totat eonstrustion budget {net of intergst) 5018 8353 23245 3126 4518 18541 13308 §1n.5{ 137325 (1.854.1) il.B%88
BUDGEY T0) BE EXECUTED

Profect lnunched = (9,0- 8- 7} - 48 5245 36 ivp A%64 3789 BM3E 28277 {496.4) 2,312
Yotal project = {9 -8 - 71 - 40 3245 45 17.0 1,2899 8765 55715 8,388.3 (1,289.9} 70985

{2} Cniy praject developed abroad {Montevides, Uruguay),

{b) The participation of TGLT in Marina Rio Lujén, the developing company of Venice, is 50%. The project information is disclosed at
100% and is subsequently deleted to be consistent with the disclosura criteria,

(c) Inclzdas Metra Puerto Norte, Proa, Metra Bevoto and Other projects.

37.4. Profitability information

This section shows the expected gross profitability for each project, which is composed of the Potential Sales Value of the project
{"VPV"), net of the development budget {"WORK BUDGET").

inaccerdance with International Finangial Reporting Standards {IFRS), the financial costs directly related to construction projects are
capitatized and recorded in P&L through the Cost of Gogds Sofd, thus increasing the direct costs and distorting results/gross margins
and EBITDA. For this reason, we also disclose the Expected Gross Margin net of this effact, to facilltate the correct interpretation of
the infermation.
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Note 37. Segment information (continued)

37.4. Profitability information {continued)

Profect Jaunched [1.a - 9.a) (34,07 1368 3047 .7 53 1168 1190 154.0 263.4 {116.8) 7466
Perepntage of VPV lounched [AL.8%) 17.4%  114%  80% BO% a8% B2K 14.2% | 104 (4} 3.788% 105 (4}
Project launched {net of interest) [2.2 - 5.5) {70.3) 2927 3445 214 1341 24 1190 1540 [ 13007 {2524} 1,055.3
Peroentage of frunched VPV {16.3%) 25.89% 129% 207% 229% 18.0% B2% I4.2% 4% I%% 14%
Tots! profect [2.b - S.c} 1840) 1960 3.7 3.7 53 S96.7 1190 13235 | 25133 (596.7} 191646
Percentoge of total VPV 1.8 1743 14w BO%  50% 231% B I7.8% 15% 23% 13%
Total project (net of Interest} {2.b - B.d) (0.3 2827 oL 81.4 1341 7323 1190 14,3239 29576 {732.3) 22253
Percentage of total VPV fIe.3%) 25.9% 1A8x 207% 229% 28.3% BI% 17.8% 18% 8% 164

{a} Only project developed abroad {Montevideo, Uruguay},

{b}) The participation of TGLY in Marina Rio Lujan, the developing company of Venice, is 50%. The project Information is disclosed at
160% and is subsequently deleted to be consistent with the disclosure criteria.

{c} Includes Metra Puerto Norte, Proa, Metra Devoto and Other projedts.

37.5. Reconcifiation of Statement of profit ar foss, assets and liabilities

Stated in millions of pesas

STATEFAENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Grass incomeaf (Joss) per segment §5.0- 8.0} {2.9} [24.8) w5y .3 2056  {a5.8) - 165 58.6 45.8 95,4
Gress margin {285.5%) [34.3%) 14.i% I21% B3N - M 85,35 31 - b
selling and adminfalrathve exprnses (360.7} {46.1} {406.8)
1 floss) from & intzlated ¢ - 18 {12.6}
Financiat and holting tesults, nut {2637} 1082 {154.8}
Other expenses 8.5} - &5}

tncomefiloxs} for the fiseal year before income tax (574.3) 5.5 1476.3)

STATEMENT OF ANANCIAL POSITION

ASSET - -

Inventory - .
{nder onstruction - -~ LAO532 - - 7154 3514 7697 | 32442 (7154} 25228
Completed units - HE - 162 1035 - - - 1533 - 153.3

Azzets by segment - 135 14052 262 1038 7154 3839 769.7 | 3,397.5 [725.2) 25822
Accounts recefvable from sales h ] AT :%:] 0.2 a1 - B 1.6} 150 0.0
Gendwith - - - - - - - - - - -
Cther CUment assats asig - 501
Oty poredurrent assets 13269 - 3872

TOTAL ASSETS 5.581.5 |735.5) 55915
Lustomer advandes in jocal and foreign currency A7 182 11633 211 iixn 46r2 4824 anse | 25705 {462.2} ZIRE3
Curredt Jeans - - MEL - - Apgz - Bagi s45.1 £ 23] B0
Noh-¢urnpat loats - - B - - - - LBG6V.6 ] 1,667.6 - 16676
Cither corrent liahititiey a6.9 - 25.9
CHher pan-curent Hahiiies 1.2 - 122

TATAL LIABILITIES 51424 - 5,142.4

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Grots intomef {{oss) per segment (5.6 - 8.¢) {10.6} 221 3539 {831 145 - - 141 0.3 - 663
Geass morgin fIBELIE)  694%  I29% (22N 156N - 27RIAE ruis 3 - felis 3
Selling and adrministrative expanies {287.9) - [487.5}
Fingheiad and holding results, nat 6RG.9 £26.9
Other expenits 10,8} - {089

Ircame/iloss) for the fiscsl year before ingame tx A58.5 - 4584
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Note 37. Segment information {continued)

37.5, Reconciliation of assets, liabilities and income/ {loss) statement {eontinued}
Stated in millions of pesos

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSET - -
Invantory - -
Under construction - - 15824 - - 48 1¥61 gada 15079 -1 25073
Completed units 38  wra - Ar1 0 4208 - - - B3R - 58,7
Assets by segment 38 1073 L5824 271 4205 5043 1761 Sida 3466.6 -1 345665
Accounts recelvable from sates 12 1.5 149 0.0 15 - - 0.3 M0 - 24.0
Goodwill - 4538 - - 85 218 - - 80.8 - ens
Other current assots 398.1 - 398.1
Gther non-cutrent atseks 10034 -1 16044
TOTAL ASSETS 4,973.% - 4,973.9
Customer zdvances in docal and fareign currency 47 B43 14126 1B4 4465 4167 2713 24ig 28070 - 28070
Curren? loans - - 830 . B2 1343 - 1688 5946 - 54,6
Mon-current loans - - - - 0.7 - - 1228 1236 - 1236
Other current liabititios 6701 - 6701
Other non-current Fabilitles 2752 - FrERyd
JOTAL LIABILFTIES 4,572.4 -1 45704

{a} Only project developed abroad {Montevides, Uruguay).

(b} The participation of TGLT in Marina Rio tujdn, the developing company of Venice, is 50%. The project information is disclosed at
100% and is subsequently deleted to be consistent with the disclosure eriteria,

{c} Includes Metra Puerto Norte, Proa, Metra Devoto and Other projects.

Note 38. Earnings per share
Basle and dituted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculsted by dividing the income/ioss of the peried attributable to the holders of common shares by
the weighted average number of outstanding comrmon shares during the period.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the adjusted net income/loss attributable to holders of common shares, by the
weighted average number of outstanding common shares during the period plus the weighted average of potentiat common shares
with dilutive effects on common shares.

Netincome/loss is adjusted by the amount of dividends and interest, after taxes, recorded during the petiod regarding the potential
common shares with dilutive effects,

The following table includes the resufts and the data on the shares used for caleulating the basic and diluted earnings per share:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

Result used for calcutating earnings per share

Result used for caleulating basic earnings per share

Einancial results of potential common shares with dilutive effects
Result used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

(4,776,567) (45,076,329}

{4,776,567)  (45,076,829)

Weighted average of common shares
For the purposes of earnings per basic share

70,349,485 70,349,485
Potential shares - -
Weighting as from issue date

Weighted potential shares

For the purposes of diluted earnings per share

70,349,485 70,349,485

{0.07) {0.64)
0.07} {0.64)

Basic earnings/{losses) per share
Diluted earnings/{losses} per share

As of December 31, 2017, the diluted weighted average of shares was 135,184,650, as a result of the issuance of convertible
corporate bonds dated August 3, 2017. {See Note 45}
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Note 38. Earnings per share {continued)

There have been no other tranzactions with common shares or poteatial common between the ciosing date of these financial
staternents and the date of presentation thereof, except as mentioned in this note,

Note 39. Agreement to annul Astor Caballito project

On june 29, 2011, the Company and ASA Inversiones y Representaclones 5.A. (hereinafter IRSA) subscribed a barter and gonveyance
of title deed by means of which IRSA transferred to TGLT 5.A. 2 property located in neighborhood of Cabailite, where the company
would develop a real property project called "Astor Caballito™.

On Movember 30, 2015, the Company was notified of the dacision of the first instance court sustaining a complaint filed by the
Association of Neighbors. This dacision was appealed by TGLT and the Governmaent of the City of Buenos Aires {GCBA} on December
3 and 4, 2015, respectively, Both remedies were granted. The case was submitted to the Court of Appeals in Administrative Matters
of the City of Buenos Aires and was filed in Panet Il of that Court. On May 26, 2016, Panel il of the Court decided to reject the
appeals fited by the GCBA and TGLT, confleming the dacision of the First instance Court. On June 16, 2016 YGLT filed a motion for
declaration of unconstitutionality against the final judgment, and so did the GCBA on June 15, 2016. These remedies are pending
resolution by the Court of Appeals, which shali decide on the case,

Likewise, in view of the aforementioned situation and the time elapsed, on December 30, 2016 IRSA and TGLT signed an agreement
establishing the execution of 3 deed to annul the barter provided certain conditions are met. if so, IRSA will pay the Cormpany, as
compensation, the sum of USS 3,300,000, as follows:

a)  The sum of USS 300,000 af the execution of the deed.

h}  The sum of USS 2,000,000 18 months after the execution thereot.

¢l The sum of USS 1,000,000 18 months after the execution of the deed or once TGLYT complies with the obligations arising
from the barter signed on Decemnber 16, 2010.

In addition, at the execution of the deed to annul the barter, TGLT shall return the property and IRSA shall receive it free of liens and
encumbrances, and TGLT will have the right to record the amounts described abeve,

On December 27, 2017, |RSA was served notice of termination of all commitments by TGLT; therefore, deed ta annul the barter must
he executed within a pericd not exceeding 90 days.

The cost incurred in the property as of the date of the agreement was reclassified to “Other assets” amounting to $ 78,191,027,
which inchiudes the historical cost of the purchase of the land pius the costs incurred in the construction until the suspension thereof.
Such asset is net of the Company's liability in kind with IRSA, in an amount of § 51,747,468, As of the date of these financial
statements there is no other monetary obligation te ba paid by TGLT except those incurred for the maintenance of the land for §
26,989,513 and $ 24,779,680 as of December 31, 2017 and Dacember 31, 2016, respectively.
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Note 40. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency

Dec 32, 2017 Dac 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Type and amount of Prevailing Recorded
exthanga Retorded amount Recarded amount
amaount
fate
forefpn currency in pases In pesns In pesas
ASSETS
Nan-current assets
Other receivables:
Advance payments to suppiiers uss - B - 17,761,924 .
Security daposits uss 47,600 18.549 BB2,932 718,550 -
us 18,060 0.645 12,313 10,407 43,011
895,245 720,957 48,011
Prapaid insurance policies 155 - . 165,563 .
Total ron-rurrent ssets 595,235 18,148, 444 45011
Current assets
Other raceivables:
Valve added tax us 192,285,817 0.646 124,216,638 113,129,001 47,722,207
Wealth tax us 11,339,945 0.845 7,325,607 1,832,450 3,765,154
Advance payments to work suppliers uss 1,815,125 18.54% 33,778,098 11,687,146 17,021,919
s 29,435,751 G.546 19,015,495 101,584 2,006,786
52,793,593 11,788,730 15,078,705
Advance payments for purehase aof real property - - - 19,410,000
Security deposits 3155 - 122,064 707,004
Prepaid insurante policies 8 35,020 13,549 649,890 1562200 1,634,589
[V . - 412 35,956
548,890 1,562,612 1,670,925
Expenses to be rendered 155 4,617 18.54% B5,872 133,031 48,141
s 1,509,916 0.646 975,406 ~ -
1,061,278 133,031 48,141
Rereivables from sale of investment property uss 1,044,774 18.54% 19,379,607 25,541,402 -
Equipment fund receivable uss £0,262 18,545 1117816 3,#24,901 3,332,822
Sundries uss - - 1,606 -
Receivables from related parties:
Accounts receivable from sales Uss 57074 18,540 1,058,668 40,367 74,0506
Other receivabiles Usé 10,130,376 18.549 187,537,372 - -
Actounts receivable from sales:
Raceivables from safe of units usg 642,391 15,549 11,938,718 23,805,000 23,513,000
Receivables from services rendered uss 504 14.549 16,793 5,111 4,956
Allpwance for bad delits Lss (41,010} 18.549 {760,655) 1,854,210} -
Gther finangial assets
Cther financial assets uss 10,429 18.599 193,966 - -
Cash and cash aquivalents
Cash uss 36,261 18.549 572,641 3,162,463 36,007
us 41,632 0.646 26,901 11,821 19,798
699,542 3,174,284 55,805
Uncashed chegks Us$ 20,800 18.549 386,859 - -
Banks Uss 1,304,048 18.54% 22,368,103 14,217,321 14,595,153
us 658,164 G.6A6 425,124 77,095 233,323
22,793,277 14,234,416 14,828,476
Term deposits 1355 A, 233 18.549 3,733,957 3,173,694 2,584,383
Mutual funds uss 37,359,454 18.549 622,980,510 3,947,492 £,051,016
Bonds and government securities Uss 55 620,175 18.54% 1,031,849,336 47,970,319 60,957,008
Tokal current assets 2,158,922 738 261,549,270 203,054,818
Total agsess 2,159,867,983 279,657,714 203,103 829
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Note 40. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency (continued)

Peg 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2018 Dec 31, 215
Type and amount of Prevailing Recorded Recorded
exchange Recorded amount amousnt
amount
rate
foreign currency in pesos in pesos in pesos
LIABRITIES
Naon-gurrent lizbilities
Other accounts payable:
Sundry creditors uss - - 1,687,321 .
Payable for purchase of shares LSS 1,200,060 18545 21,378,800 46,081,000 46,544,000

Security deposit 1ss G900 18648 128,678 - -
Loans:

Carporate bonds Uss 29,383 924  19.p4% 1,666,920,733 - -
Trade payables:

Contingency fund uss 86,061 18,599 1,656,441 - 1,576,024

s 19,591,247 0.646 15385,945 - 5,721,948
17,542,385 - 1297972
Payable for construgtion permit us - - - 8,780,560
Total non-current liabilities 1,706,970,657 47,768,321 63,022,532
Current lakilitles
Tax liablfities:

Income tax payable us - - 72,310 43,815
Provisions uss 20,000 18.645% 372,580 1,112,300 .
Other accounts payable:

sundry crediters uss 447,224 18689 B.340,277 8,642,160 2,584,383

fayahle for purchase of sharas uss 1,200,001 13.648 22,378,810 34,558,009 9,128,007
Loans:

Loans botrowed 155 3,004,350  18.649 56,250,061 85,428,704 109,865,697

Mortgage backed banking loans Uss 13,220,566 18599 246,056,698 334,500,146 15,729,155

Corporate bomds LSS 15,283,001  18.649 210,416,684 - 7,311,238
Cthar tax burdens:

Munitipal tax payment plan Uss - - 10,129,436 -
Provision for wealth tax us 11,949 0646 7,719 - -

withheldings and eollections to be deposited us 2203013  0.846 1,423,157 876,760 721,192
Payroll and social security contributions:

Salaries payabla 11 2,449,079 0.646 1,582,105 1,259,423 1,083,335

Soclal security conteibutions payable s 354,667 G646 254,955 213,000 112,338

Pravision for thirteenth month salaty a0d vacation pay U3 1,410,644  0.648 911,275 671,237 374,035
Trade payables:

Suppliars Uss 1344088  1B.64% 21,285,838 13,334,281 9,676,702

s 5,716,107 0.646 3,692,505 48,456,586 27,154,381

24,978,443 61,790,367 36,821,053

Deferred checke LSS - - 39,151,170 8,987,989

us 184,110 G646 183,535 16,165,880 5¥7,847

: 183,535 55,378,050 4,565,836

Praviston for expenses uss 231,210  iB.645 4,305,850 1,035,302 §53,414

us 382,086  0.646 246,527 - 50,661

4,552,717 1,035,302 1,004,075

Provision for works uss 171,250 1B.649 3,187,752 6,920,972 2,120,916

us 29,717,430 G646 18,197,460 10,433,111 4,950,039

22,385,212 17,354,082 7,071,015

Insurance payabhe uss 578 18.54% 43,551 2,280,457 1,703,863

Contingency fund 1155 16,377 18.649 305,408 260,225 -

Payable for consttuction permit us - - 23,575,211 21,978,955

Real property purchase pavable 55 15,494,791  18.649 288,962,361 246,212,221 205,864,067

Total surrent frabilities £89,412,343 T85,754,851 460,592 097

Total iahilities 2,586,383,008 £33,523,1%2 524,014,629
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Note 41. Investment property

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 changes in investment property were as follows:

ANCIAL STATEMENTS

For capital Under
appreciation {1} construction {2) For rent {3) Total
As of lanuary 1, 2017 808,801,000 13,796,887 54,032,688 875,630,575
Plus;
Acquisitions of the fiscal year - 2,030,737 . 2,030,737
Fair value adjustments - - {2.639,682} {2,639,682)
Transfers to inventories - - {51,393,006} {51,393,006)
Miness:
MEL deconsolidation (808,801,000 - - (808,801,000}
Total as of December 31, 2017 - 15,827,624 - 15,827,624
For capital Under
appreciation (1) construction (2) For rent (3) Total
As of lanuary 1, 2016 34,326,685 11,087,765 - 45,424,451
Plees:
Acquisitions of the fiscal year - - 51,393,005 51,393,005
Transfers from inventories 106,984,751 - - 106,994,751
Costs on existing investment property 314,972 2,699,121 - 3,014,093
Fair value adjustments 755,255,777 - 2,639,683 757,895,450
Minus:
Sales for the fiscal year {88,061,185} - - {88.091,185}
Total as of December 31, 2016 808,801,600 13,796,887 54,032,688 876,630,575
For capitat Under
appreciation {1)  construction {2) For rant (3} Total
As of January 1, 2015 - 8,257,381 - 8,257,381
Plus:
Acauisitions of the fiscal year - 33,208,531 - 33,208,531
Costs on existing investmesnt property - 3,558,539 - 3,958,539
Total as of December 31, 2015 - 45,424,451 - 45,424,451
Yhe following are the investment property related expenses recorded in the Statement of Profit or Loss:
Dec3i, 2016 Dec31, 2015
Mainterrance and conservation expenses 3,145,655 -
Total investrment property expenses 3,149,655 -
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Note 41. Investment property {(continued)
The Company maintaing as investment property the following items:
1- Investment proparties for capital appreciation:

a}  in December 2016, the Board of Directors of the Company decided a strategic change in the use of the main assets of
wiarina Rio 1ujdn 5A, and reduced the saleable area affected to the urban development project to 52,773 square meters,
21% of the totat saleable area and maintain the remaining 199,950 sguare meters {79%) as a reserve to increase s value.

As a consequence of the aforementioned change, the proportional part of them included in inventeries, measured under
IFRS, for a total of § 108,994,751 was transferred to the Investment Property fine ftem.

On Decembar 26, 2016, the Company made a reliable measurement of the net realization value of this property, based on
an appraisal carried out by an independent expart with recognized professional capacity and expertise in this type of
properties, The investment property was adjusted to its net realizable value i compliance with the requirements of
current professional accounting standards to record the profit / (foss} generated by that measurement within this period.
Alsp, that measurement does not exceed its recoverable value.

On December 23, 2014, TGLT 5.A. together with a group of independent investors acquired a resl property ocated in
Belgrane, a neighborhood in the City of Buenos Aires, totaling an area of 10,163 square meters for US5 12,626,261, TELT's
interast in this operation and in the property is 31.66%.

On November 25, 2016, the Company subseribad the sale of 11.66% of the ownership interest in the property to Marcelo
Gomez Prieto, for USS 3,381,400, Additionatly, on December 20, 2016, the sate of the rest of the acquired stake was agreed
upon, in the following proportion: Marcele Gomez Prieto at 7%, INVEMA 5.A. 6.5% and Claudio Ledn §.5%, totating 20%
of the stake that still betonged ta TGLT S.A., for USS 5,800,000.

Of the total sale price, 29.84% was contingent upon the obtaining of the final decision of the Bureau of Urban
Interpretation of the Government of the City of Buenos Aires, which was issued by the competant body on March 1, 2017,
and the Registration of the Work Plans for the planned project for said property, which was filed on Cetober 20, 2017,
Tharefore TGLT 5.A. recorded % 58,431,000 fram the sale of investment propertles during the period.

Consequently, as of December 31, 2017 the Company records receivables for $ 19,578,607 under "Other receivables” of
Current assets, but does not include the amounts contingent upan the transaction.

2- Investment property under construction

Management of the Company determined the area where offices for rent will be built under the Proa project in Rosario.
Therefore, the refevant transfer of the costs designed to saleable surface of said offices was already made from inventarias.

‘This invastment property is recorded at its cost as it Is impossible to reliably appraise it at fair vaiue,
3. investment property for rent

This praperty corresponds to the portion of fand acquired for the development of the Astor San Telma project. The right to
collect current rents, by means of an assignment, was acquired by a lease agreement which was extended until April 30, 2018.
On July 20, 2017, the parties agreed to the termination of sald contract, Therefore, the amount 50 far recorded as investment
Properties was transferred to Inventories.
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Note 42. Determi.nation of fair value

A, Financial Instrements by category

The fellowing are financial assets and labilities per fi

shown In the consalidated statement of financial posi

tion, where applicable.

The financial assets and liabifities as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

aancial instrument category and a reconciliation with the corresponding line

Financial asseks at thefr
fair value with changes investements held
ftermn through profit or loss Amaortized cost to maturity Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,766,814,785 33,171,572 3,733,957  1,803,720,314
Qther financial assets 193,366 - - 193,966
Accounts receivable from sales - 15,020,513 - 18,030,513
Other recelvables 443,124 548 443,124,548
Receivables from related partios - 204,405,784 - 204,405,784
Total assets at December 31, 2017 1,767,008,751 690,732,417 3,733,957 2,461,475,125
Financial liabilities at
thelr fair value with
changes through Financlal Kabilities
item profit or loss valued at amortized cost Total
FIMANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade payables - 441,873,885 441,873,885
Loans {finance feases not included) - 2,312,740,558 2,312,7403,558
Other accounts payable - 62,070,118 62,670,118
Total Hakilities at December 31, 2017 . 2,816,684,561 2,816,684,561
Financiad assets at
their fair value with
changes through investments held
item profit or loss Amortized cost o maturity Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 59,521,372 21,577,048 3,179,694 84,278,114
Accounts receivable from sales - 21,390,833 - 21,350,833
Other recelvables - 328,021,094 - 328,031,094
Receivables from related parties - 6,398,297 - 6,358,297
Investment property 862,833,688 - - 862,833,688
Total assets at December 31, 2016 922,355,060 377,397,272 3,179,694 1,302,932,026
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Note 42. Determination of fair value {continued)

Financial fabilities at
their fair value with

changes through Financial liabifities
Item profit ar foss valued at amortized cost Total
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade payables - 527,542,117 827,542,117
Loans 3,802 718,132,622 718,136,424
Payables to related parties - - -
{Other accounts payable - 91,487,210 91,487,210
Total liabilities at December 31, 2016 3,802 1,337,161,949 1,337,165,751
Financial assets at
their fair vajue with
changes through investments hefd
item profit or loss Amertized cost to maturity Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and gash equivalents 60,957,008 31,531,932 2,584,383 95,073,323
Accaunts recelvable from sales - 31,119,108 - 31,119,108
Other receivablas - 266,354,607 - 266,354,607
Recelvables from related parties - 7,952,268 - 7,952,268
Total assets at December 31, 2015 60,957,008 336,957,915 2,584,383 400,499,306
Financial liabitities at
their fair value with
changes through profit Finaneial liabflities valued at
ltem of loss amortized cost Total
FINANCIAL HABILITIES
Yrade payables - 424,481,742 424,481,742
Loans 276,076 450,479,346 450,755,422
Payables to related parties - 35,418,354 35,418,354
Other accounts payabie - 59,372,160 59,372,160
Total liabilities at December 31, 2015 276,076 969,751,602 870,027,678

A.  Financial Instruments by category

In the case of accounts receivable from sales, other receivables and receivables from related parties, the book value approximates
the fair value as such receivablas are substantially short-term.
In the case of trade payables, loans, other accounts payable and payables to related parties, the book value approximates the market

value,
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Note 42. Determination of fair value {continued)

B. Determination of fair vafue

The Company has classified assets and liabilities measured at their fair value after their initial recognition in thres fevels of fair values,
based on the relevance of the infarmation used for their determination:

- Level 1: measurement of fair values derives from the appraisal of identicai assets or liabiities {not adjusted) in active markets.

The Company has classified assets and liabiliies measured at their fair value after their initial recognition in three levels of fair
velues, based on the relevance of the information used for their determination {continuedj:

- leval 2: information used to determine fair values includes: market prices of similar instruments in active markets, market

price of simiar or identicaf Instruments in inactive markets, or valuation modals using information derived from market data
or that may be observed with market data.

Leve! 3: information used o determine fair vatues cannot be chserved and is significant to determine such values. This
infermation requires significant Judgments and estimates of the Company’s management,

The assets and liabifities measured at their fair vaiue as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are shown below:

Level 1 level 2 Levei 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,766,814,785 - - 1,766,814,785
Firancigl instruments 193,966 - - 193,966
Total as of December 31, 2017 1,767,008,751 - - 1,767,008,751
Leve! 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets _
Cash and cash equivalents 59,523,372 - - 59,521,372
investment property 862,833,688 - - 862,833,688
Tatal as of December 31, 2016 922,355,060 - - 922,355,060
Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 3,802 - - 3,802
Totai as of December 31, 2016 3,802 - - 3,802

Note 43, Refund of Minimum Presumed Income Tax credit

On November 4, 2016, the Federal Administration of Public Revernue ("AFIP™), sustained the action for refund the Company had filed
on luly 23, 2014 thus confirming the return of the credits maintained for the payment of the Minimum Presumed Income Tax
corresponding to the 2011, 2022 and 2013 periods, for a total amount of $ 14,749,908, plus the settiement of interast from the date
the action was filed unti its effective payment.

On October 20, 2017, the Company filed 2 motian for prompt resolution before the AFP for this to resolve the return of the amount
in relation to which a refund was sought. The Tax Authorities did not give an answeer within the term of 15 working days, so the
Company would have to lodge an appeal with the Tax Court.

As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company has a eredit for $17, 509,484 and $15,896,855, respectively, which
is disclosed in “Other receivables” af Non-current assats.

Duzing 2015, actions for refund for the taxes paid in the 2014 and 2015 periods for § 15,667,576 were filed,

It should be noted that on December 28, 2012, Matteria del Puerto SA {a company merged with Canfot SA, and the latter merged
with TGLT 5A) filed a declaratory action of unconstitutionality, requesting the refund of the tax paid. As of the date of these financial
statements, the credit ciafmed for fiscal years 2008 to 2014 amounts to § 11,697,476 plus interest settlement at collection date. On
December 1, 2017 the Court with jurisdiction ever Administrative Matters No. 3 passed judgment In favor of the Company.

On Deceraber 29, 2017 an administeative complaint was filed with AFIP for the tax refund of the 2012 and 2013 periods, amounting
to $ 3,017,861 and § 2,140,811, respeciively,
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Note 43. Refund of Minimum Presumed Income Tax credit {continued)

Since the mcome Tax provision and the atcounting records of TGLT S.A, corresponding to fiscal year 2016 reflected the existence of
tax losses and accounting losses, case law of the Argentine Supreme Court of Justice is applicable as to the inappropriateness of the
payment of that tax, according to the recent ruling or "Diario Perfil $.4. vs. AFIP DGl on Direccidn Gengral Impositiva [General Tax
Office]. The same situation is projected as of Decembar 31, 2017; therefore the Company has not set up any provision for that tax
for the current yeat. '

Consequently, the financial statements as of December 31, 2017 and 2018 do not include such fiabilities, since the Company will file
its annmual tax return without showing any balance in favor of the Tax Authorities and will formally notify this position.

The Company expects to offset the remaining balance not subject to refund, based on its business revenue projections for the next
fiscal years.

Note 44. Irrevocable capital contribution with specific allocation

On September 27, 216, shareholder Federico Weil and the Company entered into a Jetter of intent for the commitment of an
irrevocabie capital cantribution, which was approved by the Board of Directors on September 30, 2016.

On September 30, 2016, Federico Weit transferrad USS$ 490,000 (equivalent to § 7,452,900) to the Company. Subject to the approval
at the Generat Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company, the cantribution was to be converted into shares in the future and the funds
were to be used by the Company solely to redeem and/or repurchase the existing Brazifian Depositary Receipts {"BDRs"} representing
Company's common shares, to the subsequent termination of the Spensored Level Il BDR program, and the balance as working
capital

i arder to be recorded, the Contribution was convarted Into pesos at the bid exchange rate published by Banco de la Nacion
Argenting at the closing of operations an the date the Contribution was accepted by the Company in atcordance with the provisions
of the General Resohition of the National Securities Commission Na. 522/2013.

At the Shareholders’ Annual and Extracrdinary Meeting held on April 20, 2017, this contribution was not accepted by shareholders.
The Comparny had to retura the Contribution after compliance with the creditor’s sbjection system provided for by Sections No. 204
and No. 83, subsectlon 3, last paragraphb of Companies Law No. 19550, within the term thereln set forth. On August 11, 2017, the
debt with that shareholder —pringipal and interest accrued from the date of shareholderss’ meeting until the date of actual restitution
at 3 fixed annual nominal rate of 12% - was paid in full.

Note 45, Accounting policy used by the Company to recognize and measure
the issuance of convertible corporate bonds

On Aprit 20, 2017, the Annual and Extracrdinary Shareholders” Meeting approved the issuance of corporate bonds convertible into
comsmon, registered shares of nominal value $1 each, and carrying the rights to ane vote and to receive dividends in equal conditions
with respect to currently outstanding common sharas as from the fiscal year in which the conversion right is exercised, in an
aggregate amount of US$ 150,600,600

TGLT launched 2 domestic public offer exclusively addressed to qualified investors in Argentina, as defined in Section No. 12, Article
I, Chapter V! of the TNV Rules through the Local Placerant Agent; and an international offer not registered in the United States of
Amerlca in which the Iaternational Placement Agent will act as placement agent for the Company, addressed to {a} approved
investors in the United States of America, pursuant to the exemption from registration requirements under Regulation D of the U5,
Securities Act, and {b) non-US persons in transactions cutside the United States of America, pursuant to the exemplion from
registration requirements under Regulation D of the U.$. Securities Act.

The following is 8 summary of the main characteristics of the instrument;

= Total amount offered: LSS 150.600,000.

. Issue currency: United States Dollars.

*  Subscription and payment currency: United States Dollars,

= Right of first refusal: According to Section 11 of the Corporate Bonds Act, shareholders with rights of first refusal or of
aceration in the subscription of new commen shares (the “exsting sharebolders”) could exarcise such rights in the
subscription of the Convertible Corporate Bonds during the first ten calendar days of the subscription period, which
occurred between July 15 and July 25, 2017. To such end, (i) according to the provisions of Section No. 134 of the
Companies Law, the Company offered the Convertible Corporate Bonds to its shareholders by natices published during
three days in the Argentine Official Gazetie and in a leading newspaper bafore the subscription period; and (ii} the first
business day of the subscription period, Caja de Valores S.A., in its capacity as subscription agent appointed by the
Company in connection with the Convertible Corporate Bonds, recorded in the Company’s sharehelders register {in the
case of holdings appearing therein), or in the client’s account of the relevant depository agents in Caja de Valores S.A. {in
the case of holdings under a collective deposit system), the coupons reprasenting the rights of first refusal and of accretion
in connection with the holdings of each shareholider of the Company and the issuance of the Convertible Corporate Bonds,
The existing sharahoiders could trade and disposa of, and assign and/or transfer such coupons in accordance with the
practices of the subscription agent.
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Note 45. Accounting policy used by the Company to recognize and measure
the issuance of convertible corporate bonds (continued)

*  Voluntary conversion: At the holder’s option, the Convertible Corporate Bonds may be converted at any time as from the
issue date, but always befare the maturity date and for an amount not lower than a minimunm denomination equal to LSS
1,000, in fult or in part, in new common shares, However, if any amount of principal, interest, additional amounts or other
amounts owed under the Convertible Corporate Bonds remain outstanding after the maturity date, the conversion right
shall be extended until any such amaynt is paid in full,

. Mandatory Conversion: Should the Company make an initial public offering or “IPQ” in a U.5. stock exchange or market,
Convertible Corporate Bonds shall be automatically converted into new cammon shares or into ADRs {af the holder’s
optian), at the conversion price, adiusted as necessary at the {PQ’s closing date.

*  Conversian price: By & “supplementary notice™ published on July 11, 2037, the Company Informed investors that the
conversion price of the Convertible Corporate Bonds J¢ US55 0.50. Therefore, and according to the provisions in the Cffering
Memorandum, i holders of corporate bonds detige to convert their convertible bonds into new commaon shares of the
tssuer, each holder will have the right to receive 2,600 new comrmon shares for Convertible Corperate Bonds of nominal
value US5 1,000.

*  Conversion right: At the holder's option, the Convertible Corporate Bonds (or any portion thereof) may be converted at
any time as from the issue date, but always before the maturity date and for an amount not lower than the minimum
denomination, into shares of common stock of the Company with nominal value 31 each and carrying the right to one
vpte each,

Upon assessing the features of the convertible corporate bends, the Company has appiied the mechanisms provided for in I1AS 22
and IAS 39 for the recognition and recording of the Hability and equity components of these bonds.

For purposes of its initial recogaition, the Company classified each of the parts making up the instrument in accordance with the
ecenomic nature of the instrument, and with the definitions of financial liabilities and equity instruments, which are set forth in 1AS
32 Financial Instruments. Namely:

*  The Hability component {loan) meets the definition of financial lability as it creates a contractual obligation of the
Company to deliver cash o other parties.

= The equity companent (option to convert into shares) meets the definition of equity, as:
- itis an instrument that can be settled with equity instruments owned by the Company.

- Itis a derivative which reprasents for its holder an option 1o acquire a specific number of equity instruments owned
by the Company for a fixed amount in any CUfrency.

- Yhe Company offered the rights arising from the implied options on a pro rata basis to afl its axisting shareholders, in
accordance with the rights of first refusal and accretion, as defined by the Companies Law and the regulatory
framework of CNV.

Once the value of both components was determined following the methodology mentioned above, the liakility component was
recorded according to the guidelines of 14S 39 in “Loans” {Note 14} in a total amount of USS$ 93,929,509 {net of refated expenses),
equivalent 10 $ 1,659,734,424, The equity companent was racords - in “Capitat Contribution” in a total amount of US$ 54,158,648
{net of related expensas) equivatent to % 956,583,330, following e guidelines of 1AS 22, as set forth by IAS 39 for this type of
companents and in accordance with the provisions of the Regulatory framewsnrk of the National Securitias Commission. This amount
is disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity, net of the deferred tax effect arising from the application of i8S 12,
totaling $ 334,944,165,

in addition, as of Decembar 31, 2017, the Company disclosed, in the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the inpact of
the amendments introduced by the Tax Reform Law No. 27430, As per such amendments, the income tax rate applicable to fiscal
years begisning es from January 3, 2018 and up to December 31, 2019, was reduced from 35% to 30%, and to 25% as fram 2020.
Such reduced tax rate affected the net deferred tax related to Corporate Bonds as of December 31, 2017, generating income in the
amount of $ 47,849,166, which was Intluded in line “Tax Reform Law No. 27430", as per 145 12 “Income Tax” and SIC-25 “Income
Taxes — Changes in the Tax Status of an Enterprise or ts Shareholders.”

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, TGLT has used the funds obtained in an aggregate amount of US$ 50, 4
million, as foliows: (i} issue expanses: U$$ 1.9 milkion; {ii} working capital US$ 29.8 mittion; (i) discharge of financial debt: US$12.5
miltion and {iv) new investments: UsS$ .2 million.
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Note 46. Resolutions at Shareholders’ Meetings

Al the Fxtraprdinary General Shareholders' Meeting held on April 14, 2016, shareholders approved a capital increase by means of
the issuance of new shares of the Company to be placed by public offering in Argentina and/or abroad, considering the current
context of the Company and the capital markets,

The increase was approved for up to a nominai value of $ 345,000,000, that is, from 5 70,349,485 to up to § 415,349,485, through
the issuance of up to 345,000,000 commaon, registered shares of nominat value 51 {one peso} each and one vote per share, with fight
to dividends an equal terms as the rest of the shares outstanding at the time of issuance and with a stock premium of $ 13 minimum
and § 24 maximurm per share, These shares shall be offered in a public bid in Argentina and/or abroad,

Therefore, subscription price of the naw shares, that is, the nominal value of each share plus the relevant stock premium, shall be
determined by the Board of Directors or by an officer of the Company authorized by the Board of Directors, within the stock premium
range indicated abova, As a result of this capital increase, shareholders resolved {o shorten the term to exercise their right of first
refusal and accretion with respect to the subscription of the new shares ta ten calendar days, in accordance with the provisions of
section 194 of the Campanies Law for companies offering their shares publicly.

The £xtracrdinary General Shareholders' Meeting also resolved to amend certain sections of the Bylaws in order to adapt the new
plan of development and growth of the Company, as detgiled in the Reporting Summary: Sectlons Four {Purpose], Five {Capital),
Seven (Management and Representation], Nine {Powers of the Board of Directors), Ten {Supervisory Coramitiee), Eleven {Meetings),
Twelve {Audit Committes), Thirteen {Year End} and Fourteen {Disselution and Liguidation).

These amendnents were registered on August 9, 2016 before the Superintendence of Corporatians.

On April 26, 2017, the Annuai and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting approved, among other matters: {i} to increase capital as
detailed in the first paragraph; (i) to extend the term of the Global Program for the issuance of Corporate Bonds for a maximum
‘putstanding amaunt of up ta USS 50,000,000 {or its equivalent in other currencies} for a S-year term; {ili} to Issue corporate bonds
convartible Into common, registerad shareas of nominal value of $ 1 {one peso} each and one vote per share and with dividend rights
on equal terms as common shares currently outstanding as from the fiscal year in which the conversion right is exercised, for up to
a total amount of USS 150,000,000 or its equivalent in other currencias, in one or more serias; {iv} to reditce the term to exercise the
right of first refusal and accretion for the suhscription of the Convertible Bonds to ten calendar days, in accordance with the
provisions of section 194 of the Companies Law Ne. 19550; (v) to modify and approve the parameters within which the Beard of
Directors shall set stock premium within a range of $ 13 minimum and $ 35 maximum per share, and {6) to approve the allocation of
profits of § 4,776,567 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 to the setting up of a fagal reserve for & 238,828 and an optionat
reserve of $ 4,537,739, The items "Other comprehensive profit or loss” was not considered since, as long as it exists and presents
negative balances, profits should be aflocated to a reserve that supports losses,

Note 47. Cancellation of the BDR Level H program (Brazilian Depositary
Receipts or Certificated Notes deposited with a custodian bank or institution)

On july 7, 2006, the Company filed an application to cancel its 8OR Level |l program (Brazilian Depositary Receipts or Certificated
MNotes deposited with a custadian bank or institution), its registeation as foreign issuer of category "A” securities with the Brazifian
Securities Commission {in Portuguese, Comissdo de Valores Mobilidrios or "CVM®), and the trading of BDRs in the genersl panel of
BMEFBOVESPA S.A. — "Bolsa de Vafores, Mercadorias e Futuros” {"BMEFBOVESPA™} {Stock Exchange).

On November 17, 2016, TGLT submitted to the market the procedure to cance! the program, describing the alternatives appraved
by the CVM to withdraw outstanding BORs from the BM&FBOVESPA, namely: {a} the swap of the BDRs for shares issued by the
Campany to be traded at the Buenos Alres Stock Exchange [the “BCBA”); or (b) the repurghase of up to 2,000 BDRs of the Company
at a price of R$20 per BDR for canceltation thereof.

During December 2016, the Company chose aption (B}, and as of December 31, 2016, the Company beld in treasury 10,000 shares
of nominal valze $1 each. The totat amount paid for such shares was § 214,385,

Finally, on February 2, 2017, TGLT was informed of its de-registration as foreign issuer of categary "A” securities from the CVM.

On April 20, 2017, the Annual and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the sale of the 10,000 treasury shares owned by
the Company without giving the right of first refusal to its shareholders based on the provisions of Section Mo. 67 of Capital Markets
taw No. 26831 and Section 221 of Comparties Law Ne. 19550, considering that such number of shares accounts for 0.014% of the
Company’s share capital.

During May 2017, the Company sold the 10,000 treasury shares for § 119,433, which resulted in a loss of $95,552. According to the
provisiens of Section No. 2, paragraph 11 a), Chapter lIl, Title IV of General Resclution 562/13, this loss generates a new Rem in the
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, named “Buyback Premium ”, which imposes a restriction on the distribution of
unappropriated retained earnings or freely available reserves in an equal amount.
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Note 48, Deconsolidation of Marina Rio Lujin S.A.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s Management has carried out an assessment of the facts and circumstances to verify

compliance with the requirements for consolidation of its financial statements with those of Marina Rio i

@n 5.4.; the Company

Owns 42.99% af the share capital of Marina Rio Lujén 5.A. The result of this assessment indicates that during the current fiscai year
the requirements laid down by IFRS 10 in relfation to the “control” principle have not been met, In consequence, the Company's share

in Maria Rfo Lujén S.A. of § 262,421,896 is disclosed under M

Regardless of the factors considered in the aforementioned a

Venice project, which balongs to Marina Ris Lujan 5.4,

As a result of the deconsolidation, the coasolidated statement of

with the statements of financial position as of Dacember 31,20

estments in Companies™,

ssessment and ity result, the Company is stilt the developer of the

financiat position as of December 31, 2017 caanot be compared

16 and 2015. Gver the last two years, the following balances of assets
and fiabilities were consotidated in relation to Marina Rio Lujdn 5.4

12/31/2016 12/31/2015
Non-current assats 909,900,389 47,926,304
Current assets 326,952,036 266,934,573
Tatal assets 1,236,852,425 314,860,877
Non-current Habilities 287,923,462 27,962,114
Current liabilities 522,513,254 303,130,292
Tolal liabilities 810,436,716 331,092,406
Shareholder’s equity 426,415,708 {16,231,528)
Totad Jiabilities and shareholder's equity 1,236,852,425 318,860,877

The statements of comprehensive loss and cash fiows as of Decem

a5 of December 31, 2016 and 2015. As of these last two dates,

the balances of Maring Ric Lujdn 5.A. were the foltowing:

ber 31, 2017 cannot be compared with the respective statements

12/31/2016 12/31/2015
{Operating resuits {15,473,740) {21,046,837)
Other expenses {10,483) (13,977)
Frofit/(loss) from valuation of investment
properties 701,806,250 -
Financiaf results, net (5,283,801} {421,350}
Other expenses 4,920 127,634
Incomef{loss) for the fiscal year before
incame tax 681,043,056 {21,354,530)
Income tax {238,395,818) 6,872,045
income/{loss} for the fiscal year 442,647,238 {14,482,481}
Net cash flows provided by/ {used in) 131,767,737} (11,219,755}
operating activitles
Net cash flow provided by / fused in) {9,604,236) {52,609)
vestrent activities
Net cash flow provided by / (used in} 145,095,424 9,058,638
financing activities
Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash
equivalents 3,633,451 {2,213,726)

Note 49. Rejection of the Metra Devoto project

The Managemesnt of the Company, after a new analysis of profiability, decided against developing the Metra Devoto project. As a
result of this decision, the vaiue of the land acquired plus the costs incurred as of December 33, 2017 for a total amount of §
73,330,556 were reciassified to the tem Assets held for sale under Current assets, since the Company considers that they may be
realized within the present year 2018. As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, ail cantracts with customers that had
bean entered into were successfully terminated,
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Note 50. Award of real property following a successful bid at a public auction

On Qctober 26, TGLT 5.A. won public auction Mo, 33/17 “Catalinas Norte Project# of the Govarnment Assets Maragement Agency
{Agencia de Administracion de ienes del Estado (AABE}), a decentralized agency functioning under the Office of the Chief of the
Cazhinet of Ministers, for the property located at Avenida Eduardo Madero s/N*, between Boulevard Cecilia Grierson and San Martin,
City of Buenos Aires, of an approximate area of 3,200 square maters (the “Property”}. The Compary offerad US$ 40,500,000 for the
Property. The award of the Property was aporoved by the Office of the Chief of the Cabinet of Ministers on February 1, 2018; TGLY
paid 10% of the valug, equivalent to US55 4,056,000,

The acgquisition of the Preperty requires that a permanent structure be huilt thereon with a roofed area according to the zoning
requirements applicabie to the Property. Construction of the structure shall commence within 2 years and completed within 5 years,
in both cases, from the execution of the deed transferring title to the Property in favor of the Company.

Note 51. CNV General Resolution No. 622

in order to comply with the provisions of section 1, Title i, Chapter 11} of General Resofution No. 622 of the CNV, the notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements describe the infarmation requested by that Resohstion In the form of Exhibits.

Exhibit A - Property, plant and eguipmant Note 9

Exhibit 8 -Intangible assets Hote 10

Exhibit C - Investments in shares Mot applicable
Exhibit [ - Cther investments Not applicable
Exhibit E - Allowances and provisions Nates 19 and 33
Exhibit F - Cast of goods sold Note 24

Exhibit G - Assets and Jizhilities in forelgn currency Note 40

Exhibit # - Ordinary seliing, administrative and financing expenses  Notes 25, 26 and 27

Note 52. Stock options

The Shargholders' Meetings held on October 30, 2009, December 20, 2011, Aprit 30, 2014 and April 16, 2016, resclved to establish
a stock option plan for shares 1o be issued by the Company to certain current and future executive officers and sentor employees.,
According to the shareholders’ resolutions, the stock options will convey the right, as a whole, to subscribe up to 2 number of shares
equivalent to 7% of the current share capital, taking inte account and including the shares to be issued under the stock options,
subject to the adjustments and final terms and conditions as the Board of Directors shait determing.

On Aprit 14, 2016, the Annual and Extracrdinary Shareholders’ Meeting approved the issuance of additionat stock options for up to
5% of the number of shares to be issued as a result of the capital increase approved at that Meeting (see Note 46), to be granted to
Company’s managers and employees. Af that Shareholders’ Meeting, shareholders delegated to the Board of Birectors the
deteemination of the terms and conditions for the issuance of such stock options,

On July 5, 2017, the Company's Board of Directors resoived to cancel the stock option incentive plan pending resoluticn by the
National Securities Commission, as such incentive plan is no longer effective in the Hight of the Company's current sitvation and
projects.

Note 53. Information on investment in companies

The campanties inwhich the Company has a non-controfling interest are:

Company Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31,2016 Dec 31, 2015
Marisa Rio Lujan 5.A, {MRL) 49,98% 49,99% 49.99%
Sitia S.A[SITIA) - 5.00% S.00%

As explained in Note 48, the Company's Management has decided to deconsotidate Marina Rio Lujan 54, thus recording an asset of
$ 262,411,896 disclosed in Investments in Companigs under Nen-current assets and a Jass of $ 12,619,230 in the Statement of profit
or loss.
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There follows a brief description of the finencial information of each company’s assets, liabilities and profit/(ioss) for the fiscal year.

Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2016 Dac 31, 2015
MRL SHIA IRL SITIA MRL SITIA
Assets 1,623,380.816 - 1,236,628,340 3,654,658 314,638,292 100,000
MNon-controlling interest 811,690,408 - 618,314,920 128,830 157,319,146 5,000
Ligbilities 1,228,842,958 - 810,214,131 1,392,563 330,569,821 -
Non-controlling interest 614,421,479 = 405,107,066 69,628 165,434,910 -
income/(loss) for the fscat year {31,877,851) -~ 442,647,238 2,262,096 {14,482,481} -
Non-controfling interest (15,938,926) - 221,323,619 108,104 {7.241,240) -

Note 54. Financial statements approval

These condensed consolidated interin financial statements as of Dacemnber 31, 2017, as well as the stand-alone financia! statements
as of that date, were approved by the Board of Directars at their meeting held on March 8, 2017,

Note 55. Subseguent events

Below is a summary of the relevant subsequent events that oceurred after year-end.

- During February 2018, the Company was notified of the decision of a holder of corporate bonds convertible into shares, to exercise
its right to convert them into common shares for the sum of USS 500,000. As a result of said conversion, the Company’s share capital
has increased by 1,000,000 cemmon, registered shares of nominal value $ 1 each. Therefore, since the tonversion, the share capital
of TGLT amountingto & 70,349,485 rose to § 71,349,485.00. The conversion was made in accordance with the terms and conditions
established inr the Offering Memorandum of the Convertible Corporate Bonds ant #t the convarsion price of USS 0.50.

- On January 19, 2018, the Company acquired from gertain shareholders of Caputo Sociedad Industrial, Comercial y flnanciera (the
“Sellers” and "Caputo”, respectivaly) shares representing 82.32% of the share capital and voting rights of Caputo in accordance with
the provisions of the share purchase agreements. Conseguently, by virtue of the transaction, the Company has become the parent
company of Caputo.

‘the price of the transaction amounted to the equivalent of § 15.116 per share, which represents a total value of $2,080,051,363.7
for the sharas. Qn Januagy 19, 2018, 48.90% of the price was paid while the remaining halance wili be paid as follows: {a) 25.92% of
the price on January 19, 2019; angd {b) the remaining 25.18% of the price on January 19, 2020, The price is subject to potential
adjustments as provided for in the transaction dacuments.

To secure payment of the remaining batance of the price, the Company has granted to the sellers & first-degree pledga over the
shares and, subsequently, a first-demand bank guarantee will be created in their faver,

Lastly, the Company must make, in accordance with the provisions of section 87 et seq. of the Capital Markets Law No. 26831 and
the applicable NV Rules, a Mandatory Acquisition of Shares in & Public Offering in cash and Voluntary Share Swap in a Public Offering
addressed 1o all holders of common, registered shares of nominal vaue $1 {one peso) each and one vote per share, currently issued
and outstanding from Caputo, and subjact to the conditions to be communicated in due time and manner. This Offer has not yet
been approved by CNV.

- On February 28, 2018, the Annual and Extraordinary Sharehiolders’ Meating approved a capitat increase of the Company for up to
a nominat value of $ 25,000,000, in order to Issue up to 25,000,000 new common, registered shares of nominat vaiue %1 (one peso}
each and one vote per share with right to dividends on equal terms as the rest of the shares sutstanding, to be paid in kind through
the transfer to the Company of Caputo’s shares cwned by Caputo’s shareholders who chaose to participate in the Share Swap. Said
increase will represent up to 35,038% of the share capital after the increase. The determination of the terms and conditions of the
issuance of thesa shares was delegated to the Comparty's Beard of Directors and the right, of first refusal refsting 1o the shares to be
swapped was suspended,

In the Shareholders’ Meeting, a caphtal ingrease previously approved at the Annual and Extraordinary General Shareholders’
Meetings of Apeit 14, 2016 and Aprif 20, 2017 was ratified and it was decided to ingrease the amount up to a nominal valye of 5
550,000,000 through the issuance of up to 550,000,000 common, registered shares of nominal value 31 {one peso} each and one
vote per share with right to dividends on equat terms as the rest of the shares outstanding at the time of issuance, to be offered in
a public bid in Argentina and/or abroad in ane or more opportunities, to be paid in cash, and with a stock premium of % 10 minimum
and S 35 maximum per new share, This Increase wilf represent up to 770.853% of the share capital after the issuance of the New
Shares, without considering the increase mentioned abave,

Ltastly, the Company would make, in accordance with the provisions of the Capital Markets Law No. 26831 and applicable TNV Rules,
a Mandatory Acquisition of Sharas in a Public Offering in cash and Voluntary Share Swap in a2 Public Offering addressed to all holders
of common, registered shares of nominal value $1 {one peso) each and one vote per share, currently Issued and outstanding from
Caputo, and subject to the conditions to be communicated in due time and ranner. In compliance with the provisions of the CNV
Rules, the Offer must be made within 10 calendar days from the date of the decision for the offar to acquire the shareholding of
Caputo; thus the deadline to formally make the Offer expires on Monday, January 23, 2018,
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Note 55. Subsequent events {continued)

The Offer would consist of (i} a mandatory acquisition of shares in a public offering at a price per share payable in cash {the
“"Mandatory Acquisition of Shares in a Public Offering™}, and (i1} a voluntary share swap in a public offering for common shares of
TGLT, at @ swap ratio to be determined (the "Voluntary Share Swap in a Public Offering”}.

On lanuary 25, 2018, the Board of Directors’ Meeting of TGLT approved {i) to make the Offer, stating that TGLT tias financial resources
to pay the full price of the Mandatory Acquisition of Shares is a Public Cffering, (it} to set the price per share under the Mandatory
Acquisition of Shares in a Pubfic Offering, and (iii} to convene an annual and extraordinary geseral shareholders’ meeting to be held
on February 28, 2018 (first cally and on March 14, 2018 {second calt, only for the purpases of the Annual Shareholders' Maeting, in
compliance with the provisions of section 237 of the Companies Law}, among other purpeses, to approve a capital increase of up to
4 25,000,000, which may be subscribed with Caputo’s shares from holders who decide to accept the Voluntary Share Swap ina Public
Offering, and set the parameters and prica range within which the Board of Directors must establish the swap formauda to be offered
in the Voluntary Share Swap in a Public Offering.

Sharehoiders may choose to participate in the Mandatary Acquisition of Shares in & Public Offering andfor the Voluntary Share Swap
in a Public Offering and/or maintain their shares.

The Mandatory Acquisition of Shares in a Public Offering wilt not be subject to conditions of minimum or maximum number of shares
to be acquired, and wilt be maintained regardiess of the number of acceptances ceceived. The Voluntary Share Swap in a Public
Offering witl be made for up to a number of shares that will cover alf tha requests under the Voluntary Share Swap in a Public Offering,
avan in the case that ali shareholders opt for the Voluntary Share Swap in a Public Offering; for this purpose, the Shareholders’
Maeting may authorize the suspension of the right, of first refusal with respect to the TGLT shares to be offered under the Voluntary
Share Swap In a Public Offering. The Offer is voluntary for the sharehalders of Caputo.

1} Price of the Mandatory Acguisition of Shares in a Public Offering

As single consideration and in accordance with the guidelines established in the Capital Markets Law and the CNV Rules, the Ofteror
offers to pay to the holders who decide o participate in the Mandatery Acquisition of Sharesin a Public Offering a fixed price of US$
0, 7914 per Share (the "Price"}, in pesos at the retail offer exchange rate published by Banco de Iz Nacidn Argentina at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the launch date of the Offer {to take place ance the Offer has been authorized
by the CNV). The Price may be medified, provided that this is allowed by current reguiations, which wilt be duly informed in the
Offering Memorandum and documents, In compliance with the provisions of section 98 of the Capital Markets Law, the Company’s
Supervisory Committee and the Audit Committee expressed their opiniens on the price and stated that itis reasonable and equitable.

tikewise, the Offeror had two independent appraisers determined the Price, Quantum Finanzas $.A. and Finanzas y Gestién 5.A,, a3
indicated in article 5, Section [, Chapter #1, Titie il of the CNV Rules, The opinions of the appraisers were presented on January 26 10
the CNV together with the Offer and are available to investors on the Financial Information Highway of the CNV and in the usual
BYMA systems (inciuding the daily gazette published by the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange) and Mercado Abterta Electednico.

The Offeror has informed that the agreed price payable 1o the Sellers under the Purchase Agreements In the framework of the
Transaction was US$ 0.7914 per share of Capute; which, converted at the refail offer exchange rate published by Baneo de fa Nacidn
Argentina at the close of business on fanuary 18, 2018 {business day immediately prior to the closing date of the Transaction), was
equivatent to $ 15.116 [fifteen point one hundred sixteen Argentine pesos) per share of Capute, The Offeror confirms that, in
accordance with the provisions of the Capital Markets Law and the CNV Rules, the price payable within the framework of the Cash
Acquisition Offer shall in no case be lower than the price paid to the Sellers under the Purchase Agreements or the average price of
the Shares during the six-month period inwoediately prior to the announcement of the Offer.

1} Voluntary Share Swap i a Public Qffering

As single consideration for the particlpation of the holders of Shares in the Voluntary Share Swap in & Public Offering, TGLT wili
deliver shares of TGLT in exchange for the Shares, at 2 swap ratio that will be fixed by the YGLT Board, according to the parameters
ro be determined by the Shareholders’ Meeting {the "Swap Ratio").

The Votuntary Share Swap in a Public Offering is an alternative that the Company will present voluntarily to the holders of Shares, As
a result, the Swap Ratio that the Offeror will establish does neither require approval by the CRV nor is 4 subject To the challenges
set forth in section 98 in fine of the Capital Markets Law.

2} Terms of the Gffer

Tha Offer is contingent upon, ameong other conditions that will be detailed in the Offering Memoraadunt, compliance with the
following conditions:

» Termination of one or more of the Purchase Agreements shall not occur.
« Authorization of the CNV shall be obtained and maintained to make the Offer in the terms set by TGLT,

3] Deadline and terms to accept the Offer

The deadtine for accepting the Offer, the procedure and the remaining terms and conditions of the Offer witt be informed by notices
and the Offering Memorandum, all of which will be published once the necessary authorizations have been abtained and the
conditions to make the Offer have been met.
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Note 55. Subsequent events {continued)

4}  Other considarations

According to what has been previously reported, and with the intention of providing all the relevant informatian, the Offeror infarms
that it is considering the passibifity, after the completion of the Mandatory Acquisition of Shares in a Pubtic Cffering and the
Voluntary Share Swap in a Public Offering, of merging Caputo and TGLT, TGLT being the surviving company, all of which will be, once
the exhaustive analysis is concluded, submitted to the consideration of the boards of directors’ and shareholders® meetings of both
companies.

The information contained herein is for information purposes anly and does not constitute and shall not be construed as an offer to
atquire or swap shares or as an invitation ta transfer shares (including, without fimitations, the Shares). The final terms and
conditions of the Offer wif! be described in the Offering Memorandum and in any ather document related to the Offer, once the
necessary approvals and authorizations have been obtained.

- On March 5, 2018, a notice of subseription of Corporate Bonds was issued for a nominal value of up to LSS 10,600,000 or
its equivalent in pesas, which may be extendad #p ta US$ 25,000,000 or its equivalent in pesos, to be issued jointly or indistinctively
under the following classes: a) Class XIv Corporate Bonds denominated in pesos at variable rate, maturing 1% months from the
Issuance and settlement date, b) Class XV Corporate bonds denominated in US doliars at fixed tate, maturing 24 months from the
issuance and settiement date. The principat of Corporate Bonds will be fully amortized in & single payment on the due date, white
interest will be paid on a quarterly basis,

The period of public dissemination will begin on March 8, 2018 and end on March 13, 2018, while the public auction period witl begin
on March 14, 2018 at 10 a.m. and end on March 14, 2018 at 4 p.an. The date of issuance and settlement will ba March 20, 2018,
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TGLT S.A.

STAND-ALONE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Nates Dec 31, 20156 Dec 31, 2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 5,530,932 5,979,448
intangible assets [ 712,444 434,995
Investment property 7 67,829,575 45,424,451
Investments in companies B 333,883,986 273,638,636
Inveniory it B20,561,756 558,020,577
Deferred tax assets 12 85,380,353 57,369,051
Receivables from related parties 32 - 90,661,810
Other receivables & ; 24,847,545 12,300
Total non-current assets 442:768,053°  1,338,745,551 1,032,041,255
Current assets
Investory 11 558,705,454 647,143,743
Other assets 36 24,775,680 -
Assets for sale a3 R .
Qther receivables 13 114,297,274 85,146,680
Receivables from refated parties 32 197,500,134 34,740,600
Accounts receivable from sales 14 9,119,242 3,680,538
Cash and cash equivalents 15 16,132,757 15,412,315
Total current assets 920,534,581 786,123,876
Tatal assets 2,253,281,172  1,818,165,145
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUHTY 147,742,168 172,124,894
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax fiabilities i85 - -
Other accounts payable 17 48,168,749 46,944,000
Customer advances 18 497,523,983 146,556,735
Payables to refated parties 32 93,881,603 127,192,300
foans 15 123,559,760 58,717,680
Other tax burdens 20 3,481,221 -
Trade payables 22 1,635,983 2,109,143
Total non-current liabilities 768,251,295 381,519,858
Current liahilities
Tax liabilities 16 - 3,851,361
Provisions 23 7,639,276 -
Other accounts payable 17 50,784,623 11,712,380
Customer advances 18 554,456,682 363,644,789
Payables to related parties 32 126,227,425 394,472,560
Loans 19 177,025,491 198,632,130
Other tax burdens 20 73,892,395 12,845,707
Payroll and social security contributions 23 11,371,727 17,692,825
Trade pavyabiles 22 347,880,086 262,268,621
Total current habitities 1,343,287,705  1,264,520,393
Total Habilities 2,111,539,004 1,646,040,251

Total shareholder's equity and liabilities

2,259,281,172

1,818,165,145

Notes 1t 42 are an integra part of these financial statements,



TGLT 8.A,

STAND-ALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Notes Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

Revenue from ordinary activities 25 255,277,505 304,865,125
Cost of ordinary activities 2% {252,560,090) {258,349,177}
Gross profit 1,717,415 46,515,948
Selling expenses 27 {80,809,187) {27,586,895)
Administrative expenses 28 {103,358,596} {72,306,346)
Operating results {182,450,378) {53,387,794}
incorme/(loss} from investments in companies 171,185,058 9,559,453
Other expanses & {459,810} {316,104)
Financial results

Foreign exchange gain/{ioss) 29 {7,181,414) (3,595,260

financial income 29 10,812,380 12,288,603

Financial costs 28 {53,204,882) {27,704,658)
Investment property appraisal at fair value 7 56,089,210 -
tncome from sale of investrent property 7 - -
Other income and expenseas, net 30 14,518,992 {1,897,563]
tncome/fiioss) for the fiscat year before income tax 9,319,156 {65,053,323)
Income tax 31 {4,542,588) 19,976,454
Income/{loss) for the fiscal year 4,776,567 {45,076,829}
Other comprehensive loss
Foreign exchange gain/{ioss) of a net investment abroad {16,596,365) {20,823,545}
Tatal Qther comprehensive loss {16,596,365) {20,823,545)
Total comprehensive loss for the fiscal year {11,819,798} (65,300,374)
Earnings/{losses) per share attributable to parent company’s owners
Basic 0.07 {0.64)
Diluted 0.07 {0.64}

Notes 1 to 42 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TGLT 5.A.

STAND-ALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Laimunty statod 0 Arpentine pesns)

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Qperating activities
incomefloss for the year 4,776,567 (45,076,823}
Adjustments to abtain the cash flow from cperating activities
Ingome tax 4,542,589 (19,576,494)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,211,749 1,793,763
Impairment of goodwill - -
Amortization of intangibile assets 459,810 316,104
Gzinfloss on investments in associates {154,598,693) 11,264,092
Translation gainfloss (16, 596,365) (20,823,545}
Gainfloss on appraisal of investment property at fair value (56,089,210 -
Gainflass on sale of property, plant and equipment (3,740,441} -
Gainfioss on sale of investment property - -
Changes in aperating assets and liabitities
Recelvables from sales 6,809,869 {1,719,775}
Other receivabiles 114,319,017 {37,773,230)
Other assels (24,779,680} -
Receivables from refated parties (72,087,724) {106,623,562}
Iriventaries {15,178,695} {155,937,731}
Tax assets and Habilities {30,824,735} 5,823,374
Trade payahles 60,472,874 93,207,035
Fringe benefits {5,721,008) 7,573,468
Other tax burden 33,230,608 9,544,455
Payables with related parties {332,739,996) 165,782,078
Custamer adwances 380,192,830 0,310,704
Other accounts payable 2,055,478 15,305,880
Provisions 7.628,507 -
Minimum presumed income tax {2,893,53% (4,302,326)
Net cash flows provided by/ (used in) operating activities 99,560,167} (49,707,539}
Inyestment sctivities
Investments not considered as cash {595,311} {921,873}
Paymants for purchase of investment praperty {2,354,915) (344,205}
Collections from sale of investment prapearty 56,051,010 -
Paymants for purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,464,918} 2,631,517}
Cobections from sale of other assets 5,442,126 v
Payments for purchase of intangitle assets {237,258} {511,050}
Decrease of controlled investments - .
Transter of property, plant and equipment - -
Net cash flow provided by / [used In) investment activities 55,840,734 (4,408,545}
Einancing acthvities
Logns (Mot 19) 43,235,441 34,393,484
Acquisition of ownership interast In other companies - -
frrevocable contribution 7452900 -
Capital contribution {19,800,843} -
Purchass of treasury stock [314,985) -
Collection fram the sale of treasury stock - -
Net cash flow provided by f {used in] financing activities 30,672,513 34,393,494
Metlncrease f{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (13,046,920} (19,722,690}
Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of the year 12,827,932 32,550,622
Cash and cash equivalents resulting from the merger of Canfot S.A. 13,172,051 -
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end [See Nate 15) 12,953,103 12,827,932

Notes 1 to 42 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TGLT S.A.
NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

{mrnaurts stated in Arpenting pesos)

Mote 1. Purpose of financial statements

On Qctober 14, 2010, the Nationai Securities Commission ("CNV”, by its Spanish acrgnym) authorized the Campany to make a public
offer of up to 45,400,000 book-entry shares of common stock, which could be extended up to 61,800,000 shares, Furthermore, the
Buenas Aires Stock Exchange {"BCBA”, by its Spanish acronym) authorized the listing of TGLT 5.A.'s shares as of October 19, 2010

These stand-alone financtal statements {rereinafter the "financial statements") as of December 31, 2017, have been prepared by
the Company’s Management in order i comply with the requirements of the CNV and the BCBA, within the framework of the
autherization process for the public affering of its shares

Note 2. Declaration of compliance with IERS

These stand-alone financisl statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS issued by the [ASD.

MNote 3. Company’s business

TGLY is engaged in the develapment and control of real estate projects, from the acquisition of land, to the management of

construction, going theough sales and marketing, guarantzelng the professional managemeant of the necessary working capital at all
times,

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, the Company, together with other investors, is engaged in several urban
projects fully managed by the Company, for which it receives a fee, both fixed and variable, for the tasks develoged.

Mote 4. Basis for presentation of stand-alone financial statements

These stand-alone financial statements include the information requested by current legat and professional accounting standards
{Technical Resolution No, 26), However, for an adequate interpretation of the financial position and the evolution of the results of
the Company and its subsidiaries, the Management of the Company recommends that these stand-alone financial statemants he
read together with the accompanying ¢onsolidated financial statements,

There are no new developments to report regasding the accounting policies applied to the preparation of the stand-alene financial
statements as of December 31, 2017, except for the provisions of Note 4.16 to the consolidated financial statements, where a 12-
month period approach was adopted to consider current assets and Habilities, Therefore, the accounting policies described in the
consolidated financial statements have been followed for the preparation of these stand-atone financial statements. As provided for
by IAS &, information for fiscat years 2016 and 2015 has been comparatively presented.
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TGLT 5.A,

NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

[arnénints stated I Argenting posost

Note 4. Basis for presentation of stand-alone financial statements (continued)

Basis for preparation

As per Title Iv, Chapter 1, Section |, article b.1) of the CNV Rutes {"NT 2013") approved by General Resolution No. 522713, the NV
provided for the application of Technical Resolution No. 26 of the Argentine Federation of Professional Councils of Economic Sciences
{“"FACPCE", by its Spanish agronym} and its amendments, whereby [FAS must be applied by all entitles included in the public offering
system,

These stand-alone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 145 34, issued by the 1ASB.

These stand-afone financial statements are for fiscal year beginning January 1, 2017 end ended December 31, 2017, As per iFRS, the
information related to fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are comparatively presented, jointly with the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive profit or loss, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended Decerber
21, 2017, comparative with the previous fiscal year.

The IAS 28 "Flnancial reporting in hyperinflationary economies” requires that the financial statements of an entity whose functional
curtency is that of a hyperinflationary economy be expressed in terms of the unit of measurement prevaiing as of the year-end date
of the reporting period, regardless of whether they are based on the historicat cost method or the current cost method,

The controliing authorities have issued no apinion on this matter, as of the date of issuance of these financial statements. However,
any recent fiuctuations in relevant econamic variables shoutd be considered when reading and analyzing these financial statements.

These stand-atone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at the Board Meeting held on March 8, 2018,

Note 5. Property, plant and equipment

Improvements
Furniture in third
and parties’ real
fixtures Hardware property Showroom Total

Original value

Balance as of fanuary 1, 2017 1,169,846 1,724,841 1,070,936 13,266,948 17,232,571
Acquisiticns 28,400 36,037 224,840 ) - 290,177
Transfers - - - {2,385,648) (2,385,648)
Totat 1,188,246 1,763,778 1,295,776 14,881,300 15,137,100
Deapreciation and impatrment

Balance as of January 1, 2017 {542,000) {1,325,261) {947,382} {8,886,996) {11,701,639)
Depreciations {116,834]) {235,683} {159,795) {1,636,751) {2,14%,063)
Decreases - - - - -
Tota! {658,834} {1,560,944) {1,107,177) (1,523,747) ({13,850,702)
Residual value as of Dec 31, 2017 539,412 200,834 188,599 357,553 1,286,398
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NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
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i

s statend I Argenting pesos)

Mote 5, Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Improveme  Improvemen

Furniture nisinthird  t5in owned
and parties’ real real
fixtures  Hardware proparty property Showrcom  Real property Taotal
QOriginal value
Balance as of lanuary 1, 2016 874,182 1,363,128 1,070,836 353,478 7,813,306 2,732,142 14,307,172
Acquisitions 175,659 247,804 - - 3,041,355 - 3,464,918
Balance contributed by Canfot 5.4, 20,0605 120,133 - - 2,412,287 - 2,552,425
Decreases - {6,324) ~ (353,478} - 42,732,142} {3,091,544)
Totat 1165846 1724841 1,070,926 - 13,266,948 - 17,232,571
Depreciation and impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2016 (410,353)  {980,923) {856,239} {206,261} (5,776,982 (96,916} {8,327,724)
Depreciation {111,642)  {230,529) {91,093} {58,513) {697,727} {21,845} (1,211,749}
Balance contributed by Canfot S.A. {20,005) (120,133 - - (2,422,287} - (2,552,425}
Decreases - 6,324 - 265,174 - 118,761 300,259
Total (542,000} {1,325,261) {947,382} - {8,886,996) - (11,701,639)
Residual value as of Decembar 31,
2016 627,846 399,580 123,554 « 4,379,952 . 5,530,932
Improvemen  Improveme
Furniture ts in third nts in
and parties’ real  owned real
fixtures  Hardware property properly  Showrgom  Real property Total

Original value

Balance as of lanuary 1, 2015 809,623 1,037,753 853,656 334998 5,907,483 2,732,142 11,675,655

Acquisitions 164,559 325,374 217,280 18,480 1,505,823 - 2,631,517

Totat 974,182 1,363,128 1,070,926 353,478 7,813,306 24,732,142 14,307,172

Depreciation and impairment

Balance as of January 1, 2815 {318,256 {867,507} {793,865) {93,055) {4,416,825) {44,053) (5,533,951}

Depreciation {92,097} {113,016) {62,424)  {113,206) {1,360,157) {52,863) (1,793,763)

Tota (410,353} (980,923) {856,285) {206,261} (5,775,982) {96,316} {8,327,724)

Resideal value as of Dec 31,

2015 563,829 382,205 214,647 147,217 2,036,324 2,635,226 5,979,448

Mote 6. Intangible assets

Software
Software  development Trademarks Total

Original value

Balance a3 of January 1, 2017 257,639 2,748,933 1507t 3,021,643

Acqgulsitions 47,571 60,137 - 107,708

Total 305,210 2,809,070 15,071 3,129,351

Amortization and impairment

Balance as of Ianuary 1, 2017 (238,175) {2,061,342} (9,682} (2,309,199)

Amoprtization {15,571} {357,893) {1,411} (414,875)

Total {253,746} {2,459,235) {11,093 (2,724,074)

Residual value as of Dec 31, 2017 51,464 349,835 3,978 an5,217
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Note 6. Intangible assets {continued)

Software

Software  development Trademarks Total

Original value

Balance as of January 1, 2016
Acguisitions

Balance contributed by Canfot S.A,

257,539 2,476,059
- 237,258
- 41,616

15,071 2,742,769
E 237,258
- 41,616

Total

257,639 2,748,933

15,071 3,021,643

Amostization and impalrment

Balance as of fanuary 1, 2036 (222,604) {1,576,899) {8,270} (1,807,773)
Balance contribited by Canfot 5.4, - {41,616) - {41,616}
Amortization {15,571) (442,827) {1,432) {459,810}
Total {238,175} (2,061,342} {9,682) (2,309,199}

Residual value as of Dec 31, 2016

19,464 587,591

5,389 712,444

Software

Software developpment Trademarks Tatal

Criginat value
Balance as of January 1, 2015
Acquisitions

210,925 2,005,723
45,714 464,336

15071 2,231,719

- 511,050

Total

257,639 2470058

15,071 2,742,769

Amortization and impairment

Balance as of January 1, 2015 {210,525} (1,273,885} {6,859} {1,491,669)
Amortization {11,673} {303,014} {1,411) {316,104)
Total {222,604} (1,576,899} {8,270) (1,807,773)

Residual value as of Dec 3%, 2015

35,035 893,160

6,801 934,505

Mote 7. Investment property

As of Deceraber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, changes in investment property were as fellows:

Capital Investment in Investmentin
appreciation (1]  construction {2} rent {3) Totat

Investment property as of January 1, 2017 13,796,887 54,032,688 67,829,575
Plus: i

Acquisitions for the year 2,030,737 - 2,030,737
Fair value adhistmenis - (2,639,682} {2,639,682)
Transfer to Inventory - - 51,393,006} {51,393,006)
{Costs on existing investmeant property 879,806,853 - - 879,806,893
Less:

Deconsoligation of Marina Rio Lujan {879.806,833) - - (879,806,893}
Total lnvestment propesty as of Dec 31, 2017 15,827,624 - 15,827,624
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Note 7. Investment property {continued)

Capital Ivestment in investment in
appreciation {1)  construction {2) rent (3} Totat
Investment property as of January 1, 2016 34,326,685 11,097,766 - 45,424,451
Plus:
Acquisitions for the year - - 51,393,005 51,393,605
Costs on existing investment property 314,972 2,699,121 - 3,014,093
Fair value adjustments 53,449,527 - 2,639,683 56,089,210
Less: .
Sales for the year {88,091,184) - - {88,091,184}
Total lnvestment property as of Dec 31, 20%6 - 13,796,887 54,032, 688 67,829,575
Capital Investment in fnvestment in
appreciation {1)  construction {2} rent (3) Totat
lnvestenent praperty as of January 1, 2015 - 8.257,341 - 8.257.381
Plus:
Acquisitions for the year - 33.208.531 - 33.208.531
Costs on existing investment property - 3.958.535 - 3.958.539
Total Investment properiy as of Dec 31, 2015 - 45.424.451 - 45.424.451

The Company maintains as investment property the following iterns:
1- Investment properties for long-term capital appreciation:

©n November 25, 2016, the Company subscribed the sale of 11.66% of the ownership interest held in the tem of real
property to Marcelo Gémez Prieto, for & total vaiue of US $ 2,381,400.

Additienatly, on December 20, 2016, it was decided ta sell the remaining ownership interest acquired as follows: Marcelo
Gomez Prieto 7%, INVEMA 5.4, 6.5% and Claudio Leén 6.5%, totaling 20% of the interest still owned by TGLT S.A, for a
total value of US $ 5,800,000,

Out of such total selling price, 29.84% was subject to the final decision of the Bureau of Urban Design of the Government
of the City of Buenas Ajres (issued on March 1, 2617}, and to the filing of the “Construction Blueprints” far the project,
which were file¢ on October 20, 2017. Therefore, during the year, TGLT registered income in the amount of $ 58,431,000,
which derive from the sale of mvestment praperty.

Consequently, as of December 31, 2017 the Company recorded receivables in the amount of $ 19,379,607, which were
included under "Other receivables” as current assets.

2-  Investment property under construction

The Company’s Management defined the surface of fand that would be allocated te the construction of affices for rent
under the Proa project in Rosario, Therefore, all costs refated to the saleable surface allocated to such offices were
transferred from inventories.

This investment property is recognized at cost, as itis impossible to appraise its fair value reliably.
3- Investment property for rent

This account relates to the portion of fand acquired for the development of the Astor San Telmo project, where the right
to collect the rentat feas derived from a lease agreement in foree until April 30, 2028 was assigned. On July 20, 2017, the
parties agreed to terminate such contract. Therefore, the amount insofar recorded as lnvestment Properties was
transferred to Invantories.
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Note 8. Investments in associates

Dec 31, 2016 Dec3i, 2015
Canfot 5.A.
investrnents i - 133,238,962
Implied goodwill 9 49,798,306 79,349,207
49,738,306 210,638,169
Marina Rio Lujan 5.A.
Investments {1} 10 250,567,261 3(,859,070
Implied goodwitt @ 21,487,412 21,487,412
272,454,673 52,346,482
Pico y Cabildo 5.A.
Implied goodwill 9 9,466,517 10,558,585
8,466,517 16,558,985
Sitia 5.A.
investments (2) 18 2,164,490 95 000
2,164,490 95,000
Total investments in associates 333,883,986 273,638,636

11} Asof December 31, 2018, the investment increase in Marina Bio Lujan A 1s mainly due to the dedision 1o rechassify certain
fractions of fand for which there is no development planned, ang which are kept as 3 valuation resorves. These fractions
of land have been appratsed at fair valus and generated net intome in the amount of § 228,087,030, As of December 30,
2047, it resulted in incoms in the amaunt of § 44,121,449, net of defurred taxes.

{7} Seenote 24.3 1o the consolidated financial statoments.

Note 9. Goodwill

Maria Rio Lujan S.A.  Picoy Cabilde 5,A.  Canfot S.A. Total
Original value
Batance as of January 1, 2017 21,487,412 10,558,985 79,399,207 111,445,604
Acquisitions - - - -
Decreases - - - -
Tatal 21,487,412 10,558,985 79,399,207 111,445,604
Impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2017 - {1,092,468}  {29,600,500) (20,693,368}
Loss due to impairment - {9,466,517) (49,798,307 {59,264,824}
Total - {10,558,985)  {79,3089,207) {89,958,192}
Residual value as of December 31, 2017 21,487,412 “ - 21,487,412
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Note 9. Goodwill {continued)

Maria Rio Lujan S.A, Picoy CabildoS.A.  CanfotS.A, Total

Criginal value

Bafance as of january 1, 2016 21,487,412 10,558,585 75,399,207 113,445,604
Acquisitions - - - -
Decreases - - - -
Totat 21,487,412 10,558,985 78,399,207 111,445,604
Impairment

Balance as of January 1, 2016 - - - -
Loss due to impairment - (1,092,681  {29,600,901) {30,693,369)
Totat - {1.092,468)  {29,600,901) {20,693,369)
Residual value as of December 31, 2016 21,487,412 9,466,517 49,758,306 80,752,235

Marfa Rio Lyjan $.A. Picoy Cabildo S.A.  Canfot S.A. Total

Original value

Balance as of fanuary 1, 2015 21,487,412 10,558,985 74,399,207 111,445,604
Acquisitions - - - -
Decreases - - - -
Tota 21,487,412 10,558,585 75,299,207 111,445,604
Impairment

Balance as of Janvary 1, 2015 - - - -
Loss due to impairment - - - -
Total R R - -
Residual value as of Dacember 31, 2015 21,487,412 10,558,985 79,399,267 111,445,604
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TGLT S.A.

NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 OF BECEMBER 31, 2017, PRESENTEDR COMPARATIVELY

farnounty stated in Arganting pasos}

Note 11. Inventory

Current
Projects under Caonstruction
Astor Caballito
Astor 5an Telmo
Metra Devoto
Metra Puerto Norte
Proa
Other projacts
Subtotal inventory — non current

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

- 115,429,795
176,138,018 1,506,673
70,370,938 67,656,250
380,839,013 216,601,290
193,185,787 156,426,568
28,000 -
820,561,756 558,020,577

Current
Projects under Construction
Metra Puerto Norte
Projects completed
Astor Nuitez
Astor Palermo
Forum Alcarta
Forum: Puerto Norte

420,531,324 354,453,825
35,323,088 292,689,918
12{,201,535 -

10,851,658 -

Impairment
Astor Palermo {8,201,137) -
Farum Alcorta {12,936,957} -
Forum Puerto Norte {7,064,057) -

Subtotal inventory - Current
Total Inventory

558,705,454 647,143,743
1,379,267,2100  1,205,164,320

Note 12, Tax assets

Dec3l, 2016  Dec3l, 2015
8,959,026 -
55,358,930 31,376,689
21,062,357 25,992,362
85,380,353 57,369,051

income tax

Minimum presumed income tax
Deferred tax

Total tax assets
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{amounts stuled i Arpenting pesps]

Mote 13. Other receivables

Nen-current Note Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Security deposits in lecal currency - 12,300
Security deposits In foreign currency 37 710,550 -
Minimum presumed income tax credit 16,896,855 -
Advance payments to work suppliers in local currency 7,240,140 -
Advance payments for the purchase of real property - -
Subtotal Other receivables - Non-current 24,847,545 12,300
Current
Value added tax 24,156,623 21,913,827
Turngver tax 809,487 3,354,999
Accounts recelvable from sale of Investment property 37 29,543,402 -
Prepald insurance policies in local currency 51,117 26,798
Prepaid insurance policies in foreign currency 37 732,872 744,123
Advance payments to work suppliers in local currency 22,128,068 32,449,124
Advance payments 1o work suppliers in foreign currency 37 121,637 388,200
Advance payments for the sale of real property in lotal currency - 263,032
Advance payments for the sale of real property in foreign currency 37 - 19,410,000
Loans granted : 867,414 -
Expenses to be reported 14,000 569,741
Expenses to be reimbursed 14,424,088 3,406,350
Expenses to be recovered in the common expenses ling 15,029,020 839,124
Security deposits In local currency 267,238 -
Security deposits in foreign cutrency EX - 582,300
Coltectable fund for equipment acquisition in local currency 140,322 -
Collectable fund for eguipment acguisition in foreign currency 37 3,724,901 -
Collectable operative fuad in local currency 268,382 -
Collectable pperative fund in foreign currency 3 - -
Receivables under litigation proceedings 1,901,601 -
Allowance for doubtfut debts - -
Sundry 19,102 1,199,062
Subtotal Other receivables - Current 114,297,274 85,146,680
Total Other recelvables 139,144,819 85,158,980
Note 14. Accounts receivable

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Agcounts receivable from services rendered in local currency 323,707 411,232
Accounts receivable from services rendered in foreign currency 37 6,048 4,956
Accounts receivable from sates of units in local currency 1,758,59% 3,264,350
Accounts receivable from sales of units in foreign currency 37 8,885,098 -
Allowance for had debts {1,854,210} -
Total accounts recelvable 9,119,242 3,680,538
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TGLY S.A.

NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

GrnsGents mated in Argenting peuns)
-Note 14. Accounts receivable (continued)
The aging of accounts receivable is as follows:

Dec 3], 2016 Dec 31, 2015

To become due

1o 3 months 9,119,242 2,234,146
3 to 6 months - 1,446,392
Total 9,119,242 3,680,538

Note 15. Cash and cash equivalents
Dec 31,2016 Dec 31, 2015

Cashin local currency 81,000 4,000
Cash in foreign currency 3,158,000 -
Banks in local currency 2,705,788 286,269
Banks in foreign currency 2,370,377 1,356,048
Checks to be deposited 650,446 43,999
Time deposits 3,175,694 2,584,383
Mutual funds in local currancy - -
Mutual funds in foreign currency 3,547,492 6,051,016
Bonds and goverament securitias - 5,046,600

Total cash and cash squivalents 16,132,797 15,412,315

inthe statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following;

Deg 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
16,132,797 15,412,315
{3,179,654) (2,584,383}

Total cash and cash equivalents
Certificate of deposits in foreign currency expiring over 80 days

Total cash and cash equlvalents as per statement of cash
flows )

12,953,103 12,827,932

Note 16. Tax liabilities

Non current
Deferred tax
Subtetal tax liabilities ~ Non current

Dec 31, 2016 Oec¢ 31, 2015

LCurrent

Minimum presumed income tax - 3,851,361
Subtotal tax liabilities — Currant “ 3,851,361
Total tax Habilities - 3,851,361

Note 17. Other accounts payable

Non current

Payable for purchase of shares

Security deposit

Sundry creditors

Subtotal Other accounts payable - Non current

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
46,081,000 46,544,000
400,428 -
1,687,321 -
48,168,749 45,944,000

Current

Payabie for purchase of shares 34,958,009 9,128,007
Sundry creditors 8,241,672 2,584,383
Other liabllities 08,011 -
Deferred income 7,476,931 -

Subtotal Other accounts payable — Current
Total Other accounts payable

50,784,623 11,712,390
98,953,372 58,656,390

Mote 18. Customer Advances

145



TGLT S.A.

NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

{Fmonng s statid i Argenting pesos)

Non current Pec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Advanced collections 514,216,153 152,464,037
Value added tax {17,816,745) {5,907,302)
Equipment funds 1,124,575 -
Operating funds - -
Subtotal customer advances - Non current 497,523,983 146,556,735
Current

Advanced coliections 560,669,519 383,402,974
Equipment funds 32,910,245 12,203,994
Operating funds 7,140,510 1,174,853
Value added tax {48,162,106)  {33,237.023)
Equipment funds in foreign currency 1,858,514 -
Subtotal customer advances - Current 554,456,682 363,644,739

Total customer advances

510,201,534

Note 19, Loans

Non current Notes De; 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Finance lease 738,163 -
Corporate honds in tocal currency 122,821,597 58,717,680
Corporate honds in foreign currency 3 - -
Subtotal Loans — Non Current 123,559,760 58,712,680
Current
Morigage-backed bank lpans 7,800,564 42,503,882
Firance fease 384,570 -
Bank overdrafts 32,021,731 23,349,114
Corporate bonds in jocal currency 136,818,625 105,467,898
Corporate bonds in foreign currency 37 - 27,311,236
Subtotaf Loans — Current 177,025,491 198,632,130
Totaf Loans 300,585,251 257,349,810
The following is 2 breakdows of loans and financings:

Dec 21, 2016 Dec 3%, 2015
Bafance at beginning of year 257,349,810 222,956,316
Additions due to merger with Canfot 5.A. 83,539,915 -
New loans and financing arrangements - -
New dishursements under existing ioans 177,110,402 168,393,604
Accrued interest 85,635,921 54,002,662
Effects of foreign cutrency variation 7,669,100 10,891,077
Overdralt on checking account 8,672,617 10,948,001
Payment of principal {238,567,902) {70,213,391}
Payment of interest {81,137,635) {57,435,821}
Swap of corporate bonds, net of issue costs 333,023 © [82,192,638)
Balance af year-and G10,433.20 300,585,251 257,349,810

A breakdown of ioans is included in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 20. Other tax burden

Non current Nates Dec 31, 2016

Dec 31, 2015

Provincial tax payment plan 2,240,102 -
Municipal tax payment plan 1,241,119 .
Federat tax payment plan R .
Subtotal Other tax burden ~ Non current 3,481,221 -
Current
Collections and withholdings ta be deposited 3,765,624 1,041,473
Wealth tax - 750,650
Turnover tax 9,637,932 -
Stamp tax 33,569,396 3,860,715
Frovincial taxes 3,303,798 -
Municipat taxes 4,302,128 1,162,869
Provincial tax payment plan 2,011,366 -
Munitipal tax payment plan in local currency 2,374,852 -
Municipal tax payment plan in foreign currency 37 10,129,436 -
Provision for federal taxes 4,797,864 -
Subtotal Other tax burden ~ Current 73,892,395 12,845,707
Total Qther tax burden 77,373,616 12,845,707
Note 21. Payroll and social security contributions

Deg 31, 2016 Dec3l, 2015
Safaries payabile 3,655,731 10,008,313
Sociat security contributions payable 3,738,735 3,926,111
Fravision for vacations 3,860,262 2,594,446
Provision for Directors’ fees 645,995 563,955
Advances to personnel {30,000) -
Total payroll and social security contributions 11,371,727 17,092,825
Note 22. Accounts Payable
Mon current Notes Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Repair fund 1,635,983 2,109,143
Subtotal accounts payable — Non-current 1,635,983 2,109,143
Current
Suppliers in local currency 12,493,763 13,788,200
Suppliers in foreign currency 37 6,432,901 552,769
Deferred checks 35,101,592 24,489,452
Provision for expenses in focal currency 5,335,364 983,922
Provision for expenses in foreign Currency - -
Proviston for works in local currency 23,582,117 12,420,785
Provision for works in foreign currency 37 469,245 -
Insurance policies payable in tocal currency 6,257 43,744
tnsurance policies payable in foreign currency 37 1.477,837 1,424,833
Repair fund in Jocal currency 15,518,564 2,550,848
Repair fund in foreign currency 37 260,225 -
Creditors for purchase of real property in foreign currency 37 246,212,221 205,964,067
Subtotal accounts payable ~ Current P2, 386,100 347,890,086 262,268,621
Total accounts payahle 7.540,996. 349,526,069 264,377,764
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Nota 23. Provisions and allowances

Onerous
legal claims  contracts

Metes {8 £ Dec3i, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
in focal currency
Balance as of January 1, 2017 2,777,730 - -
Additions {111} 45,726,321 2,777,730 -
Recaveries {1} - - -
Used during the period {1,596,204) - -
Subtotal in local currency 46,907,851 2,777,730 -
In foreign currency :
Balance as of January 1, 2017 -~ 4,861,546 B -
Additions {1 - - 4,861,546 -
Recaveries (11} - - - -
Used during the period - {5,565,896) - -
ffiects of foreign currency variation - 1,077,330 -
Subtotal in foreign currency 37 - 372,980 4,861,546 -
Total Provisions 46,907,851 372,980 7,639,276 -

)
(v}
v}

“Contractual agreements”,

They relate to provisions for judicial proceedings.

Note 24, Share Capital

They relate to provisions for liabilities under contractuat obligations.
Additions and recoveries are disciosed In the statement of profit or loss under item “Administrative expenses”, line

The Company’s issued, subscribed and paid-in capital is structured as follows:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

Fully paid-in comman shares 70,349,485 70,349,485
Taotal fully paid-in common shares 70,349,485 70,349,485
The distribution of the Company’s share capital is detailed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
Mote 25, Revenue from ordinary activities

Dec 33, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Revenue from delivery of goods 237,568,414 292,166,025
Revenue from services rendered 17,709,091 12,699,100
Total revenue from ordinary activities 255,277,505 304,865,125
Note 26. Cost of ordinary activities

Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2015
Finishad units at beginning of the year 90,801,095 -
Phss:
Lost capitalized during the year 287,196,307 346,580,652
Cost of services rendered 3,636,818 2,669,620
less:
Finished units at year-eng {138,174,130} {94,901,085)
Total cost of ordinary activities 253,560,690 258,349,177
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farmnynd T fanaond

Note 27. Selling expenses

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015

Safaries and soclal security contributions 8,953,407 8,069,634
Other payroll expenses 388,624 295,438
Rentz! fees and building maintenance fees 1,044,124 601,434
Professionat fees 1,746,957 1,392,000
Taxes, rates and contributions 16,431,216 1,366,303
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 697,727 1,360,157
Transport and per diem 586,024 203,986
Infarmation technology and service axpenses 927,131 555,264
Sales expenses 18,468,585 3,168,306
Advertising expenses 9,075,103 8,197,378
Office expanses 376,800 293,525
Buifding management fees 5,649,910 2,046,407
Post sales expenses 3,413,062 -
insurances 136,574 -
Contractual agresments 7,908,250 -
General expenses 1,663 47,064
Total selling expenses 80,809,197 27,596,896

Note 28. Administrative expenses

Dec3i, 2016 Dec31,2015
54,220,042 45,228,775

Salaries and social security comtributions

Other payroll expenses 1,594,502 1,259,499
Rent and building maintenance fees 4,176,489 2,564,007
Professional fees 10,114,742 5,779,108
Girectors' fees 2,928,265 2,255,820
Supervisary audit committee’s fees 1,015,800 690,210
Taxes, rates and contributions 512,963 346,123
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 514,022 433,606
Transport and per diem 2,320,114 B63,625
information technology and services expenses 3,711,595 2,367,176
Public offering expenses 1,965,157 927,660
Office expenses 1,637,945 1,251,343
Investment property maintenance expenses 2,145,655 -
Bank expenses 1,447,033 1,578,148
Tax on bank account debits and credits 8,557,261 5,671,323
{Other bad debts 3,74837N 56,778
Insurance 1,744,825 980,670
Contractual agreements - 35,975

Total administrative expenses

103,358,596 72,306,846

Mote 29, Financial results
De¢ 31, 2016 fiec 31, 2015

Exchange differences
Exchange gains 59,757,057 53,323,302
Exchange fosses {66,938, 471) [54,918,552)

Total exchange gains/losses {7,181,414) {3,595,260)

Financial income

Interest 8,409,101 3,053,070
Present value of ¢redits - -
Gain from holding of short term investments 1,403,279 2,209,418
Gain from sale of short-term investments - 2,201,915
Gain from financial instruments - 4,824,200

Total financial income 10,812,380 12,288,603
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Note 29. Financial results

Financial costs

Interest {51,866,141) {27,704,658}
Lass from finangial instruments {1,179,702} -
Subtotal Interest {53,045,843}) {27,704,658)
Other financial costs
Loss from sale of short-term investroents {225,724} -
‘Presant value of credits 66,685 -
Logs from discounted trade documents - -
Subtotal other financial costs {159,039} -
Total financial costs {43,204,882) {27,704,658)
Note 30. Other income and expenses, net

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 3%, 2015
Expense refund 201,181 18,300
Other legal expenses {29,600) {1,100,000)
Debt forgiveness - {697,493)
Rental income 4,752,087 -
Recovery of provision for expenses 5,637,995 -
Contract termination 765,939 30,745
Contract assipnment - (77,586}
Sundry 3,187,35¢ {71,529)
Total other income and expenses, net 14,518,992 {1,897,563)

Note 31. Income tax and deferred tax

income tax assessed in accordance with 1AS 12, which s includad in the statement of prefit or toss as of December 31, 2017, 2016

and 2015, is broken down as follows:

Dec 31, 2016 De¢ 31, 2015
Income tax {20,593,981} 67,607,695
Daferred tax from temporary differences 16,526,078 (47,631,201)
Minimum Presumed income fax write-off {474,686) -
Total Income tax {4,542,589) 19,476,494

Deferred tax as of fiscal year-end has been determined on the basks of the temporary differences between accounting and tax-related

measurements. Deferred taxr assets and fiabilities at each fiscai year-end are broken down as follows:

peferred tax sssets Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Tax toss from nstlonal sosrce income 160,517,387 181,111,368
Property, plant and equipment 2,293,593 1,852,151
Finance lease valuation 11,962 -
Deferred income 23,667,776 -
Sundry provistons 5,363,592 -
Subtotal deferred tax assets 191,254,310 183,063,519
Defarred tax Habliities

Financial costs {34,884,377)  (30,240,803)
Inveminries {41,721,118) (2,667,400)
Short-term investments {685,632) {748,399)
Bad debts {402,307} -
Foreign currency {72,867,255) (123,414,455}
Convertible carporate bonds - -
Investment property {19,631,224) -
Subtotal Defesred tax Habilities {170,191,913) (157,071,157}
Net position of deferred tax assets/{liabliitles} #1,062,397 25,992,362
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY
)

famounty states s Arpenting

Note 31. Income tax and deferred tax {continued)

The reconcitiation between the income tax expense for the year and that resulting from applying the prevailing tax rate to income
before tax is as follows:

Dec 31, 2016  Dec3l, 2015
{3,261,705) 30,056,904

Income tax calculated at the prevailing tax rate on income before taxes

Minimum Presumed Income tax write-off {474,687} {10,776)
income tax {oss carryforward write-off (59,273,303} {3,348,326)
Understated provision for income tax 10,527 -
Iriterest {2,452,397) (1,459,380}
Directors’ fees {1,003,016) (767,662}
Gainffoss on investments in associates 54,109,543 3,345,808

Translation difference
inventories

5,808,728 {7,288,241)
4,192,150 -

Amartization of trademarks {454) {494)
Tax reform law Na, 27430 - -
Donations - {12,591}
Convertible corporate bands - -
Sundry non-deductible expenses {2,197,935} {538,749)

4 -
Income tax 50023 {4,542,580} 19,976,494

Tax losses cesulting from national source intome, and accumulated as of December 31, 2017, may be used up to the dates indicated
helow:

Pasos

Year
2012
2020
2621
2022
Total

01397883

The Company estimates #s taxable income to determine the use of its deferred tax assets within five years, in accordance with
Argentine Incame Tax Jaws, which represent the basis for the recognition of deferred tex assets. Tha recoverability of any remalning
tax tosses wilf depend on timely compliance with the delivery of units in ASN, MPN and AST projects.
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[arndunts shatea in Argeating pasha)

Note 32. Related parties

4}  The balances with Campanies under section 33 - taw No. 19550 and other related parties, ciassified according to the

nature of the transaction, are as follows:

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES — Non current Notes Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
OTHER RECEIVABLES

FOB S.A. in forgign currency Lo 37 - 38,634,491
TGLT Uruguay $.A. in foreign currency Tan 37 - 52,027,319
Subtotal - 20,661,810
Totaf Recaivables from related parties — Non current - 90,661,810
RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES - Current

RECEIVABLES FROM SALES

AGL Capital 5.A. in focal eurrency 258,986 2,246,592
AGL Capital S.A. in foreign currency 37 - -
Marina Rio Lujdn S.A. 250 351,715
FDB 5.A. in local currency 2,617,151 1,066,641
FOB S.A. in foreign currency i - -
Individual shareholders 90,367 74,056
Subtotal 2,966,754 3,739,004
OTHER RECEIVABLES

individual sharehoiders 4,505,432 2,130,741
Other shareholders 3,543,512 3,435,061
Canfot 5.4, - 15,562,594
Marina ®io Lujan S.A, in locai currency 2,291,549 9,657,44%
FDBS.A, inlocat currency 455,100 211,751
Marina Rig Lujan S.A. in foreign currency 28,060,043 -
FOB 5.A. in forelgn currency 44,154,563 -
TGLT Uruguay 5.A. in foreign cureency 108,523,181 -
Subtotal 194,533,380 31,001,556
Total Receivahles from related parties —Current 197,500,134 34,740,600
Total Receivables from refated parties 197,500,134 125,402,410
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Note 32. Related parties (continued)

PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES — Non current fNates Deg 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
LOANS

Canfot $.A. - 18,474,042
Canfot $.A. in foreign currency 17 - 42,613,749
Sitia 3.A. in fareign currency 3 2,582,930 -
Subtotal 2,592,930 51,087,791
OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYASLE ~ INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

TGLT Uruguay S.A. 91,288,673 65,104,509
Subtotal

91,288,673 66,104,509
93,881,603 127,192,300

Total payables to related parties — Non current

PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES ~ Current

TRADE PAYABLES

IRSA inversionss y Representaciones §.A. - 35,418,354
Subtotal - 35,418,359
CUSTOMER ADVANCES

Alto Palerme 5.4, - 236,645,106
IRSA inversiones y Representaciones S.A. - 60,287,550
Directors 3,129,738 504,152
Comisiones y Corretaje S.A. 22,504,620 -
Subtotal 25,634,359 297,436,848
OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Canfotr 5.A. - 29,645
Marina Rio Lujén 5.4, 2,691,509 -
Canfot S.A. in foraign currency 37 - 6,202,483
FBB 5.A. in foreign currency 33 91,901,557 55,385,230
Subtotal 94,593,066 61,617,358

Total payables te related parties — Current
Total payables to related parties

120,227,425 394,472,560
214,109,028 521,664,860
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Note 32. Related parties (continued)

b} The mast significant transactions with Companies under section 33 - Law No. 19,550 and other refated parties were as follows:

- Transactions and their effects on cash flow

Name of refated party Transaction De¢ 31,2016 Dec3l, 2015
FDBS.A. Loans granted {38,756,800) (6,670,282}
tiarina Rio Lujdn S.A. Loans granted {24,195,000) .
TGLT Uruguay S.A Loans granted - {40,267,0000
Canfot 5.4, Loans granted - {18,250,060)
Canfot S.A. {eans received 42,547,188 53,222,637
Sitia S.A. Loans received 2,441,480 -
Individual sharehelders Loans received - -
AGL Capital 5.A. Colections received 2,246,792 757,596
Canfot 5.4, Collectlons received 3,057,142 25,545,321
Comisiones y Corretajes S.A, Collections received 22,504,620 -
Senior Directors and Managers Collactions received 2,901,028 3,315,338
FDB S.A Collections received 26,230,033 76,374,617
Marina Rio Lufan 5.A, Collections received 991,846 1,835,684
TGLT Uruguay 5.4 Caltections recelved 240,175 -
intividuat shareholders Collections received - 39,774
Individual shareholders Payments made {208,827} {117,696}
Canfot 5.A. Payments made (86,921,287} (13,590,619}
FDBS.A Paymants made {4,391,748)  (36,279,432)
AGL Capital S.A. Payments made - -
Marina Rio Lujén 5.A. Payments made - {52,067)
Other shareholders Payments made {253,451} {125,153}
Sitia S.A. Payments made - {75,000}
Comisiones y Corretajes 5.A. Payments made - -
Canfot 5.A. Payments made by third parties - (10,285)
Marina Rio Lujén S.A. Assignment of units to thicd parties 14,378,986 6,400,459
Marina Rio Lujan S.4. Advances from assignment of units {7,065,153}  (16,005,841)
Sitia 5.A. {iquidation compensation - -
Canfot S.A, Advances from purchase of units {18,457,450) -
Total {62,715,516) 36,049,452
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Note 32, Related parties (continued)

- Transactions and their etfects on profit/ioss

Profit/iLoss)
Name of related party Transaction De¢ 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Alto Palermo 5.4, Icome from ordinary activitias 29,292,123 -
Directors income from ordinary activities - 3,312,687
AGL Capital 5.A. Services provided 258,986 262,511
FDBS.A. Services provided 1,691,220 1,000,704
Marina Rio Lujan §.A. Services provided 454,817 1,673,698
Canfot 5.4, Sarvices provided 1,139,280 1,440,000
Canfot 5.4, Financial results {8,743,30%) {8,036,625)
FDBS.A. Financial resuits {4,055,371} 16,561,773
Individual shareholders Finantial results 16,311 26,552
Marina Rio Lujdn S.A. Financial results 3,615,854 -
TGLT Uruguay 5.A. Finaneial results 17,979,237 11,764,319
Sitiz S.A. Financial resuits {171,608} -
AGL Capital 5.A. Financial results - -
Comisiones y Corretajes S.A. Financial results . -
Comisiones y Corretajes 5.4, Commissions - -
Senicr Directors and Managers Incame from: units delivered - -
Other sharehalders Bad dabts (733,887) -
Diractors Fees 12,928,265) {2,255,820)
Total 6,969,352 37,815,434 25,745,795
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Note 32. Related parties (continued)

1. Loans granted

Amounts pending paymant in pesos

Batances in forelgn currency

De¢ 31,2017 Dec 31, 2016

Dec 31, 2015

Credit Disburseme Annual Nen Nan current
Bank line frincipal Matarity nt rate Current cuarrent  {urrent

FORS.A 01-2016 20,000,000 12/31/2017 2,547,600 8% 49,154,563 - - 38,834,481
TELT Uruguay 5.A. 01-2015 20,000,000 12/31/2017 12,010,000 8% 108,523,181 - - 52,027,319
Marinz RioLujén S.A.  01-2016 2,000,000 12/31/2017 1,349,382 15% 28,060,043 - - -
Marina Rio Lujgn S.A.  01-2016 2,000,000  07/14/2017 650,618 15% - - -
Marina Rio Lajdn S.A.  01-3017 1,000,000 03/31/2018 95,402 15% - - - -
Martna Rio Lujdn 5.4, 012017 1,000000  03/31/2018 878,724 15% - - “ -
Marina Rip Lufdn S.A. 022017 2,000,000  D5/04/2018 929,793 15% - - -
Moarina Rio Lujén S.A.  02-2017 2,000,000 O0B/08/2018 367,286  15% - - - -
Maring Rio Lujdn 5.4, 022017 2,000,000 06/29/2008 426,829 15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujan S.A.  02-2017 2,000,000  08/14/2018 276,083 15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujdn $.A.  03-2017 5,000,000 09/04/2018 77,930 15% - - -
Maring Rio Lujén S84, 03-2017 5,000,600  10/03/2018 635,287  15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujén S.A.  03-20017 5,000,600 11/03/2018 §61,079  15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujn .4, 032017 5,000,000 12/04/2018 869,819 15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujdn 5.4, 04-2017 5,000,000 10/26/2018 258,769 15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujdn S.A.  04-2017 5,000,000  11/08/2018 130,768 15% - - - -
Marina Rig tujdn 5.4, 04-2017 5,000,000  11/13/2018 229,951 15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujdn S.A.  (04-2017 5,000,000  11/29/2018 173,762 15% - - -
Marina Rio Lujén 5.A.  04-2017 5,000,000 12/15/2013 201,729  15% - - - -
Marina Rio Lujdn S.A.  04-2007 5,000,000  12/23/2018 196,024  15% - - - -

Tota) loans granted 185,737,787 - - 90,661,810

2. Loans received

On August 1, 2016, the Company and Sitia S.A. entered into a Current Account Agreement, where the partias grant credit
lines to each other. The amaunts agreed under this contract are: (aj up to $ 10,000,000 {the "Pesos Line") and {b} up to

1J5 $ 1,000,000 {the "Doliars Ling"), in hoth cases as principal.

As of December 31, 2017, no amounts remained outstanding as all pending batances were offset during the liquidation of

Sitia S.A. {See Note 34.3 of the consolidated financial statements}.

A3 of December 31, 2016, the sulstanding halance (principal phss interest) for the loan in dollars amounted ta § 2,582,930,
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Note 33. Receivables, tax assets and payables broken down by maturity and

interest rates

a) Receivables, tox assets and pavables hroken down by maturity:

Receivables/Tax assets

Dec3l, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
To become due
Upto3 months 71,723,459 8,027,404
From 2 to 6 months 6,103,938 21,911,141
From 6 to 9 months 5,874,604 8721
From 9 to 12 months 184,127,180 585,239
Qver 12 months 110,227,898 148,043,161
Without any established term 43,069,268 93,017,113
Past due
From 3 to 6 months - -
Dver 12 months 18,200 18,200
431,144,548 273,610,979
Payahles {except for customer advances to third and related parties)
Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
To become due
Up to 3 months 184,939,505 120,040,674
From 3 to 6 months 89,326,139 137,021,742
From 6 to 9 months 96,453,495 11,531,784
from 9 to 12 months 28,034,429 2,500,000
Over 12 months 270,727,316 234,963,123
Without any astablished term 356,837,170 331,884,125
Past due
Up to 3 months 7,605,926 578,706
From 3 to & months - 141,928
From 6 to 9 months - 139,787
,033,923,080 838,401,869
k) Interest and non-interest bearing receivable, tax assat and payable halances are detailed below:
Receivables/Tax assets Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
interest bearing 176,846,912 89,901,944
Nan-interest bearing 254,297,636 181,709,035
431,144,548 271,610,979
Annual nominal average rate: 15% 5%
Payables {except for customer advances to third and related parties)
Interest bearing 302,053,231 311,646,086
Non-interest bearing 731,830,749 526,755,783
1.033,923,980 838,401,869
Annual nominal average rate: 28% 25%
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Nota 34. Accounting policy used by the Company to recognize and measure the
issuance of convertible corporate bonds

On Aprit 28, 2017, the Annual and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting approved the issuance of corporate bonds convertible into
book-entry, comman shares, of $1 of nominal value, and carrying one vote each. Such shares of stock will he entitled to receive
dividends in the same conditions as any other shares of comman stock currently outstanding, as from the fiscal year in which the
comversion right Is sxercised, and up to an aggregate amount of USD 150,000,000

TGLT launched a domestic public offering exclusively addressed 1o “quatifled investors” in Argenting, as defined in Section No 12,
Article i, Chapter VI of the CNV Rules, acting through & Local Placement Agent. The Company afso launched an International offering,
not registered in the United States of America, acting through an International Placement Agent, who would serve as the Compaty’s
broker dealer. The internationat offering would be addressed to: {a) accredited investors in the United States of America, pursuant
to the exemption from registration requirements under Regulation D of the U .S, Securities Act; and (b} non-US persons in transactions
otitside the United States of America, pursuant to the exemption from registration requirements under Regulation D of the U.S.
Securities Act.

The following is a summary of the main characteristics of the instrument:

*  Total amount offered: US$ 156,000,000,

» Issue currency: United States Dollars,

= Subscription and payment currency: United States Dollars.

= Right of first refusal: According to Section 11 of the Corporate Bonds Law, shareholders with rights of first refusat or
accretion in the subscription of new common shares {the “existing shareholders”) may exercise such rights when
suhseribing Convertible Corporate Bonds, during the first ten calendar days of the subscription perjod, which took place
between july 15 and July 25, 2017, Pursuant to the provisions of Section No. 194 of the Companies Law, the Company
offered Convertible Corporate Bonds to its sharehelders by publishing notices for three days in the Argentine Official
Gazette and in a leading newspaper before the subscription period. On the first business day of the subscription period,
Caja de Valores 5.A., acting as the subscription agent appointed by the Company, recorded the coupons representing the
rights of first refusal and accretion related to the holdings of each of the Company’s shareholders, as well as the
Convertible Corporate Bonds issuance, in the Company’s shareholders register {in case of holdings appearing thereis} or
in the cilent’s account of the relevant depository agents in Caja de Valares S.A. {in case of haldings under a collective
deposit system). The existing sharehotders could trade and dispose of, and assign and/er transfer such coupons in
accorgance with the practices of the subseription agent.

= Voluntary conversion: At the holder’s option, Convertible Corporate Bonds may be converted into new common shares
at any time as from the date of issuance, but always before the maturity date, and for an amount not lower than &
minimum denomination equal to USS 1,000, in fult or in part. Howaver, if any amount of pringipal, interest, additional
amounts, or other amouats owned under the Convertible Corporate Bonds remain outstanding after the maturity date,
suth conversion right shall be extended untii such amounts are paid in full,

= Mandatory Conversion: Should the Company make an initial public offering or IPO in 2 U.S, stock exchange or market,
Convertible Corporate Bonds shaf! be automaticatly cosiverted inte new common shares or into ADRs (at the holder’s
option), at the conversion price, adjusted as necessary at the IPQ's closing date.

«  Conversion price: By a “supplementary notice” published on fuly 11, 2017, the Company Informed Investors that the
conversion price of the Canvertible Corporate Bonds is USS 0.50, Therefore, and according to the provisions in the Offering
Memorandum, if bondholders decide to convert their Convertible Corporate Bonds inte new comman shares of the Issuer,
each halder wili have the right te receive 2,000 new common shares for every USS 1,000 of Convertible Corporate Bonds
{nominat value).
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Note 34. Accounting policy used by the Company to recognize and measure the
issuance of convertible corporate bonds

*  Conversion right: At the bondholders option, Convertible Corporate Bonds (or any portion thereof) may be converted
inta shares of common stock with a nominal vaiue of 51 each, carrying the right to one vote each, at any time as from the

date of issuance; as long as they are converted before their maturity date and for amounts not lower than their mininim
denomination.

After assessing the features of convertible corporate bonds, the Company applied the mechanisms provided for in 1AS 32 and 1AS 29
for the recognition and recording of the Hiability and equity componants of this instrument.

Far purposes of its initial fecognition, the Company classified each of the parts making up the instrument in accordance with the

economic nature of the instrument, and with the definitions of financtal iabifities and equity instruments, which are set forth in 1A3
32 Financia} instruments, Namely:

*  The liability compenent {loan) meets the definition of financial #ability as It creates the contractuat ohligation to deliver
cash, which is assumed by the Company.
*  The equity component [option to canvert into shares) meets the definition of equity, as:
- W5 an instrument that can be settled with equity instruments swned by the Company,
- Itis & derivative which regresents for its holder an aption to acquire a specific number of equity instruments owned by
the Company for a fixed amount in any currency.
- The Company offered the rights arising fram the Implied options pro rata to aff its existing sharehotders, in accordance

with the rights of first refusal and of accession, as defined by the Companies Law and the regulatery framework of the
Chv,

The determination of the conversion option vaiue calls for the determination of variables arising from the behavior of TGLT's shares.
Due 16 the low liquidity levels thereof, any conclusion as to the option value may be unreliable, Therefore, Management believes it
is more reliable to measure the equity component as the residuzl amapunt obtained after deducting, from the fair value of the
combined instrument, the amount determined separately for the financial liability measured at its fair value.

Once the value of both componants was determined as above mentioned, the liability component was recorded according to the
guidelines of 1AS 39 in item “Loans” {Nate 19) in a totat amount of USS 93,929,509 (net of related expenses), which are equivalent
to § 1,658,734,424. The equity compenent was recorded in item “Capitat Contribution” in a total amount of US$ 54,158,649 {net of
refated expenses) equivalent to $ 857,983,330, following the guidelines of IAS 32, as set forth by [AS 38 for this type of components
and in accordance with the provisions of the Regulatory framework of the CNV,

In addition, as of December 31, 2017, the Company disclosed, in the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the impact of
the amendments introduced by the Tax Reform Law No. 27430, As per such amendments, the income tax rate applicable to fiscal
years beginning as from January 1, 2018, and up to December 31, 2019, was reduced from 35% to 30%, and to 25% as from 2020.
Such reduced tax rate affected the net deferred tax refated to Corporate Bonds as of Dacember 31, 2017, generating income in the
amount of $ 47,849,166, which was induded in line “Tax Reform Law No. 27430%, as per 1AS 12 “Income Tax” and SI1C-25 — “Income
Taxes — Changes in the Tax Status of an Enterprise or its Shareholders”.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, TGLT has vsed the funds obtained in an apgregate amount of IS0 50,4
mitfion, as follows: {i) issue expenses: UsD 1.9 million; (i) werking capital USD 29.8 million; (iii} discharge of financial deht: USD 12.5
adllion; and {iv) new investments: USD 6.2 million.

Mote 35. Lawsuits

See Note 33 of the consofidated financiat statements.
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Note 36. Astor Caballito - Agreement to annul previous contractual obligation

On lune 29, 2011, the Company and IRSA Inversiones y Representaciones 5.A. {hereinafter IRSA) entered into a barter and
conveyance of title deed, whereby IRSA transferred to TGLT §.A. title to some premises located at Mendez de Andes street, between
Rojas and Colpayo streets, in the neighborhood of Caballito, The company would use such premises to develop a real estate praject
catled "Astor Caballita®,

On November 38, 2015, the Company was notified of the decision of the first instance court sustaining a complaint filed by the
Association of Neighbors, This decision was appealed by TGLT and the Government of the City of Buenos Alres {GCBA) on December
3 and-4, 2015, respectively, Both remedies were granted. The case was submitted to the Court of Appeals in Administrative Matters
of the City of Buenos Aires and was filed In Panel #ll of that Court. On May 26, 2016, Panel Ili of the Court decided to reject the
appeals filed by the GCBA and TGLT, confirming the decision of the First Instance Court. On June 16, 20186, TGLY filed @ motion for
declaration of unconstitutionality against the final judgment, and so did the GCBA on lune 15, 2016. These remedies are pending
resolution by the Court of Appeals, which shalt decide on the case.

Likewise, in view of the aforementioned situation and the time elapsed, on December 30, 2016 IRSA and TGLT slgred an agreement
establishing the execution of a deed to annut the barter provided certain conditions are met. If s, IRSA will pay the Caompany, as
compensation, the suny of USS 3,300,000, as follows:

al  Fhe sums of USS 300,000 at the execution of the deed.

b}  The sum of US$ 2,000,000 18 months after the execution thereof,

¢} The sum of 1S$ 1,000,000 18 months after the exacution of the deed or once TGLT complias with the obiigations arising
from the barter signed on Dacember 15, 2010.

In addition, at the execution of the deed to annul the barter, TGLT shall return the property and IRSA shall receive it free of liens and
encumbrances, and TGLT will have the right ta record the amounts described above.

As of the date of these financial statements, the deed to annui the barter has not been signed yet, and it will be executed within z
period of 80 working days from the date TGLT notifies the termination of the obiigations still in force, which shall be fulfilted within
12 months after signing the agreement.

The costs ingurred in the premises as of the date of the agreement were reclassified to "Other assets” in the amount of § 75,191,027,
Such costs include the historical cost of the purchase of the land, plus the costs incurred in the construction untit the suspension
therest. Such asset is net of the Company's liabifity in kind with IRSA, in an amount of $ 51,747,468, As of the date of these financiat
statements, there is no other monetary obilgation to be paid by TGLY, except for the costs of fand maintenance which as of December
31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 amount to § 26,443,545 and $ 24.779.680, respectively.
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Note 37. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency

Deg 31, 2017 Dec31,2016  Dec 31,2015
Type and amount of Recorded Recorded Recorded
foreign currency Prevailing amount amount amount
item Exchange in pesos in pesos inpesos
Tate
ASSETS
Ken- current assets
Other receivables:
Security deposits Uss 47,600 18,549 882,932 710,550 -
Receivables from related parties
Other receivables LSS - 18,549 - - 90,661,810
Total non-current assets §82,932 710,550 90,661,810
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash 3554 35,539 18,595 659,220 3,158,000 -
Banks Us3 518,666 18,5449 9,639,282 2,370,377 1,396,048
Time deposits RS 200,223 18,649 3,733,957 3,179,694 2,584,383
Mutuaf funds LEs 37,355,454 18,549 692,980,510 3,947,492 6,051,016
Bonds and government securities 185 52,606,146 18,543 975,791,359 - 5,046,600
Accounts receivable from sales;
Receivables from services rendered uss 472 18,549 8,758 6,048 4,956
Receivables fram sale of units 933 182,122 12,539 3,373,185 8,885,068 -
Other receivables:
Advance payments for the purchase 154 - - - 19,410,000
of real proparty 14,549
Raceivables from sale of investrment LIsE
property 1.044778 14,549 19,379,607 28,541,402 -
Prepaid insurance LI5s 28,836 12,559 524,874 732,872 744,123
Advance payments to work suppllers Hss 203 18,549 3,773 121,637 388,200
Security deposits Uss - 18,549 - - 582,300
Collectible eguipment fund US4 60,263 18,544 1,117,816 3,724,803 -
Coliectible uparative fund LS5 270 12,549 5,008 - -
Receivables from related parties;
Receivables from sales 53 103,358 18,549 1,917,182 90,367 74,056
Qther recalvables 1454 27,311,541 18.549 506,601,783 185,737,787 -
Totat current assets Z,215,751,354 241,495,675 36,281,682
Total assots 2,216,634,286 242,206,235 126,943,492
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Note 37. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency (continued)

Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31,2016 Der 31, 2015
Type and amount of Recorded  Recorded amount Recorded
foreign currency Prevailing amaount in pesos amount
ftem Exchange inpesos in pesos
rate
LIABRITIES
Non-current Habilities
Payables with related parties:

Loans Uss - 18,630 - 2,592,930 42,613,749
Other gecounts payable:

Payable for purchase of shares Uss 1200000 38,849 22,378,800 46,081,000 46,944,000

Seturity deposit 155 6,900 18,639 128578 400,428 -

Sungiry creditors RS - 18,649 - 1,687,321 -
Loans:

Corporate Bonds LI5S 83,383,524 18,644 1,666,920,793 - -
ot non-current liabilities 1,689,428,271 50,761,673 84,557,749
Current liabilities
Trade payables:

Supplers Uss 135,000 15,649 2,517,608 6,432,901 582,769

Provision for works 5% 53,491 18,649 997,552 469,245 -

Provision for expenses 155 112,300 2,094,283 - -

insurance payable 55 2,678 18,649 49,851 1,477,837 1,424,833

Contingency fund 1554 16,377 18,648 305,408 260,225 -

Creditors for sale of real property LS 15,494,791 18,649 288,962,361 246,212,220 205,964 067
Loans:

Corporate bonds LI5S 11,283,001 18,649 210,416,684 - 27,311,236
QOther tax burdens:

Municipal tax paymeant plan LSS - 18,649 - 10,129,436 -
Payables to related parties:

Loans 55 - TEBAG

Other payables 5s 5,758,632 18,649 147,392,729 91,801,557 £1,587.712
Provisions {iss 20,000 15,649 372,980 4,861,546 -
Other payables:

Payate for purchase of shares 55 1,200,008 18,649 22,378,810 34,958,005 9,128,007

Suntry creditors Uss 447,324 18,649 8,340,278 8,642,100 2,584,383
Total current Hahilities 543,828,634 485,345,077 308,593,008
Total Habilities 2,333,256,915 456,306,756 398,150,757

Note 38, Assets held for sale

After conducting 2 prefitability analysis an the Metra Devoto project, the Company’s Management decided not to continue with the
development of such project, and to sefl the plot of land acquired. Consequently, the value of the plot of land acquired plus the costs
incurred as of December 31, 2017, for a total amount of § 73,330,556, were reclassified as “Assets held for sale” in current assets,
as thay are expected to be realized in 2018, As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, all contracts entered into with

clients had been successfully terminated.
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Note 39. Resolutions at Shareholders’ Meetings

At the Extracrdinary General Shareholders' Meeting hefd on Aprii 14, 2016, shareholders approved & capital increase by
means of the issuance of new shares of the Company to be placed by public offering in Argenting and/or abroad,
considering the current context of the Company and the capital markets. The increase was approved for up to a nominal
value of § 345,000,000, that is, from $ 70,345,485 to up to 5 415,345,485, through the issuance of up te 345,000,000 book-
entry commaon shares, of $2 {one peso} of nominal value sach and one vote per share, with right to dividends on equal
terms as the rest of the shares outstanding at the time of issuance and with a stock premium of $ 13 minimum and $ 24
maximum per share. These shares shail be offered in a pubfic bid in Argentina and/or abroad. Therefore, the subscription
price of the new shares, that is, the nominal value of each share plus the relevant stock premsium, shall be determined by
the Board of Directors or by an officer of the Company authorized by the Boarg of Directors, within the stock premium
range indicated above.

As a3 result of this capital increase, shareholders resolved to shorten the term to exercise their right of first refusal and
accretion with respect to the subscription of the new shares to ten calendar days, in accordance with the pravisions of
sectien 194 of the Companies Law for companies offering thelr shares publicly.

The Extracrdinary Sharehotders' Meeting also resclved to amend the following sections of the Bylaws in order to adapt it
to the Company’s new development and growth plan, as detailed in the Reporting Summary: Section Four Furpase), Five
{Capital}, Saven (Management and Representation), Nine [Powers of the Board of Directors}, Ter (Supervisory Committea},
Elaven (Shareholders’ Meetings), Twelve (Audit Committes), Thirteen {Eiscal Year End), and Fourteen {Dissolution and
Liguidation},

These amendments were registered on August 9, 2016 before the Superintendence of Corporatians.

On Aprit 20, 2017, the Annisal and Extracrdinary Shareholders’ Meeting approved, among other matters: {i) to increase
capital as detailad in the first paragraph; {ii) to extend the term of the Globat Program for the issuarnice of Corporate Bonds
for a maximum outstanding amount of up to Us$ 50,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies) for a S-year term; (i}
to issue corporate bands convertible into hook-entry common shares, with a nominat value of § 1 {onae peso) each and
one vote per share, and with dividend sights on equal terms as commaon shares currently outstanding as fram the fiscat
year in which the conversion right is exercised, for up to a total amount of USS 150,000,000 or its equivalent in other
currencies, in one or more serles; {iv) to reduce the term to exercise the right of first refusal and accretion for the
subscription of the Convertible Bonds to ten calendar days, in accordance with the provisions of section 194 of the
Companies Law No. 19530; (v} to modify and approve the parameters within which the Board of Directors shalf set stock
premium within a range of 5 13 minkmum and 4 35 maximum per share,

it was decided to approve the aflocation of profits of 5 4,776,567 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 to the
setting up of a legat reserve for $ 238,528, and an optional reserve of § 4,537,739, The item “Other comprehensive
income/{loss)" was not considered, since as fong s it exists and presents negative balances, profits shoudd be allocated to
a reserve that supports losses,
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NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017, PRESENTED COMPARATIVELY

famons stated i Argesting pesos)

Note 40. CNV General Resolution No. 622

In order to coraply with the provisions of section 1, TRle IV, Chapter 18 of General Resolution No. 622 of the CNV, the notes to the
Stand-alone Financial Statements describe the information requested by that Resolution in the form of Exhibits.

£xhibit A - Property, plant and equipment Note 5

Exhibit 8 -intangible assets Note &

Exhibit € - Investments in shargs Note §

Exhibit b - Other investraents Not applicable
Exhiblt E - Allowances and provisions Note 23

Exhibit F - Cost of products sold Note 25

Exhibit & - Assets and fabilities in foreign currency Mote 37

£xhibit H - Ordinary sefling, administrative and financing expenses Notes 27, 28 and 29

Note 41, Amendment of Corporate Bylaws

Ail amendments to the Bylaws have been described in Note 39 to these stand-atone financial statements, Those amendments have
been registered with the 1G) on August 9, 2016,

Note 42. Subsequent events

See Note 55 to the consoiidated financial statements.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUESTED BY SECTION No. 68
OF THE RULES OF THE BUENOS AIRES STOCK EXCHANGE

g0 i Arpaotine g

1. There are no specific and significant legal systems that invaive contingent reestablishments or efimination of benefits that may
adversely affect the Company,

2. There are no significant changes In the activity of the Company as of December 31, 2017,

3. Regarding the classification of receivables and payables balences by maturity, see Note 33 to the stand-alone financial
statements.

4. Regarding the classification of receivables and payables balances en the basls of their financial effects, see Note 33 to the stand-
alone financial statements,

a) A breakdown of investments, receivables and payables in foreign currency as of December 31, 2017, is disclosed in Note 36 to
the stand-alone financial staternents,

b) There are ao assets or liabilities subject to any adjustment clause.

5. Breakdown of the percentage of interest held in companies undes section 33 of Law N * 19550 as of Decembar 31, 2017 {for
further information see Note 4.2 to the consolidated financiaf statements of the Company):

interest
Company As % Capital % Votes
Marina Rio Lujan 5.A. Sharehoider 48,99 % 49.95 %
TGLT Uruguay 5.4, Shareholder 100.00 % 100.00 %
Sitia S.A, Shareholder 100.00% 100,00 9%

A breakdown of the shares of interest held in the capial of the Company is presented in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements of TGLT S.A.

&, There are no trade receivables from or loans grantad to Directors, members of the Supervisory Committee, and their refatives
up to the second degree (included) as of year-end or during the year.

7. As of December 31, 2617, the Company owns five buildings in the City of 8uenos Aires and two itams of real proparty in the
City of Rosario, which were included in the "Inventories” tem for an amouat of § 929,722,920 as non-current, and $347,236,231 as
current.

No provisions related to the aforementioned properties have been recorded, except for the impairments mentioned in Note 4.13t0
the consolidated financial statements

2. Regarding the valuation criteria for inventories, property, plant and equipment, and investments, please refer to Notes 4.13,
4.10 and 4.8 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Y. There is no resetve for technical revaluation of property, plant and eguipment.

1. There are no obsolete property, plant and equipment. The total residual vaiue of property, plant and equipment amounts to
$ 1,286,398
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11. As of Decamnber 31, 2017, the Company held permanent lavestments in the amount of 5259,835,443. As of that date, the
Company had exceeded the limit established by section 31 of Law No. 19550,

I accordance with the provisions of Section 31 of Law No. 19550 {Companies taw}, no company, except those with financial or
investment purposes solely, may take or hold an interest in another or other companies for an amount exteaeding its freely available
reserves and half of its capitat and jegal raserves. Participations, whether in interest, units or shares exceeding said amount must be
disposed of within six months following the date of appraval of the financial statements showing that said limit has been exceeded.,

In accordance with the provisions of the General Resolution of the CNV, for the purpeses of catcufating the fimit established by
Saction 31 of taw No. 19550, anly interest in companies whose corporate purpese doas not complement or include the corporate
purposs of the investing company shall be computed at thelr book value.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company held interests in companies whose carporate purposes complement and/or inctude the
corporate purpese of the Company, so the limit to the interest held in other companies set forth by Section 31 of Law No, 18550
does not apply, based on what is meationed in the preceding paragraph,

12, The proportienal eguity vafue was used to estimate the recoversble value of Investments in associates; while the economic use
value was used for inventories at acquisition and/o7 construction cost, and for property, plant and equipment.

12, insurances

Risk covered Arnount insured
S uss
Building Fire Astor Naifiez building - 55,000,000
Suilding Fire Brisario building 32,955,000 -
Building Fire Astor Palerma building - 62,000,000
Building Fire TGLT Rosario office - 330,000
Building fire Farum Puerto Norte building 46,800,000 -
Building Fire Farum Puerto Norte building - 96,015,000
Building Fire rented buifdings - 2,210,000
Building Fire general contents 19,818,500 -
Buitding Fire general contents - 550,000
Buitding Robhery general contents 62,500 -
Building Robhery general eontents - 57,300
Building Water damages and glass insurance 93,750 -
Building Water damages and plass insurance - 223,100
Buitding Special charges - 15,229,066
Building Ruhble removal - 10,030,163
Facilities Technical nsurance 312,500 -
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13. insurances (continued):

Risk covered Amaount insured
5 Uss
Facilities Technical insurance - 651,714
IT Robbery —mabile equipment and valuables - 56,210
Personal Liability insurance directors & offiters {D&O} - 14,250,000
Personal tiability insurance errors & omissions {E&Q) - 7,125,000
Personat Liability Imsurance employer 2,400,000 -
Personal Directors” bonds 800,000 -
Afi risks construction Physical injury preperty Astor Palermo - 24,060,000
All risks construction Physical injury property astor Nufiez - 300,000
Business overhead expense Project "Metra Puerto Norte” Stage | - 8,700,000
Operations Liabifity insurance - 8,612,078
Operations tiability insurance 10,150,400 -
Mandatory life insurance Employees 3,103,100 -
Guarantee bond Contracts enforcement 260,000 -
Guarantee bond Contracts enforcement - 5,530,001
Guarantee bong {egal claims 11,611,870 -
Guarantee bond Professionat fees 54,475 -
Guarantee bond Rent puarantee - 334,396

14, Provisions exceeding 2% of the Company's equity were recorded at the criteria of the Company’s Management, based on the
opinion of its legal advisors, See Note 23 1o the stand-afene financial statements.

i5. The Company’s Management believes there is no likelihood of occurrence of any contingent situations other than remate, the
effects of which, if significant, have not been accounted for.

16. Mo irrevocable contributions have been received on account of future subscriptions.
17. The Company’s capital stack is represented by shares of common stock only.

12. Pursuant to the Companies Law, the bylaws and General Resolution No. 368/2001 of the CNV, 5% of the profits earned during
the fiscal year shalt be transferred to a tegal reserve untfl said reserve reaches 20% of the equity restated in constant currency.
Furthermore, payment of dividends is restricted as provided for in Note 22 ta the consolidated financial statements,
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INDEPENDENT AUBITOR'S REPORT
(Free translation from the original Report issued in Spaaish for local pusposes, submitted to local Regufator:
Comisitn Nacional de Valores - CNV. Original Report was tailored to address particular objective of financial
statemnents of issuer)

To the President and Board of Directors of
TGLT 5.A.

Legal Address: Av. Scalabrini Ortiz 3333 - Floog 1°
City of Buenos Afres

1. REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the attached consolidated financia! staterments of TGLT $.A. and its subsidiaries {as described in
note 4.2 ro these consvlidated financial statements) which comprise the consolidared balance sheet as of
December 31, 2017, the corresponding statement of operations and of other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash fows for the fscal year then ended and the information included in notes
1t 55.

The amounts and other information corresponding to the fiscal years ending December 31, 2016 and 2015 are an
integral part of the previously mentioned audited financial statements and therefore should be considered in
relation to those financial statements,

2. MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), adopted by the Federacién Argentina de
Conscjos Profesionales de Ciencias Econcémicas (“FACPCE™, as approved by the Inrernational Accounting
Standards Board ("IASB”) as professional accounting standards and incorporated by the Comisidn Nacional da
Valores (CNV) to thelr standards. Additionally, management is responsible for establishing the internal control
necessary to enable preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
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3. AUBITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Ous responsibility is to express an opinion on the attached consolidared fimncial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing which have been adopted in
Argentina by the FACPCE through Technical Resolution N° 32, Those standards require that we comply with
the ethical requirements as well as plan and execute the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free frons materiz]l misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audic evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedores selecred
depend on the anditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of marerdal missrarement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ecror. In making those risk assessment, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the endry’s prcp.lmti(m and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireamstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s inteenal control. An sudit also includes evaluating the approptiateness of accounting
policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial staterments, We beliove that the audiv evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to preside a basis for our audic opinion.

4. OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated fnancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the balance sheet of
TGLT S.A as of December 31, 2017 and its results of operations, the changes in equity and cash flows for the
year then ended in nceordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards,

5. EMPHASIS OF MATTERS DISCLOSED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Without modifving our opinion, we draw attention to the information included in the following notes ro the
consolidated financial statements:

)] Note 29: “Income tax and deferred tax expense” where it is reported that the use of tax credits will
depend on the concration of business projeciions which permit its recoverabiliry;

i) Note 45: “Accounting policy uwsed by the Company to recognize and measure the issuance of
convertible corporate bonds™ where it is reported that the Company chassified & portion of the
funds received as a component of equity; and

i) Note 48: “Deconsolidation of Marina Rio Lujan S.A.”" where it is reported that management does

not consider the control principal to be met and as such, the participation in the entity i reflecred in
the line “Investments in Associates.”

City of Buenos Aires, March 8, 2018.

%&m‘“{w

Adler, Hasenclever & Asociados S.R.1L.
Argentine member firm of Grant Thoraton Intermnational
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Free transhtion from the original Report issued in Spanish for local pusposes, submitted to local Regulator:
Comisidn Nacionat de Valotes — CNV. Original Report was milored to address particular objective of financial
staternents of issuer)

Ta the President and Board of Directors of
TGLT S.A.

Legal Address: Av. Scalabrind Ortiz 3333 - Floor 17
City of Buenns Aires

1. REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have andited the attached stand-alone financial statements of TGLT S.A. which comprise the stand-alone
balanee sheet as of December 31, 2017, the corresponding statement of operations and of other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the fiscal vear then ended and the
information included in notes 1w 42.

The amounts angd other information corresponding to the fiscal years ending Decernber 31, 2016 and 2015 are an
integral part of the previously mentioned audited financial statements and therefore should be considered in
relation to those financial statements,

2. MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenttion of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"), adoped by the Federacion Arpenting de
Consejos Profesionales de Clencias Econdmicas (“FACPCE"}, as approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) as professional accounting standards and meorporated by the Comision Nacional de
Valores (CNV) to their standards. Additonally, management is responsible for establishing the internal control
necessary to enable prepamtion and fair presentaton of financial statements that are free from muterial
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
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3. AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the attached stand-alone financial statements based on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Internationat Standards on Auditing which have been adopted in
Argentina by the FACPCE through Technical Resolution N® 32, Those standards require thar we comply with
the ethical requirements as well as plan and execute the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.  An andir involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosares in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditers judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
staterments, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessment, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s pu.pamrmn and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to dwign audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control. An audir also includes evaluating the appropristeness of accountng
policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial smternents. We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

4. OPINION
In pur opinion, the stand-alene financial staternents present fairdy, in all material respects, the balance sheet of
TGLT S.A as of December 3%, 2017 and its results of operations, the changes in equity and cash flows for the

year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards,

5. EMPHASIS OF MATTERS DISCLOSED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Withour modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the information jncluded in the following notes 1o the
stand--alone fnancial statements:

i} Note 31: “Income tax and deferred fax expense” where it is reported that the use of tax credits will
depend on the concretion of business projections which permit its recoverability; and

ity Nate 34 “Accounting policy used by the Company to recognize and measure the issusnce of

convertible corporate bonds” where it i reported that the Company classified a portion of the
Funds received as a component of equity. -

City of Buenos Aires, March §, 2018.

%{f{%&

Adler, Hasenclever & Asociados S.R.IL.
Argentine member firm of Grant Thowton International



SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S REPORT

To the shareholders of

TGLT §.A.

In our capacity as mermbers of the Supervisory Committes of TGLT 5.A., and according to the provisions of paragraph 5,
Section 284 of taw No. 18550, and the Regutations of the Buenos Aires Stack Exchange, we have examined the documents
detailed in the following section. The preparation and presentation of said docurments is the responsibility of the Board of
Directors in the exercise of its exclusive functions.

- DOCUMENTS SUBJECT TO EXAMINATION

a}  Stand-alone statement of financiat position as of Decembar 31, 2017,

b)  Stand-alone statement af profit or loss and other comprehensive profit or Joss for fiscal year ended
Becember 31, 2017,

¢} Stand-alone statement of changes in shareholders” aquity for fiscal vear ended Decomber 31, 2017,

d}  Stand-alone statement of cash flows for fscal year ended December 31, 2017.

2} Notesto the stand-alone financial statements as of December 31, 2017,

f] Consolidated statement of finandal position as of Decamber 31, 2017.

g) Consulidated statement of profit or Toss and othar comprehensive profit or loss for fiscal year ended
Dacamber 31, 2017.

h}  Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

i) Consolidated statement of cash flows for fiseal year ended December 31, 2017,

it Notes to the consolidated financlal statements as of December 31, 2017,

k}  tetterto Shareholders’ and Reporting Summary for the financiaf statements as of Dacember 31, 2017,

1) Inventories as of December 31, 2017.

m)  Additional information required by Section Ne. 68 of the Buenos Alres Stock Exchange Reguiations.

The amounts and other information for the fiseal year ended Dacember 31, 2016 and 2015 are an integral part of the abave
mentioned financial statements and are intended to ba interpreted exclusively in connection with those financial
statements.

- RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's RBoard of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of:

a) the stand-alone financial statements in accordance with the international Financial Reporting Standards {iFRS), which
were adopted by the Argentine federation of Professional Councils of Economic Sciences ("FACPCE™) as professional
decounting standards and incorporated by the CNY to its regulations, as approved by the Internationa! Accounting Standards
Board (“IAS8"). in addition, the Board of Directors is alsa respensible for the implementation of all the internal controls they
may deem necessary to prepare financial statements free of significant misstatements due to errors and irregutarities.

b) the stand-alone financial statements in accordance with the Internationat Financiat Reporting Standards {IFRS), which
were adopted by the Argentine Federation of Professional Councils of Economic Sciences {“FACPCE”) a5 professional
accounting standards and incorporated by the CNV to its regulations, as approved by the International Accounting
Standards 8oard {"IASE"} In addition, the Board of Directars is also responsible for the implementation of all the interna!
controls they may deem necessary to prepare financial statements free of significant misstaternents due to errors and
irregularities.



SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S REPORT (continued)

{l-  RESPONSIBILITY AND SCOPE OF THE REVIEW

Our examination was made in compliance with the standards in force governing the Supenvisory Committee's duties set
forth by Technical Resolution No. 15 {FACPCE). Those standards require that the finandial statements be examined in
conformity with the auditing stantards in force, including the verification of the consistency of the documents examinad
with the information on corporate decisions recorded in the minutes of the Board of Directors and the bylaws in thelr
formal and decumentary aspects.

in order to perform our professional work on the documents detailed in section | above, we have considered the audit
conducted by Adier, Hasenclever & Asociados S.R.L., the external suditors of TGLT 5.A., whe issued an unqualified audit
report on March 8, 2018, in compliance with the international Auditing Standards (1AS) adepted by the FACPCE, through
Technical Resolution No. 32 and Notices of Implementation.

Such review included the verification of the work plan, the nature, scope, and timing of the proceduras performad, and
the results of the audit coanducted by such professional auditors, Qur work also Included assessing the reasonablaness
of the significant information tontained in the documents examined, agreelng its consistency with the information on
corporate decisions, as well as the compliance of such dacistons with Argentine law and the by-laws in their formal
aspects.

We have not evaluated the corporate criteria and decisions refated to the administratlon, financing and
commerdalization since they are the exclusive respansibility of the Company's 8pard of Directors.

We consider that the evidence obtained provides an adequate and sufficient basis for our professionai opinion,

tn additton, we have verified that the Letter to Shareholdars for fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 includes all the
information reguired by section 66 of the Companies Law and that, insofar as it refates to our area of responsibitity, all
the figures stated therein agree to the Company's records and other relevant supporting documantation.

In addition, tha provisions of Section 294 of the Companies Law have been carnplied with.

iv-  CONCLUSION

Based on our review, with the scope detailed in Section I, we raport that:

a) The stand-zlone financial statements mentioned in paragraph |, items a) to ) present fairly, in all
material respects, the finandlal position of TGLT 5.4, as of December 31, 2017, the results of its
operations, the changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in
conformity with the IFRS.

b) The consohidated financial statements mentioned in paragraph 1, items f} to j) present fairly, in aft
materiat respects, the consclidated financial position of TGLT 5.A, as of December 31, 2017, the
consolidated comprehensive results of its aparations, the consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity
and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with the IFRS.

V-  EMPHASIS ON CERTAIN MATTERS DISCLOSED IN THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Without modifying our conclusion, we wish te highlight:

a) The Information includad in the following notes to the stand-alona fimandial statements: i) Note 31 “Income tax and
deferrad tax” indicating that the use of tax losses will depend on the fulfilment of alt business projections allowing for
their recoverability; and 1i) Note 34 “Accounting policy used by the Company to recognize and measure the issuance of
convertible corporate bonds™ indicating that the Company's Management considered a portion of the amounts collected
as part of the Shareholders’ Equity.

bl The information included in the following notes to the consolidated financial statements: i} Note 29 "Income tax and
deferred tax” indicating that the use of tax losses will depand on the fulfillment of all business projections allowing for
their recoverability; i) Note 45; “Accounting poficy used by the Company to recognize and measure the issuance of
convertible corporate bonds” indicating that the Company’s Management considered a portion of the amounts collected
as part of the Shareholders’ Equity; and it} Note 48: “Desonsolidation of Marina Rio Lujén S.A.” indicating that the
Company considers that the contre! principle is not complied with; therefore, the Company’s share in Maria Rio Lujén
5.A. is disclosed under “Investments in Companles”.



SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S REPORT (continued)

V-

a)

bj

c}

d

€

f)

g

h)

INFORMATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS IN FORCE

The “Additional Information required by Section 8 of the Regulations of the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange”
has been fairly presented, in all significant aspects, with respect to the financial statements mentioned in
Section %, taken 3s a2 whole.

The financial statements mentioned in paragraph |, items a) to e) atise from the Comnpany’s accounting
records, which are kept, in ali formal aspects, in accordance with the regulations in force; except for the
transcription into the Inventory bock and the copy of the journal transactions for the last quarter, which have
not been transeribed as of the date hareof.

The stand-alone and consolidated financial statements of TGLT S.A, sre pending transcription into the
Inventory book, but otherwise comply, in the matters of aur competence, with the provisions of the
Companies Law and the applicable regulations of the CNY.

Inventories are pending transcription into the Inventory Book.

We have verified that the Letter to Shareholders and Reporting Summary for fiscal year ended December 31,
2017 includes all the information required by section 66 of the Companies Law and the CNV's regulations, and
that, insofar as it relates to our area of respensibility, all the figures stated therein agree to the Company's
records and other ralevant supporting documentation. We have no remarks to make as it relates to our area
of responsibifity; as altassertions about future events are the exclusive responsibility of the Board of Directors.

As required by Genaral Resolution No. 349 of the CNY regarding the independence of external auditors, snd
the quality of the auditing standards applied and of the Company's accounting policies, the previously
mentioned extemal auditors’ report includes a representation that the Intemational Auditing Standards
adopted by Technica! Resolution No. 32 of the FACPCE have baen’ applied and that they comply with alf
Independence requiremenss. In addition, such feport does not contain any qualifications as to the application
of these standards or differences from other professional accounting standards,

In exercise of our fegal supenvision duties, during this year we performed all the procedures set forth in section
294 of Law 19550 that were considered necessary under the circumstances, and, in this respect, we have no
observations to make,

we have performed the anti-money laundering and terrorist financing procedures set farth by the applicable
professional standards Issued by the FACPCE.

Aiberto Lopez (al







